K \ Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DASTRICT

FINANCE, LEGAL, AND ADMINISTRATION
COMMITTEE MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS, CHINO, CALIFORNIA

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 13, 2016
11:00 A.M.

Or immediately following the
Engineering, Operations, and Biosolids Management
Committee Meeting
CALL TO ORDER

PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board;
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise
authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code. Those persons wishing to
address the Board on any matter. whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to complete and
submit to the Board Secretary a “Request to Speak” form which is available on the table in the Board
Room. Comments will be limited to five minutes per speaker. Thank you.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirde of the members are present, a unanimous
vote of those members present, that there is a need to take Immediate actlon and that the need for action
came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted.

1. CONSENT ITEMS

A.
The Committee will be asked to approve the Finance, Legal, and
Administration Committee meeting minutes of March 9, 2016.

it is recommended that the Committee/Board approve the total
disbursements for the month of February 2016, in the amount of
$10,070,905.37.



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee
April 13, 2016
Page 2

2.

ACTION ITEMS

A. BOND COUNSEL FINANCIAL SERVICES RETAINER AGREEMENT
Is recommended that the Committee/Board:

1. Approve the Retainer Agreement for bond counsel and related legal
services with Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth (SYCR), subject to
the fees, terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit A;

2. Approve services previously approved and rendered for a not-to-
exceed amount of $30,000 related to the 2008B Variable Rate
Demand Bond Letter of Credit substitution, and completion of
financing agreements for regional projects to be financed through the
Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority; and

3. Authorize the General Manager or designee to execute the
Agreement.

B. ENTERPRISE CONTENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM CONTRACT
AWARD
It is recommended that the Committee/Board:

1. Approve Contract No. 4600002085, to American Microlmaging, Inc.
(AMI) for the Enterprise Content Management System, Project No.
IS15003, associated licensing agreement and the option for
conversion of back file documents, for a not-to-exceed amount of
$670,920; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.
C. CONTRACT AMENDMENT TO WEST VALLEY MOSQUITO AND

VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT FOR MIDGE FLY TREATMENT
It is recommended that the Committee/Board:

1. Ratify the contract amendment No. 4600001970-001 with West
Valley Mosquito and Vector Control District (WVMCD) establishing a
contract through June 30, 2016, for midge fly treatment services at
Turner, San Sevaine, Victoria, and Ely Basins for a not-to-exceed
amount of $120,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment.

D. PRADO BASIN HABITAT SUSTAINABILITY PROGRAM

It is recommended that the Committee/Board:



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

April 13, 2016
Page 3
1. Amend the reimbursement agreement with the Chino Basin
Watermaster for the Prado Habitat Sustainability Program to
increase the total program cost from $600,000 to $934,500; and
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the reimbursement
agreement amendment.
E.

EASTSIDE WATER TREATMENT PLANT
It is recommended that the Committee/Board:

1. Approve the sale of one Brine Line capacity unit to Eastside Water
Treatment Plant; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the Brine Line Capacity
Right Agreement.

F. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AWARD FOR SEPTIC USER

FEASIBILITY STUDY
It is recommended that the Committee/Board:

1. Approve the professional service contract award for the Feasibility
Study for Sewer Service in the IEUA Service Area, Project No.
PL16015 to RMC Water and Environment for the not-to-exceed
amount of $286,813; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.
G. HEADQUARTERS’ PERMIT OFFICE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
It is recommended that the Committee/Board:
1. Approve the construction contract for the Headquarters’ Permit
Office, Project No. EN16068, to Mike Bubalo Construction
Corporation, for $150,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.

It is recommended that the Committee/Board:

1. Authorize the General Manager to purchase the East Declez
property for the sum of $3.0 million on behalf of Chino Basin
Watermaster (Watermaster); contingent upon the approval by the
Watermaster Board of Directors;



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee
April 13, 2016
Page 4

2. Authorize the General Manager to spend up to $100,000 on behalf
of Watermaster for necessary fees related to the purchase of the
property; and

3. Approve a $3.1 million budget amendment for Project No. EN18007
in FY 2015/16 through an inter-fund loan from the Regional
Wastewater Capital Improvement (RC) fund to the Recharge Water
(RW) fund.

GROUNDWATER RECHARGE/RECYCLED WATER SCADA SYSTEM

It is recommended that the Committee/Board:

1. Approve the construction contract for the Groundwater Recharge
and Recycled Water Supervisory and Data Acquisition (SCADA)
System Upgrades, Project No. EN14047, to Trimax Systems, Inc. for
$250,989; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.

J. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE USBR WATERSMART
HriSTECOMMENT e At e Cormmittes/Board:

1. Adopt Resolution Nos. 2016-4-1, 2016-4-2, and 2016-4-3,
authorizing the Agency to enter into financial assistance agreements
with the U.S. Department of Interior — Bureau of Reclamation
(USBR) for three grant applications submitted in April 2016: 1)
Drought Contingency Planning Grant; 2) Drought Resiliency
Implementation Grant; and 3) Agricultural Water Conservation
Grant; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the financial assistance
agreement, any amendments, and any grant related documents
thereto.

3. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

A.  EISCAL YEAR 2016/17 TEN YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN
OPDATE

RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEM

B. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN)

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS




Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee
April 13, 2016
Page 5

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

6. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

7. ADJOURN

*A Municipal Water District

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in
this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary {909-993-1736), 48 hours prior to the scheduied
meeting so that the Agency can make reasonable arrangements.

Proofed by: E ':
. DECLARATION OF POSTING

1, April Woodruff, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District, hereby certify that
a copy of the agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m. in the foyer at the Agency's main office, 6075 Kimball Ave., Building A, Chino, CA
on Thursday, April 7, 2016.

Wﬂxi Rde
g»ﬂ\( April Woodruff 7




Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

CONSENT
ITEM

1A



N

( \ Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATLR YISTRICT

MINUTES

FINANCE, LEGAL, AND ADMINISTRATION
COMMITTEE MEETING
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS, CHINO, CA

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 9, 2016
11:00 A.M.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Steven J. Elie
Terry Catlin

COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT
Gene Koopman, Chair

STAFF PRESENT
P Joseph Grindstaff, General Manager
Chris Berch, Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
Christina Valencia, Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager
Ernest Yeboah, Executive Manager of Operations/ Assistant General Manager
Kathleen Baxter, Contracts Administrator
Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Manager of Finance and Accounting
Sylvie Lee, Manager of Planning and Environmental Resources
Jason Gu, Grants Officer
David Mendez, Deputy Manager of Construction Management
Lisa Morgan-Perales, Senior Water Resources Analyst
Jeff Noelte, Manager of Technical Services
Peter Soelter, Senior Auditor
Shaun Stone, Manager of Engineering
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit
' Jamal Zughbi, Senior Engineer/Project Manager P.E.
April Woodruff, Board Secretary/Office Manager

OTHERS PRESENT
Don Holder, Conserve, Inc.

The meeting was called to order at 11:00 a.m. There were no public comments received or additions
to the agenda.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS
The Committee:
& Approved the Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee meeting minutes of
February 10, 2016.

¢ Recommended that the Board approve the total disbursements for the month of January
20186, in the amount of $8,807,661.98;

as a Consent Calendar Iltem on the March 16, 2016 Board meeting agenda.



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee
March 9, 2016
Page 2

ACTION ITEMS
The Committee:
¢ Recommended that the Board:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-4, approving the use of the design-build method
for project delivery; and

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-5, approving a Conflict of interest Policy for
design-build projects.

as a Consent Calendar Item on the March 18, 2016 Board meeting agenda.
¢ Recommended that the Board:

1. Approve the contract award for four 5-year term Master Contracts for fencing
services, for the Agency’s structures and facilities in the not-to-exceed
amount of $100,000 each, to the following:

Ace Fence Company (Contract No. 4600002071)

Ferreira Construction Company, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002070)
Harris Steel Fence Company, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002068}
Moore Fence Company, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002066)

® & & @

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts.
as a Consent Calendar ltem on the March 16, 2016 Board meeting agenda.
& Recommended that the Board:
1. Approve the contract award for four 5-year term Master Contracts for asphalt
services, for the Agency's structures and facilities in the not-to-exceed
amount of $100,000 each, to the foliowing:

» EBS General Engineering, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002077)

o G.M. Sager Construction Company, inc. (Contract No. 4600002075)
¢ Medina Construction (Contract No. 4600002076)

e Terra Pave, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002067)

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts.
as a Consent Calendar ltem on the March 16, 2016 Board meeting agenda.
¢ Recommended that the Board:
1. Approve the contract award for four 5-year term Master Contracts for roofing
services, for the Agency's structures and facilities in the not-to-exceed

amount of $100,000 each, to the following:

« Best Contracting Services, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002074)
¢ Exbon Development, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002078)
« Rite-Way Roof Corporation, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002065}



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee
March 9, 2016
Page 3

o Tecta America Southern California, Inc. (Contract No. 4600002073)
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts.

as a Consent Calendar [tem on the March 16, 2016 Board meeting agenda.

¢ Recommended that the Board:

1. Approve Contract No. 4600002068 to West Valley Mosquito and Vector
Control District (WVMVCD) establishing a two-year contract for midge fly
sampling and control investigation services at various groundwater recharge
sites for a not-to-exceed amount of $280,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager, or the designee, to execute the contract;

as a Consent Calendar Iltem on the March 16, 2016 Board meeting agenda.

¢ Recommended that the Board:

1. Award a 15-month contract to ConServ Construction, Inc., for a not-to-exceed
amount of $300,000 to impliement the Program; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract;
as a Consent Calendar ltem on the March 16, 2016 Board meeting agenda.
¢ Recommended that the Board:
1. Adopt the Recycled Water Policy Principles; and

2. Direct staff to develop a Regional Contract Amendment based on the
Recycled Water Policy Principles;

as an Action Item on the March 16, 2016 Board meeting agenda.

& Recommended that the Board:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-1, authorizing the General Manager to sign a
Financial Assistance Agreement with State Water Resources Control Board
(SWRCB) for a Planning Grant application through the Small Community
Grant Program; and

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3-2, dedicating certain revenues in connection
with the Small Community Wastewater Grant Program and associated State
Revolving Fund (SRF) loan financing;

as a Consent Calendar Item on the March 16, 2016 Board meeting agenda.

INFORMATION ITEMS
The following information items were presented, or received and filed by the Committee:

& FY 2015/16 Second Quarter Budget Variance Report
¢ Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee
March g, 2016
Page 4

GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS
General Manager P. Joseph Grindstaff had no comments.

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS
There were no additional Committee Member comments.

COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
There were no Committee Member requests for future agenda items.

With no further business, Director Elie adjourned the meeting at 11:25 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

April Woodruff
Board Secretary/Office Manager

*A Municipal Water District

APPROVED: APRIL 13, 2016



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

CONSENT
ITEM

1B



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: April 20, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: ‘Finance, Legal, and Administration Commiittee (4/13/16)

Submitted by: @ythrisﬁna Valencia
Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager

j@z~ Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro
4 &'~ Manager of Finance and Accounting

Subject: Report on General Disbursements

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the total disbursements for the month of

February 2016, in the amount of $10,070,905.37.

BACKGROUND

February disbursement activity includes vendor payments (check numbers 212550-212910) of
$5,058,437.77 and workers compensation payments (check numbers 04429-04461) of $6,398.11.
The total amount of ACH and wire transfer payments is $5,004,002.50, which includes payroll
taxes in the amount of $660,497.45. The total employee pay was $1,287,276.06. The total pay for

the Board of Directors was $3,048.80.

r Payment Type | Transactions | Total Amount |

Check Vendors 361 5,058,437.77
Workers-Comp 33 6,398.11
Payroll-Directors’ 3 2,066.99
Payroll-Others 0 0

Subtotal Check 397 $5.066,902.87
ACH 151 $1,577,033.79
Wire Transfer Payroll-Net Pay 2 1,287,276.06
Payroll-Directors’ 1 981.81

Others 18 2,138,710.84

Subtotal Wires 21 $3,426,968.71

TOTAL 569 $10,070,905.37




Report on General Disbursements

April 20, 2016
Page 2

Payments to vendors this month above $500,000 include:

Vendor Amount Description

SWRCB 1,447,479.22 | SRF Loan Install-RP1 Dewatering Facility
PERS 741,074.47 | P/R 3 & 4 Contributions; 2/16 Health Ins

MWD 684,801.92 | December 2015 Water Purchase

IRS 553,905.18 | P/R 3 & 4 Taxes

THE AUSTIN CO 528,995.00 | EN15008-Water Quality Lab - 10/1/15-12/22/15

Prof Srvc

The report on general disbursements is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goal of Fiscal
Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for general disbursements associated

with operating requirements.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

The cash held by the Agency's various funds, including the Administrative Services (GG) Fund,
is reduced as a result of paying the Agency's authorized expenditures.

G:\Board-Rec\16096 Report on General Disbursements 4-20-16




9T0Z/60/20 YD ADKVEC ZAAI0D IAVEICOOS WITW [0V LT asn|stoe/»a/20|TEsTLO00ZE EGSEIZ
9T0Z/9T/20 Yo VNEOUSYd ONI ISEM SYOMIV|SL ETI‘T asn|stoz/ve/20}2052L00022 Z6SELT
9T0Z/0T/20 YD YLEIWMAW AISAVE HOHUCIANOM|007095 asn|etoz/se/zo|ssvzLoboEE TEETTL
3T0Z/60/20 YO YACQHOD OHONYY OMI ONTSSENIONE NILSEM{0L 0LZ3E asi|910z/20/Z0[€8%TLO00ET 0652TE
ST0Z/0T/20 YD STIIE ONIHD 00 FI14d0S SEIOM WAIvM MMELSHM |TLLEZ2'd ¢si|aToz/c0/EAlELTTLOGOZE GRSETZ
9T0Z/0T/20 YD ONTHOATHOIVEOAYT TYOILATUNY NHALSAM |00 CSE asn|etoe/ce/zo|vaveiocoze 8RBSETIZ
910T/SEfZO VD QLNHRVEIYS SHOSIAJY LSWCD 1SIM|00°008°6 JSN|9T0E/EC/ZO|E6RELO0D0TT LBSETZ
gTpe/en/en YD) SIAMEONY SOT A1ddNS AYVIINYS TINEM|ZT #L9°9 aSn|9T0E/E0/T0|ESPTLOODET 9852TE
9TAE/OT/20 ¥ YRO¥0D SSTE4XE STINOWYHIA|SO $06°ST USnR|9T0Z/T0/20 |vLYELODOZE S85Z1E
9T0Z/0T/20 ¥D SUYSVEVIYD ONI SUdIdnod AITTYA|98°ZBS'T dsSn|910Z/E0/20 |LLPELOODEE ¥85CTT
9102/80/20 YO VEQUEYd FOIANES NOILDILO¥d TYSEAINN|QZ G898 °C asn|stoz/e0/e0 |¥BPZLODOTE EBSETET
aT0z/0T/ER YD CINVING ONT SSCH S D{T8"599 % asn|oTnz/c0/T0|8932L000ET TRELTT
10T /ET/EQ ¥D. NIZEQLI SSINIDOSSY ONY HLIWS ISHEITHL|00°0SE asal|stez/e0/z0 |06vZL000EE TRGZTIT
9T02/60/20 YD ENIANI 'SEINIDOSSY CNW HLTWS IGSdINL[00°0€6°L asnlet0z/c0/20 |T6vELO00CE 08521¢
Stoz/60/20 IM ERIOYMASE NOIIWHOIYO0D 0DIUL|00°8To'E asnfatog/e0/Z0 |88k LONDEE 6LSLTT
8102/2T/20 ¥ OMIQUVNNER NYS THINAWNOYIANT ZIVIS IHL{00°SZI asnfeTnz/E£0/E0 |99 PELOODER aLsTIZ
910Z/0T/Z0 00 GOOMITIONT CONIVHL DAL{0070CS‘6 a50[910Z/€0/20|S6FZLO00TE LLSETZ
9T0Z/TT/E0 YO ONICHYNHNE NYS SAINIDOSSY ¥ NOSAOD WOL|e8°SLT 0T CEN|9T0Z/E0/20|697CLOODZE ILSETIT
9T0R/0T/ED ¥ AMANKCO SUSCATYHS BHL (00705 asf|9teefe0/To | vepELOOOEE SLSETZ
9TIZ/60/T0 L0 ALID EXWI ITYSVINSCIITYD 40 INVIWOD WHHOLVHL)|9S E66'C asn|sT0Z/E0/T0|S9PELOOOEE YLEZTE
STOZ/607/20 WD HOVEd SNOT TESLS TTIAL{0T 0T asn|9To0z/e0 /20 |09FTLO0DEE ELSETT
9162/80/20 ¥D ENIANI ONI 3080058 SWILSAS |84 £92°L asn|stoz/es/ze|zLveLo00ze ZLSZTE
9TOZ/LT/Z0 Y2 VISTANIK ONI SEITA¥ES IONG0¥d L¥0ddas|€6 €£0'T QSN |9TOE/EC/E0|ELYELOOOTE 15212
aT0Z/2T/20 ¥ HOVEH JHOAMEN JNI ROIINONAY LHOTTIYES |00 S96L°ET asn|stToz/EC/20{I8¥ZLDOGEE 0LSETE
810e/60/20 TI COYDIHD ONI ONILIGSHOD DALNVLS |¥e 2Z8'ZoT GSi|9T0E/E0/20|BLYTLOO0ET 595ZTZ
ST0Z/60/20 ¥D EOWTIIA EAWILSEM INI AddnS ¥ HdI1d HLIWS |62 0SE'L CSn|sToe/E0/20|LabEL000EE B9SZTZ
gtozfot/zo ¥O SHTHEONY SCT TuNIS ¥ LAVWS|ZZ'SLT GS0{910T/E0/E0|BSPELODOEE L9SZIT
9T0Z/60/20 TI WYHHLS TONYD ONI AMISRONI SHAWRIB|%.L'S80°S asa{9T0e/E0/Z0{9BPELO0O0ET 995ZIL
9T0Z2/80/20 YO IeEu¥cd HNWI a8d|90°TSe’T asn|etoe/e0/20{6L¥TLO0OET £9821e
9102/60/20 Yo HONVE0 DTEIDJITI FTTUSTIOHNM TYAOH|SB E€LL’DT asnietoz/c0/20|LSPELODOZE PI57Iz
910Z/60/20| V) NEHUD IONTYM INIKNONIANE ONV Y3IUM JWI|ES 215’1 asi|9TeE/E0/T0|DLFETLOOOET £9GZ1Z
sipz/eze/zo Y2 EOANDRYDND OHONVY dNOED YWH|SE94€ asn |9toez/e0/20|95%2L0002E 96212
$102/01/26 ¥ TISTASEEYVE SHTYLSHARE STH|SE'19E°€ asit|9Toz/eC/Z0{Z6¥TLOOOEZE 195Z1Z
9T0T/9T/ 20 ¥D CINWING AE% ¥ MDOT WEA|00°0%L Gsii|910z/E0/20|TSVZLOGOZE gaszTz
9T0Z/60/E0 VD ENIAMI DNILINSNOD JH9|60°L1S'#E csa|gtoe/E0/E0{TLVELDCOEE 65CETE
9I0E/86/20 YD UNIAOD ONINOILICNOD NALYM SENAWI[05°S¥T €80 )aT0Z/E0/20|SSHELOGOZEZ 114 44
9T0Z/0T /20 WO ISWHEH SEAINED HAITAWHS ¥ HMIL UHOWMM[E9°SL0'Z asnlatoE/e0/20|FSHFELOOGTE LSEETE
91oz/80/zZ0 ¥ STIIH YNNOWT ORI SUSNIMYE JOHMONd |SL°EE6’ST asn|91ez/e0/Z0|0LFTLOOOZE 855212
9T0E/BO/EC YD VINYLILY JNY ENAGATOL |59 4€E'%T asnj91oT/E0/20 | EIPELOOGEE G5SZ1Z
9T0E/60/%0 ID R¥AENYd O DNINEENIONE DJWd |6L ZTP'T asn|eToz/E0/T0 |65%TLOOBEE F2-1-14 £
STOE/60/80 Yo NOEREFTTINd EOIA¥ES CUOH SHiS8LAd[LL 60F'Z. O0sS0{9T6Z/E0/20 |198ZLOO0EE E55Z(2
8T02/80/20 I OSYDIHONI SEONHINS HITVEH MEWIENINYHEL (67 LIS QSN |9L6Z/EQ/20 |ESHZLODBEE zsse1e
oToz/ez/E0] YD OINYLNO 00 WHHSINOWTIXE HuId OTHVINO|0Z ZTLO'S OsSn|9T0zZ/EQ/TO0(ESVELOOGEE 155212
SLOE/80/20 Yo SETEONY 50T LOJYd HOISA0|T1 PE0’E asnlaroz/eo/zo|esrEL00082 h1-1-14 £
pTos ) BL apes aFent proafiverdioew] oLy TRl uodae Anzal suep iuk Hepul dg G OWDNT CLMIMEGE MTBTS
..... *B
TPILOTTER ADFRD Jaqune 320v
GPTSEZELT Aay yueg
0000TILTE VO OI¥VIND MNYE SSENISNE SNIZISID adq0 yued

ks iabed
HLYEHS H £21- 743
ZEiE0:S5T /  9T0Z/¥I/ED

Ie3ETbIY ¥osYd

000t =2pod Aweduc)
¥D 'OuTD
Aoueby- rT3in 237dws pueTul



9tez/it/zo WD VONOWYDOND OHONVE AdM GZLTNN SYIdWH ONINI |06°95 asn|etoz/v0/20{09SZLO000EE LEIZTT
¥D STIIH ONIHD NOILVIDOSSY . SEEROTAWA WONHI|00 88T OB )9T0E/¥0 /20 |ESSZLO000ZE 9E£9ZTE
9T0g/9T/T0 VI SENICW S8Q SEOIAWS LIJH¥D LOJET BWOH |99 6ZT asn|stoz/va/z0|T0SZLO00ZE GE€92TZ
stoz/e0/eo YO ONIHDEDILSWIE THINISOONT NOIONINHVE|6%°0LT asn|9Toz/v0/20|00SELOCDET PEIZIE
sT0E/80/%0 ¥) STIIH ENIHD NINSYC "FIVH|%6 ¥80°'T asn|9t0z/%0/Z0 | 18SELODOZT EESTTEZ
atoz/e0/e0 T OSVSTIHD ANYAWOD HOWH|6G9L9 2T asn|eToz/¥0/z0|2ZSZLOD0TE ZEIETT
9T0Z/81/E0 ¥3 STIIH ONIHD NOSYC "A9D|00°0€ QSR |9T0E/e0/ZO|ELSZLO0IEE TEBETEZ
9T0Z/60/20 T ANIIVIVd YHONIVED{I? 8689°'L asn|9toz/v0/20|805ZL000EE DESETE
9T0Z/20/Z0 OW SINOT IS DT HSYN HIANAG YENGHVD|L9 08% asn|otoz/p0/E0 |SESTL000ZE 6Z9ZT2
stoe/T1/E0 ¥ STIIH ONIHO NYIEdY 'ZIODSEHNA 007807 ASN|9T0E/50/20|BLETLODOZE :}4:T4 %4
4T0Z/6T/T0 ¥ OINEWYHOVS (uy0d XYL ISIFDNUNA |ST SL8'1 ash|9t0Z /0 /20 |895ZL000CT LZ9ETE
9T0ZT/OT/Z0 YD WNINGS ANVEWOD dAEIMM YNIINCI(997t6Y asn|etoz/v0/z0|055ZL0002E 9ZIZTZ
9TBZ/OT/Za S ¥3 ONVEAG QIAVA ‘YEHLYEMAIV |00 00E asn |9ToZ/P0/ /20 | PESLLO0OLY SEIZTE
9TLZ/E0/20 ¥, INIAHAVESONI ‘fIWUOILIATYNY NOLVE SNIAQUOH|N0°SET asn|9T0zZ/y0/e0 |9ESTLOOOTE yZ9TIZ
9IpEfLT/EE YD STIIH ONTHD BAZLS 'HI13{90°8% asN|9T0e/¥0/20 |8LSZLOOVET EEZILLE
g1oz/e0/Z0 YO WIEHYNY NI 'SHOTAZQ "HOIWIHD-CUIDETI |29 £8E'2 asn|9toz/v¥0/E0|LESELOODZE Zroziz
s10Z/1T/E0 WD FUISNVEOD ONI SWHISAS YHIYM E ¥ QLT SEL°EL asi|etez/¥0/2o|TPSELOOOEE TE9ZTT
9T0Z/E2/E0 Y3 VONOWYDND OHONWMOTHISIO ¥ZIWM AZTIVA YONOWYDND|0a 000°E asn|etoz/v0/20{0TSZLO000EE 144 %4
91T /60720 YD STTEDNY SOTOTHLSIO H8IMM AZTIVA UDNOWYDAD|D6-88¥ asn|9Toz/¥0/T0|LYSTLOOOTE 6TITIT
9toe/L1/2o WD UEISNIWLISIM SNOILOTOS ALIMNDHS HH¥D (ST 8LE asn|stoz/ve/2Z0|0ESTLEO0EE BISEIE
8T0Z/ET/Z0 MW DYWOLOJIVIDOSSY EDNIDITIRINT HEINAWOS|0S 120 ST aBn|8tT0Z/9¥0/20 |PPSELOD0TE LT9ETIE
910E/60/20 55 VIGWNTORNSNI INSAIOSY ¥ 417 TVINCOTOD|SS ELS asn|stoz/¥0/2e|£952L00022 9T9Z1L
s1nz/eo/co W) HNEEA W1 ONI SNOILVOITHAd 2YAYD|00°61%°L asi|9toz/*0/e0 |PESELHOOZE S19212
groz/it/ee YD OTEVING OTHYING JO ALIZ|L6°TTT'S asi|9Toe/¥¢/20 6052400022 PIIZIZ
s10z/80/TC ¥) ONIHD ONIHD J0 AXID|TT 2 asn|9ToZ/e0/T0|SPeELo0z £E9ZTIT
ST0Z/60/ZC ¥D HEOVHE ONOT STLVIDOSSY SHAXOTAWA ALID|00°ELE asn|9I0Z/v0/T0TLSTLO00EE ZYIOZTIE
9T0EZ/80/20 HO IZUANIONIODNOT AISAVS 7 IV LSUIF SYINID|L0°Si asi|9Tes/vafZ0|6TSTLO00EE TTIETE
9T0Z/IT1/20 2¥ YINEOH 0STROUT NOILWHOMMOD SUINID|T8 S6Z°L asn|sToz/¥0/20|92S2L0002E 1141494
g Y2 STIIH ONIHD TTODEDS HOIN STIIH ONIHD|00°052°T. as|9toe/ve /20 |EZSTLOO0EZE 609212
9108/T1/20| Vo NIVIDLNOWNOLIVANESNCD HELYM NISYH ONIHD|0G 08% asn|etoz/v0/zo |ETSZLOOOZT 80921
9ToE/L1lED VO OLNEWYHIYS SUHANTISNT OTIOEUD |90 €€2 9T asn[9Toz/#0/20|519TL000ZT LOSBTIE
9T0Z/ET/T0 ¥ STIIH ONIHD TEHVHOIN ‘OEXGAND |[t27%61 asnietoz,/y0/2ZC}9L85EL0002ZE 93921z
91GE/60/20| ¥ ¥NFIVSYd 'SHIDOIQNHIEL dEIVA YINSOITTYD €S 62E° T asn|9T0z/70/T0 |0YSZTLOO0ET 509212
9T0Z/0T/E0 ¥D OQINIWVAIOVYS 17 STIDHIVYES VINNOITTYO |00 000°D 8 |9T0Z/PC/Z0 |RESTLOO0EE yO9ZTIZ
atoe/z1/Z0]| VD GNYTEVO DOSSY INEWNONTANT dRIY¥M ATTYD (00 #3T as50|9Tae/¥0/E0 |TTSZLA00ZE £0921Z
810Z/80/20 Yo STIIH QNVTICOOM INSKNIVIMAING D018 ONITIINH|00°SL6 asn|sT0z/v0/20|LESZLO00EE 209212
9T0Z/0T/Z0 YD STIIR ONIRD NINY ‘NYHONCH 0% ZOE asn|sToz/v0/20 |Z8SELO00ZE T0921Z
910z /0T/20 ¥o INYEIYSTTYD 40 KDIIYIDOS5Y ADYENHOTIE|00°005°C asn|9Toz/ee/Z0|6ESZLO00ZE 009212
9T0EZ/60/20 YD QIUVINODGS INHWSIN0DE ¥ dWid -ZLVLS dYEd|F0 Zté asn |10z /ve/Z0 |86 TELO00EE ({17414
YD STIIH ONIHD OTANOLNY "ONIAGITVE|[00 00E asn|9eTtoz/vo/Z0|ESCLO00ZE 8652TE
910Z/T1/E0 YO BOISHEATY ONI ‘SHIYGLYICEYT XDODSVE |00 0LZ as{aT0Z/P0/TO|TLSTLELOET LESTIT
910Z/60/20 00 HONVE SONYIHOIH "ONI ‘°S°71 SIGUDHEVY £S5 £9T°'19 asnj{eI0z/v0/T0|EPSETLODOEZE 9652TE
910Z/60/20 YD ¥SHA LSOO INI TYDIINVHIEW dWY |00 0%T'E asn|s10Z/70/20|62SZLO00EE {31444
9T0Z/LT/20 XL SYTTYOIEASNI FAIT FOULIMAH WYOINEWY|FPT1'6EZ asnl9eToz/v0/E0|ZSSLELO000ET PESETT
LIPS FLOT ITEER T VInAS MRTATIGR | (3 pund D AJLD] VIRG i gk e W2 BATT ARIOEN BD
. RISAD
T¥ILITTIEE ADIHD Jacunu 300y
GPIPEZZTT Koy yueg
0UD0TOLTE YD OIUVLINO ANVE $SINISNG SMEZLILID - gg0 yueg

z iedwg
HELVEHS b =1
TTIEO0:ST / OTDEZ/PLI/E0

zazeTbay ADSUD

0001 epon Aueduod
¥D ‘outyd

Aouaby 7730 SIxtdug pueTul



910Ez/21/E0 VD STIIH ONIHD NYINE ‘ZYLLYO |00 98¢ asnistoz/Y0/Z0|ETBZLO0DEE 1EITTE
9T0ZT/LO/E0 ¥ STIIH ONIED HTISHODN 'NATEE.0Q|¥0°F1 asSn|9T0Z/?0/C0{ZTIZLO0DEE O89ETZ
ST0E/TT/20 YD STTIH ONIHD YNAYS ‘YIDNYN |00 862 asn|atoee/v0/Z0 | bTIZLO00ET GLIETE
aToZ/2T1/2Z0 Yo SITIH ONTHD YNIL ‘HS¥0M |00 0SE gsnjstoz/vo/Z0{0THZL00022 8LIZTZ
9ToZ/60/20| AR SYDEA SYI ZINDSHEL VIXVW|00 898E asnistoe/vy0/e0|T09EL000LE LELIZIZ
9T0g/La3/€Q ¥ EQISWEAIY ONI ‘EN0¥D TENNOS¥Ed DLLANIN{GO bE0'T asni9T0z/v0/20|vES2L0002E L5212
91qe/so/fen YD STTIH ONIHD TYISAHD ‘REEIH{00 6¥1 asn|sToZ/ve/Z0|609EZLOOOZE SLO2IT
9102/11/20 Z¥ X¥INSOHA 0STHOOT NOLLVEOJHOD SYINID|TZ'TLE asn|9Toe/#0/20|€652L00022 PLIZTZ
atoe/s0/zo ¥ STIIH ONIHD WNIL ‘SNEHO|G0 8 asn|eToz/v0/E0|R0ITLE00ZE £L52T2
310Z/01/20 T3 WIATH TUISANC TIT ¥OTAVL H TEWD|£9-L%t asnieT0E/v0/Z0|009EL000EE zL9Z1Z
¥D STIIH ONIHOS AWVINSWITE HONVE CTIaJ4ESLLOS|€E°¥85 asn |9T0E/v0/ L0 |Z65ZLDOOEE TLIETE
atoE/LL/e0 ¥D STIIH ONIHD XATY 'SETHEODNEY|LE 992 asn|stoz/vo/z0|909zL00022 oL9zTE
SToZ/60/T0 YD STITH ONIED ANWWISOY ‘OOVMVATY (BZ TTE aen|9ToZ/¥0/20 |S09ELOCOEE (1174 %4
9102/91/20 ¥D STEIH ONIHD WYHOY ‘THSVIWIV |00 0SE den|9T0Z/%0/20|TT9ZLOOGEE 8992TZ
gTaz/otT/en Yo STITH ONIHD YOHSOL ‘dYIIOSW[0C 0SE asn|sToz/v0/20 #0592 L00DEE LISEIE
¥ UDNOWWOLRD CHONWY DNI 4n0¥D SEOIANES ASTY YAOK]|SL 68Y 'V asn|sToE/v0/20 |ECSELOOOER 999ZTZ
s10z/oT/Z0 YO CISIMHOW ALSAYS ZORIOANAOM{00 08T L asn|9ToZ/¥0/ES | TESEZLODOET SS9LIE
ST0Z/11/20 XL SYTTWA SNOTIVIINOWWD) NOZTHSEA{66 ¥0E asn|stoE/P0/T0|TSSZLO00EE F2921E
9TOE/TT/ R ¥L SYTINT VIMSOJITYD NOZIWHA|8€°950°'T asn|stoe/+a/E0|8¥STLO0OET E€99ZIZ
STOE/TT/E0 YD STIZH CONIHED LYSHTY 'NETIANTHENYA |66 6ZZ asn|sToe/»0/20|6L5ZLODOET Z9921E
§T02/60/E0 I TTIIAYTEYN ONI DNIITINSNCGD LIEA|QS 8EZ AEN{9T0Z/¥0/C0|ERSELODOZE T99212
sT0T/01/20 WD VINVIIY NOIIVIAQH 40 INSWIEVIId S0|15°9¢E asn|9Toz/¥0/ 20 |ZISEZLO0QOZE 099212
9102/80/20 Y2 INOWIHYIO aMW SAHTIVA AS3HL[00 0% asn|9T0z/v0/e0 |LTSZL0002E 659212
stoz/oT/20 HO ONYTIIAST) ANVAWOD NILSOW FHL |00 'S66°82Z3 asn|910Z /#0/20|STSEL000EE BE92TZ
9T0Z/0T/Z0 VI YONOWYIND OHDNVY ATICH ‘ONYTMOIBLS|0e'000°E asn|9Toz/v0/20|985EL0002ZE LE9ZTZ
sI0z/07/E0 ¥ OVANESCY NOSIOE J4ITND OS |26 €ZZ2'0% asn|stoz/v0/20|6252400022 959212
9702 /60/ 20 D ONIMNVNHHEE NES AINNOD CNIGIVNEEHE NVS|00°SLY asn|stoZ/¥0/20|8TSELOQOZE SG9ETE
910z/0T/k0 YD STIIH OKIHD NHOL ‘KOSTHON 0% ZLS asn|9Ttoz/v0/zZ0 |SLEELDOOEE PE9ETE
9ToR/TT/Z0) WY WEOYSYd WYEe0dd BEYD WHEL HNOT S93d {86 0L asi|9T0z/v0/Z0|S9824L00028 £59212
YD STIIH ONIHD X:MVH ‘ZI¥IL|{00°9% asn|9ioz/v¥0/Z0 |0BSELDO0ZE Z59Z1Z
9T0Z/0T/Z0 ¥ KOLTOO ONI TIVIEd OLOY WTHd|0% 9%6°1 asi|9ToZ/+0/20 |GESELOOAZE 159212
9102/80/20 ¥ OTEVENCGOD SEILITILG TWIIDINOW OTAVING|TS %S asn|stoz/va/z0|9%SZLO00ET 0S9ZTEZ
9T0Z/BZ/T0| ¥D HONVY TITHIOOd HHIWM ODSIW|O¥ PTT'T USE|9T0Z/90/20 |TTSELO00RE 6pIzIE
ST0Z/80/20 YO OINVING ENINVIE LNIOACIM|9E 6E asn|9T10Z/v0/2C|9TSZLOQ0EZE 8%9ZIT
9T0E/60/E0| Z¥ XINZOHd FOVOUDIM|ov S%E’BE asn|310E/90/2C |BESZLOU0ET L¥9ZIE
atcz/Lt/eo WD ANYTIAN YWTY ‘SIHINW|€6°¥9F asn|s1oez/v0/Z0|SBSZLO0DER 9IPITTT
$TOZ/9t/20 I OOYDIHD Z4I7 WESL-SJI7 NIOONIT(0¢ $#5T asn|stoz/v0/z0 6952200022 5P9ZTE
3T0Z/11/20 ¥d YIBIIHAWIIHd £0 ANVEWOD SONVENSNI HJIT|LE PT9ET asnisTee/vo/20 |L9SELO0RZE rH9ZTE
9T02/01/€0 WO YOV CIAIHSIYOIT|0B 6CE asn|stoe/?0/26|[0LEZL000ZE E¥9Z1E
sT0Z/60/20 1) UNEOYSYd YIUIONIW YDINCH |09° 162 asnietoaz/vC/20|vISZLO0DZE ZPIZLE
9T0z/z0/En|. ¥ STIFH ONTHD FIAY °‘SHNOD|OS5 LT aSn|9TOE/¥0/ 20| LLSELOOOEE 1é9ztE
91o0EZ/60/20 Yo SATEONY SOT SWALSAS dEMOd NOSNHOS 897 BSE asn|eToE/30/20 |E0SELO0DZE 0F9ETE
9ingz/etT/z0 W2 VNCT YITY WELSAS FESIIVE HIVLSHHINT (96 3LE asn|9T0g /%0 /20| L0STLOGOET 6E9ZT2
9TOZ/8T/20 WO RAIBEAAINSYOLIANY TUNEIINI 40 BINIILSKI |0 0L£T asfn|sToe/v0/Z0|¥2SELO0DEE BEYTIZ
Ffiar Snug GLUD TEEWES oAy Aoty o0 Bl govoug Aany| enwen Aswg ATBAA o O WOLT el apEsr.
AdAgy
T¥9L9TTEE ADEHD JequnU 3209
: EPTPELELT Aoy yueg
0000TSLTE YO QIIVING ¥NVE SSANISOH SNIZIIID H€HD jueg

£ :abeg 0001 =poo Awmeduon

HLYZHS ;w80 ¥o ‘ourys

zTED:ST [/ 9T0Z/¥I/E0 xeaeT63Y osuUD Abuaby- 1TI0 SxTdug pueTul



STOT/ZE/EO ¥I SENIOW SHE0 SIIIAMHS ILICEYD Lodad SWOH|Z0 188 asn|eToz/TT/Co [LP9ZL000ET GELZEL
St0E/T0/€0 Yo OTHVINDG dROHMS NOLIDBEASNI $HaQIFH|0Z 2507 asnietoz/TT/Z0|B89ZL0002T FELETE
9TOZ/BT/Z0 Yo ONIHOSDIXSWTd TNTEISNGNT NOLONINNVH (¥ IS4 asniatoz/IT/C0|9PITLOCOER ETLETZ
9TQE/LT/ED I ODVDIHD ANVAWOD HOWH|LS'00T'E asn|eToZ/IT/TO|E£992L000ZT BZTLEZTE
ST0Z/LT/E0 I ANTINCIYE MEONIVHED|E8LSE asn|sTozZ/TT/E3 |TSYELO00ZT TZLETE
910Z/E0/E0 ¥ ATHORTYd SANYITIIW00 JOaYT HIVNLS NEATOD|00 SLT'T asn|eToe/TT/20|¥9924L0002E 0ZLETZ
9TIZ/5T /20 ¥D SHTIONY SOT OIATINSTDS WHHSIS|8L760C'Z asn|9ToZ/T1/20|SFITLB00ZE 6ILELT
9102/8T/%0 V3 WITHYNY ONI EK1ddns ¥ E41d S53d9dX3 €2 bev't asn{stoz/TT/20|853TL0002T BILETZ
9TGe /LT /EC AL INIAHAWEOONY “IWDLIATYNY NOLVE SNIJ0WDNE|00°0ET asn(oT10z/TT/T0|I85EL000EL LTLETT
9T0E/Z0/EDR TM YCTYE4NSSEL 3 DNIFINSNCD TUINIWNCATANS (00 98E asin|91ee/TT/2C[G692L0002E ILELE
atoez/Lt/en ¥ OLNEWCEOVEXI VARG INTWAOTRASA LNRWAOTAKE [0 E0b'E as|9Toz/IT/E0|8692L000C2 SILETE
9T0Z/LT/Z0 VD WIHHYNY NI 'SE)IASC TeOIWIHD-OWIDEIH|EZ 206'T asn9T0e/TT/T0|EBITLIO0EE YTLELZ
910g/2z0/E0 Z¥ XINEOHd SO0 SENSWMNEISNI NOLIOHSLAT|6% SST asn|9toz/Te/z0|0L52L000EE £1LZTZ
93102/LT/ED ¥ ISS¥0d TNV DNISWIOVL XEOMNDISEG |00 LE8 asn|910z/1T/T0]{GLIZLOCORE ZTLTIZ
910 /BT 20 V2 OJWON “TOMINGD LSAd 5., YETEIEHM AIAWI|80° €95 asn|9toz/TT/es{6L92L0OD0EE TTLETE
9TpEZ/et/Z0 YD STIEONY SO SHI 'ANYAWOD NOTVLW|9€ 08¢ asn|9toz/TT/E0{Ev2ZL0002E oTLELZ
9102/22/20 Y2 SWIVE QNYSHOHI DKI SAVOANYT SANESKOD| 0% 6LL’°EBL asG|9Toz/IT/E0|0692L0002Z 60LZIE
9TOZ/8T/Z0 YO YLEITINN OKI ROTIOMMLENOD ANESNCGD|LE 890°LL GSn|910E/T1/20|089ZL00027 BOLEZ1E
9TOE/LT/E0 H OSYSIHD 00 LNEWONISNY MEWdvd §I0D (98769071 asn|ezog/IT/En|ErscLou0ee LOLETE
9T02/9T/20 ¥D ONIHD ONIHD 30 ALID|T1'S00°€E asn|e1o0T/IT/E0|1682L000CE 90LZTZ
9T0Z/9T/20 Z¥ YINHOHA 0STHI01 NOIILVHOSHOD SYINID|68'TTE'E asn|stoz/IT/e0[EL9ELOOOEE SOLETE
9T0Z/61/20 ¥D NCIAOONILINSHOD NV ONI¥FENIONT JSYD|0€'98T asn|s1ee/IL/20[E99ZL0002E P0LZTE
9TOZ/81/20 ¥ YHONOD AJAINYS JIAWATOTMD |TL°LOT asn|aTez/IT/Z0[959TL000EE E0LTIE
9TOT/LT/Z0 ¥ UNEOYSYd ‘STIDCIONHOSL YaLwM VINNOIITYD €0 L0%'ZT asn|sToz/1T/20|S892L000CE ZOLZIT
9T0Z/LT/E0 YD WNY VINYS SEJIINEAS SNOTUVEVH YINSQATTYD| 0070507k asn|9t0e/1T/Z0|LI9TLLO0ET TOLETE
9T0Z/T0/E0 ¥) OINIWYUOYS TWAIDINAW 40 AISID0S ATIMD|00°0TT asn|stoz/rt/ze|es9zL0002 DOLETZ
9T0E/LT/E0]. Y5 NOITCO JTHL08TH IANTRLINE S8 TES asn|9TeZ/TI/Ze |TY9EL000EE 669212
aT0Z/BT/20 Y2 HOVEE ONOT SDIANES aNvH) SovEd|00°T196°'T asn|9t0z/TT/T0|8E9ELO00EE 96HZTE
ST0Z/8L/TO o EOYEE ONOT OOANH| 2 TiE asn|9Tez/IT/20|9992ZL000EZ LE9ZIE
9T02/91/20 YO VINYILY ONT ENOZOLOY|99°BES‘T asn|etoz/1t/20|E892L0002E 969Z1TE
9T0Z/8T/EQ XL SYTTed TELNAWNCHIANG STEI00 SE29°C asn|eTtoz/1E/20|6892ZL000EE 569ZTE
STOZ/P2/Z0 YD YHAGYSYd ONI ISdm SYONIV)98°B60°C CSn|9T0E/I1/C0|8vITLE00EE PEIETE
9TeE/ze/E0 YO VONOWYOND OHONVAI ADOTIONHDSL TYOIWIHD THINVAGY|[0C-06F asn|otoz/11/2018L92L00022 £69ZTC
STOZ/6L/20 I3 MNIAVH MAN ONI QEYaNYISOODY|[LP 10T asn|sTez/IL/EC |$SIELO0CEE E69ZTE
9T0E/0T/E0 AN ANVGIVY S62U4XE SCIMITHOM|E0 985 '€ asn|9toez/ve/20|1652L000ET IE9TIL.
s10z/80/E0 74 ONWIENYT GEOL AHIYMALSUYM CNY NALYM|00°0LT asn|stoz/vo/ro|cseszLo00EE 06921T
3T0Z/0T/20 YW EES00THD TYNENOL IAHULS 'TIYM|E6°L asn|9toz/v0/20|605ZL0002F E89ZTE
910z/01/28 XL SYTIVG SSETINIM NOZINEA|EL STZ’S asn|stoz/po/z0losszLo00zE BHOZTE
910g/T1/20 ¥ YNOYQD JS/IMBEIY HDIANHS CONNOWSWECNN |00 BSE asn|stoz/v0 /208852400022 LBOLIZ
9T0Z/LT/E0 ¥D) ¥avd XAMEINOW SVD AITYD OS|T8°STO asn|91oe/30/20{L652LC00EE 999218
910Z/0T/EC WO AYENASOY NOSIME ATTYD CF|LT 096 1T asn|eToz/v0/z0|9652LGU0ZE SRIETLT
groz/Lijee VD STIIH ONIHD NHGE ‘HEKNIMS]{00°0SE asn|910g/p0/2C|EC9ZLOCOEE 589212
9102/80/20 Y3 STIIH OANTHD CHICWLII ‘STFIYSOH{66 6%Z asn|stoz/vo/Z0|E092L0002E £89Z¥C
9TQE/TT/E0 ¥ STIIH ONIHD CQUWHOIY ‘RH0E50{00°05€ asn|stoz/v0/20|L0SELOODET ZRIETT
LA S ] SPOT WCREHRT PTG TR dTa] oy YR LUBOuN £2E0| acepr wRnGad qeBedRg U ORI LRI {7
W
TPILOTIEE XIFHD Iaqunu 320y
ePIHETZET Aoy pued
000CIBLTE YD OIUVIND ANYYE SSANTSNE SNEZILID gD wuvd
¥ :abed 00917 @pon Auedwod
HIVHEES : X880 ¥D ‘outyd

ZTIEOIST [/ BIdE/¥T/ER

TasThbay ¥oeud

Asusby- t1an sardws puertul



910Z/52/20 VD OIWVWING ONI STUINIY ALID|68S°¥9 asn|9ToT /et /Z0 |LELELOOOEE 69LZTE
atOz/80/E0 WO VOROWVDNZ OHONWY WENCWYDND OHONYY 40 ALID|00°0%S°LBZ QSN |9T0Z/4T/E0|6ELTLOOGEE BOLEZTIT
at0zZ/5z/R0 YO HIVAEE DNOT SEIYIDOSSY SEHIAOTIWE AERID|00°¥6E asn|3tez/eL/Z0|66LTLODOET LILETE
9702/5E/E0 ZY XINAOHSE OSTHIOT NOILWMOSMOD SYINIDIBC ' TTS'Y asn|stoz/8T/Z0 |89LEL0QUET S9LETE
YO ONIHIIQ TOOHDS QETAIND AHTIYA ONIHD|9% €bT asnisTNz /ey /en|LSLZLO000RE 59LZ1E

atoz/ce/E0 T4 ¥EATY TYLSAND ITI MOTAVI 3 THVD{E9°LPL asnioTeE/A1/T0{00BEZLODOET F9LZTE
otoe/ezfen ¥ YNETYSYd ‘SEIOCIONADNS ¥EI¥M YINMQSITYD|(€2°0T279 asnfetoz/et/2z0 |TaLELO00ZE L Th 444
a10z/9g/20 YO aANTIIVYO JOSSY LNEWNONIANT ¥HIVM JTTWD 00 BEE asn|stoz/8T/Z0|0PLELOOOZE z9LZTE
RS A A Faa ¥D CLNEWYHOYSNOIIVANESROD AALYM NVEYD AITWD | VL 6E5°ET asn|eT0Z/81/T0 |ETLELOOOET T9LEIE
s10E/SZ/E0 ¥D WNYINOd ONI SATELSOANT ALSWM DELHENA |95 IP1'8 090 |9T02/8T/E0[E6LELO00ET 09LTiE
STOZ/20/E0 ¥D ¥SEW VIS0D STTITYINGEAE AMZLIIVE]06°8EE asnl|etoz/eT/Z0|PRLgL000EL 6SLTTE
9T0Z/E2/T0 AN SYDEA SY'I N SOIHAVED WWH|TE 6EF'L ash|sToz/eT/Z0 | PALELOOOZE BSLETE
9T0Z/E2/Z0 YD SONTMES HS VIANS 0D H0SEFU4W00 NYOINIWM {E6°3€T asn|9toZ/BT/Z0|T%LELODOZE LSLTIT
9T0Z/Se/E0 YO VIODEWHL ¥AWE DIdIDVA YLTV|E6 T¥B'E asn|9Toz/8T/20|SBLELO00EE 9GLZTEZ
2102 /%2 /o ¢ SONYIAHY "ONT *TYSINYHOIW NOSITTY |29 ¥6E ‘0§ asn|9toz/8T/T0|EALELODOZE SSLETIL
9TCE/TH/E0 ¥D YNIavsyd ONI ISEM SUSUIV|69 TEv'EZ asn|sTez/RT/Z0|EELELDOOEE VSLEIT
9TOE/LES/TD X SYTTHA SNOLLYOIMOWWOD ROZIFHA|SL S8BT asn|oTez/IL/T0|9692LB0C2T €SLTTE
9102/LT/20 XL SVTTWI VINJCJITITYO NOZINAA|89°LTR asn|9Toz/TT/Z0 |EA9TLO00CE gSLETE
grez/at/eo O ALID SUSNYM SWEISXS IS=Td WIDVAOA MNWE 90|80 PBE'L OB0|9108/TE/E0|LL9TLO0CET T5LTIT
9T0Z/L1/20 OW SINGT 1S MNVE S N|89°LEE'SE asn|o10z/TT/20|{¥LOELO0OEE 05LZT2
9TOE/EE/TO ¥D STIIH ONIKD 480 ‘LIODOYHL ST 6L gsn|e10z/T1/E0|TOLZLOOOZE 6¥LZTE
9T0E/9T/C0 C3 WHANSU WODETAL ENUWM HWIL |35 506 asnjetoz/Ti/eo|se9eL0002E 9BLZTE
910Z/61/EC| OW FEOWILAVEWSNW HOUDOSTd NYWAH ¥0d4 AJHIJO0S|007061 aspn|atpe/Ti/es]TLszLo00CE LWLETZ
910E/Lt/20 Yo QVARESCOY NOSIEE JITHD OS5|S6 6LL°T GSN|9TOZ/TE/Z0]{%692L0C0ZE IFLEIZ
91 0Z/ZH/E0 YD) STIIH ONIMD NYI¥E ‘HOVd|COL BEZ® asn|etez/Ti/zole69zZL00022 SFLZIEZ
9Tgz/eT/T0 ¥J OTHVINGOD SIIITTLEIO TUEIDINMNW OIIYINO|S6 EQZ’E asn|sToz/T1/20|2692ZL0002E PRLTIE
9IOE/9T/Z0 WO SETEDNY S0T 10dH¥d HDYSJ0|ST LET asn|sTez/LE/Z0|vPoZL00DEE EFLTTE
STOZ/61/20 NW STTIOMYENKIN KISEOIIHD 204 HEIVEHL TYSOIIWN|00°00C°LT asn|stoz/I1/20|599ZL00022 ZYLZIE
STOZ/LT/ED ¥ YISATHANWOIIVOTLSHANT SSENISOE TUNOILUN|00°SZT asnistoz/IT/Z0 | 1992L0002E THLETZ
9102/2Z/20 YD BCISHAATE SOTHIWOOHAAY NOISSIM|6Z €% CSn|9TaZ/IT/20|6YSZL0002E ovLZIZ
IT0E/PT/ BT Y0 HOSWA TTITHIOON ¥AIYM ODSIM|DE £15°T Qs0{9T0e/TIT/En|2S32L0002Z BELZIEC
9T0Z/91/20 ¥D OIXYINO OMINVIR INYOJATA|8E 828’1 asn|910E/TT/Z0|6S92LO00EE BELETT
SToZ/LT/Z0 Y XINSOHd ZOWODIN|oo-spe*S asn|etoez/TT/g0|v89cL000ET LELZTE
9T0Z/LT/ 20 TI COVITHY 0D ATdENS duv¥D-HEISVHOW(T6 %01'T asn|e16z/IT/20|LS9EL000ET 9ELETT
9T0Z/LT/20 ¥O TIYSKOENT “HSYM XD(MI S.¥HISIS TILIZI|D0 89 asc|9t0g/IT/E0 9897480022 SELETE
9To2/6T/E0 Y0 OTITHYAYD 'ONI ‘ONTUSENISNZ AWOGNIT)0P €56 °2ZE asn|9toz/I1/20|489ZLO00ZE yELETE
9TOE/LT/SEO YD WOMIT VWO SNISTINFAQY HYAVI|00° 000 ET ‘asn|etez/TT/2T0|9L9ZL000ZE EELETE
9T0E/PE/ 20 ¥ STEIE ONIHD NEAALS 'ASIWT|%6°Z8 asn{eToz/IT/Z0{00LTLO00ZE ZELZIE
910z/LL/E0 YA DENESIDTHIAEAT SHOSSHYIHOD EESIVE |SLESE asn|910z/TT/E0|699ELO00EE TELETLE
atgz/eT/E0 V) STIIH ONIHD FIAY ‘SHENOCLI66 TTO'T asn|9To2/IT/E0 |Z0LELOOCZE DELTIE
9T0ZT/6E/ 20 Yo YWO'T Y31V WELSAS AWALIVE HIVLISEELNC (86 8ST asn|eToz/TT/E0 |059TLO0GEE 6ZLZTE
IT0Z /2T /20 ¥D SNTIANIONI SHIIANES NOTSAQ JEIVHOHLNI|SL7695°F% osSn|916Z/TL/E0 |ELIELDOGET 8ZLETZ
9TQE/HT/Z0 50 NOLONTHSYM SEIDHIVAES TYEEddd HAIIWAONNI|85°109°9 asn|9Toz/1T/T0 |8992L00022 LTLZTT
¥D STIIH ONIHO NOLLYIDOSSY (SESA0TAWA WOHY(00°TT asn|9ToZ/TT/Z0|L69CLO00EE SETLETT

SLuD VORRRI LOa/ R MisRn| (22) prEd ennay CAD| e admd JUBRLA B Ty WEA,  TRQETE ¥y

© o b S Hy

THILITICE ADEHD Jsquina 380y

6FTPELEZT Asy jueg

0O0DIBLEIE YD OIHVING ¥NVE SSENISHE SRAZILIID g6 yueg

5 i96vg 6001 epoo Auediuod
HIVEHS s 2360 ¥2 OuTiHD
zgi€0:eT / 9TOZ/YI/E0 Ta3sT6ey YYD Aousby- 1730 SITdug puetul



3T0Z/EC/E0 Y3 ¥SEW WISOOD 477 dEMIGL ¥ ONYION|£0°ZSE asn|etoe/8T/Z0|TLLELO00EE €IEETT
9TO0E/¥2/20 Yo CNVEN ZYOLS HOHS ONIM JIE {6t 61 asi|9T0e/81/20|TSLELOGOTE zz8z1e
8T0Z/62/20 ¥D STIIH ONIED QIAVO ‘NUWN3d|8¥ €S aen|9Toz /et /e0|T08ZLOD0EL T78ZIE
9T0Z/TT/ED YD OTHVINCHISIO TOOHDS ¥TWIOLNOW-OIMVINO|SS 95E asq|9tez/eT/e0|25L2L000ZE oTeeie
9T0Z/EE/20 ¥D OTEYINOOD SIELITMILO TYAIDINAW OINVINO|0S 9EEZ’¥ asn|etoz /8L /20 |L8LELO0GEE 6CBTIZ
atae/se/zo A STIIASINOT YDIMEWY HINON SHEIY¥M FILSAN|6T 169 asn|etoz/e1/Z0|04LL2L0002E 908212
a1gE/eEfen WD VISTH¥AROIINOILSHANI SSANTSOE TVROIIVN{00 S¢¥'T agn|9T0%/91/ 20 |65L2L000ZE Logetz
9Tge/ve/en ) VINVIIV FDIAEHS SUOLSEANI 5,KQ00W|00°00C'8 asn|atoz/8T/E0{BELZLO0DEE EDL: 1444
aToEfER/20 ¥ Nd¥d NIMOTVENI 07 ROLIOONLSNOD OIvand EXIN|Z67918°007 asn|etoz/21/C0|S3LETLOVOEE =3 F: 14 44
9TOE/ZE/E0 YO OT¥VINOG ONINYHH INIOJOIW|TE EGE AS|9T0Z/8T/ZO0SLELOD0EE w0BEIE
9T9E/52/20 AN SONYAdNYH OO0 YIEENY WHOMEW |[58°§9T°T asn|eToE/8T1/20 |LLLELOOOER E08ZIT
9102/5%/20 TI 09YHIHD 0D XTAdNS YIVO-YYISYAIM | ZL°1S asn|stoz/8T/C0|LVLELOOORE Zo9zZIT
2102 /02 S EG YD WISHUNY ONL I INIWNONTANT SUVW{00 260°9 asit|5T0Z/8T/CZ0|ELLTLODOZE T08Z1E
9TOZ/ECFE0 AKX SVOIA 5Y7 ZEAOSINd YINVW|00°898Z ast|ST0Z/81/20|TO8ELO00ZE 008ZLE
9Tge/¥2 /20| T3 TWYIW DNI ¥adnt|ss oss QSR |9T0e /8 /20 |U9LELOODRE 66LEIL
910z/%2/ZC ¥ XINAGHd SEWIL SETHONY SOT|L9°2¢T asn|9toz/8T/Z0|SELBELOD0ET g6LTIE
9T0Z/vE/ED ¥ YNEAYSYIILATOS SSANISHE YITONIW WOINON|66°50Z asn|ozoe/aT/zo|zeLEL0002E LELZIE
9T0Z/€C/ED V) VNSOYSYd VITONIW WOINOM|T¥ SOL'Z asn|stoe/8T/E0{EPLELO00EE 96LZTT
9TDE/ET/ED YA DUNESHDTEHMCEYS SYOSSHNANCD YASEWE |72 188’81 asn|9102/81/20|99LEL0GEE S6LTTE
9TDESEZEZ/TO ¥2 STIIH ONIHD YANIT ‘NOSKHOC|€8°LB0'T asn|etoZ/8T/e0{¥08TLICDET VELZTE
9T0E/EE/20 W) QUIANODSADNI 0D NOIIDNNSNOD ONWILA ¥ [|6T 6LL'6ET ASN|8TeZ/ETLEO|TELELDOOEE £6LEYE
9t0z/cz/E0 ¥ LONTYM ONI NOILDMMISNCD VIHS 4 I|92°8£5°G asn{sToz/81/E0|SVYLELDDOZE Z6LTTE
9102/6Z/ED YO YWOT YIIY WEISAS X¥allvE SILVISHHLNI (80 862 asn|9T0Z/8T/20 |EELELDOVEE TELETE
st10e/se/zo W3 ENTANIONI SEOTANAS NOISHO GHIVEOZINI 6T 8807€ asn[910Z/81/Z0 |LOLELOOCZE O6LETE
5102/52/20 YD VONOWYOND CHONYH AWM dILINA FAIJHT GNYINI($0°32 GSN|9TOE/8T/Z0|96LELODOEE ERLZTIT:
YD STIIH ONTHZ NOILVIDOSSY SEIEA0TAWT YNET|C0°9B8T asn|9etoz/sT/Z0|S6LTLO00ZE SBLETE
STOEZ/SZ/E0 YT SINIOW SEU SERIAHAS LITSHD 1O4Hd HWOH|99°628 asn|eToT/81fT0|0ELTLO00ZE LBLETEZ
95102/YZ/E20 ¥D SEIEDNY SOT SWALSAS LJ4IT ENNOHIMWE|LE BTG T asSn|910%/8BT/E0|9PLELOOOCE 9RLETR
atQez/rz/e0 Y0 ONIHDSJOILSYId VIMLSIANI NOIONINNYH |29 §ZE°Z asn (9102 /RT/20|62LELOOOEE SRLEZTE
9T0L/ET/E0 T ANILIVIvd SRSNIVHDiES 66E'T Cen)o10z/RT/E0|PELZLOODES VBLETE
STCE/¥2/20 VD SHTEONY SOT ONT STLI0H TYHANHED|ZT ST asn)eTee/8T/C0|LELELGODZE £8L4272
9T02/62/20 WO OLNINYHIOYS GUY0S XV HSTHONWIA ST 948°T asn|{s102/9T/C0|B6LELOOCEE ZBLEIEZ
9T02/62/20 VY YNYINGIDIYISIA TOOHDS CHIJING YAWINOA |00°00S asn|9tez/81/Z0 08LELOOOEL T8LETIZ
aL0z/62/20 ¥ NOIAWOD J900 Y3118 HOMEE0Td|16°Z86 as|s10z/8t/T0{8YLELOOOEE 98LZTZ
91DZ/ZZ/Z0 YD STISONV SO DIJLLNHIDS HHHSIE|FL 8LS GS0|9T0Z /81 /EC {BZLELOOGEE 6LLETT
9Tog/cz/Eo X1 ANIASIVESONI “TYOILATYNY KOIVE SMIJOERH|00'SvL’8 geEn|9TeE /Rt /E0{BLLELROOTE BLLETE
9T08/EEfE0 YD WIZHYNY ONI "SEJIART "TWOIWEHO-OHLIATF|Z9°8TT asn|stoz/BT/E0{6LLELOO0ZE LLEETR
aToz/az/ea ¥ SYLINIONS ONT SIIVIDOSEY ¥ NSCAT|0£ LEP'92 asn|9Toz/e1/20|965LZL000ZET SLLZTIT
$T0Z/22/20 ¥ QYDIVO SETYS H0TANAS TIIC|SH LEE asn|910Z/8T/20 (TI9LELOONEE SLLETZ
stoz/ez/eo YD VAIVOOKA JNI JI¥IDATE SIAMU|LE SEZT 6E asn|9T0Z/8T/Z6 |E9LEZLO0OZZ vLLZTIT
9T0Z/%2/2C ¥D OONON ‘TOUINGD 1584 §,¥ETESHM GIAW |G0°050°T GSN}3T0E/BT/Z0Q|SLLELOODET ELLETE
9102/T0/£0 Y2 STIIA ONIHC SNISWYId 5.EAVA|0C SET asalsIpe/ei/z0|69LEL00022 ZLLZIT
3T0Z/6E/20 ¥ SGISNYED0 DMI SWEISAS MIIVM H % Q|097F¥8Z°T asn|{9Inz/BT/Zo[Z8LZLOO0EE TLLETZ
910Z/1T/€0 ¥ HTYCNIMEI DNI SWALSAS Dd2{00 G0E’'T ASN|eT0Z/8T/20|98LELODDEE OLLZTEZ
PTLA, W AP0 TOSBST Fiies) TWERTCSN| (T pred ureowd K| arer swny U AF oA DT WA ADIEPTS WTgTl
S — G I LI R - L =t
T¥ILITIEE ADEHD IBqWALE 3I0Y
6PTHEEZET Ay jueg
000QTINLTE ¥ OIEY.IND WNYE SSENISNH SNHZILID ;=] yueqg
[} rabed aooT epod Auedwa)
HIVHHS s 1980 Y2 ‘ouTyn

ZETEQ:GT / 9TCE/VI/EC

xaas1bay MoSD

Aouaby'Tran sxtdud puRTLl



T0Z/10/€0 I ENTIVIVA HEDMIVAS|YZ ¥IL‘9 OS0|9T02/SESEG|€962LODQRT LSBETEL
9I0Z/TT/E0 VD QOSIONWEA NYSOLLVEENHD ADMENT YH NOLIMINROd |48 7FT'T asS0|$10Z/S2/20|ROCELOOOEE 9EBEIZ
Vo UNWUINOS BMEN OIVHEEH YNEINOL [05°0LT asa|9TnE/sSZ/T0|8962L00022 SYBTIE

9TOE/LO/ER DO NOLAWCD JHOD HBLTI4 EDNIHOTd |£%° LGS asn|9Toe/sT/20|8L62L00022 ¥SBZIZ
9TOR/Z0/ED W ENYHEOS ONT SWALIAS OId|05°60€°T asnleTozZ/SZ/Z0|ESE2LOD0ET ESBTIZ
9102/62/20 WD STTEONY SOT DITATIINSIOS ¥HESIA|LZ 6TIZ°S asnfsTez/se/ee|2s6zL0002E Z258ETT
9T2Z/10/€Q N DENEEDRVEE NOIIDONHISNGD NISYCO VU IINIAA |[PT STIT'Z% asn|[9T0Z/SESZO|ZO0ELODOTE TERZTZ
9T0Z/60/E0 Xo ENIAFIVEOONT “THOTIATYNY NOLYA SNISQURE |00 S69°T asn|(9T0Z/SZ/Z0|LEEELOOOZE 088212
ST0Z/Z0/€0 ¥D ODHON FICNLNOD LSEd S, ¥ETEEHM (IAWQ|B0£T0°T gsn|9T0Z/SE/E0|REEELONDEE &¥8ZIE
5T0Z/%0/EQ YD STIIH ONIED ONIERITd S.FAYI|00°SLE asn(stoe/se/20|166EL00022 8v821IZ
st0E/E0/ED YO OTHMING ONI S'TVINEY ALID|CO'SE6 asn(sT0z/cZ/Z0[0SEELOC0ET LYBETE
9T0Z/%0/€0 YD YIVIDLNOWNOIIVAMESNCD WIIVM NISVE ONMIRD|TT LE6T'T asn|910z/Se/EZ0|0LEZLOOOEE 9TETTT
9T0Z/62/20 ¥ YNHCYEYJ ' SETDHOTONEDAL MEIYM YINNOIITYO (2T 20586 asn|910z/SZ/20|000EL0002E S¥8ETZ
9T0Z/80/€0 D ARY'INY0 DOSSY INEKNOMTANT AIWM ATTED |00 8ZF asn|Stoz/SE/E0|696EL00DTT PYEELE
STOZ/T0/E0 YD ONIHD ONI MOTIE J|08°STL'S asn|9T0z/SE/T0|966TLO0DEE EF8EZTT
3702/T0/ €0 40 NOLONIWTIIM CHVS SSENTSOE|T8 #eL'vI asalstoz/cz/feo|ececLoonze ZHBETE
) YO OUIVIY AHAVHDHOLOHA LIANING{LL 86 aBNiSTOZ/SZ/20|LLE2L000TT TREZTZ

9I0E/10/EC Y2 NOLTCO DIULO®TH SANTHLIVNE |6£°LTZ”0T asn|(sToz/sz/zo|6¥6eTL000ZE OFBEET
9T0T/¥0/ED W ATTIANOIOIA VKNY ‘OISHH|€E°ZLT as0|910z/SZ/Z0|0TDELDOOCE GEBZIE
9T0Z/Z0/ €0 ¥d VIHGTEAVIIHd D171 HENLOIE (0L E€IZ T OS01|9TO0Z/SE/Z0|E66ELODOTR SEBZIZ
9T8Z/10/E0 YO VINYIIV JNI JANOZOLOY|$S TOT'T as(|9T0Z/SZ/20 |REE2LO00EE -LERETZ
2T0Z/E0/ED ¥D SYSYEYIYD DNI WYWIV|00'022 asin|atoz/sE/e0|vEEZLODOZE IERTTT
9TOZ/Z0/E0]|. VD YNVINOS X7dd0S TYIAISNANT dYsv|19'%9T°1 aASN|9TOZ/S2/20|5662L00022 SEBZIE
9T0Z/20/E0 ¥ VYSHW VILECO INI TYDINYHOAW JWV|00°005°E asn|eTOe/S2/20|2662LODOZE PEHTTIE
9Tag/L0/E0 VO UNIAYSYE ONI ISEM SYSUIV|PI 6ED ‘9 asn|eTez/Se/e0|8S6ZL000ZE EEBZTE
9TLZ/EZ0/E0 YD SOLIMMED DNI ONISHANISNE ¥IV ALVENIOV|ES ZZh ‘6 asnf9T0Z/ST/Z0|bLEZLOGOTT ZEBZTIT
9192/52/Z0 ¥ STIIE ONIHD 4430 'NIAGSNHOHIZ |HL 96E'T as0|9T0Z/81/Z0 |E0BTLOQOTE TEBZIE
atoz/ez/e0 AN ANUEIY SSEY4XE TAIMITHOM|TZ'EES‘T asn{aToz/eT/E8 |ZOLZLONOEE DEBETLE
sTQE/ee/en YW NCLSOE NOTINMACHA LIEWNOYIANS MSIVM|[00°SEZ asn{sToZ/8T /20 |9ELELOAOET GZBZ1E
stoz/sz/eo XL SWIIV] SSEIOSIM NCZIWHEAI#0°HBL ‘0T asn|sTozZ/e1/EZ0[ESLEZLO0OZE BZHZIZ
3T0Z/52/ED XL SYTIVG SNOILVOIN(WWOD NOZINSA|TF vEL asa{9tez/eT/E0 |T6L2L0002L Lz8zie
9Taz/sz/ED XL SYTIVI YINMDATTYS NOZTHHAA|98°809 ¢ asn{o1ee/81/Z0|88LELDOOEE gzezI
a10z/E€2/20 XL SVTIVA SSENISOE NOZIWAA|I6 6EY asn{etez/s1/z0|Z6LELDODET SEZBTTIEC
atae/vz/z0 VO VINWILY SOIINONCGA J0 INAWINYEIQ SO|T5°9+Z asc{9tse/eT/e0]{L6L2L00022 5414 44
3°0Z/2C/20 ¥D SEIEDNY SO JN0ED TYSIAIW SHMOMHLTIYEH S N|0C TH0‘E asaigtoz/eT/E0|SSLEZLE00EZE EEZBZTE
910Z/PT/ED Mi SITOAVENNIW WN MNWHE S R0£'QRS asil|yToe/BT/20[85L2LO002E 2Z9Z1E
9T0T/ 92 20 T8 VEWYL YEISVH A8 SONNATvIoL|on-0os‘t CSn|stoz/et/E0|ZLLTLO00ZE TZ8ETEZ
s1oz/vE/Z0 ¥M COOMNNAT ONI SWELSAS TYOINHOIL|00 ET6'9L CSn|9T0Z/8T/T0|P8LELDOOET oreTIE
stoz/ez/ee YO OLNAWYIOYS HOIdd40 DNIINCOOOY SOUMS|EZZ 6Lb LYY’ T gsn|etoz/er/eo|vsLzLon0ee 618272
9T0Z/EN/EQ YD ¥i¥e RFEALROW S¥O ATTND OF|vE E2e'® oSn|9T0Z/8T/20|06L2L00022 8TRzIZ
916Z/Ez/e0 V) OVEWES0Y NOSIQE JITND O5|£€°19Z°LL aSn{9T0Z/eT/Z0[69LTL0002E LIBETEZ
9toz/ve/eo ¥J) STIZONY SOTIND % ENOVAWYD ‘VIHHNd IIONNIS %2 LLE‘L asi|9 0 /81/2Z0|9LLTLO0ORT $IBZIZ
atnz/vT/Ee YD ONTUUNEEE NYS SHOTAMSES IMN0D S,\AJTIFHS|ZL°9LEZ asn|5Z0z/BT/Z0 |FP6LELO00ZT STQZTT
oT0Z/62/ED Yo ONIQEUYNYGIE NVYS ALNIOD ONIGIUNJZE NYS|00 0S% ‘S asn|9toz/81 /20 |SLTLO00ZT [ 28: 2 ¢4
B v s ey Ausg| meep g TR R SRNEL T
.......... ) Byw yevewyrree Freas v P . i SRR i
TPILITIEE IaCuinu 300y

6FIVEZZET A9y yuweg

0000TISLTIS WD OTAUVIMD ANYE SSANISNH SMAZILIOD Jyuey

L :sbeg
HLYIHS 1 xasn
TTIE06T [/ 9TO0Z/PI/E0

ISTHEY YOOUD

0007 spon Auedwo)
¥ 'outyo

Aouely: 11i) dxjdug puetur



9T0E/T0/E0 ¥ ONV'INNO 00 SIO0aoud H4VHS|0Z°ST82°S asit|sToz/sz2/206TDELIOOEE TOBEIE
91GZ/%0/E0 ¥D 1EWIH S¥IINSD HADITAFES ¥ TUIL VNOWWYE |€1°F9E°T asn|ST0Z/SE/EC|LTOELOCDEZE 00621T
910Z/20/€0 YO NOTHETION FDIAYIS QY0¥ 5.338d4|06°650°T asn|eTo0g/sZ/e0|8T0ELADOZE 668212
STOB/PO/ED YW NOLSOE NOLIVEAQEA IMIWNOESIANE EILVM|00°SET aSN{9TOE/SE/TQ[LSEELOOOZE A68ZTE
9TOE/E0/ED ¥D UNOEOD SSMMANH SHINCWYHIA|90°59%2Z asnisTozZ/sz/z0 |E86TLO00ZE LEBEIZ
910z /E0/EQ X1 SVITWI VINGOLITYD NOZIHEA|9Z°PsSE asn|$T10z/Se2/e0|900€L00082 96BZIZ
9TQE/VO/ED YD KOIONIWOOIS IINRIEN|%v 292 asf)eTee/sT/E0|L86ZL000TE S6BEIC
9T0Z/TO/ED YD OIHYINO ONI S350H S (1|67 °£5£°2 asf|9tez/sz/Z0|186ZL000ZZ y6821E
ST0Z/T0/E0 WO GWYDNITINE ONT GUAINL|00°008°T Q50 |9T02/62/2C|TO0ELO00EL €GBTI
318Z/T0/ %0 I ORYOIED O QL7 dNCHD NeDIDINE SHL|Z8 T4 ‘€T CSn|9T0T/SE/G0|666ELEDOEE Z6BZIEZ
9T0T/T0/ €0 0D WEARZJT ONI HOEL WHIIL{EF 9FE‘S GS0|9T0Z/52/20 |P9ETLOOOTE T6BTIE
JTOE/E0/EQ YO OVERAROHWGD NOSIQE WINMOJINYD NESHINOS{TE6 Fet L asn|9t0z/92/Za|SLEELOOCEE 068212
3T02/20/ €0 Y YVH ANOWYId aWlv ISYOoD HINO0S{685 TLE'TL asn|etoz/se/20|9962406022 £88ZTZ
910Z/T0/€0 ¥D QVSIESOY NOSIIH SI'TNND 0S8]%0°80L°2Z%C asn|9Tee/SE/E0|L00EL000ZE 8E8ETE
YD YONOWYOND CHONYY SN032O YWH]00"558 aAsf|910e/5Z/c0|LS6ELLDOET L88TTT
9102/20/€0 T4 ETTIACHQAMTID DISNITECT GEVHOIM{EL TOL'E A8 |9T0Z/52 /20| ¥00ELOO0EE 988T1IT
9I8Z/F0/E0 YO IHWEH SNSINGD EIIANES ¥ MMIL YNOWWI|6T 992 Csn|9T0Z/SE /T 956 EL0G0ZT S8BEIT
9T0E/20/¢€0 YD CNIHD STENLIGKEANA HSYD ALLIA|[00°98€ CBOf910Z/S2/28 |2962L000CE v88z1e
9TOEZ/EZ07ED ¥D NOIMSTING TIIANAS OWOH S.8I84|ST 9861 asS0|9T08/ST/EAj096ELODOEE E68EIZ
STOZ/E0/E0 ¥D STIIH ONIHD NAHSALS ‘MEXEVL|$9°698 asn|sToe/s2/20 |STOELODOZE F4-1: 5414
STOE/6Z/Z0 YD OINMYINCGD FHILITLIIA TYIIDINDK QINVINC|E8 €V asn|8T0E/52/20|S00ELDOOZE 188212
9T02/T0/E0 V0 OIKAWVHEOVS 417 NENAHSTA 8 IHOVH NCSTIO|0s8°822 asnfstez/sz/eo|ze6TL0002E 088212
3TI0E/6Z/20 YO SETHDNY SOT LOddC EOIdJ0(8s°9ZE'2 asn|9tes/se/zo | 1S62LO00ZE 6LBTTIZ
9T0E/TO/E0 WD ¥WIOOYd STVINAY NOTIOCHISNOD T¥NCIIVN|0T S66 CBN|9T0Z/52/Z0{606EL000ET SLEBEIEZ
9T0Z/€0/€0 YD HAISHEATY SOIHAVEOOHASY NOISSIW| 00 E#6 G50 |9T0T/SE/E0|E6SEZLOO0DEE LLBETIE
W) AMD HOTA T HEWIH ‘WETIIN|(90°9IL USn|9teZ/SE/20[ET0ELOOORE 9L8ZTE
910z/62/20 YD OINYAIND ONIYVIE LNIOGOIW|ET £92 gen|otoz/9e/20 [6LEELO00ETE SLAZTE
9T02/T0/€0 TI COYDIHD 00 ATddNS ¥uMD-¥BISYWOW|69 BTF T as|9T0Z/SE/EO |SLEZLO0OLE LEETE
STOE/TIT/EQ WD VIAGENOW ONI SWHLISAS DUR|08°616 aen(ST0Z/SE/Z0 [596ELO00DEL ELBEIZ
STOZ/T0/E0 D UNETYSVAILNIOS SSANISNT YLTONIN YOINOM|[LE"SZE‘T asn|s10Z/52/£0 [£L6ZL0002E TLYZTZ
9T102/10/£0 . VO YNEAYSYd YITONIW VOINOX {09 162 ASG{9T0Z/ST/Z0 |ELETLO0ORE TL8Z1Z
s10z/62/20 YD OTUVIROIIVIDOSSY ONY AHUOW WYITIIM £|00°000°E asn|sT0Z/SZ/E0|TLEZLEODEE 0LBZIZ
YD YWOT VIV WELSKS AWELIVE HLVISIAINT |86 8ST asa|9Toz/S2/E0]T962LOD0EE 698Z1T
4O ALID EAYI JUIYSILSNT LNIWSSIASSY TUNOILVAMEINI [00°§9 asc|stoz/sz/zo|9sseLonoEE 898Z1E
STOZ/LO/EO ¥D ERIAMIONY SSOIAMHS NOISAQ CFIVIOAINI|0% LBE asn|910z/52/E0{0662L000ZE L98212
9T0E/T0/ED YO SSGADHONANIONA 'TYIMLSAONT 20 ILALILSNI|{00 68T CSN|9T0Z/SEfE0|88e2L0008E 998ETE
9ToZ/LO/ED ¥ YNEINOS DT ASNENBOIE QIINI|PE 880°LY asn|9Toz/SZ/Z0|600ELOOOET S9BETEZ
ST0Z/T0/ED YD OIZUVING ANVAWODS ATddNS TVINISGUNT [£2°$LT'T asnieT0z/sc/e0|086zL00022 vSBZIT
¥2 STIIH ONIHD O HSSEP ‘NWALTIAOH|00 L asnivTog/ez/en |vIoELDOOZE £98Z12
3TGE/ED/ED Y2 AHTIYA VODNA WYITIZM ‘ANACH|9% 69F asn|9T0Z/52/Z0 |TTO0EL0D00EE Z98Z1E
9T0E/E0/€0 V1 SENICW $3C SESIANAS LIAN¥ED LOddQ EWCH|oz TOT'T as|9TNE/ST/Z0|SSEZL000EE 198Z1Z
9tT0z/€0/€0 VD ABTTYA 3749Y UNWIA 'SEEO0H|{9%69% CSn|9T02/92/Z0 |ETOELGODEE Q98212
9TDZ/10/ED V2 ONIHOSDILISYIS 'TYIELSNCNT KOIONINUNH|8S S65°4 OS[|3T0R/SE/Z0 | VSE2L000EE [1-1:}9 34
9T0Z2/10/E0 TI ODYIIHD ANVAWOD HOVH|B3 Z3E£°69 asn|9taz/se/zo|5862L0002E 9SYELT
E RO s TR Aol IOFERT Prea/ane it ] ion ored Cawwy Frap| #wawp 2awes UL BT ST OGS AT adET
" EREe oo - .. . B 2 0 Ctohoooocebeoaocon - NN R S S
TPILYLILE UIHHD IqENUT 30DY
6PIREZTZT Aax yueg
Q000TILIE YD OIUYIND ANVE SSENISNE SKEZIIID [ :w] yueg
] tabeg £a01 epoo Awedwod
HLVEHS saesn Vo 'OUTUD

ZTEDIST [/ PTOE/PI/ED

zaistheyd Aoad

Aousby {730 sardaeg pueTur



LL LER'BGL'S asn YD poylaw Juswled .
ITOE/TO/ED AK ANYEIV SETA4IXH HIIMITIOM |28 BSY dsi|9tez/SE/Z0|E20ELO0O0EE 0T6ZTE
9T0g/T0/E0 YO ENIANI 477 SNYAS THEIQ NOSTEN BLIHM|00'S5S9°S§ asn maonxmuxnn STOQELBOOEZE 60621Z
9T0Z/T0/ED ¥D STIIH ONTHD €GO X1ddns S¥MOM ¥AIYM NUSISHM |¥6°I2¢ asn|stoz/se/T0|0T0ELDDOZE 806E1E
9TQZ/ZO/EQ V3 HOWHE SNOT ONI 00 NMOELDAULSROD JISVH ¥ M|EZ2 bLE‘0SZ asn |3T0Z/SE/ 50 |Z20ELB00EE LOBZTIE
9toz/zo/co YD YNOYOD SSEMAXE SEINCRVAIA|ZT ¥#¥Z'I¥ GSL|9TCE/SZ/Z0|TTOELOO0EE 906212
IT0E/6E/20 ¥ VEINVILY 2717 ISENOITLIR (€L €ZL'E asn|910Z/52/Z0{9Z0EL000OEE 506712
9T0Z/LO/ED ¥D SNIA¥I ‘SHIVIDOSSY NV HLIIWS IJ9ATZL{SL°T190'% asn{sT0z/SZ/ZR{BTOELODOEE PO6ZIE
2Y0Z/TO/ED I OSYOIHD OT1 GFT -J00ED NUWNOIdH HHL|SE 108 °91 asn{9TiE/SE/Z0[LE0ELOQ0EE F06Z1Z
9T0Z/TO/ED VD ODHIO NYS SSHTHENIM NNS|6€°%SZ'E9 CSN|9T0E/SE/Z0|PECELOODEE ZCETTZ
Priad vaty AENS REEDT TTM LI | (Da pied LG Foa| ey gtaig rUSMAEF TUOWONIE CRFLLT T

..... = - ) . HIiany

TFILSTTIEL ASEHS ASgunu 300y

GFTFEZEZT Lay yueg

0000TILIE WD OTEVING ANVYE SSENISNG SNAZILTD :i: ] ARy

[
HIVEHS

zZE0:ST /

rabeg
I3
9I0E/PT/50

I2s1Bsy osyp

0001 9poo Ausducs
. WD ‘outud
Aoualby - 11in aardug pueyur



¥

LL LED'BS50'S

ash

m

roui] (D4 wred uurn

T

ADAl

ot
HIVEHS

B-T:1-X}
1 I98n

ZTE0:ST / 9TOEZ/VL/ED

asas hay yPeyD

saTIjua ITe FC TeI0L



it

TI°B6E’'9 asa ATTRNUEL Pa3ERID SXOPYD POHIIUW unu:.&.m% *
YD VONOWYDND OHONVY 4no¥D SIDIANES NSIN NHOA|E6°Z6 asn|s10e/62/Z0 |ZS0ELOOOZE TOFFC
VO VONOWYDND OHONVY ACOHD SENTANSS NSTHE HHOX| LG 6ET a8 |9T0Z/6E/C0 | T90ELOO0EE 09F¥0
YD WONOWYDND OHONYY dRO¥D SEOTAHAS MSIW NH0A|00°TT asn|9T0e/6€/2C |G90ELOOOZE 65F¥0
9T0Z/62/20 VO VONOWYCND OHONVY dnOds) SEOIANES ASIN H¥OA LS 6f1 asn|otoL/62/Z0|6S0ELO00TE asHv0
9TCZ/62/20 YD YSNOWYDND OHINYYE dAROND SEDIAMES MSTH NYOA|LE°EZ6 asn|91ee/62/Z0|BSOELONOEE LEWFO
91CT/eTfE0 YD ¥DNOWYSAD OHONVY dO0¥D SHOLANES JSId HYCA|C6° 26 asn|otaz/62/20|LS0ELODORE 15 2.0
910E/62/20 ¥ YONOWYDND CHIONYY dn0¥) SEOIANES MSIH MHCX|9% P11 asn|stoz/ez/zo|9s0EL00022 S5VFO
YO VONOWUDOD CHONVY 400¥S SHRIANES ASTH MU0X|TL 0F asn|910Z/¥e/20|SSO0ELINOTE FSEED
WD VONOWYOND CHONVY dNouD SEDIAYNES MSI¥ MHUOR|61°E6 asn|stoe/vZ/Z0|¥50£L000EE ESWPO
Yo UONOWYDND OHONYY 4N0MD STDIAUHS ¥SI¥ MUOCA{ST 12 asn|sToz/ve/Z0 |ESCELOODZT TEPYO
WD YONOWYOND OHONVY dN0dED SEOTANSS MSTH MHOK|00°06S'T asn|stoz/vT/e0 |250ELDOOZE ISFH0
9TpE/6Ef B0, WD VYONOWYDOD CHONVH 400D SEOTANES MEIH M¥OX|Z0 00T asa|9Toz/ve/z0|1S0ELDOOEE [ilg 3 0]
9TGZ/vE/20 WD VRNOWVDND OHONYH 400D SEDIANHS MSTH ¥UOR[ZZ'6LT asnteT0z/vZ/Z0|0S0ELOOOEZE &o¥H0
8T02/bZ/E0 ¥ VONCWYDND OHONVHE GA0MD SEDIA¥SS MSIH MUOK (L5 6ET asn|eTog/ ¥ /%0 |6RAELEQ0TE aevED
9190Z/vE/T0 WD WONOWYDD CHONVE 0¥ SEDIANEE MSTH ¥UOA (06 €T asn|9T02/YE/E0|3P0EL000ET LEPEPO
siog/Ee/e0 O EKOWEOND  CHONVYE 400¥D SEDIANES MSIN NHOX |9t 097 asn|9Toz/LT/Z0|SPOELOGOEE 9F¥F0
9T0Z/6T/20 YD VOMOWYD(D OHONVY dNO¥D SEOTAHAS HSTY NBOXK |ZZT T3t asn|eToe/LT/Z0{PPOELO00ZE ShYE0
2102/6T/20 ¥ VOKOWYIND OHONYYE 20089 SEOTANES MSTY X¥OX(£T°5€T asn|sToT/LT/E20|evdeL0CITT [ 24510
9TOE/6T/E0 YD VONOWYIND OHONVY 2N0ED SEDIANES ¥SIN XHOX |0 BZI asn|sToz/L1/Z0|ZFOELO00ZE EFFVO
s5102/LT/20 Y2 YRROWEDND CHONVY dN0¥D SEJIIAYES NSIH WHOA | €L TEZI asn|stog/LT/TO|TFOELOCOZE [4 3300
9102/91/20 ¥ VONOWYOND CHONVE dNO¥D SEOIANES XSTIH HMOR|SL 8T¢E asn|910e/0T/EG [0F0ELO0CEZE TPEYO
9T0Z/9T/E0 Y3 VONOWYDND COHONVE dNOdD SHOIAYES ASIY WHOK|06°HLS QS0]9T0E/GT, 20 |620ELO00ET 0PF R0
9I0Z/91/20 Y2 YONOWVOND OHONYVE dNOdn SEOIANES ¥STH NUOR|6Z° 9L asn|9T0Z/0T/2C |SE0ELOODEE 6EFPE
L0/ LTLED ¥ VONOWYOND OHDNVH dNodEn SHOIASAS ASTHE MHOK|08°LSE Us0|9T0z/0T /20 |LEQELODGER gEYBD
9ToT/LT/TO ¥ VENOWVOND OHONVY dN0¥D BIJIA¥ES ASIM NU0A|06°83E asn|9T0Z/0T/ L0 |9E0ELRGOEE LEPYO
atToR /61 /20 O YONOWYIND OHONYY dn0¥e SADIANSS MSId NMOA(L6°Z8 asi[9T0Z /0T /Z0{SE€0ELOO0ZE SEFDY
9T0Z/TT/ 20 UD VDNOWYOND OHONVY di0#S FHRIANES NSIM WJOK|T6°8ZT asn|SToe/OT/Z0|PEQELODOEE SEPHD
8t10z/80/20 Vo VONORYDRD GONVY dQOH0 SHOIAYES ASIW AUOX|16°BET asn|etoe/E0/20|9TLELO00EE TEYRD
9T0Z/E0/20 ¥ YONOWYOND OHONVY dOOMD SHOTAFNES ASIH AHOR|GL EET asn|9Tcz/E0/Z0|STLELOOOEE LEVED
910Z/E0/Z0 YD VONOWYDND OHONWY dOdS SHIIANES NSTE N¥OX|0€72TT 080 |9TCE/E0/TR|ETLELODOTE TEFDO
9TOE/EG/TO WO VONOWYDND OHINVH dROMS SHOIANAS HSTY NUOA|St €€1 asn|9Toz/E0/T0|ETLTLODOEE TERFD
aToz/fenfzn YD VONOWYDND OHONYY dho¥S SIDTA¥HS ASTH NHOA|£€ ZZT asn|9Toe/EQ/E0|TTLZLOOGEE 0EFFO
9tgeE/en/zo YD VDONOWVOAD CHONWY dROdS SEDIA¥AS NSIH WHOK|&T L2t asn|9tcz/E0/20|0TLZLO00EE 6ZT¥RO
piia; e myo UBEESEZ TLoe /e TAUYSY| k) pred suarad Roan| waer g Tt el Chiy LATMRL NTRL
..... - : 5 o o i COCECRRE S ATTensag DATRRII SNIEL

0BEESTIEZ EESTITT R, 4

BFLPEZEET Aay xuma

Q0OOTIOLTE YD OTUYINO SAvE SSANISNE SNEZILID Huwg

1 rabeg
HLVIHE EEETN
£E:50:5T / 9TOZ/VI/E0

zaasThay 3oeuD

DOOT 2pod Aumduc)
¥y ‘outyd

Aomeby- T1in exrtdes puwrul



TT'B8E'S asn '™
PEO:. i7" g b 3 SO on e iy Asv3l ¢t=r cana aEnlay CnOTT TR
z :abeg
HIVAYHE 1]
A2ETERE OB saTIiue [IB JO TBIOL

£2:5638T / STOE/PT/EQ



d¥S POGTOST
L5 TOTLBISIYEHA0N L LANV, JODY\ YA A RIRCAS 357TI0 BTRQ- LD

oIl SPIT 0 ELS LR 98¢ L8 Passas01] FOBAGIAUT JO Jaquin
PR L16S SIOTPET LIS S - SILOTSPFPING S{LCESTRaE T STPONCOSIFT S| E0CIRCOIE § TIOHAYd AONIFDV TVLOU
B9 FClsT ] §IROFCISTIT % u G ONCITTEE S| 6Zcl 0 5| 0L SB6 99 % | 6L 110168 $ SNOLLIENINGD 43 TV.LOL
- $ - $ - $ - __5 - b (U3 79 APISARS) SAHId O¥.LIH
LS891°60L S | LE8O1°60L g - |m IL8FTLEE § 167682691 $]0T€96L91  $]986I6Tic § HOLVIA dH Sudd
61 $EE 08 $ |61 5ec 08 $ - 3 [ 67°620°3€ $ ] LS5R06] $1Toer6 8l $ 10,50y $ (Apisqns) Y3 SYALTVD
819595 $ | 8IPEOC 3 - 18t 0I8¢c $ | ¥9°LOF] ${ vo20r'1 S| 06°€H8'T $ HONVHNASNI 41T
YL 996 6T¢ § | ¥L'996°6ZE $ T STIEPTOOST | LRRPELL £ PSCLORL Sl e el § SIXV.L
SNOLLOATELNOD ¥3
(OTISLTWOT 8 | LSLTReE ST - S 1 O0OLZIaTT $ | SULITOt9  § 1 S0%ST 15§ | P 19k 0681 S ~ A OL AV 13N
COTPITD ¢ (Comeviiy §] - S [(ersbiabs) § [Ucoevsre) § [Bl6sL5se) 8 [(00 156 119) § §axvL
HLLPO0H66) $ [ULP90be6)  § - § T9°269°06%) S [(?9°2L00bE) S (€0 SCOPPEL) $ O L9E €0S) S SNOLLONGIa
- 5 N $ - g - $ - g N 3 . $ SWIVID
TreorceLy S| arearaelt S| - S| RT69EDREL § | Fheer 16l S | FCEr6Sri L S [P 008115 § TI0UAVd SSOUD
"~ e [ . & S1S00 TIOHAVd
F3Rq-05-TE6L T 238 YOITER XTenxqog ¥ poried t porded Xxenaep TSqUBK Pi¥OH-UON




INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

RATIFICATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAYROLL FOR FEBRUARY 12, 2016
PRESENTED AT BOARD MEETING ON APRIL 20, 2016

DIRECTOR NAME GROSS PAYROLL NET PAYROLL
MICHAEL CAMACHO $3,178.3¢ $748.51
TERRY L. CATLIN $2,965.25 $871.85
STEVEN J. ELIE $2,965.25 $446.63
JASMIN HALL $1,793.06 $981.81

IGENE T. KOOPMAN $1,302.99 50.00
TOTALS $12,204.94 $3,048.80
TOTAL EFTS PROCESSED 1
BEGINNNING CHECK NO. 105649
ENDING CHECK NO. 105651

TOTAL CHECKS PROCESSED

L)




INLAND EMPIRE UTITLIES AGENCY

PAYROLL FOR FEBRUARY §, 2016

PRESENTED AT BOARD MEETING ON APRIL 20, 2016

loross pavRoLL cosTs $1.148,943.24
[pEbuCTIONS (8497,784.21)
NET PAYROLL el
NET PAYROLL BREAKDOWN CHECKS EFT TOTAL
lenrcxs usep :

TRANSACTION PROCESSED 0 331 o
AMOUNT $0.00 $651.159.03 $651,159.03




INLAND EMPIRE UTITLIES AGENCY

PAYROLL FOR FEBRUARY 19, 2016

PRESENTED AT BOARPD MEETING ON APRIL 20, 2016

JGROSS PAYROLL COSTS $1.131.425.94
DEDUCTIONS {$495,308.91)
NET PAYROLL $636.1 17.(_)3
MET PAYROLL BREAKDOWN CHECKS EFT TOTAL
CHECKS USED -

TRANSACTION PROCESSED 0 331 331
AMOUNT $0.00 $636,117.03 $636,117.03




IEUA DIRECTOR PAYSHEET

MICHAEL CAMACTIO
EMPLOYEE NO. 1140
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010

JANUARY 2016
TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION
| 01-06-16 IEUA Board Workshop Cancelled $-0-
01-07-16 Southern Coalition/Inland Yes $225.00
Caucus meeting
01-13-16 Public, Legislative Affairs, & Yes $225.00
Water Resources Committee
! Meeting
: 01-13-16 Engineering & Operations Yes (same day) $-0-
_ Committee
01-20-16 Meeting with Directors Catlin Yes (StafT) $-0-
&Camacho and J Grindstaff to
‘ discuss Agency goals
01-20-16 [EUA Board Meeting Yes $225.00
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT $675.00
(Up to 10 days of service per month per Ordinance No. 83, including ’
MWD meetings)
Total No. of Meetings Attended 3
Total No. of Meetings Paid S

DIRECTOR -/:{/4{’ qdh )

SIGNATURE B 7 = LW

Approved by: ~ )

Terry L(,aﬂn;F Py cs;dent Board of Directors




DIRECTOR PAYSHEET FOR IEUA REPRESENTATIVE
ON MWD BOARD

MICHAEL CAMACHO
EMPLOYEE NO. 1140
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010

JANUARY 2016
TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION

01-05-16 OP & T Commitice Telecon Yes $225.00

update
01-11-16 MWD Standing Committee Yes $225.00

Meetings
01-12-16 MWD Standing Committee and | Yes $225.00

Board Meetings
01-26-16 MWD other Committee Yes $225.00

Meetings ~
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT $900.00
(Up to 10 days of service per month per Ordinance No. 83)
Total No. of Meetings Attended 4
Total No. of Mectings Paid 4

DIRECTOR v/”/
SIGNATURE s

Approved by: { &

Terry Catlin

President, Board of Directors




DIRECTOR PAYSHEET FOR 1I:UA REPRESENTATIVE
ON REGIONAL POLICY COMMITTEE (ALTERNATE)

MICHAEI. CAMACHO

EMPLOYEE NO. 1140
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010
JANUARY 2016
TYPL OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION
01-07-16 Regional Policy Committee Mtg. | Cancelled $-0-
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT
Up to 10 days of service per month per Ordinance No. 73, $-0-
Section 1 (d) (i.e., $125.00 — difference between Regional Policy
Committee ($100.00 and Agency meetings $225.00) including Agency
meelings
Total No. of Meelings Attended 0
0

Total No. of Meetings Paid

DIRECTOR
SIGNATURE

Approved by:

ek A

Terry Gattin
President, Board of Directors




[EUA DIRECTOR PAYSHEET

TERRY CATLIN
EMPLOYEE NO. 615
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010

JANUARY 2016
TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION
01-06-16 [EUA Board Workshop Cancelled $-0-
01-13-16 Engineering & Operations Yes $225.00
Committee
01-13-16 Finance, Legal & Administration | Yes (same day) 3-0-
Committee (Alternate) _
01-15-16 Mtg. w/Directors Catlin & Elie, | Yes $225.00
CBWCD Pres. K Parker & VP
Hofer to discuss LAFCO issucs
01-20-16 Meeting with Directors Catlin Yes (Staff) $-0-
&Camacho and J Grindstaff to
discuss Agency goals
01-20-16 Board Mecting Yes $225.00
01-20-16 Spel Montclair Oversight Yes (same day) $-0-
Mecting
01-28-16 Upland Oversight Meeting Yes (decline $-0-
pymt.)
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT SE15:00].
(Up to 10 days of service per month per Ordinance No. 83)
Total No. of Meetings Attended 7
3

Total No. of Meetings Paid

’.-‘3\"-- B

£,
DIRECTOR st :{)}4/
SIGNATURE  *___(, %/,
b Fd }) R / !
Approved by: : Ml
Steven J. Elie ‘

Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Directors




DIRECTOR PAYSHEET FOR IEUA REPRESENTATIVE

ON SAWPA COMMISSION
TERRY CATLIN
EMPLOYEE NO. 615
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010
JANUARY 2016
TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION
01-05-16 SAWPA Commission Workshop | Yes $225.00
01-05-16 Interview w/T Catlin & P Brown | Yes (same day} 3-0-
01-19-16 SAWPA Commission Meeting | Yes $225.00
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT $450.00
Up to 10 days of service per month per Ordinance No. 83,
Section 1 (d) including Agency meetings* (SAWP4 $188.40( 2015)
Total No. of SAWPA Meztings Attended 3
2

Total No. of SAWPA Meetings Paid

A
DIRECTOR L }?»
SIGNATURE { : \1«.
Approved by: / /!
Steven 1. Elie o

Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Dircctors

*SAWPA will pay $188.40 (2015) per meeting directly to the Agency.




DIRECTOR PAYSHEET FOR IEUA REPRESENTATIVE
ON WATERMASTER BOARD (ALTERNATE)

TERRY CATLIN
EMPLOYEE NO. 615
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010

JANUARY 2014
TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION
01.21-16 CBWM Advisory Cmte. No $-0-
Meeting
01-28-15 CBWM Board Meeting Yes (decline pymt) | $-0-
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT §-0-
Up to 10 days of service per month per Ordinance No. 83,
Section 1 (d) (i.e., $100.00 - difference between Watermaster
$125.00 and District meetings $225.00), including District meetings
Total No. of Watermaster Meetings Attended _ . {
Total No. of Watermaster Meetings Paid 0
RN
DIRECTOR " ;) 4
SIGNATURE < [ Q/(Wu .
Approved by: -~ £L

StevenJ.Elie .7

Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Directors

*Decline [EUA payment portion & waives Watermaster portion.



DIRECTOR PAYSHEET FOR {EUA REPRESENTATIVE
ON REGIONAL POLICY COMMITTEE

TERRY CATLIN
EMPLOYEENO. 615
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010

JANUARY 2016

TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION

01-07-16 Regional Policy Committee Mtg. | Cancelled $-0-

TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT
Up to 10 days of service per month per Ordinance No. 73, $-0-
Section 1 (d) (i.e., $125.00 — difference between Regional Policy
Committee ($100.00 and Agency mectings $225.00) including Agency
meetings

Total No. of Meetings Attended 0

Total No. of Meetings Paid 0

DIRECTOR - "\ -4}
SIGNATURE A AT

Approved by: -
Steven J.Elie  ~
Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Directors




DIRECTOR PAYSHEET FOR IEUA REPRESENTATIVE
ON CHINOC DESALTER AUTHORITY

TERRY CATLIN
EMPLOYEE NO. 615
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010

JANUARY 2016

TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION

01-07-16 CDA Board Mesting No $-0-

TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT $-0-
Up to 10 days of scrvice per month per Ordinance No. 83,
Section 1-(d) (i.c., $75.00 - difference between CDA ($150.00

And Agency meetings $225.00) including Agency meetings

Total No. of CDA Meetings Attended

Total No. of CDA Mectings Paid

i
A
r’l“i}s)\"'h "

o bt

/
Approved by: L 4 {
Steven 1. Elie
Sccretary/Treasurer, Board of Directors

DIRECTOR _ -~ .
SIGNATURE { W

G

*Chino Desalter Authority will pay $150.00 per mecting directly to the Agency.



STEVEN J. ELIE

JECA DIRECTOR PAYSHEET

EMPLOYEE NO. 1175
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010

JANUARY 2016
TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION

01-05-06 Lunch Meeting w/G Newmark Yes $225.00

to discuss Agency business
01-06-16 IEUA Board Workshop Cancelled $-0-
01-13-16 Public, Legislative Affairs and Yes $225.00

Water Resources Committee -
01-13-16 Iinance, Legal & Administration | Yes (same day) $-0-

Committee
01-15-16 Mtg. w/Directors Catlin & Elie, | Yes $225.00

CBWCD Pres. K Parker & VP

Hofer to discuss LAFCO issues
01-20-16 IEUA Board Meeting Yes $225.00
01-22-16 SCWC Quarterly Luncheon Yes $225.00

A
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT B3SO0 A
(Up to 10 days of service per month per Ordinance No. 83) e
Total No. of Meetings Attended :
5

Total No. of Meetings Paid

DIRECTOR
SIGNATURE

Approved By:

—
d"‘-'
i
Lt ! HY .

\
A

Terry Caflin -
President, Board of Directors




DIRECTOR PAYSHEET FOR TEUA
ON WATERMASTER BOARD

STEVEN J. FLIE
EMPLOYEE NO. 1175
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010

JANUARY 2016
TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION
01-21-16 CBWM Advisory Committee Yes $-0-
Meeting
01-21-16 CBWM Personnel Committee Yes $-0-
Meeting
01-28-16 CBWM Board Meeting Yes $-0-
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT $-0-
Up 1o 10 days of service per month per Ordinance No. 83,
Section 1 (d) (i.e., $100.00 — difference between Watermaster
$125.00 and District meetings $225.00), including District meetings
Total No. of Watermaster Meetings Attended 3
Total No. of Watermaster Meetings Paid 0
ye *Decline TEUA portion
DIRECTOR ' P4
SIGNATURE P
Approved by: - I A 'i,_u

TerryuC_;fli?\ )
President, Beard of Directors



TEUA DIRECTOR PAYSIXEET

JASMIN A. HALL
EMPLOYTEE NO. 1256

ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 5061010

JANUARY 2016
TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION
01-06-16 IEUA Board Workshop Cancelled $-0-
01-11-16 IEUA Business Update meeting | Yes $225.00
w/Hays, Sandoval, and Director
Hall
01-13-16 AV Interview meeting w/AV Yes (same day) $-0-
Consultant
01-13-16 Public, Legislative Affairs, & Yes $225.00
Water Resources Committee
meeting (Alternate)
01-13-16 Engineering, Operations & Yes (same day) $-0-
Biosolids Management
Committee
01-13-16 Finance, Legal, & Yes (same day) $-0-
Administration Committee
01-20-16 IEUA Board Meeting Yes $225.00
01-20-16 CASA Winter Conference Yes (same day) $-0-
01-21-16 CASA Winter Conference Yes $225.00
01-22-16 CASA Winter Conference Yes $225.00
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT
$1,125.00 .

(Up to 10 days of service per month per Ordinance No. 83)

Total No. of Meetings Attended

9

Total No. of Meetings Paid

5

DIRECTOR
SIGNATURE

Approved by:

/1

ot e,
p \\L(.a.l l""‘: \

3 et

\ H o

Terry Céﬂi?n. Pfesidc;lt. Board of Directors




DIRECTOR PAYSHEET FOR TEUA
ON SAWPA COMMISSION (ALTERNATE)

JASMIN A, HALL
EMPLOYTT NO. 1256
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010

JANUARY 2016
TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION
01-12-16 Interview w/J Hall & P Brown Yes $36.60
01-19-16 SAWPA Commission Meeting Yes $36.60
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT $73.20

Up to 10 deys of service per month per Ordinance No. 83,

And Agency meetings $225.00) including Agency meetings

Section 1 (d) (i.e., $36.60 -- diffcrence between SAWPA ($188.40 (2015

Total No. of SAWPA Meetings Attended

Total No. of SAWPA Meetings Paid

DIRECTOR \ , { {( | \
SIGNATURE _L.___‘yf@«:i"%\.\:_(‘ s L
Approvedby:, - . .

Terry Catlin
President, Board of Directors




DIRECTOR PAYSTHEET FOR IFUA REPRESENTATIVE
ON CHINQ DESALTER AUTHORITY (ALTERNATE)

JASMIN A. HALL
EMPL.OYEE NO. 1256
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010

JANUARY 2016

TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MFEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION

01-07-16 CDA Board Meeting No $-0-

TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT $-0-
Up to 10 days of service per month per Ordinance No. 83,

Section 1 (d) (i.c., $45.00.- difference between CDA ($150.00

And Agency meetings $195.00 excludes alternate) including Agency
meetings

Total No. of CIDA Meetings Attended

Total No. of CDA Mectings Paid

DIRECTOR _ v
SIGNATURE J ded sy fl (1 ’ L(

)
‘J
H

O

i)
Terry Catlin
President, Board of Directors

Approved by




IEUA DIRECTOR PAYSHEET

GENE KOOPMAN
EMPLOYEL NO. 642
ACCOUNT NO. 10200 110100 100000 501010

JANUARY 2016
TYPE OF TOTAL
DATE MEETING ATTENDANCE | COMPENSATION

01-06-16 TEUA Board Workshop Cancelled $-0-

01-13-16 Finance, Legal, & Administration | No $-0-

Committee

TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT $-0-

(Up to 10 days of scrvice per month per Ordinance No, 83)

Total No. of Meetings Attended 0

Total No. of Meetings Paid .
REPRESENTATIY f\E ' C oy e N
SIGNATURE ‘s \‘ W _‘n;--“-r"w-_‘,‘k (\g\ g K 2w a4 ), RS

Approved by: .

Terry Catlin
President. Board of Directors




"Report: ZFIR_TREASURER
For 02/7/01/20i6 ©

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

02/29/201€ Treasurer Report

Page = 1 _
Date 03/14/20L6

Check Payse / Description Amcunc
Wire  EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTM
HR 0040200 9,253.20
HR 0040200 44,486 .85
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMS 53,740.05
Wire  INTERNAL REVENUE. $ERVICE ‘
HR 0040200 278,694.67
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE $ 278,694.67
Wire  BANK OF AMERICA NT&SA
P/R 3 2/4/16 EFT Direct Deposit 020416 651,159.03
BANK OF AMERICA NT&SA $ 651,159.03
Wire  EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTM
P/R 4 2/19 Taxes HR 0041100 9,097.02
P/R 4 2/19 Taxes HR 0041100 43,433.44
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMS$ 52,530.46
Wire  INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
/R 4 2/19 Taxes HR 0041100 273,454.68
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 5 273,454.68
Wire  ZEMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTM |
HR 0040400 321.76
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMS$ 321.76
Wire  INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
HR 0040400 1,755.83
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE $ 1,755.83
Wire BANK OF AMERICA NT&SA
P/R 2 DIR 2/12/16 EFT Direct Deposit 021216 DIR 981.81
BANK OF AMERICA NT&SA $ 981.81
Wire  BANK OF AMERICA NT&SA
P/R 4 2/19/16 EFT Direct Deposit 021916 636,117.03
BANK OF AMERICA NT&SA $ 636,117.03
Wire  PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT 8
2/16 Health Ins-Retirees,Board,Employees 1942 2/16 " 229,519.08
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT S35 229,519.08
Wire  STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
P/R 3 2/5 HR 0040200 1,135.25
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT $ 1,135.25
Wire  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT S




‘Report: ZFTR_TREASURER
‘For 02/01/2016 ~ 02/23,/2014

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treagurer Report

Page 2
Date 03/14/2016

‘Check Payee / Description AmOULE
P/R 3 2/5 Deferred Comp Ded HR 0040200 13,465.65
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT S3% 13,465.65
Wire STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION
1/16 Sales Tax Deposit 23784561 1/16 9,479.00
STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION  § 9,479.00
Wire PUBLIC EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT S
P/R 4 2/19 Deferred Comp Ded HR 0041100 13,431.32
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT S§ 13,431.32
Wire STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT
P/R 4 2/19 HR 0041100 1,135.25
STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT $ 1,135.25
Wire PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SY
BP/R 3 2/% PERS HR 0040200 241,396.52
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SY$ 241,396.52
Wire PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SY
P/R &4 2/19/16 Emp/Empr Special Cntrbtn  HR0041100000 11.00-
P/R 4 2/19 PERS HR 0041100 243,272.90
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SY$ 243,261.90
Wire METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT
December 2015 Watex Purchase 8558 684,801.92
METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT $ 684,801.92
Wire HAWKINS DELAFIELD & WOODS LLP
08B Bank Counsel LOC Fees 6254/40118020 28,837.50
HAWKINS DELAFIELD & WOODS LLPS 28,837.50
Wire  MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE
08B Bank Bond Fee P0189085 6,750.00
MOODY 'S INVESTORS SERVICE S 6,750.00
Wire U S BANK Na
08B 4/15-1/16 LOC Substitution & Legal F 4193447 5,000.00
U S BANK NA g

Grand Total Payment Amount: $

5,000.00

3,426,968.71




Report: ZFIR TREASURER Inland Empire Utilities Agency
For 52/01/2016 " 02/29/5016 Tressurer Report

Page s
Date 63/¢4/2F16

Creck Payee / Description Amount
ACH WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRI
WR15001-11/1/15-11/30/15 3°,700 Sprinkler TEUA-963 14,510.00
WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIS 14, 510 0o
ACH PEST OPTIONS INC
November 2015 Weed Abatement Services 252060 2,920.48
November 2015 GWR Weed Abatement Service 252260 5,916.00
PEST OPTIONS INC = g8,836.48
ACH OLIN CORP
TP1-4,962 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2106300 2,719.18
CCWRP-3,000 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2101394 1,644.00
TP1-4,928 (Gals Sodium Hypochlorlte 2104608 2,700.54
CCWRP-4,942 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2104610 2,708.22
RP5-4,942 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2105235 2,708.22
TP1-4,504 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2105236 2,468.19
TPl1-4,944 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2105482 2,709.31
CCWRP-4,954 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2105484 2,714.79
TP1-2,482 Gals Sodium Hypochlorlte 2105485 1,360.14
TP1-4,912 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2105590 2,691.78
TP1-4,510 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2105847 2,471.48
OLIN CORP s 26,895.85
ACH AQUA BEN_CORPORATION
DAFT-4,600 Lbs Polymer 748E 34085 4,992.84
RP1-13,800 Lbs Polymer 750A 34086 18 343.84
AQUA BEN CORPORATION S 23 336 68
ACH CIHIGOYENETCHE GROSSBERG & CLO
12/15 General Legal 50494 14,723.00
12/15 IEUA vs Martin 50495 825.00
12/15 IEUA vs PM 50436 50.00
12/15 IEUA ve RP1 Ontario Airport Plume 50497 900.00
CIHIGOYENETCHE GROSSBERG & CLO$§ 16,498.00
ACH LASER LINE
Inv-Toner Cartridges 28502 777.28
LASER LINE S 777.28
ACH SANTA ANA WATERSHED
December 2015 Service 8774 152,528.24
SANTA ANA WATERSHED s 152,528.24
ACH ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457
P/R 3 2/5 Deferred Comp Ded HR 0040200 12,878.67
ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 8 12,878.67
ACH LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS CO
P/R 3 2/5 Deferred Comp Ded HR 0040200

24 ,535.28




Report: ZFIR TREASURER ~ Inland Empire Utilities Agency = Page 2.
For 02/01/2016 ~ ©2/293/2016 Treasurer Report Date n3/14/2016
Check Fayee / Description AROUNL
LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS CO § 24,535.28
ACH IEUA SUPERVISORS UNION ASSOCIA
P/R 3 2/5 Employee Ded HR 0040200 405,00
IEUA SUPERVISORS UNION ASSOCIAS 405 .00
ACH IEUA GENERAL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIA
P/R 3 2/5 Employee Ded HR 0040200 1,069.10
IEUA GENERAL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIAS 1,069.10
ACH IEUA PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES AS
P/R 3 2/5 Employee Ded HR 0040200 430.00
IEUA PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES ASS 430.00
ACH DISCOVERY BENEFITS INC
p/R 3 2/5 Cafeteria Plan HR 0040200 2,957.58
DISCOVERY BENEFITS INC $ 2,957.58
ACH ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 401
P/R 3 2/5 Exec Deferred Comp HR 0040200 9,906.44
ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 401 $ 9,906.44
ACH SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA LP
12/15 Gas Commodity-Non Core 2731999 8,838.28
12/15 Gas Cmmdty-Core,10/15 Adj 1100002880312 2,815.74
SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA LP $ 11,654.02
ACH ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457
Refund-Unapplied Deposits-Vantagepont Tr UNAPPLIED DEP 700.00
TCMA RETTREMENT TRUST 457 8 700.00
ACH AQUA BEN CORPORATION
RP1-13,800 Lbs Polymer 750A 34103 18,343.84
DAFT-2,300 Lbs Polymer 748E 34102 2,496 .42
AQUA BEN CORPORATION 8 20,840.26
ACH CIHIGOYENETCHE GROSSBERG & CLO
12/15 Watermaster 50498 10,167.00
CIHIGOYENETCHE GROSSBERG & CLOS 10,167.00
ACH LASER LINE
HQ-Sve HP Color LJ M651,New Fuser Unit 28411 512.70
RCA-Sve HP Color LJ 3800DTN,Transfer Bel 28444 453.70
RP1-8ve RichohCL350CN,Photo Conductor Un 28468 370.90
LASER LINE 8 1,337.30
ACH DEZURIK INC .
2 - Ecdentric Plug Valves RPI/62000508 7,169.05




Report: ZFIR TREASURER - Inland Empire Utilities Agency -
‘For 02/01/201¢ 7 02/29/2016 Treasurer Report

Page
Date 03/14

3
/2016

Check Payee [/ Description Anount
DEZURIK INC ] 7,169.05
ACH CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY
CDA-Pilot Testing-Biological Trmnt Prcss 238 26,843.03
CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITYS 26,843 .03
ACH YORK RISK SERVICES GROUP INC
7/15-9/15 W/C Adm Fee - 3Q16 500012914 4,488.75
YORK RISK SERVICES GROUP INC s 4,488.75
ACH SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA LP
RP2/RP5-12/1-12/31 16400 El1 Prado Rd 9/1 2044 12/18 274.83
RP1-12/1-12/31 2450 Phila St 8/1-9/30 Ad 2042 12/15 81,528.43
CCWRP/TP/RWPS-12/1-12/31 14950 Tlphn 9/1 2046 12/15 22,157.40
SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA LP $ 103, 960.66
ACH  UNIVAR USA INC
RP1-11,955 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LA19668B1 2,587.50
RP1-12,482 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LA191253 2,701.61
RP5-12, 487 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LA191637 2,702.67
RP1-12,729 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LA194659 2,754.94
PradoLS8-12,938 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LA193642 2,800.30
RP1-12,995 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LA194598 2,812.47
RP5-12,974 Lbs Sodium Bisplfite LA195921 2,808.04
RP1-12,933 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LA193175 2,799.20
CCWRP-12, 811 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LA197589 2,772.78
CCWRP-13, 025 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LA193616 2,819.11
UNIVAR USA INC 3 27,558.62
ACH ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457
P/R 4 2/19 Deferred Comp Ded HR 0041100 13,578.67
TCMA RETIREMENT TRUST 487 s 13,578.67
ACH LINCOLN NATICONAL LIFE INS CO
P/R 4 2/19 Deferred Comp Ded HR 0041100 24,364 .45
LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS CO § 24,364 .45
ACH ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 401
P/R 4 2/19 Exec Deferred Comp HR 0041100 9,967.45
ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 401 s 9,967.45
ACH AQUA BEN CORPORATION
RP1-18,400 Lbs Polymer 750A 34129 24,458.46
DAFT-4,600 Lbs Polymer 748E 34128 4,992.84
RP2-18,400 Lbs Polymer 748E 34154 19,571.36
AQUA BEN CORPORATICN s 49,422 .66
ACH NAPA GENUINE PARTS COMPANY
1 - Napagold Fuel Filter 181094 59.69
NAPA GENUINE PARTS COMPANY s 59.69




Report:
For 02/01/2036 ~ 02/29/

' ZFIR_TREASURER

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
2016 Treasurer Reporl

Page ead B
Late 03/14/201¢€

rfneck Payee / Description amount
ACH SANTA ANA WATERSHED ‘
15/16 Emerging Constituents Workgroup 9237 1,000.00
SANTA ANA WATERSHED $ 1,000.00
ACH GENESIS CONSTRUCTION
EN15045-1/16 Pay Est 4 PE 4-EN15045 45,410.95
EN15046-1/16 Pay Est 4 PE 4-EN15046 27,585.62
GENESIS CONSTRUCTION 5 72,996.57
ACH INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL
1/16 Biosclids 80017577 282,987.54
INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL 5 282,987.54
ACH OLIN CORP
RP4-2,496 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2111178 1,367.81
RP4-2,482 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2108003 1,360.14
TPl-4,954 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2108002 2,714.79
TP1-4,796 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2107613 2,628.21
RPS-4,962 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2107612 2,719.18
CCWRP-3,008 Gals Sodium Hypochlorlte 2106924 1,648.38
TP1-4, 922 @Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2106923 2,697.26
RP4-2,998 Gals Sodium Hypochlorlte 2093521 1,642.90
CCWRP-4,942 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2108148 2,708.22
TP1-4, 890 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2108149 2,679.72
TP1-4,622 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2108238 2,532.86
TP1-4,922 Gals Sodium Hypochlorlte 2108239 2,697.26
TP1-4,880 Gals Sodium Hypochlorlte 2108833 2,674.24
CCWRP-4, 962 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 21098511 2,719.18
TP1-4,940 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2109513 2,707.12
RP5-4,934 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2110365 2,703.83
CCWRP-3,000 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2110825 1,644.00
RP5-4,698 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2111177 2,574.50
QLIN CORP $ 42,419.60
ACH GK & ASSOCIATES INC
46-1141-12/15 Prof Svcs 15-279 13,440.00
46-1141-12/15 Prof Sves 15-274 22,021.00
46-1141-12/15 Prof Svcs 15-277 10,752.00
46-1141-12/15 Prof Svcs 15-276 22,080.00
46-1141-12/15 Prof Svcs 15-275 19,276.00
GK & ASSOCIATES INC 8 87,569.00
ACH IEUA SUPERVISORS UNION ASSOCIA
P/R 4 2/19 Employee Ded HR 0041100 405.00
TEUA SUPERVISORS UNION ASSOCIAS$ 405.00
ACH IEUA GENERAL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIA
P/R 4 2/19 Employee Ded HR 0041100 1,069.10
IEUA GENERAL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIAS 1,069.10
ACH IEUA PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES AS




Report : ZFIR_TREASURER Inland Empire Utilities Agency : 5
Por 02/01/201& 7 02/2%/201& Treasurer Report 03/:4/2016
Check Payee / Description Amount
P/R 4 2/19 Employee Ded HR 0041100 430.00
JEUA PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES ASS 430.00
ACH DISCOVERY BENEFITS INC ,
P/R 4 2/19 Cafeteria Plan HR 0041100 2,957.58
DISCOVERY BENEFITS INC ' [ 2,957.58
ACH ESTRADA, JIMMIE J
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 469.46
ESTRADA, JIMMIE J 5 469.46
ACH LICHTI, ALICE
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
LICHTI, ALICE 5 172 .23
ACH MORASSE, EDNA
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
MORASSE, EDNA 5 172.23
ACH NOWAK, THEO T
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 469 .46
NOWAK, THEO T $ 469 .46
ACH SONNENBURG, ILSE
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
SONNENBURG, ILSE $ 172.23
ACH DYKSTRA, BETTY . , .
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
DYKSTRA, BETTY s 172.23
ACH TORRES, ROBERT G
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 469 .46
TORRES, ROBERT G 5 469.46
ACH MUELLER, CAROLYN ‘
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
MUELLER, CAROLYN 5 172.23
ACH GRIFFIN, GEORGE
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
GRIFFIN, GEORGE $ 172.23
ACH CANADA, ANGELA
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
CANADA, ANGELA $ 172.23




Report: ZFTP_TREASURER

For 02/01/2016 ~ (2/29/2016 Treasurer Repart

Iniand Empire Utilities Agency

Fage
Date

6
063/14/2016

Check

Payee / Description Armount
ACH CUPERSMITH, LEIZAR
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
CUPERSMITH, LEIZAR 5 172.23
ACH DELGADO-ORAMAS JR, JOSE
Reim Monthly Health Prem _ HEALTH PREM 297.23
DELGADO-ORAMAS JR, JOSE § 297.23
ACH GRANGER, BRANDON
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 148.62
GRANGER, BRANDON S 148.62
ACH GADDY, CHARLES L
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 148.62
GADDY, CHARLES L 3 148.62
ACH BAKER, CHRIS
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
BAKER, CHRIS 8 23.62
ACH WEBB, DANNY C
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125._00
WEBB, DANNY C 8 125.00
ACH HUMPHREYS, DEBORAH E
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 148.62
HUMPHREYS, DEBORAH E 3 148.62
ACH MOUAT, FREDERICK W _
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 148.62
MOUAT, FREDERICK W $ 148.62
ACH MORGAN, GARTH W
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
MORGAN, GARTH W 3 125.00
ACH ALLINGHAM, JACK
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
ALLINGHAM, JACK s 23.62
ACH MAZUR, JOHN
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 451.14
MAZUR, JOHN s 451.14
ACH RUDDER, LARRY : _ .
Reim Morithly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
RUDDER, LARRY 3 23.62




Report: ZFIR_TREASUPRER ~ Inland Empire Utilitieg Agenc 7
For 02/01/32C16 ~ 02/29/2016 Treasurer Report : 03/34/2016
Check Payee / Descripticon Amount
ACH INTERLICCHIA,
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
INTERLICCHIA, RANDY g 125.00
ACH  HAMILTON,
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
HAMILTON, MARIA 5 125.00
ACH PICENO, TONY
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
PICENC, TONY g 172.23
ACH RAMOS, CAROL
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
RAMOCS, CARCL S 23.62
ACH FISHER, JAY
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
FISHER, JAY ) 125.00
ACH KING, PATRICK
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
KING, PATRICK $ 23.62
ACH HOWARD, ROBERT JAMES
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
HOWARD, ROBERT JAMES 8 23.62
ACH DIETZ, JUDY ,
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
DIETZ, JUDY S 125.00
ACH
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 148.62
DAVIS, GEORGE L] 148.62
ACH MONZAVI, TAGHI
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
MONZAVI, TAGHI S 23.62
ACH PETERSEN, KENNETH
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
PETERSEN, KENNETH S 172.23
ACH TRAUTERMAN, HELEN
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM

172.23




Report: ZFIR _TREASURER
For 02/01/2016 ~ 02/2%/2016

-Inland Rmpire Utilities Agency
Treasurer Feport

Page

g8

Date 03/14/2016

Theck

Fayse / Descrintion Aot
TRAUTERMAN, HELEN $ 172.23
ACH TIEGS, KATHLEEN
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEATLTH PREM 1,087.66
TIEGS, KATHLEEN 8 1,087.686
ACH DIGGS, GEORGE
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 777.28
DIGGES, GEORGE S T77.28
ACH HAYES, KENNETH
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 832,489
HAYES, KENNETH s 832.49
ACH HUNTON, STEVE
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 148.62
HUNTON, STEVE 3 148.62
ACH RODRIGUEZ, LOUIS
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 148.62
RODRIGUEZ, LOUILS $ 148.62
ACH VARBEL, VAN
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 480.05
VARBEL, VAN g 480.05
ACH CLIFTON, NEIL
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 418.83
CLIFTON, NEIL S 418.83
ACH DELGADO, FRANCOIS
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
DELGADO, FRANCCIS $ 125.00
ACH WELLMAN, JCHN THOMAS
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 543.83
WELLMAN, JOHN THOMAS $ 543 .83
ACH SPEARS, SUSAN
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
SPEARS, SUSAN s 23.62
ACH TROXEL, WYATT
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
TROXEL, WYATT 8 172.23
ACH CORLEY, WILLIAM
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 451.14




‘Peport: ZFIR_TREASURER Tnland Empire Utilities Agency Page 9
For 02/01/20i6 = 92/29/2016 ‘Treasurer Report Date 03/14/2¢16
Theck Tayee [ Description Amount
CORLEY, WILLIAM $ 451.14
ACH CALLAHAN, CHARLES
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 340,15
CALLAHAN, CHARLES $ 340.15
ACH LESNIAKOWSKI, NORBERT .o
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
LESNIAKOWSKI, NORBERT 5 172.23
ACH VER STEEG, ALLEN J
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 465.15
VER STEEG, ALLEN J S 465.15
ACH HACKNEY, GARY
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 420.53
HACKNEY, GARY $ 420.53
ACH CAREL, LARRY
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
CAREL, LARRY s 23.62
ACH TQOL, HAROLD
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 326.14
TOL, HAROLD ] 326.14
ACH BANKSTON, GARY
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 480,05
BANKSTON, GARY $ 480.05
ACH ATWATER, RICHARD
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEATLTH PREM 125.00
ATWATER, RICHARD 5 125.00
ACH FIESTA, PATRICIA
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 451.14
FIESTA, PATRICIA 3 451.14
ACH DIGGS, JANET
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 902.28
DIGGS, JANET 3 902.28
ACH CARAZA. TERESA
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 146.92
CARAZA, TERESA 8 146.92
ACH ANDERSON, JOHN




Report: ZFIR_TREASURER

: _TRE ' ~ Tnland Empire Utilities Agency Page = 10 - .
‘For 02/01/2016 ~ 02/29/2016 Treasurer Repoit Date 03/14/2016
Check Payes [/ Descriptioan  Amcunt

Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 469 .46
ANDERSON, JOHN 5 469.46
ACH SANTA CRUZ, JACQUELYN
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 706.98
SANTA CRUZ, JACQUELYN $ 706.98
ACH HECK, ROSELYN
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
HECK, ROSELYN S 23.62
ACH SOPICKI, LEO
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 297.23
SOPICKI, LEO 5 297.23
ACH HERNANDEZ, BENJAMIN
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 418.83
HERNANDEZ, BENJAMIN $ 418,83
ACH GOSE, ROSEMARY
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
GOSE, ROSEMARY s 125.00
ACH KEHL, BARRETT N
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125,00
KEHL, BARRETT 5 125.00
ACH RITCHIE, JANN
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
RITCHIE, JANN =4 125.00
ACH LONG, ROCKWELL DEE
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 418.83
LONG, ROCKWELL DEE s 418.83
ACH FATTAHI, MIR
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
FATTAHI, MIR s 125.00
ACH VERGARA, FLORENTINO
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 287.23
VERGARA, FLORENTINO 5 297.23
ACH WARMAN, RALPH
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
WARMAN, RALPH ] 172.23




Report: ZFIR_TREASTREPR Tnland Empire Utilities Agency © Page 1.
For 02/01/2016 ~ 02/2%/201f Trazasurer Repaort Date 03/14/2016
rhieck Payee ;/ Description Amcunt
ACH ROGERS, SHIRLEY _
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
ROGERS, SHIRLEY s 172.23
ACH WALL, DAVID
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 271.92
WALL, DAVID g 271.92
ACH CHUNG, MICHAEL
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 148.62
CHUNG, MICHAEL s 148.62
ACH ADAMS, PAMELA
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 172.23
ADAMS, PAMELA 3 172.23
ACH BLASINGAME, MARY .
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 962.66
BLASINGAME, MARY S 962.66
ACH ANDERSON, KENNETH
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
ANDERSON, KENNETH g 23.62
ACH MOE, JAMES
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 23.62
MOE, JAMES S 23.62
ACH POLACEK, KEVIN
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 706.98
POLACEK, KEVIN 8 706.98
ACH ELROD, SONDRA _
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 271.92
ELROD, SONDRA $ 271.92
ACH FRAZIER, JACK
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 177.53
FRAZIER, JACK s 177.53
ACH HOAK, JAMES
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
HOAK, JAMES 3 125.00
ACH DEZHAM, PARIVASH
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 146.92
DEZHAM, PARIVASH s 146.92




Report :  ZFIR_TREASURER Inland Empirs Utilities Agency Page - 12
For 22/01/2016 ~ 02/29/2016 Treasurer Report Date 063/14/2016
theck  Pavee / Descripticn AmouUNt
ACH FOLEY III; DANIEL J. _
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 146.92
FOLEY III, DANIEL J. 5 146.92
ACH CLEVELAND, JAMES
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
CLEVELAND, JAMES $ 125.00
ACH LANGNER, CAMERON
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 845.41
LANGNER, CAMERON $ 845.41
ACH HAMILTON, LEANNE
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 146.92
HAMILTON, LEANNE 8 146.92
ACH HOOSHMAND, RAY
Reim Morithly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
HOOSHMAND, RAY $ 125.00
ACH SCHLAPKOHL, JACK
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
SCHLAPKOHL, JACK $ 125.00
ACH POOLE, PHILLIP
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 177.53
POOLE, PHILLIP S 177.53
ACH ADAMS, BARBARA
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 1248.62
ADAMS, BARBARA b} 148.62
ACH RUESCH, GENECE
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 458 _68
RUESCH, GENECE 8 458.68
ACH VANDERPCOL, LARRY
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 543,83
VANDERPOOL, LARRY 8 543 .83
ACH DECOITE, JOANN
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
DECCITE, JOANN s 125.00
ACH AMEROSE, JEFFREY
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM




Report: ZFIR_TREARSURER . ~ Inland Empire Utilities Agency © Page - 13

For 02/01/2016 ~ 02/29/2016 Treasurer Repcr: Date 03/14/2016
‘theck Yayee ; Lescription © Amountc
AMBROSE, JEFFREY [ 543.83
ACH MERRILL, DIANE , , _
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 271.92
MERRILL, DIANE $ 271.92
ACH HOUSER, ROCD
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 613.76
HOUSER, ROD 8 613.76
ACH RUSSO, VICKI
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 146.92
RUSSO, VICKI $ 146.92
ACH HUSS, KERRY
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 418.83
HUSS, KERRY 8 418,83
ACH BINGHAM, GREGG
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 581.98
BINGHAM, GREGG $ 581.98
ACH CHARLES, DAVID
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM 125.00
CHARLES, DAVID s 125.00
ACH YEBOAH, ERNEST
Reim Monthly Health Prem HEALTH PREM. 125.00
YEBOAH, ERNEST 3 125.00
ACH AQUA BEN CORPORATION
DAFT-4,600 Lbs Polymer 748E 34150 4,992.84
RP1-27,600 Lbs Polymer 750A 34151 36,687.69
AQUA BEN CORPORATION 5 41,680.53
ACH SANTA ANA WATERSHED
January 2015 Truck Discharge 8780 121.24
SANTA ANA WATERSHED 8 121.24
ACH UNIVAR USA INC
RP1-12, 741 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LAZ00228 2,757.58%
RP1-12,918 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LAl98412 2,795.94
RP1-12,939 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LA1979210 2,800.35
RP1-12,669 Lbs Sodium Bisulfite LAl197082 2,741.%0
RP1-12,628 Lbs Scodium Bisulfite LA197451 2,733.08
UNIVAR USA INC $ 13,828.86

ACH WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRI ,
WR15001-8/1/15-8/31/15 1,011 Sprinkler N IEUA-876 : 3,639.60




‘Report: ZFIR_TREASURER Inland Empire Utilities Agency Page - 14 1
For 02/01/2036 ~ 02/29/2016 Treasurer Repert Date 03/14/201%
“hack Payvese / Description AmGuLL
WR15001~12/1/15-12/31/15 110 Sprinkler N IEUA-985 3%6.00
WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIS 4,035.60
ACH AGRICULTURAL RESOURCES
3/16 Wtr Quality Consult 3/16 WTR QLTY 6,000.00
AGRICULTURAL RESOURCES $ 6,000.00
ACH CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY
CDA-Wellfield Development-Wells 1,2,3-In 239 64,696.42
CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITYS 64,696.42
ACH PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT IN
10/1-1/15 General Financial Advisory Ser 15885 27,554.63
PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT INS 27,554.63
ACH SAP PUBLIC SERVICES INC _
1/16-12/16 SAP BusCbj Enterprise Support 6065030632 16,839.90
1/16-12/16 SAP BusObj Eriterprise Support 6065030631 20,838.61
1/16-12/16 BSI US Payroll Tax Maint Supp 6065030630 5,443 .20
1/16-12/16 mySAP Business Suite Enterpri 6065030629 130,396.10
SAP PUBLIC SERVICES INC s 173,517.81
ACH PEST OPTIONS INC
December 2015 Weed Abatement Services 253175 2,920.48
December 2015 GWR Weed Abatement Service 253361 5,916, 00
PEST OPTIONS INC 3 8,836.48
ACH OLIN CORP
TP1-4,926 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2111565 2,699,45
TP1-4,912 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2115087 2,6%1.78
RP4-3,028 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2114533 1,659.34
TP1-4,946 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2114532 2,710.41
TPl-4,946 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2114289 2,710.41
RP4-2,496 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2105483 1,367.81
RP4-2,506 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2106301 1,373.29
TP1-4,802 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2109906 2,631.50
TP1-4,954 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2110364 2,714.79
TP1-4,978 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2110826 2,727.94
CCWRP-2,976 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2114288 1,630.85
TP1-4,946 Gals Sodium HyPOChlcrite 2113649 2,710.41
TP1-4,902 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2111059 2,686.30
RPS5-4,940 Gals Sodium Hypochlorite 2113070 2,707.12
TP1-4,908 @als Sodium Hypochlorite 2112376 2,689.58
OLIN CORP S 35,710.98
ACH GK & ASSOCIATES 1INC
46-1141-12/15 Prof Svcs 15~278 11,520.00
GK & ASSOCIATES INC s 11,520.00
ACH STIEMENS INDUSTRY INC
Horn Antennas 5600621750 6,240.41




Repoxt: ZFIR_TREASURER Inland Empire Utilities Agency Page 15

Por 02/01/2016 " 62/25/2016 Treasurer Report Date 03/14/2016
Check Pavee / Description Amount
SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC S o —6:2;0?41

ACH RP1 FUEL CELL LLC
RP1FuelCell-1/1-1/29 2450 Phila IEUA-16-01 56,705.12
RP1 FUEL CELL LLC $ o és}r&slé

Grand Total Payment Amount: $ 1,577,033.79




Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

ACTION
ITEM

2A



N
k ™ Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: April 20, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee (4/13/2016)
From; Joseph Grindstaff
General Manager

Submitted by:  {\ hristina Valencia
Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager

Subject: Bond Counsel Financial Services Retainer Agreement

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve the Retainer Agreement for bond counsel and related legal services with
Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth (SYCR), subject to the fees, terms and conditions set
forth in Exhibit A;

2. Approve services previously approved and rendered for a not-to-exceed amount of
$30,000 related to the 2008B Variable Rate Demand Bond Letter of Credit substitution,
and completion of financing agreements for regional projects to be financed through the
Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority; and

3. Authorize the General Manager or designee to execute the Agreement.
BACKGROUND

Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth (SYCR) has served as the Agency’s bond counsel for over 15
years. Since 2000, Mr. Doug Brown from SYCR has assisted the Agency with new debt
borrowings and refunding of various bond issues, including the 2002 A Variable Revenue Demand
Obligation bond (VRDOs) and Comumercial Paper Program in 2006. Mr. Brown has also managed
all of the bond refinancing transactions, including the 1994 and 1999 senior bonds, the 2002A&B
series and letter of credit substitution for the 2008 B VRDOs.

The proposed Retainer Agreement is based on value of the services rendered and the hourly rates
defined in the engagement letter attached as Exhibit A. Services will be authorized on an as-
needed basis by the Project Manager for financial legal consulting services for both IEUA and the



Bond Counsel Financial Services Contract
April 20, 2016
Page 2 of 2

Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority. For bond related transactions, the Agency will
negotiate a fixed negotiated fee payable contingent upon closing of the transaction. Such fixed
fees will be communicated to the Board as part of the proposed bond transaction.

Services previously approved and rendered under this agreement include: extension and
substitution of the letter of credit for the 2008B Variable Rate Demand Bonds completed in
January 2016 ($25,000); and development of the financing agreements related to the City of
Pomona, Monte Vista Water District and Inland Empire Utilities Agency Recycled Water Intertie
Project and the Jurupa Community Services District Recycled Water Project (not-to-exceed
amount of $5,000).

Under the proposed agreement, Mr, Brown will be appointed as the Agency’s primary attorney
based on his skill, experience, and expertise. Given SYCR’s long standing history as the Agency’s
counsel for all of its financing transactions, staff recommends the Board approve the Retainer
Agreement with SYRC.

Retention of SYRC as the Agency’s bond counsel supports the IEUA Business Goal of Fiscal
Responsibility to reduce future borrowing costs to safeguard the Agency’s fiscal health and sustain
a high quality credit rating,

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On October 7, 2014, the Agency awarded a financial legal consulting services contract to SYCR
for a not-to-exceed amount of $30,000.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

Invoices issued against the proposed Retainer Agreement will be charged to specific capital or
operations and maintenance budgets associated with the services provided.

Attachments:

Engagement Letter
Retainer Agreement

C:\Users\sriley\AppData‘\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content. Qutlook\T28ZAWF6\SYCR
Ratification and Amendment FINAI .docx



STRADLING YOCCA CARLSON & RAUTH

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION CALIFORNIA
NEWPORT BEACH
ATTORNEYS AT LAW SACRAMENTO
SAN DIEGO
DOUGLAS 8. BROWN 660 NEWPORT CENTER DRIVE, SUITE 1600 SAN FRANCISCO
816.449.2338 SANTA BARBARA
DBROWN@SYCR COM NEWPOCRT BEACH, CA 92660-6422 SANTA MONICA
TELEPHONE (949) 725-4000 COLORADOD
FACSIMILE (849) 725-4100 DENVER
NEVADA
RENO
WASHINGTON
SEATTLE
April 5, 2016
Christina Valencia
Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manager
Inland Empire Utilities Agency
6075 Kimball Ave
Chino, California 91708
Dear Christina;

The Firm thank you for the opportunity to continue our work with the Inland Empire Utilities
Agency and the Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority on public finance matters as may arise
from time-to-time. Unless otherwise confirmed in writing, the terms of this letter and the enclosed
Terms of Retention will govern our bond counsel representation of you.

The Firm are attaching our normal Terms of Retention, which is an integral part of our retention
agreement. If this letter, including the attached Terms of Retention, accurately reflects your
understanding of our relationship, please acknowledge your approval and acceptance of these terms by

signing and returning this letter to me. Copies of each are enclosed for your files. 1 would be pleased
to answer any questions you might have.

Very truly yours,

STRADLING YOCCA CARLSON & RAUTH

Douglas S. Brown

The undersigned hereby agrees that the terms and conditions in this letter and the

accompanying Terms of Retention shall apply to services rendered by Stradling Yocca Carlson &
Rauth.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY,
A Municipal Water District

By:

Chief Financial Officer/ Assistant General Manager



TERMS OF RETENTION
OF
STRADLING YOCCA CARLSON & RAUTH

1. Fees and Costs. Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth (the “Firm”) is compensated for its
services based primarily on the valtue of the services and the time spent performing them. Such
compensation may include the time spent on client conferences, travel, research, drafting documents,
and other activities. The amount of fees charged on a statement is determined by the hours expended
by the different attorneys and other professional personnel involved and the applicable rates applicable
to public agencies which are attached hereto as Exhibit A. The rates set forth in Exhibit A are the
discounted hourly rates we offer public agencies for matters which are non-contingent matters.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (hereinafter
referred to as “IEUA”) or Chino Basin Financing Authority (hereinafter referred to as “Authority™)
determines to issue bonds, notes or other obligations, the Firm will agree to negotiate a written fixed
fee arrangement as is traditional for bond counsel matters. Such fixed fees would be payable contingent
upon closing of the transaction unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing,

The Firm also charges for various costs such as copying, telephone charges, computerized legal
research, word processing and/or other computer time, overtime costs, messenger services, travel,
filing fees and other costs; provided however all travel and expenses (other than mileage
reimbursement from the Firm’s Newport Beach office to the Agency) shall require written approval of
the Agency in advance. Bills for some costs are passed on directly, such as bills for certified shorthand

reporters, technical consultants, and other professional fees. All passed-on expenses shall be submitted
with receipts for reimbursement

2. Termination by Us. The Firm reserve the absolute right to withdraw from representing
you if, among other things, you fail to honor the terms of our agreement, you fail to cooperate fully or
follow our advice on a material matter, or any fact or circumstance occurs that would, in our view,
render our continuing representation unlawful or unethical. If the Firm elect to withdraw, you will
take all steps necessary to free us of any obligation to perform further services, including the execution
of any documents necessary to complete our withdrawal, and the Firm will be entitled to be paid at the
time of withdrawal for all services rendered and costs and expenses paid or incurred on your behalf
If necessary in connection with litigation, the Firm would request leave of court to withdraw.

3. Termination by Agency. The Firm understand that we serve at the pleasure of the
Agency and this Terms of Retention may be terminated by the Agency at any time, upon 10 days
written notification with or without cause.

4. Date of Termination. Our representation of you will be considered terminated at the
earlier of (1) your termination of our representation, (ii) our withdrawal from our representation of you,
or (1ii) the substantial completion of our substantive work for you.

5. Related Activities. If any claim or action is brought against us or any personnel or
agents of the Firm based on your negligence or misconduct, or if are asked to testify as a result of our
representation of you or must defend the confidentiality of your communications in any proceeding,



Terms of Retention
March 17, 2016
Page 2

you agree to pay us for any resulting fees, costs, or damages, including our time, even if our
representation of you has ended.

6. No Guarantee of Qutcome. The Firm will provide its services consistent with the
level and quality of expertise expected of a nationally recognized firm specializing in securities law

and the transactions contemplated by this agreement. The Firm does not and cannot guarantee any
outcome in a matter.

n Insurance and Indemnification. The Firm agrees to indemnify and hold IEUA and
its officers, agents, and employees harmless from any and all claims which arise from or are directly
connected with the Bond Counsel’s negligence or failure to perform the work or other obligations
under this Agreement (including reasonable attorneys’ fees in connection therewith); provided, that
this duty to indemnify and hold harmless shall not include any claim based upon the alleged errors or
omissions of Bond Counsel related to the rendering of or the failure to render professional services
hereunder so long as Bond Counsel maintains in effect errors and omissions insurance as required by
this paragraph, or arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the IEUA, its officers,
agents or employees. -Bond Counsel agrees to maintain errors and omissions insurance in an amount

not less than fifteen million dollars ($15,000,000) per claim period throughout the term of this
Agreement.

8. Client. This Firm’s client for the purpose of our representation is only the person or
entity identified in the letter accompanying these Terms of Retention. Unless expressly agreed, the
Firm is not undertaking the representation of any related or affiliated person or entity, nor any parent,
brother-sister, subsidiary, or affiliated corporation or entity, nor any of your or their officers, directors,
agents, or employees.

9. Payment Notwithstanding Dispute. In the event of any dispute that relates to our
entitlement to any payment from you, all undisputed amounts shall be paid by you. Any amounts in
any client trust account held on your behalf, sufficient to pay the disputed amounts, shall continue to
be held in such trust account until the final disposition of the dispute.

10. Effective Date. These Terms of Retention shall apply to all services provided to the
TEUA or the Authority on and after November 1, 2015.

11.  Primary Attorney. The primary attorney with responsibility for this representation
will be Douglas 8. Brown. The parties agree that the Firm is being retained based on the unique skill,
experience, and expertise of Mr. Brown and no change will be made in the primary attorney without
the prior, written consent of the Agency. The Firm will not substitute another primary attorney without
the prior, reasonable, approval of the Agency.



EXHIBIT A

DISCOUNTED HOURLY RATES

DEPARTMENT SHARFHOLDERS 2016 RATE
PUBLIC FINANCE D. 8. BROWN $480.00

DEPARTMENT ASSQCIATES 2016 RATE
PUBLIC FINANCE L. CHAN $270.00
PUBLIC FINANCE A FOLEY $270.00

Other attorneys who work on these matters will be at rates similarly discounted and will be
disclosed to the Agency at the time such work is undertaken

ALL PUBLIC FINANCE PARALEGALS ARE AT $100.00/HOUR]




Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

ACTION
ITEM

2B



k ) Infand Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: April 20, 2016

To: The Honorable Board of Directors

Through: Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee (04/13/16)
From: P. Joseph Grindstaff

eneral Manager

Submitted by: Christina Valencia

\ ¥ Chief Financial Officer/Assistant General Manger

Warren T. Green
Manager of Contracts and Facilities Services

Subject: Enterprise Content Management System Contract Award

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve Contract Number 4600002085, to American Microlmaging, Inc. (AMI) for the
Enterprise Content Management System, Project No. IS15003, associated licensing
agreement and the option for conversion of back file documents, for a not-to-exceed
amount of $670,920; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.

BACKGROUND

LibertyNet (Liberty), the Agency’s legacy document management system, was purchased in 1999
for the scanning, storing and retrieval of records needed to be retained for a specified period.
Liberty has limited functionality that cannot be expanded to meet increasing information
governance policies, procedures and best practices for managing documents and records. Manually
intensive processing is required to augment Liberty’s limited functionality. With the vendor no
longer providing maintenance support for the system; Liberty has reached the end of its useful life.

A Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued to identify the technical and business requirements and
develop a strategy to select and implement a new system to replace Liberty. On February 2, 2015,
IEUA contracted with ThirdWave Corporation to complete the ECMS Strategy and
Implementation Roadmap for a fixed price of $80,144.



Enterprise Content Management System, Project No. IS15003
April 20, 2016
Page 2

ThirdWave Corporation recommended implementation of an Enterprise Content Management
System (ECMS) with the functionality and versatility to address imaging, collection, business
process management, and records management requirements, including content lifecycle
governance. The ECMS solution would also provide a user interface that supports both the varied
computer skills of the Agency’s employees and employee responsibilities.

As recommended in the ECMS Strategy and Implementation Plan, the Agency will utilize multiple
phases to transition end users to the ECMS system. Phase I will focus on the full implementation
of the ECMS software and hardware; including disaster recovery that conforms to Agency
standards. Future Phases 2 through 6 will transition additional business processes into the ECMS.
These future phases will be implemented internaliy by IEUA staff and are anticipated to take
approximately 4 to 6 months each to complete. The ECMS implementation will be based upon

industry best practices, as well as compliance with existing federal and state regulatory
requirements.

On October 20, 2015, an RFP was issued for an ECMS solution to replace the Liberty system. The
ECMS solution will serve as a single repository system for significant documents, records, files
and emails; providing staff the ability to quickly and easily locate and manage retention
documents. In addition, the system will integrate with existing enterprise systems such as SAP,
ESRI ArcGIS and SharePoint.

The RFP was issued to prospective vendors through the Bid Net electronic solicitation system.
Eight vendors submitted proposals to the RFP;

COMPANY PROPOSAL AMOUNT
FileHold $91,728
AMI Laserfiche $543,481
HSMG — FileBound $956,139
Konica Minolta — OnBase $1,022,960
Phoenix —~ OnBase $1,041,430
SAP/Stellar — Open Text $1,362,032
DocyLynx — DocuSuite $1,614,673
Keymark — OnBase $1,843,159

A committee reviewed and evaluated each of the proposals and elevated four vendors to continue
on in the review process; AMI (Laserfiche), Konica Minolta (OnBase), Keymark (OnBase), and
Phoenix (OnBase). These top four vendors were invited to give demonstrations of their software
product in January 2016. Two of the four, AMI (Laserfiche) and Konica Minolta (OnBase), were
requested to provide additional demonstrations and hands on testing of the software. Review
committee members also conducted site visits to City of Inglewood for Laserfiche and SAWPA
for OnBase.

The Agency requested a last, best and final offer from both vendors. The committee majority vote
concurred that AMI (Laserfiche) had the most responsive proposal which provides the best value

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16101 Enterprise Content Management System Final. docx



Enterprise Content Management System, Project No. IS15003
April 20, 2016
Page 3

to the Agency, as retlected through their understanding of the scope of work, project team’s
qualifications and experiences, and ability to meet the project schedule.

The contract will be a not-to-exceed amount of $670,920. Included is an optional work task for the
back file conversion, for a not-to-exceed amount of $303,000. The back file conversion budget is
included in the Records Management O&M budget. No work related to the back file conversion
shall be performed unless authorized in writing by the Agency via a Notice to Proceed for such
work.

ECMS Cost Summary Project Costs |
Software/Implementation* $367,920
Hardware $125,000
Internal labor $315,505
Contingency $135,000
Project Total $943,425
Back file conversion (optional)* $303,000
Total Project with Option $1,246,425

*Not o exceed contract amount of $670,920

The overall IEUA ECMS implementation project schedule is as follows:

Project Tasks Date
Hardware Installation May 2016
Design & Configuration May 2016 — September 2016
Training October 2016
Implementation November 2016

Replacing Liberty will support Agency-wide and regulatory public requirements, eliminate
redundant archiving systems, and maintain the Agency’s Business Practices Goal and Objective
to promote standards of efficiency and effectiveness in all Agency business practices and
processes.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION
None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

Funds in the amount of $530,000 have been allocated in the FY 2015/16 Administrative Services
(GG) Fund budget for the Document/Records Management System project (1S15003). The total
project budget will be revised to $1,246,425 to reflect the full cost of the project.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16101 Enterprise Content Management System Final.docx



LOIILSIT Y3IVM TVAIDINNW V

A>uaby saninn aadwi3 pupjuy ,u

Sunasy pieog
0L07T |udy

W33SAS JuaWaBbUbIAl SP1023Y /3UawWind0(

(SWD3I) wa3sAs
Juswagdeue|n 1uUa3u0) asludiaius




LNLITC BALVAM TWIDEINAW ¥

s iﬂﬁgfd

3seq aJempley 2onNpay =

(suonedidde juiodaleys pue
‘SID ‘dVS) SWP3sAs asidIaIud Yum A|ssojueas 93eldeu] «

(saiyjiqeded pjoH uonedii *8:9) uonewoine
paseaJdul ySnodyi sadioeld yuawadeuew 3s9q juswa|dwl]

31242341 J19Y3 INOYSNOIY3 SPI0IDL DIUOIIID[D D3RUBI
SJ9SN PuU? J0J 3SN JO 3SE3 ‘SS2IJB PIseq-qaM dPIAOLd
24| [nJasn paypeas (waisAs A>e83]) 19NAMaqIT

s|eon 3d3loud



(3ypipaseT)
U] BuiFew |0t
UBDLIDLLIY
{sEVBLIED
323)ILLWO)

SHSIA NS -
Bulisaj Lo SPUBH -

Sy234D
asuadajay -

SLOIEISLIOWa( -

puno.gdyoeg yaloid

aseyd
uoensuoliap o]
pajeA2ja JOpUdA
inoy ‘paaiasal
Spiq Iysia

SLOT 13G0I0
Lo panss) Wwaishs
W23 103 d4H

G0t Aueniga4
pajajdwo)
Adajenis
$SauIsNg pue
JUDLLSSASSY SpasN




0G66‘0/9% JO JUNOWIE 1JBJIUO0D PB3IXS-0}-10N .

LINELSIC FUVM THEDINDWY ¥

Gebobeis uonido yum afoud [ejol
000‘C0E$ Luondo uoisisAuo) 3J1} ¥degq
T4 283 41 [eyol 339loid

uonejuswa]dwl|/a1emyos
000°GELS J0 %07) Aouadunuod
S0S‘SLES loqeT [euta1u]
000621 2Jemp.eH
0Z6°L9ES guonejuawjdwi/osemyyos

Alewwuns 150D




AVLLEHD BEIVAM IVECHNDW ¥

: g&igfﬂ

910T JOQUIDAON uonejusw|duy
9107 12q010 Suiures)
910t Joqudydas uoneJndipuo) pue ugisag
gLoc ke uoljej|eisu| 2iempley
groc Aey Hoy 3l04d

3[NPaY1S




LIHELSHE BALVA TWELDENTIW ¥

‘0T60/9$ JO JUNOWE PIIIXD
-0)-10U B 104 “€006G1S| *ON 123(01d Judwadeuey sploday
Juswnd0q ay3 Jos (JIWY) DUl “‘Suiew |01y uedlswy o0}
U W48y SuISUDDIT PILIDOSSY PuUR WISAS JUSWDSeuei
SpJ0oo9y /Auawindoq ‘(SIWD3I) waisAs Juswsdeue iy

1U1U0)) asudiaiug ‘6Q0T00009Y JoquINN }eJIU0) dA0lddy =

uoIJepPUSIWIOIDY




k " Infand Empire Utilites Agency
: A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

CONTRACT NUMBER: 4600002085
FOR
ENTERPRISE CONTENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (ECMS),
DOCUMENT/RECORDS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
AND
ASSOCIATED LICENSING AGREEMENTS

THIS CONTRACT (the "Contract"), is made and entered into this 20th day of April, 20186, by and
between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, organized and existing
in the County of San Bemardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Califomia
(hereinafter referred to as "Agency” or “IEUA”), and American Microlmaging, Inc., (AMI-The
Paperless Company) of Los Angeles, California (hereinafter referred to as "Consultant") for
implementation of an enterprise content management and document/records management
system and all required licenses for use. Agency and Consultant are sometimes hereinafter
referred to singularly as the “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.”

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth herein,
the parties agree as follows:

1. PROJECT MANAGER ASSIGNMENT.: All technical direction related to this Contract

shall come from the designated Project Manager. Details of the Agency's assignment
are listed below.

Project Manager: Linda Johnson
Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Address: 6075 Kimball Avenue
Chino, California 91708
Telephone:  (909) 993-1759
Facsimile:  (909) 993-1987

Email: liohnson@ieua.org

2. CONSULTANT ASSIGNMENT: Special inquiries related to this Contract and the effects
of this Contract shall be referred to the following:

Consultant:  Jeffery Long
AMI — The Paperless Company
Address: 1125 West 6™ Street, Suite 200
Los Angeles, Califomia 90017
Telephone:  (213) 250-3000, Extension 155
Facsmile: (213) 596-0152

Email: jeffrey@amipaperiess.com

4600002085 Page 1 of 14
ECMS & Associated Licenses



al ORDER OF PRECEDENCE: The documents referenced below represent the Contract
Documents. Where any conflicts exist between the General Terms and Conditions, or
addenda attached, then the governing order of precedence shall be as foliows:

A. Amendments to Contract Number 4600002085.

B. Contract Number 4600002085 General Terms and Conditions.
C. Consultant's Final Proposal dated March 4, 2018

D. Agency's Request for Proposal dated October 20, 2015.

4. SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES: Consultant services and responsibilities shall be
in accordance with Consultant’s Final Proposals dated March 10, 2016, Exhibit A, and
the Agency’s Request for Proposal dated October 20, 2015, Exhibit B, which are both
included herein and made a part hereof. These services, products, equipment, and other
works as identified in Exhibits A and B (collectively the “Deliverables”) shail be delivered
in accordance with the mutuaily agreed-to delivery schedule Exhibit C.

Included within Exhibit A, is optional work for the Back-File Conversion, which shatl be
authorized in writing by the Agency’s Project Manager via a Notice to Proceed. No work
related to the Back-File Conversion SOW shall be authorized prior to the Notice to
Proceed for such work.

NOTE: Consultant shall advise Agency within fwo (2) weeks of any changes to the
written Scope of Work/Schedule based upon discussions from any meetings. Any
changes must be made in writing by an Amendment to the Contract. Work initiated
without written approval, shall be at Consultant's own risk, and shall not be reimbursed
by the Agency.

5. TERM: The term of this Contract shall extend from the date of the Notice to Proceed,
and terminate June 30, 2019, unless the parties exercise the options which shall include
two (2) one-year option periods. Options shall be agreed to by both parties and amended
to this contract in writing.

6. COMPENSATION: Agency shall pay Consultant's properly executed invoice approved
by the Project Manager within thirty (30) days following receipt of the invoice. Payment
will be withheld for any service which does not meet or exceed Agency requirements or
have proven unacceptable until such service is revised, the invoice resubmitted, and
accepted by the Project Manager. Invoices shall include Contract Number 4600002085.

To expedite payment, Consultant’s invoices shall be submitted electronically with all
required back-up to apgroup@ieua.org, copying the Agency’s Project Manager.

Agency may at any time make changes to the Work including additions, reductions, and
changes to any or all of the Work, as directed in writing by the Agency. Such changes
shall be made by mutual agreement via a written Amendment to the Contract. The NOT-

4600002085 Page 2 of 14
ECMS & Associated Licenses



TO-EXCEED Amount and Work Schedule shall be equitably adjusted, if required, to
account for such changes and shall be set forth in the Amendment.

In compensation for the work represented by this Contract, Agency shall pay Consultant
in accordance with Consultant'’s attached fee schedule Exhibit D, which is attached
hereto and made a part hereof, up to a combined maximum total of $670,919.50 for all
services and licenses provided. Payment shall be made only after review and acceptance
of the work by the Agency's Project Manager. In no event, shall Consultant invoice for
more than seventy percent of the total contract price prior to final testing and acceptance
of the Deliverable by the Agency’s Project Manager.

7. CONTROL OF THE WORK: Consultant shall perform the Work in compliance with the
work schedule. If perfomance of the Work falls behind schedule, the Consultant shall
accelerate the performance of the Work to comply with the work schedule as directed by
the Project Manager. If the nature of the Work is such that Consuitant is unable to
accelerate the Work, Consultant shall promptly notify the Project Manager of the delay,
the causes of the delay, and submit a proposed revised work schedule.

8. FITNESS FOR DUTY:

A. Fitness: Consultant and its Subcontractor personnel on the Jobsite:

1. shall report for work in a manner fit to do their job;

2. shall not be under the influence of or in possession of any alcoholic
beverages or of any controlled substance (except a controlled substance
as prescribed by a physician so long as the performance or safety of the
Work is not affected thereby); and

3. shall not have been convicted of any serious criminal offense which, by its
nature, may have a discernible adverse impact on the business or
reputation of Agency.

B. Compliance: Consultant shall advise all personnel and associated third parties of
the requirements of this Contract ("Fitness for Duty Requirements") before they
enter on the Jobsite and shall immediately remove from the Jobsite any employee
determined to be in violation of these requirements. Consultant shallimpose these
requirements on its Subcontractors. Agency may cancel the Contract if
Consultant violates these Fitness for Duty Requirements.

9. INSURANCE & BONDING: During the term of this Contract, the Consuitant shafl maintain
at Consultant's sole expense, the following insurance and performance bond.

A. Minimum Scope of insurance:

1. General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. Coverage shall be at
least as broad as Insurance Services Office form number GL 0001-87

4600002085 Page 3 of 14
ECMS & Associated Licenses



covering Comprehensive General Liability. If Commercial General Liability
Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Project/location, or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for
bodily injury and property damage. Coverage shall be at least as broad as
Insurance Services Office form number CA 00 01 87, covering Automobile
Liability, including “any auto."

3. Workers’' Compensation and Employers Liability: Workers' compensation
fimits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and
employers Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident.

4, Professional Liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per ctaim.

B. Deductibles and Self-insured Retention: Any deductibles or self-insured retention
must be declared to and approved by the Agency. At the option of the Agency,
either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retention as respects the Agency, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers;
or the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and
related investigations, claims administration and defense expenses.

C. Other_Insurance Provisions: The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to
contain, the following provisions:

1. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverage
a. The Agency, its officers, officials, employees, volunteers, property

owners and any engineers under contract to the Agency are to be
covered as additional insureds, endorsements GL 20 11 07 66,
CG2010 1185 and/or CA 20 01 (Ed. 0178), as respects: liability
arising out of negligent activities performed by or on behalf of the
Consultant, products and completed operations of the Consultant,
premises owned, occupied or used by the Consultant, or
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Consultant.
The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of
protection afforded to the Agency, its officers, officials, employees
ar volunteers.

b. The Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as
respects the Agency, its officer, officials, employees and volunteers.
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Agency, its
officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the
Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

C. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall
not affect coverage provided to the Agency, its officers, officials,
employees or volunteers.

4600002085 Page 4 of 14

ECMS & Associated Licenses



d. The Consultant's insurance shall apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect
to the limits of the insurer's liability.

e. The Consultant may satisfy the limit requirements in a single policy
or multiple policies. Any Such additional policies written as excess
insurance shall not provide any less coverage than that provided by
the first or primary policy.

2. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage

The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the
Agency, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising
from work performed by the Consultant for the Agency.

3. All Coverages

Prior to cancellation of any policy required herein, the policies shall be
endorsed to state, 30 days advanced cancellation notice will be mailed to
the Agency, except if policies cancelled for non-payment of premium, then
10 days advance notice will be mailed.

Acceptability of Insurers: With the exception of Professional Liability Insurance,
all insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A:VI|,
and who are admitted insurers in the State of California. Professional Liability
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than B:Vil,
and who are admitted insurers in the State of California.

Verification of Coverage: Consulfant shall fumish the Agency with certificates of
insurance and with original endorsements effecting coverage required by the
Agency for themseives and all subcontractors prior to commencing work or
allowing any subcontractor to commence work under any subcontract. The
certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates
and endorsements are to be approved by the Agency before work commences.
The Agency reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required
insurance policies, at any time.

Submittal of Certificates: Consultant shall submit alf required certificates and
endorsements to the following:

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Attn: Angela Witte, Risk Representative
P.O. Box 9020

Chino Hiils, California 91709

4600002085

Page 5 of 14

ECMS & Associated Licenses



Performance Bond: Before execution of the contract by the Agency, the
Consuliant shall file with the Agency, on the forms fumished herewith, a
performance bond in an amount equal to $95,400.00 for services performed as
established in the contract to guarantee faithful performance of all the work, within
the time prescribed, in a manner satisfactory to the Agency and that all materials
and workmanship will be free from original or developed defects.

Unsatisfactory Surety: Should any Surety, at any time, be deemed unsatisfactory
by the Agency, notice will be given the Consultant to that effect. No further
payments shall be deemed due, or will be made under the contract until a new
Surety is accepted by the Agency.

Effects of Changes or Extension of Time on the Surety: Changes to the work or

schedule shall in no way release the Consultant or the Surety from their obligation
under the bond.

Insufficiency of the Bonds: Should any bonds require under this section become
insufficient, the Consultant shall renew the bonds within ten (10) calendar days
after receiving notice from the Agency of the bonds insufficiency.

Procurement of Bonds: All bonds required under this section, shall be procured
from a California licensed and admitted surety company, listed by the Fiscal
Service of the United States Department of the Treasury under the Notice for
“Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on federal
Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies,” current on the date of the
Notice of Award. The Consultant shall be responsible for the cost of all bond
premiums, costs, and incidentals necessary to secure the required bonds.

How Bonds Are To Be Payable: All bonds shall be payable to the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency and shall remain in effect for sixty (60) days after acceptance of
all the deliverables and the works completion.

LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Professional Responsibility: The Consultant shall be responsible, to the level of
competency presently maintained by other practicing professionals performing the
same or similar type of work.

Status of Consultant: The Consultant is retained as an independent Consultant
only, for the sole purpose of rendering the services described herein, and is not
an employee of the Agency.

Observing Laws and Ordinances: Consistent with the standard of skill and care
set forth in 10.A, Professional Responsibility, the Consultant shall keep itself fully
informed of all relevant existing state and federal laws and all relevant county and
city ordinances and regulations which pertain to structural engineering services or

10.

A.

B.

C.
4600002085

Page 6 of 14

ECMS & Associated Licenses



tasks performed under this Contract, and of all such orders and decrees of bodies
or tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority over the same. The Consultant
shall at all times observe and comply with all such existing laws, ordinances,
regulations, orders and decrees, and shall to the extent of Consultant's
negligence, protect and indemnify, as required herein, the Agency, its officers,
employees and agents against any claim or liability arising from or based on the
violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order or decree, whether by the
Consultant or its employees.

D. Subcontract Services: Any subcontracts for the performance of any services
under this Contract shall be subject to the written approval of the Project Manager.

E. Grant Funded Projects: For grant-funded projects, the Consultant shall be
responsible to comply with all grant requirements related to the Project. These
may include, but shalf not be limited to: Davis-Bacon Act, Endangered Species
Act, Executive Order 11246 (Affirmative Action Requirements}, Equal Opportunity,
Competitive Solicitation, Record Retention and Public Access to Records, and
Compliance Review. This is not a grant funded project.

F. Conflict of Interest: No official of the Agency who is authorized in such capacity
and on behalf of the Agency to negotiate, make, accept or approve, or to take part
in negotiating, making, accepting or approving this Contract, or any subcontract
relating to services or tasks to be performed pursuant to this Contract, shall
become directly or indirectly personally interested in this Contract.

G. Eaqual Opportunity and Unlawful Discrimination: During the performance of this

Contract, the Consultant shall not unlawfully discriminate against any employee
or employment applicant because of race, color, religion, sex, age, marital status,
ancestry, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, veteran status or
national origin. The Agency is committed to creating and maintaining an
environment free from harassment and discrimination. To accomplish these goals
the Agency has established procedures regarding the implementation and
enforcement of the Agency’s Harassment Prohibition and Equal Employment
Opportunity commitments. Please refer to Agency Policies A-29 (Equal
Employment Opportunity) and A-30 Harassment Prohibition for detailed
information or contact the Agency’s Human Resources Administrator. A copy of
either of these Policies can be obtained by contacting the Project Manager for your
respective Confract. Please advise any of your staff that believes they might have
been harassed or discriminated against while on Agency property, to report said
possible incident to either the Project Manager, or the Agency’s Human
Resources Administrator. Please be assured that any possible infraction will be
thorcughly investigated by the Agency.

H. Non-Conforming Work and Warranty: Consistent with the standard of skill and
care set forth in Section 10.A, Professional Responsibility, Consultant represents
and warrants that the Work and Deliverables will conform to the Agency’s

4600002085 Page 7 of 14
ECMS & Associated Licenses



functional requirements and specifications, set forth in the Agency’s Request for
Proposal and Consuitant's Proposal. For a period of one (1) year after acceptance
of the Deliverables, if the Project Manager rejects all or any part of the Work or
Deliverables as unacceptable, Consultant shall fix or repair said work within thirty
(30) business days to bring the Work in conformance to the functional
requirements of the Deliverables. Should Consultant believe that the repair cannot
be remedied (cured) under the warranty herein, Consuitant shall notify the Project
Manager, in writing, detailing the dispute and reason for Consultant's position.
Any dispute that cannot be resolved between the Project Manager and the
Consultant, shall be resolved in accordance with the Dispute Section of this
Contract.

Disputes:

1. All disputes arising out of or in relation to this Contract shall be determined
in accordance with this section. The Consuitant shall pursue the work to
completion in accordance with the instruction of the Agency's Project
Manager notwithstanding the existence of dispute. By entering into this
Contract, both parties are obligated, and hereby agree, to submit all
disputes arising under or relating fo the Contract, which remain unresolved
after the exhaustion of the procedures provided herein, to independent
arbitration. Except as otherwise provided herein, arbitration shall be
conducted under California Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1280, et. seq,
or their successor.

2. Any and all disputes during the pendency of the work shall be subject to
resolution by the Agency Project Manager and the Consuitant shall comply,
pursuant to the Agency Project Manager instructions. If the Consuitant is
not satisfied with any such resolution by the Agency Project Manager, they
may file a written protest with the Agency Project Manager within seven (7)
calendar days after receiving written notice of the Agency's decision.
Failure by Consultant to file a written protest within seven (7) calendar days
shall constitute waiver of protest, and acceptance of the Agency Project
Manager's resolution. The Agency's Project Manager shall submit the
Consultant's written protests to the General Manager, together with a copy
of the Agency Project Manager's written decision, for his or her
consideration within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of said protesi(s).
The General Manager shali make his or her determination with respect to
each protest filed with the Agency Project Manager within ten (10) calendar
days after receipt of said protest(s). If Consultant is not satisfied with any
such resolution by the General Manager, they may file a written request for
arbitration with the Project Manager within seven (7) calendar days after
receiving written notice of the General Manager's decision.

3. In the event of arbitration, the parties hereto agree that there shall be a
single neutral Arbitrator who shall be selected in the following manner:

4600002085

Page 8 of 14

ECMS & Associated Licenses



a. The Demand for Arbitration shall include a [ist of five names of
persons acceptable to the Consultant to be appointed as Arbitrator.
The Agency shall determine if any of the names submitted by
Consuitant are acceptable and, if so, such person will be designated
as Arbitrator.

b. In the event that none of the names submitted by Consultant are
acceptable to Agency, or if for any reason the Arbitrator selected in
Step (a) is unable to serve, the Agency shall submit to Consultant a
list of five names of persons acceptable to Agency for appointment
as Arbitrator. The Consultant shall, in turn, have seven (7) calendar
days in which to determine if one such person is acceptable.

C. If after Steps (a) and (b), the parties are unable to mutually agree
upon a neutral Arbitrator, the matter of selection of an Arbitrator shall
be submitted to the San Bernardino County Superior Court pursuant
to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281.6, or its successor. The
costs of arbitration, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys'
fees, shall be recoverable by the party prevailing in the arbitration.
If this arbitration is appealed to a court pursuant to the procedure
under California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1294, et. seq., or
their successor, the costs of arbitration shall also include court costs
associated with such appeals, including but not limited to reason-
able attorneys' fees which shall be recoverable by the prevailing

party.

4, Joinder in Mediation/Arbitration: The Agency may join the Consultant in
mediation or arbitration commenced by a contractor on the Project
pursuant to Public Contracts Code Sections 20104 et seq. Such joinder
shall be initiated by written notice from the Agency's representative to the
Consultant.

11.  INDEMNIFICATION: Consultant shall indemnify the Agency, its directors, employees and
assigns, and shail defend and hold them harmless from all liabilities, demands, actions,
claims, losses and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, which arise out of or
are related to the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the Consultant, its
directors, employees, agents and assigns, in the performance of work under this contract.

12.  OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS AND DOCUMENTS/CONFIDENTIALITY: The Agency
retains ownership of any and all partiai or complete reports, drawings, plans, notes,
computations, lists, and/or other materials, documents, information, or data prepared by
the Consultant and/or the Consultant's subcontractor(s) pertaining to this Contract. Said
materials and documents are confidential and shall be available to the Agency from the
moment of their preparation, and the Consultant shall deliver same to the Agency
whenever requested to do so by the Project Manager and/or Agency. The Consuitant
agrees that same shall not be made available to any individual or organization, private or
public, without the prior written consent of the Agency.

4600002085 Page 9 of 14
ECMS & Associated Licenses



Said materials and documents shall not be changed or used for purposes other than
those set forth in the Contract without the prior written approval of Consultant. If Agency
reuses the materials and documents without Consultant’s prior written consent, changes
or uses the materials and documents other than as intended hereunder, Agency shail do
so at its sole risk and discretion, and Consultant shall not be liable for any claims and/or
damages resulting from use or connected with the release of or any third party’s use of
the reused materials or documents.

13. THLE AND RISK OF LOSS:

A.

Documentation: Title to the Documentation shall pass, subject to payment
therefore, to Agency when prepared; however, a copy may be retained by
Consultant for its records and intenal use. Consultant shall retain such
Documentation in a controlled access file, and shall not reveal, display or disclose
the contents of the Documentation to others without the prior written authorization
of Agency or for the performance of Work related to the project.

Material: Title to all Material, field or research equipment, subject to payment
therefore, and laboratory models, procured or fabricated under the Contract shall
pass to Agency when procured or fabricated, and such title shall be free and clear
of any and all encumbrances. Consultant shall have risk of loss of any Material or
Agency-owned equipment of which it has custody.

Disposition: Consultant shail dispose of items to which Agency has title as
directed in writing by the Agreement Administrator and/or Agency.

14. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS:

A.

Rights and Ownership: Agency's rights to inventions, discoveries, trade secrets,
patents, copyrights, and other intellectual property, including the Information and
Documentation, and revisions thereto (hereinafter collectively referred to as
"Proprietary Rights"), used or developed by Consultant in the performance of the
Work, shall be governed by the following provisions:

1. Proprietary Rights conceived, developed, or reduced to practice by
Consultant in the performance of the Work shall be the property of Agency,
and Consultant shall cooperate with all appropriate requests to assign and
transfer same to Agency.

2. if Proprietary Rights conceived, developed, or reduced to practice by
Consultant prior to the performance of the Work are used in and become
integral with the Work or Documentation, or are necessary for Agency to
have complete enjoyment of the Work or Documentation, Consultant shall
grant to Agency a non-exclusive, irrevocabie, royalty-free license, as may
be required by Agency for the complete enjoyment of the Work and
Documentation, including the right to reproduce, comect, repair, replace,
maintain, translate, publish, use, modify, copy or dispose of any or all of the

4600002085

Page 10 of 14

ECMS & Associated Licenses



Work and Documentation and grant sublicenses to others with respect to
the Work and Documentation.

3 If the Work or Documentation includes the Proprietary Rights of others,
Consultant shall procure, at no additional cost to Agency, all necessary
licenses regarding such Proprietary Rights so as to allow Agency the
complete enjoyment of the Work and Documentation, including the right to
reproduce, correct, repair, replace, maintain, translate, publish, use,
modify, copy or dispose of any or all of the Work and Documentation and
grant sublicenses to others with respect to the Work and Documentation.
All such licenses shall be in writing and shall be irrevocable and royalty-
free to Agency.

4, Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Consultant's Work and
Documentation shall not be changed or used for purposes other than those
set forth in the Contract, without the prior written approval of the Consultant.
If the Agency reuses the Work or Documentation without Consultant’s prior
written consent, changes or uses the Work or Documentation other than
as intended hereunder, Agency shall do so at its sole risk and discretion,
and Consultant shall not be liable for any claims and or damages resulting
from use or connected with the release of or any third party's use of the
reused materials or documents.

B. No Additional Compensation: Nothing Set forth in this Contract shall be deemed
to require payment by Agency to Consultant of any compensation specifically for
the assignments and assurances required hereby, other than the payment of
expenses as may be actually incurred by Consultant in complying with this
Contract.

15.  INFRINGEMENT: Except for third-party software and hardware, Consultant represents
and warrants that the Work and Documentation shall be free of any claim of trade secret,
trade mark, trade name, copyright, or patent infringement or other violations of any
Proprietary Rights of any person.

Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless, Agency, its officers, directors,
agents, employees, successors, assigns, servants, and volunteers free and harmless
from any and all liability, damages, losses, claims, demands, actions, causes of action,
and costs including reasonable attorney's fees and expenses to the extent of Consultant's
negligence for any claim that use of the Work or Documentation infringes upon any trade
secret, trade mark, trade name, copyright, patent, or other Proprietary Rights.

Consultant shall, at its expense and at Agency's option, refund any amount paid by
Agency under the Contract, or exert its best efforts to procure for Agency the right to use
the Work and Documentation, to replace or modify the Work and Documentation as
approved by Agency so as to obviate any such claim of infringement, or to put up a
satisfactory bond to permit Agency's continued use of the Work and Documentation.

4600002085 Page 11 of 14
ECMS & Associated Licenses



16. NOTICES: Any notice may be served upon either party by delivering it in person, or by
depositing it in a United States Mail deposit box with the postage thereon fully prepaid,
and addressed to the party at the address set forth below:

Agency: Warren T. Green
Manager of Contracts and Facilities Services
Inland Empire Utilities Agency
6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A
Chino, California 91708

Consultant:  George Bandarian Il
President & CEO
American Microlmaging, Inc. (AMI)
1125 West 6% Street, Suite 200
Los Angeles, California 90017

Any notice given hereunder shall be deemed effective in the case of personal delivery,
upon receipt thereof, or, in the case of mailing, at the moment of deposit in the course of
transmission with the United States Postal Service.

17.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: All of the terms, conditions and provisions of this
Contract shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Agency, the Consultant,
and their respective successors and assigns. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no
assignment of the duties or benefits of the Consultant under this Contract may be
assigned, transferred or otherwise disposed of without the prior written consent of the
Agency, and any such purported or attempted assignment, transfer or disposal without

the prior written consent of the Agency shall be null, void and of no legal effect whatsoev-
er.

18.  PUBLIC RECORDS POLICY: Information made available to the Agency may be subject
to the California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250 et seq.) The
Agency’s use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act. The Agency shall
use its best efforts to notify Consultant of any requests for disclosure of any documents
pertaining to Consultant.

In the event of litigation conceming disclosure of information Consultant considers
exempt from disclosure; (e.g., Trade Secret, Confidential, or Proprietary) Agency shall
act as a stakeholder only, holding the information until otherwise ordered by a court or
other legal process. If Agency is required to defend an action arising out of a Public
Records Act request for any of the information Consultant has marked “Confidential,”
“Proprietary,” or “Trade Secret, “ Consuitant shall defend and indemnify Agency from all
liability, damages, costs, and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, in any action or
proceeding arising under the Public Records Act.

19.  RIGHT TO AUDIT: The Agency reserves the right to review and/or audit all Consuftants’
records related to the Work. The option to review and/or audit may be exercised during
the term of the Contract, upon termination, upon completion of the Contract, or at any

4600002085 Page 12 of 14
ECMS & Associated Licenses



20.

21.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

time thereafter up to twelve (12) months after final payment has been made to Consultant.
The Consultant shall make all records and related documentation available within three
(3) working days after said records are requested by the Agency.

PUBLIC AGENCY CLAUSE: Consultant agrees that other public agencies shall have
the option to piggy-back upon the terms of this Contract for their own use for the services
defined herein. The authority granted herein shall incur no financial responsbility or
liability to IEUA in connection with another public agency’s use to piggy-back upon the
terms of this Contract. Consultant agrees that any public agency piggy-backing upon the
terms of this Contract shall be solely responsible for its own amrangements with and
payments to the Consultant and that the IEUA shall have no responsibility or liability
whatsoever regarding the piggy-backing arrangements.

INTEGRATION: The Contract Documents represent the entire Contract of the Agency
and the Consultant as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral or written under-
standing shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered by the
Contract Documents. This Contract may not be modified, altered or amended except
by written mutual agreement by the Agency and the Consultant.

GOVERNING LAW: This Contract is to be govemed by and constructed in accordance
with the laws of the State of California in the Superior Court in the County of San
Bemardino.

TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: The Agency reserves and has the right to
immediately suspend, cancel or terminate this Contract at any time upon written notice
to the Consultant. In the event of such termination, the Agency shall pay Consultant for
all authorized and Consultant-invoiced services including services provided but not yet
invoiced, up to the date of such termination.

CHANGES: The Agency may, at any time, make changes to this Contract's Scope of
Work; inciuding additions, reductions and other alterations to any or all of the work.
However, such changes shall only be made via written amendment to this Contract. The
Contract Price and Work Schedule shall be equitably adjusted, if required, to account for
such changes and shail be set forth within the Contract Amendment.

FORCE MAJEURE: Neither party shall hold the other responsible for the effects of acts
occurring beyond their control; e.g., war, riots, strikes, natural disasters, etcetera.

NOTICE TO PROCEED: No services shall be performed or furnished under this Contract
unless and untii this document has been properly signed by all responsibie parties and a
Notice to Proceed order has been issued to the Consultant.

4600002085 Page 13 of 14
ECMS & Associated Licenses



IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have caused the Contract to be entered as of the
day and year written above.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY, AMERICAN MICROIMAGING, INC. (AM):
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT:
:g*ﬁm \ March 28, 2016
P. Joseph Grindstaff (Date) George Bandarian II (Date)
General Manager President & CEO
4600002085 Page 14 of 14

ECMS & Associated Licenses



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

ACTION
ITEM

2C



b

( ‘ Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Ko A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: April 20, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Engineering, Operations, and Biosolids Management Committee (4/13/16)

Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee (4/13/16)

NANP- Joseph Grindstaff
General Manager

Submitted by: Frmest Yeboah B
Executive Manager of Operations

Randy Lee (2L~
Manager of Operations

Subject: Contract Amendment to West Valley Mosquito and Vector Control
District for Midge Fly Treatment

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Ratify Contract Amendment No. 4600001970-001 with West Valley Mosquito and
Vector Control District (WVMVCD) establishing a contract through June 30, 2016, for
midge fly treatment services at Turner, San Sevaine, Victoria, and Ely Basins for a not-
to-exceed amount of $120,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.
BACKGROUND

Midge flies are aquatic insects that inhabit water bodies such as lakes, streams, and ponds, and are
ﬁi’&ﬁiitogs throughout the world. In fact, the presence of midge flies within a water body is an
indicator of a healthy aquatic system. Unlike mosquitoes, midge flies do not bite and are not a
vector for disease. However, they can become a nuisance in populated areas as swarming and
resting adults come into contact with people and buildings. The recharge basins in the Chino Basin
contain standing bodies of water that provide suitable conditions for midge flies, and have in the
past created nuisance levels of adult midge flies in the surrounding areas.



Contract Amendment to West Valley Mosquito and Vector Control District
for Midge Fly Treatment

April 20, 2016

Page 2 of 2

In order to respond to the warm weather and expected outbreaks of midge flies in March,
WVMVCD recommended IEUA proactively treat midge fly outbreaks before they become a
significant public nuisance. WVMVCD is uniquely positioned to perform the required treatment
because of their specialized skill and local knowledge due to their service area covering much of
IEUA’s service area. As a result of WVMVCD’s recommendation, IEUA had them start midge
fly treatment in March 2016. In accordance, with Procurement Ordinance 101, the General
Manager utilized his authority to authorize emergency procurement and approved the amendment
with WVMVCD. Additionally, WVMVCD is concurrently conducting midge fly sampling under
a separate [EUA contract and will have the most comprehensive and current understanding of the
midge fly conditions within the recharge basins.

The midge fly treatment supports the Agency’s objective to be a “Good Neighbor” under the
business goal of Environmental Stewardship, as well as the objective of “maximizing the recharge
of recycled water” under the business goal of Water Reliability.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

The Board approved the purchase of an ARGO amphibious vehicle for midge fly treatment in 2014
and recently approved a contract to WVMVCD for midge fly sampling and control investigation.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

If approved, the anticipated expenses of $120,000 for Fiscal Year 2015/16 will be funded from the
Groundwater Recharge’s professional fees and services budget.

G:/Board-Rec/2016/16095 Contract Amendment to WVMVCD for Midge Fly Treatment 4-20-16



\.. ' _Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER: 4600001970-001

FOR
VECTOR CONTROL SERVICES

THIS AMENDMENT NUMBER 1, to Contract Number 4600001970, between the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency, and West Valley Mosquito and Vector Control District, of Ontario, California,
shall revise the Contract as follows:

REVISE SECTION 4, SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES, ADDING A PARAGRAPH “E” TO
READ:

E. Contractor shali, for performance period through June 30, 2018, provide professional
midge fly treatment services. As deemed necessary by WWMVCD staff, treatment
services will be provided at each of four IEUA sites:

1. Tumer Basins

2. Ely Basins

3. San Sevaine Basins
4. Victoria Basin

Contactor's services shall be provided in accordance with WWMVCD's proposal letter
dated February 24, 2016 (Attachment A), which is incorporated into and made a part
of Contract Number 4600001970, with this reference.

REVISE SECTION 6, COMPENSATION, ADDING A PARAGRAPH TO READ:

As compensation for the satisfactory performance of the services required under Contract
Amendment Number 4600001970-001, Agency shall increase the Not-to-Exceed value of the
Contract by $120,000. With the full execution of this Contract Amendment Number
4600001870-001, the Not-to-Exceed value of the Contract Number 4600001970 shall be
increased to $145,000.

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED.

WITNESSETH, that the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as per the above
amendment item, and in doing so have caused this document to become incorporated into the

Contract Documents. ’,

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: WEST VALLEY MOSQUITO AND
| VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT:

. : \ bl
7z W.’&"C 3 /11 /1
(Date) Min-Lee Cheng (Date)
District Manager
4600001970-001 HD ' " Page 1 of 4

3/8/2016



Attachment A



P Frardzling Puiti Hevttn N

g‘z’aﬁ“-]f 6y ‘" "_I H 5 A,

VWEST VALLEY
iosqQuiTo AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

1295 E. LocusT STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761  TELEPHONE (808)-835-0307
WY, WVYMOEQUITO. ORG

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

CHINO
Glenn Duncan

CHINO HILLS
Cynthia Moran

DISTRICT AT LARGE
Benjarmin Lopez

MONTCLAIR
Carclyn Raft

ONTARIO
Paul Leon

RANCHO CUCAMONGA
William Wittkop!

DISTRICT MANAGER
Min-Lee Cheng, Ph D.

February 24, 2018

Iniland Empire Utilities Agency

Atin. Bill Leever

Groundwater Recharge Coordinator
6075 Kimball Ave.

Chino, CA 91708

Mr. Leever:

Per our discussions on midge fly treatment services at groundwater recharge basins.
West Valley Mosquito and Vector Controt District (WVMVCD) proposes to provide
midge control treatment services at a rate of $80 per hour of staff time plus the cost of
materials, not to exceed $120,000 (150 acres x 3 treatments), through June 30, 2016.

A general summary of anticipated services are listed below.
1) Based on survey resulls of midge fly populations (conducted under separate

contract with IEUA), WVYMVCD will notify the IEUA project manager by email
{an inspection report) when midge treatment at Tumer, San Sevaine, Victoria,
and Ely Basins is deemed necessary.

2) IEUA will share basin maintenance schedules with WWMVCD (e.g. when the
basin is going to be drained) at least 2 month ahead, so as to avoid chemical
treatments.

WVMVCD looks forward to working with IEUA on midge fly control at the groundwater
recharge basins.

Sincerely,

Min-Lee Cheng, Ph.D.

District Manager

West Valley Mosquita and Vector Control District
1295 E. Locust St, Ontario, CA 81761

mcheng@wvmved.org
909-635-0307



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

ACTION
ITEM

2D



O

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date;: April 20, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee (04/13/16)

\. Finance, Legal & Administration Committee (04/13/16)

From:
eneral Manager
Submitted by: Chris Berch w
Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
Sylvie Lee 9/
Manager of Planning and Environmental Resources
Subject: Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program Reimbursement Agreement
Amendment
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Amend the reimbursement agreement with the Chino Basin Watermaster for the Prado
Basin Habitat Sustainability Program to increase the total program cost from $600,000 to

$934,500; and
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the reimbursement agreement amendment.

BACKGROUND

In December 2010, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) approved the Peace II Subsequent
Environmental Impact Report (SEIR). The Peace II SEIR was collaboratively completed by [IEUA
and Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM) and laid the foundation for the implementation of

hydraulic control, reoperation of the Chino Basin and continued use of recycled water.

The SEIR, requires IEUA, CBWM, Orange County Water District (OCWD) and individual
stakeholders, to convene a Committee to develop and implement the Prado Basin Habitat
Sustainability Program (Program). Under this Program, IEUA and CBWM are committed to

performing the following Tasks:

1. Develop an Adaptive Management Plan (AMP)



Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program Reimbursement Agreement Amendment
April 20, 2016
Page 2 of 3

2. Construct groundwater monitoring wells; and
3. Perform vegetation surveys

The AMP and monitoring wells needed to be complete prior to the operation of the Chino Desalter
expansion (part of the Peace II agreement), which was scheduled for December 2015. Through the
completion of these tasks, the project experienced unforeseen impacts which resulted in changes
to the costs currently approved. Impacts included time delays due to land acquisitions,
environmental permitting and monitoring and increased scope for the AMP. To allow the project
to complete in time, IEUA and CBWM agreed to track changes as they occur and reconcile after
the completion of the tasks. This allowed both tasks to be completed in time.

Under the Program, IEUA and CBWM have entered into a reimbursement agreement for a total
Program cost of $600,000 (cost-shared 50/50 by both agencies) through fiscal year 2022/23. Due
to the time and scope impacts identified above, the Program is expected to incur an additional
$334,500 in costs through fiscal year 2025/26. This will require an amendment to the current
reimbursement agreement, increasing the total Program cost from $600,000 to $934,500. To date,
$795,387 has been spent under this Program.

During the reconciliation process, tasks associated with photo monitoring and vegetation surveys
were included as part of the AMP, as these are considered part of the monitoring program.
According to the 2008 Bright Line approach agreement, costs associated to the monitoring
requirements of the AMP will be the responsibility of the CBWM in full. This resulted in changes
to each agencies costs-sharing allocation as presented in Table 2.

Table 1: Program cost summary since inception, including all amendments

Task Initial Cost 2013 Amendment Proposed 2016 Amendment
AMP Report $25,000 $97,780 $179,400
Monitoring Wells $390,000 $377,220 $625,100
Vegetation Surveys $20,000 $80,000 $100,000
Photo Monitoring $0 $15,000 $0
Annual Permit Fees $0 $0 $30,000
Contingency $5,000 $30,000 $0
Total Program Cost  $440,000 $600,000 $934,500
Table 2: Proposed Cost-Share Allocation to each Agency
Task Lead Agency % Cost Share % Cost Share
IEUA Watermaster
AMP Report IEUA 50 50
Monitoring Wells IEUA 50 50
Vegetation Surveys IEUA 0 100
Photo Monitoring CBWM 0 100
Annual Permit Fees IEUA 50 50
Total Program Costs by Agency $417,250 $517,250

(G:\Board-Rec\2016\16086 Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program Reimbursement
Agreement Amendment 4-20-2016



Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program Reimbursement Agreement Amendment
April 20, 2016
Page 3 of 3

The item will be presented to CBWM Board in May 2016.

The PBHS Program is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goal of Water Reliability by
maximizing the beneficial reuse of recycled water and sources of groundwater within the Chino
Basin.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On August 21, 2013, the IEUA Board of Directors awarded the contract for installation of the
groundwater monitoring wells and approved an amendment to TEUA/CBWM reimbursement
agreement in the amount of not-to-exceed $600,000.

On October 17, 2012, the IEUA Board of Directors approved an MOU with the Unites States

Bureau of Reclamation and the CBWM for the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program to
perform the vegetation surveys.

On October 3, 2012, the IEUA Board of Directors approved the reimbursement agreement in the
amount of $440,000 with CBWM for the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program.

On July 18, 2012, the IEUA Board of Directors approved the application for a $250,000 DWR
grant.

On October 6, 2010, the IEUA Board of Directors approved the Peace II SEIR.
IMPACT ON BUDGET

If approved, the total project cost will be amended from $600,000 to $934,500. CBWM cost share
will increase from $300,000 to $517,250 and the corresponding Agency’s cost share will increase
from $300,000 to $417,250. The budget of Project No. WR13022 under the Recharge Water (RW)
fund will be amended to reflect the new program cost.

Attachments: Amended Reimbursement Agreement (4600001511-002),

G:\Board-Rec'\2016\16086 Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program Reimbursement
Agreement Amendment 4-20-2016



%
¢

AMENDMENT NUMBER: 4600001511-002

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER AND INLAND EMPIRE
UTILITIES AGENCY REGARDING REIMBURSEMENT OF THE PEACE Il SUBSEQUENT
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT MITIGATION MEASURE 4.4.3
(PRADO BASIN HABITAT SUSTAINABILITY PROGRAM)

THIS AMENDMENT NUMBER 2, to Contract Number 4600001511, between the Chino

Basin Watermaster and the Inland Empire Utilities Agency shall revise the Agreement as
follows:

REVISE SECTION 3, TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

Project costs related to the Program will be cost shared between the Watermaster and IEUA
as indicated below and included in Attachments A and B. Watermaster and IEUA will
contribute up fo a total project cost amount of a not-to-exceed $934,500 through the end of
FY 2029/30. Refer to Attachment A for additional details on project cost. Total contributions
by Watermaster will be $517,250 and IEUA will be $417,250 as indicated in Attachment B.
Program cost includes, but is not limited to the following tasks as required by the Peace |l
Subsequent EIR mitigation measure 4.4-3.

a) |EUA shall retain a qualified consultant to develop the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability
Adaptive Management Plan (ID 1-A). This activity shall be cost shared 50/50 between
Watermaster and IEUA

b) Watermaster shall retain Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. (WEI) to complete and finalize
the Prado Habitat Sustainability Adaptive Management Plan (ID 1-B). This activity shall
be cost shared 50/50 between Watermaster and IEUA.

¢) Watermaster shall retain WEI to perform project management and construction tasks
related to the monitoring well installations under this program (ID 2). This activity shall be
cost shared 50/50 between Watermaster and IEUA.

d) |EUA shall retain a qualified contractor to construct and install monitoring wells (ID 3).
This activity shall be cost shared 50/50 between Watermaster and IEUA.

e) IEUA shall retain the United Stated Bureau of Reclamation {(USBR) to perform four
separate vegetative monitoring trip reports by 2025 (ID 4). This activity and
corresponding materials will be made part of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability
Adaptive Management Plan. This activity will be administered by IEUA and all task
related costs will be the responsibility of the Watermaster.

f) Watermaster shall retain a qualified contractor to perform monthly or quarterty photo
monitoring {ID 5). This activity and corresponding materials will be made part of the
Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Adaptive Management Plan. All task related costs will
be the responsibility of the Watermaster. Estimated scope of work and budget will be
determined after completion of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Adaptive
Management Plan. Budget related to this task will not be included or part of this
agreement.

Amendment Number 4600001511-002 Page 1 of 2
March 29, 2016



g) IEUA shall retain qualified contractors to perform environmental and regulatory permitting
tasks related to the construction of the monitoring wells under this program (IDs6 and 7).
This activity shall be cost shared between the Watermaster and IEUA.

h) Contract Labor retained by wither Watermaster or IEUA to perform project management
and administration shall be cost shared 50/50 between Watermaster and IEUA (1D 8).

i) IEUA shall obtain the required easements and licenses related to the construction and
fong-term monitoring activities of the monitoring wells under this Program (ID 9). This
activity shali be cost shared between Watermaster and IEUA.

j) Watermaster shall retain a qualified consultant and/or contractor to prepare reports
required by the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Adaptive Management Plan (ID 10).
Costs related to this activity are unknown at this time. All task related costs will be the
responsibility of the Watermaster. Estimated scope of work and budget will be
determined after completion of the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Adaptive
Management Plan. Budget related to this task is not included or part of this agreement.

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED.

The parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as per the above amendment
item(s), and in doing so have caused this document to become incorporated into the
Contract documents.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER:
{*A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT)

P. Joseph Grindstaff (Date) Peter Kavounas (Date)
General Manager General Manager
Amendment Number 4600001511-002 ' Page 2 of 2

March 29, 2016



00S'vE6 $ 00.'GEL ¢ Z8E'66. $Jooc'ye6 $ 000009 $ QOOOFF $ 3509 j0eloid B0l
- $ - $ - gf - ¢ 0000 $ - 3 Aouebunuon)

asl agl - 8 - 3 - $ - $ %0 WAMED mc_toncm_ pue BULIOJIUO AV O}
000'0€ $ o0o0l'ge $ GezZ'L ¢ { 000'0E s - 3 - g - %SG Y3l 5994 Jluled |enuuy G
005°'LL $ - $ 60F'LL $1005°LL 5 - % - $ %001 VAEL WD 40} Joge| 12enjucd gl - S|IPAA Jojiuo 8
00089 $ - $ §£6°29 $ [ 000°89 5 - $ - $ %001 VN3l Sjuswasey pue sjuued - S|l Jojluoly [
009'LS $ - $ ¥BS'LS $ 1 009°LS $ 000Gl $ 000'Gl $ %001 vn3l BULIGHIUO /|EJUSWIUOJAUT-S[|O A JONUO  ©

agl ad.l - $ - $ - $ - $ %0 WMAD BULIOJIUGIY Ojold G
000'00L $ 000'08 $ 00002 $i0o0000L $ 00008 $ 00002 $ %Se Y3l Asaing uogelebaa HESN ¥
00c'89L $ - $ 68289l ¢100e'g9L $ 00029, $ o000l $ %00L Y3l UONONJSU0Y) - S|ISAA JOJILO €
002'¢ze  $ - $ $99'Gee ¢|ooL'see ¢ ooo'sle ¢ 00004 $ %001 WMED S80IAISS ND [9M - SIIeA BULIOJILON 2
00£'9S $ o000'0E $ 982'0Z ¢loococ ¢ - $ - $ %0S Wmdo [IM - (dINV) UBId Juswabeuey sAndepy -1
ooL'ezl $ = ¢ ogo'cel ¢iool'czl ¢ 000'¢6 ¢ 0006e $ %001 vn3l 464 - (diNY) ueld ucm_.:mmm:m_)_ aAndepy -1

RPN jabpng a)g|dwog
uandiiasa
glieloy  Buipueising eiegolison  LopuSWW PARUSHY ssg  ouedvpee ACHESIR, 0}
ai0e ] A nTs
Bj{jE | AJELLLINGS JS0) j0810id

1509 1509 (aL/5z/10)

1503 123rodd Tv1i0Ll - ¥ INJWHOVLLY

(uondopy pieog g10g |udy 1o} J@bpng pasodold)} Z00-1 151000091 10EAUCD
{e10Z ‘'ZZ 1snbny 2An8Y3) 100~ LS LO000SY 10RO

(z102'1L Ae aA0243) L 1LSLO0009Y JORIUOD

weibold Ayiqeuleisng jejiqeH uiseg opeld - ZZ0SLEM

Aewwng 1s09) 109loid



[T AT A 00S'PE6  $ L8E'GBL  $ [ejoL
- ] - $ %001 %0 %0 qadl - $1 WmaD Buijiodey pue BULIGNLUOIW diNY ™~ 01
000Gk & ODOSL § %08 %0S % Q00'0E $ GET'lL $1 wn3l S99 Jlulad [enuly 6
0S5/ ¢ 0C/'G $ 2,08 %06 %66 00S1L  $ 6OFLL s wn3ai W2 Jaj 1oqe| 19eNUOD YN[ - SIOAA JOJUCIY 8
000'%€ $ 000vE % %08 %05 %00L 00089 $ GE6'[9 s wn3l S]ualUasES PUB S)IULSd - S[[OAA JOUUO /.
008'sz ¢ 0096z $ 8506 %05 %00l  009'L§ $ t6SLS $1 wn3al Bupojuo/|JustlUCIAUT-S|[e A JOJUCl 9
- 3 - g %001 %0 %0 adl - gl Wmgo buuojiioiy ojoud §
00000L $ - g %001 %0 %0¢ 000'00L % 00002 $ 1. vnal ABAing UoeebeA HaSn v
osl'y8 ¢ 0SL'v8  § %405 %50G %00L 00E99L § seegol S vn3l LIO[ONISUOY) - S||@pp JOJUO) €
06829 ¢ 0829l $ %05 %05 %00L 00.6ZE ¢ #99Gee S| WamED SBIARS AID [IM - SIIPA BULIONUOW 2
051’82 $ (06518 § %0G %505 %.F 00€°9S $ 9829¢ $ Wmad ISM - (dINV) Ueid Jusiliebelej eAydepy  a-}
nec'lo ¢ pecle ¢ wne . %40C %001 noL'ezL ¢ ogpezl ¢l wn3A Ja - (AW ueid siiisbeleia sAidedy v-L

JuBLLILUILG S jualujitiiog Wmas Y3l papusadx3 (aLisziio)

150 2315 ] uondussa
Wmad Y3l SIBUYS 1500 % =JEYS 1500 5% % . QI TERR. 2]E{ 0] 1502 s d

jusussiby aieyg 1809 Ujseq cpeid

AHYWINNS JEVHS LS0D - 9 INJWHOVLLY

{uopdopy pueog 910z IMdy 10y Jebpng pesodoid) Z0o-| LS 100009 19BZUOD
(€10z ‘22 18nBny 2ANoeY3) 1.OC-| LS 100009F 10BIUCD

(z102' 1 e 2AnoaY3) 115100009 1WEJUCD

weiboid Ayqeuielsng JejiqeH uiseg opeld - ZZ0ELHM

Aewwng js0)) Palolg



9107 1Hdy
Buiaaw siopaiq jo pivog vN3|

IDLSIA YTLVM IVEIDINNW V

Aauaby saginn andw3 puojuy ,U

JUSWIPpUWY JUW343Y
Juswasinquiey welado.id
AyjIgeulelsns jeliqeH uiseg ope.d




gLoz |udy
mr__uww_z s10403.1 jo pJeod vN 1l

gjoc LDIBLSIT BILVAM TVAIDINNIN ¥

Kouaby sapjjan aldwiz puojuy ’U

|042U0) dineldpAH Suiroidde Jo 1ed |BJ8U| «
Ipeduwll ZIWIUIW P[NOM Y3 suoido JusWaBeURW JIIBM JO UOIIBDIIUDP| ~
:SUOIDY SAIIDR4I0D) -
JuswaSeuewl Ja3em Ul 98ueypd Jo88143 PNOM 18U} SI0SSI)S/SI01DIpUl AdY AHIUBP| -
A31qeureisns [22180]079 WLR)-8uU0[ Y3 03 [BIIUSSSD S10308) [e2I80[0UpAH -
JUIX3 pue Ayjenb jengey uenedry -
:3uliojiuoy [edi8ojolg -

:3uipn)pul ‘ueld JuswaSeueyy aAndepy ue dojPaag -

.| 92834 10} 3unsesy uone3IN VOID =

L e

= s | 0 e

wea3o.d

A1lj1geulelisns 1eygeH uiseg opedd



} ainBi4 winiboig Apygeute)sns
) 181IqBH UISEg OPeid

suofjeso Jjam buuioljuoly dSHEd

0002 000°L 00%
—— i+ ==
P T

000'9  000'%  0O0O'Z o

i

9j0€ wom Buvoyuow awor @

eaxy Apms weiboid AugeuIwisns j@lqeH Uised opald 8

(1@IgeH/JWOH = 88Ul ‘Ao 18)IqeH = MaIaA) 1am Bupoyuoy eiuig ﬁ

(1e3qBH/dINOH = aBurip ‘Ajuo JeyqeH = MORaA} jian Supayuol pasisniD-eng ¢
sainieaq Uy

g os afinnucs)
FE e

S

-

g .-1....
e ST -

| =t ke

e Pt e
L/ pe

T

WOD [BIUBLILIOAAUSLIHALISDRW MMM
QEOE0ZY 6346

0E9Z6 YD I53iog ayEy

SATNT IBUNIY EBOER

an, Ty e o spa

HINAEEGTIM ==

SUOA0T [[awA Bd L Bid e
EL0EHY e

Sy Logny

Aq pasedalg




ud
@ —.O_ N _. < 9 +O ¥ LORASIO S31IVM TVADINNIW ¥

wEumwS_. s40422.41] JO pieogd YN 3l ousby sanjjan apduwiz puojuy ’U

wel3old siy} Jopun judds usaq sey £gE‘S6LS ‘@r1ep 0] —
WI9] PUDIXD pue uolledojje aJeys
1502 3snipe ‘150> weud0o.d asealdul 0} padinbad JUSWPUIWY =

06/0S |ds 2q 03 350> weiSoud ||V —
000‘009$ LN JO UNOWE dY3 Ul JudaWaa43e Jus.Ln) —
VN3l PUe WAMED UaaM13(
JUDWAaJ8e JuaWRsINquiIal [eiyul paAoidde pieog 10T 120 =

S

JUDWIDAIBY

A}l|iqeuieisns jejiqeH uiseg ope.d




9107 JUdy

Sunea siopaaq Jo pleog YNl

00S‘V<€6%

0$
000°0€$

0%
000‘001$
001‘629$
oo¥‘6/1$

JUaWpuUBLY
9102

0Sz!/19$
0Sc/1bs

000‘009$
000°‘0€$
0%
000°GLS
000°‘0Q$
0TTLLES
0Q/L6$

JuUSLUpUALLY
€102

9j0§

ooo‘otts
000S$
0%

0%
000‘0T$
000‘06¢$

000°G7S$

JuaLWwaaL8y
[eljiu]

EDIBLSIA FIVM TVIIDINAW Y

Kouaby sapiian aadwg puviu ,U

150D WMED
350D vYN3l
150D weidoud |e3oL
fouagunuod
$994 JULId [enuuy
Sunionuopw oyoyd
KoAing uonelaSap
S|IoAA SULIO}UOW
Hoday dWv

Alewwing 150" wel3do.d




Q10T 1Mdy
Buiasyy sicldai Jo pavog vN3|

“JUBLUPUILLIE JLBLLISISE
JUBLIASINGLUIRL 3U3 23NdaX2 0} JaZeUr|\ [B1auan 3yl zLoyine
pue 005‘P£6$ 03 000‘009% WO} 3502 Weidoud [2303 343 Ssea.dul
03 wesdoid AjIqeuiRISNS 1B}IgRH UISeg Opeld 3y} 104 191SBLIDIBAA
uiseg ouiyd au3 Yiim JuaLaasge Juaasinguuial sy pusly

UOIIEPUILLOIDY




Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

ACTION
ITEM

2E



i \ Inland Empire Utilities Agency

S A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: April 20, 2016

To: The Honorable Board of Directors

Through: Finance, Legal & Administration Committee (04/13/16)
From: : . Joseph Grindstaff

General Manager

Submitted by: Chris Berch AV
Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager

Sylvie Lee @/
Manager of Planning and Environmental Resources

Subject: Sale of One Inland Empire Brine Line (Brine Line) Capacity Unit to
Eastside Water Treatment Plant

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:
1. Approve the sale of one Brine Line capacity unit to Eastside Water Treatment Plant; and
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the Brine Line Capacity Right Agreement.

BACKGROUND

The Eastside Water Treatment Plant (EWTP) is a facility owned by the City of Chino located at
7537 Schaefer Avenue in the City of Ontario. The City of Chino began operation of the EWTP in
partnership with the Lewis Operating Corp. in 2013. The facility is an ion exchange plant designed
to pump and treat groundwater high in nitrates to supply potable water to the City of Chino.

EWTP transports its brine by truck to the Agency’s Brine Line Collection Station. EWTP has
plans to construct a pipeline for direct connection to the Brine Line in the next several years. In
the interim, EWTP has determined it would be more cost effective to purchase one capacity unit
for its hauled waste charges. On November 17, 2015, the SAWPA Commission approved
Resolution 2015-09 establishing a policy for ownership of Brine Line Capacity by indirect
dischargers.



Sale of One Brine Line Capacity Unit to Eastside Water Treatment Plant
April 20, 2016
Page 2 of 2

The Agency has available capacity units in the Brine Line to provide to EWTP. The Agency has
received the signed EWTP capacity right agreement for the capacity unit consistent with the Board
adopted ordinance.

The sale of one capacity unit to EWTP is consistent with the Agency’s business goal of
Environmental Stewardship by meeting federal, state and local pretreatment regulations within the

Agency’s service area, helping ensure protection of the water recycling plants, and safeguarding
public health and the environment.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

If approved, the Agency’s Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (NC) Fund will be increased by $215,000
from the sale of one capacity unit in FY 2015/16.

Attachments: 1. Capacity Right Agreement
2. EWTP County Parcel Description

G:\Board-Rec'2016'16089 Sale of One Brine Line Capacity Unit to Eastside Water ‘I'reatment Plant 4-20-2016



CAPACITY RIGHT AGREEMENT
Agreement Number 4600002015

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day of , 2016, between

Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, hereinafter called "the Agency”, and the City of
Chino, a Municipality, hereinafter referred to as "User"

WHEREAS, the Agency owns and operates a system of pipelines for disposal of non-reclaimable and
industrial wastewater, hercinafter called "Disposal System"; and

WHEREAS, the Agency's Board of Directors has adopted Ordinance No. 96, which ordains the manner
in which a person may obtain and utilize Capacity Rights through Agreement with the Agency and sets forth
provisions governing disposal of wastewater into the Disposal System. As used herein, Ordinance No. 96
includes any amendments or successor ordinances thereto; and

WHEREAS, User operates an ion exchange plant to treat groundwater located in the City of Ontario,
CA, identified on the attached (Exhibit A) Assessor Parcel Map APN: 1053-111-01-0000 and 1053-111-03-
0000 of the County of San Bernardino, State of California. User is currently an Indirect Discharger as defined
in Ordinance No. 96. User desires to construct a direct connection to the Disposal System however due to

right of way, easement and permit acquisition issues, the direct connection will take a significant period of time
to accomplish.

WHEREAS, User has reviewed Ordinance No, 96 and, pursuant to its terms and conditions, desires to

purchasc one (1} Agency Capacity Unit to secure the right to dispose of ion exchange regeneration
wastewater and water softener backwash to the Disposal System.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED between the Agency and User as follows:

1. INCORPORATION OF ORDINANCE. Ordinance No. 96, adopted by the Agency on

February 19, 2014, and amended from time to time thereafter, is incorporated as part of this Agreement as set
forth in full.

2, COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE. User agrees to discharge only such wastes that are
acceptable to the Agency and shall comply with all provisions of Ordinance No. 96 and any amendment thereto.

2 APPLICABLE REAL PROPERTY. The Capacity Right herein agreed upon applies to the real
property described in Exhibit "A" attached and made a part hereof. User shall not convey title to said Capacity

Right, sublet or rent the use of said Capacity Right or, in any manner, permit the use of said Capacity Right by
others to the extent authorized herein.

4. INITIAL CAPACITY CHARGE AND CAPACITY RIGHT. User, in consideration of this
Agreement, agrees to pay the Agency the sum of Two Hundred Fifteen Thousand dollars ($215,000.00) for the
one (1) Agency Capacity Unit. The Agency, in consideration of User's request, agrees to provide User one (1)
Agency Capacity Unit and the qualified right to discharge a quantitative discharge limit of 15 gallons per
minute (gpm). Should the User discharge in excess of the maximum 21,600 gallons per day discharge limit,

the User agrees to pay the Agency the applicable charges as established and required by the current Agency
resolution for trucked discharges to the Inland Empire Brine Line,



5. SERVICE CHARGE. User, in consideration of this Agreement, agrees to pay the Agency the
applicable monthly wastewater service charge including, but not limited to, the volumetric, capacity and
strength charge, capital improvement project and supplemental charges, surcharges, administrative charges, if
applicable, as established and required by the Agency’s resclution or amendment to Ordinance No. 96, which

is adopted from time to time by the Agency's Board of Directors. The Agency shall invoice User directly for
this charge.

6. INDEMNIFICATION. Agency shall indemnify, defend, and hold User, its officials, officers,
and employees harmiess from and against any and all actions, claims, damages, expenses, and liability arising
out of the acts or omissions of Agency in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, It is

understood that the duty to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section
2778 of the California Civil Code.-

User shall indemnify, defend, and hold Agency, its officials, officers, and employees harmless from and against
any and all actions, claims, damages, expenses, and liability arising out of the acts or omissions of User in the
performance of its obligations under this Agreement. It is understood that the duty to indemnify and hold
harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Agency and User have executed this Agreement on the date first above written,

APPRCVED AS TQO CONTENT: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jose Alire ‘ Date Arturo N. Fierro
Assistant City Manager/PW Assistant City Attgrney
CITY OF CHINO: INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY:

(AR

.h{lljrwne Date P. Joseph Grindstaff
City Manager General Manager

Signature Date
ATTEST:

Angela Robles Date
City Clerk

Agreement Number 4600002015 Page 2 of 2
Eastside Water Treatment Plant
Capacity Right Agreement 1/20/2016



Exhibit A

Property Information Management System

San Bernardino County
Office of the Assessor

PROPERTY INFCRMATION REPORT FOR PARCEL 1053-111-01-0000

Property Information Management System



San Bernardino County Assessor

Property Information Parcel 1053111010000

Property Address {Main Situs) Protected per CA. Govt. Code Parcel Status ACTIVE

Sect. 6254.21 Parcel Type REAL PROPERTY

Protected per CA. Govt, Code

Sect. 6254.21 Property ID

Tax Status ASSESSED BY COUNTY
Owner and Mailing Address CITY OF CHINO Use Code DAIRY
Land Access CHECK

C/O CITY MANAGER )

Protected per CA. Govt. Code Size 3.501 TO 7.000 ACRES

Sect. 6254.21 Land Type SINGLE FAMILY

Protected per CA. Govt. Code RESIDENTIAL

Sect. 6254.21 District ONTARIO

Effective Date 09/09/2004 Resp Group SPECIAL PROPERTY

Resp Unit ALL SECTION 11

Exhibit A

ASSESSMENTS
Current Owners
Name CITY OF CHINO T T Document Numbers
RN SOLE OWNER 20040300011
% Int 100.0000000 20040589770
Type BILLED OWNER
Acguisition Date 04/30/2004
Document Date 04/30/2004
[nactive Date NONE
Legal Parcel Map
parcelMap_ PasiNor  unt  Book Page

1053111010000

Legal Description
'RANCHO SANTA ANA DEL CHINO W 180 FT LOTS 6 AND 11 SEC 17 TP 25 R 7W MEAS TO ST /L
4,53 AC M/L

No Legal Reason for Change Found

No Active Homeowner's Exemptions Found

11/11/2015 6:09:17 AM Property Information Management System 1of

2 Page(s)



Y007 Jequaacy

Ajunoy ocujpipuleg ubg ‘WE'A'E'S "MLYUSTL
il eBpd £501 yoog L1298 ‘¥ /IUMN “upd
dop s, lossessy

H1 50/50/¢0

0351ATY
(=)
- ——H¥HM— - - = ———— e — — — i e e — e e — = — ] — =
- [1E] i g€ _
&
T
£ == 3 w
=3 = "— Ju
I
N _
EA I
4] |
"sjaoied asoU) UO PR1EDO| SJB SINIDE} Jusweal]l ey
10 sjuauodwod ou Inq Apadaid 41AAT el uo pejean) ale J( pue gp ‘0 |
_“.ﬂ I ..\HJ
E(E) n N
* (&i=)
i -.-u.\_.

® ” _ |
| N

\\\\.\\\.\\..\.\\\\\\\\\ _ ——

vLOY
v Doty @iDy XD] LINO HOILYXYL WINDT¥A OV 40
__ —n ¢qnl opiojug jo A}1n m—.\m .m.z +oc_r_o _mm_ PUY DJupg Or_occm .—:n_ 350d4Nd IHI 404 St d¥M SIML




Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

ACTION
ITEM

2F



& ™ Iniand Empire Utilities Agency
" AMUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: April 20, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee (04/13/16)

flfinance, Legal & Administration Committee (04/13/16)

From: " P, Joseph Grindstaff
General Manager
Submitted by: Chris Berch Op
Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
Sylvie Lee @/
Manager of Planning and Environmental Resources
Subject: Professional Services Contract Award for Septic User Feasibility Study
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve the professional services contract award for the Feasibility Study for Sewer
Service to Septic Users in the IEUA Service Area, Project No. PL16015 to RMC Water
and Environment for the not-to-exceed amount of $286,813; and

2. Authorize the General Manger to execute the contract.

BACKGROUND

The groundwater resources for the Agency’s service area represent a significant source of the
region’s drinking water supply. In 1989, the California Regional Water Quality Control Board
(Regional Board) performed a review of the nitrate problem in the groundwater of the Santa Ana
Region and the relationship to septic tanks. The review, which included specific areas of the
Agency’s service area, found that there was a link between the nitrate contamination in the
groundwater and septic tanks installed in local high density developments.

As a result of the review, the Regional Board adopted a Basin Plan amendment on October 13,
1989 to include minimum lot size requirements to limit the density of new septic tank installations
in order to control the nitrate quality issues within the Santa Ana Region. Since then, the Regional
Board has adopted an updated policy approved by the State Water Resources Control Board for
the installation of new and replacement septic tank systems.



Feasibility Study for Sewer Service to Septic Users
Project No. PL16015 Feasibility Study Contract Award
April 20, 2016

Page 2 of 2

The Agency, with the assistance of the regional contracting agencies (RCA), performed an initial
review of the service area septic parcels in June 2015. The review estimated approximately 3.0 to
6.0 million gallons per day is managed through use of septic tanks within the service area.

A request for proposal (RFP) was issued on January 7, 2016 seeking the professional services of a
consultant to complete a feasibility study to evaluate providing sewer service to septic users in the
IEUA service area. The feasibility study will define sewer service regions and prioritize the
regions on a ranking methodology based on grant funding opportunities and other benefits to the
service area such as groundwater quality, recycled water, and low impact development
considerations. The assessment of the existing sewer system capacity for the RCAs and IEUA
along with associated costs to convert the communities to sewer will also be addressed in the
feasibility study.

On January 28, 2016, Staff presented the project as an informational item to the Technical
Committee. On February 23, 2016, two responses to the RFP were received by the Agency from
RMC Water & Environment (RMC) and TKE Engineering, Inc. (TKE). A selection panel
consisting of representatives from the cities of Fontana, Montclair, Ontario, and IEUA reviewed
the two proposals. Based on the proposals, RMC was selected based on their understanding of the
scope of work, the project team qualifications, previous similar project experience, and their ability
to meet the project schedule. The projected costs of the feasibility study is $251,544 with two
optional tasks of outreach and geotechnical condition evaluations for $35,269. The feasibility
study is scheduled to be completed by September 2016.

This feasibility study aligns with the Agency’s business goal of Water Reliability by protecting
groundwater quality and supporting new water supplies, the recycled water program, and the
groundwater recharge program.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

The award of the professional services contract for the Feasibility Study for Providing Sewer
Service to Septic Users in the IEUA Service Area, for the not-to-exceed amount of $286,813 is
within the total project budget of Project No. PL16015 in the Regional Wastewater Capital
Improvement (RC) Fund. The current total project budget for FY2015/16 is $50,000 with the
remaining $350,000 to be budgeted through the FY 2016/17 budget process. In February 2016,
IEUA applied for a Small Community Wastewater Planning Grant seeking $500,000 to support
the feasibility study in areas that will qualify as small disadvantaged communities. Upon approval
from the SWRCB, the project budget will be revised to align with the grant funding,

Attachments: Contract with RMC
G:\Board-Rec\2016\ 16091 Feasibility Study for Providing Sewer Service to Septic Users 4-20-2016



9107 |Hdy
Buijsaw siopaui jo pivog yNal IDRNLSIA BILVM TVEIDINNW V

A>uaby saninn aadwiz pubjuj ’

psemy Apnis Ayjiqisea
S19s 211daS 03 IDIAIDS JOM3S




910t __._n_< IALSI HALVM TVAIDINDW ¥

940t

Bunas siopaa1q Jo pieog N3l Touaby sajIaN sddui3 pupjuj ’U

v pasmaseornz [ ]

onnsuZ PR Mg FTY

sdincsg yaoia Hnmunwoy pebeueapesig
L]
AL AP

Fugand sy MG =1 s
o g Sy

nuRG R )

puse

syjauaq Ajddns 1o1em apirodd -

A)1|1qeI[24 3DIAIDS JOMIS SPIAOId -

S11jauaq JuawdojaAdp [BDO] dPIAOL] -

Ay1jenb J23empunoJg jo Juswadueyuy .
WD1SAS JOMDS 0] SJ3sn J13dds JO UOISIDAUOY) =

punoJi3yoeg 323[0.d




opom__s_,q s_Eaéiz.__gz:E.
Bujesw siopauiq 40 pibog vna| 9j0€ A>Uaby SSRIAN g puDjuf ,U

s1oedw weldold 491eAA PPAIRY YNII -
uoigay 03 s}joug dIWOoUO0DT |[BIRAQ -
suoelapisuo) uawdojaaa( pedwl| Mo
$1SOD) Pa1BIDOSSY JO SisAjeuy .

sisAjeuy Ajpede) Jomas .

[
2oty 0 SIBLAT D30T LC DIBIC SRR |
PGty SN sop SOBTLRAENIT GRURS Y IS EG0: |
: GO 2 STrwlod 0eEmUNspRs O S0 LT MR o !

R 0Ds oy, |
' .
' AT ey PiA SEam J0) uopaRkiog i

sjjouaq Ayjenb uayempunoln

Suipuny} jueJd UO paseq PINUBL — SSSUDAIIIRD ISOD
onejuswsalduwi jo uejd @ sjeon Apnis Ajjiqises

B

s|jeon 3r9loid



910¢ EQ( LOIHISIA HALVM TVIIDINDW ¥

mc_u.mws_ si00al|( jo pleog YNl 9jot Zouaby sauiif) aajdw3 puoju f)v

000°‘005$% Jo jueld Suiuueld [e13UI0d =

P9129]9S SeM DINY =

VN3l ¢ JIBPIUOW ‘OleIUQ ‘eurluo JO S [Sued UORDI|SS =
-uj ‘Suusuidul INL -

(DWY) JUSILOIIAUT R J23BM DINY -
910¢ ‘€ A1enige4 UO PaAIaDal 2Jam sjesodold om] =

LOI11D9]9S/S|esododd Jue3nsuod




910z idy
IINISIO BALVA TVAIDINDW Y

Buiyeswy siojdadiq Jo piroeg VNI 9405 A>uaby sapyun aifduig pupjuf ’/‘
910T J2qWIa3das uopa|dwod Apnis Ayjiqisead
910¢ |Hdy PIEMY 310BJIUO0D AN|IqISea ]
O10C YoIEW uoI31293s |esodold
910¢ Atenuqa sjesodoud Sa2IAISS [BUOISSD}0.1d JO 1dIoDaYy

au03s3|iAl 3>2]odd

*€19°9Qt$ SI Apn3s A31jiqised) 4o S1S0d pardsfoad =

a|Npayds pue 3s0) 1d3loud




Q10T 1udy
Buigeaw siopallg jo pavog yN3|

*12B13U02 3Y3 33NDaXa 03 JaSeUBA |BI2U3D 3] ZIHoYyne pue £1898T$
JO JUNOUWIR P332X3-03-10U 3} J0J JUSWIUOIIAUT pUB J2JBA DINY O3
(S10917d "ON 323[01d) Baly 32IAISS YNNI Y3 Ul S195M 213daS 03 3IIAISS
19M3S Buipiaold 10} ApnmiS AJ|IqISBS 10} PIBME JIBIJUOD SIDIAIDS
jeuoissajold ayy aaoidde s103034iQ 40 pleog Y] SPUSLILLIODaL }1eS

UOI}EPUILLILLODDY




\-‘.‘F inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUINICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

CONTRACT NUMBER: 4600002090
FOR

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR
PROVIDING SEWER SERVICE TO SEPTIC USERS IN THE IEUA AREA

THIS CONTRACT (the "Contract"), is made and entered into this 20 day of April, 2016, by
and between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, organized and
existing in the County of San Bernardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Califomnia (hereinafter referred to as "Agency"), and RMC Water and Environment, Inc. with
offices located in Irvine, California (hereinafter referred to as "Consultant”) to provide
professional engineering consulting services for the feasibility study for providing sewer
service to septic users.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth herein,
the parties agree as follows:

1. PROJECT MANAGER ASSIGNMENT: All technical direction related to this Contract
shall come from the designated Project Manager. Details of the Agency's assignment
are listed below.

Project Manager: Kenneth Tam
Address: 6075 Kimball Avenue
Chino, California 91708
Telephone:  (909) 993-1917
Facsimile: (909) 993-1987
Email: ktam@ieua.org

2. CONSULTANT ASSIGNMENT: Special inquiries related to this Contract and the
effects of this Contract shall be referred to the following:

Consultant:  Rich Bichette
Address: 515 South Flower Street, 36" Fioor.
Los Angeles, California 90071
Telephone: (213) 236-3665
Facsimile: (948) 420-5301

Email: rbichette@rmcwater.com

4600002090 Page 1 0f 13
3/28/2016



3. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE: The documents referenced below represent the
Contract Documents. Where any conflicts exist between the General Terms and
Conditions, or addenda attached, then the governing order of precedence shall be as

follows:
A. Amendments to Contract Number 4600002090,
B. Contract Number 4600002090 General Terms and Conditions.
C. Consultant’s Scope of Work dated February 23, 2016, Attachment A.
D. Agency’s Request for Proposal RFP-KB-16-002

4, SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES:

A. Consultant services and responsibilities shall include and be in accordance with
tasks identified in Consultant’s Scope of Work, dated February 23, 2016, which is
attached hereto, incorporated herein and made a part hereof as Attachment A.

B. Optional Scope of Work identified as Task 8 to develop outreach strategies to
the public, shall be authorized in writing by an Amendment to this Contract.

C. An additional optional Task 9 for a geotechnical feasibility evaluation shall also
be authorized in writing by an Amendment to this Contract.

Consultant shall not proceed to work on the optional tasks without a fully-executed
contract amendment and a notice to proceed from the Project Manager.

TERM: The term of this Contract shall extend from the date of the Nofice to Proceed,

and terminate on December 31, 2016, unless agreed to by both parties and amended
to this contract.

6. COMPENSATION: Consultant’s invoice must be submitted according to milestones
achieved by Consultant and accepted by the Agency’s Project Manager, and shall
include a breakdown by tasks completed, the current monthly amount due, and the
cumulative amount invoiced to date against this contract. Consultant shall not be paid
more than eighty (80) percent of the contract price for less than 80 percent of the
milestones achieved during the course of this contract. Invoicing shall be submitted
electronically to apgroup@ieua.org, using the Agency's standard Excel-based
invoicing template (Attachment B). Invoicing shall not be submitted in advance of, or
shall not be dated earlier than, the actual date of submittal.

Agency may at any time make changes to the work inciuding additions, reductions,
and changes to any or all of the work, as directed in writing by the Agency. Such
changes shall be made by a written Amendment to the Contract. The NOT-TO-
EXCEED Amount and Work Schedule of the RFP shall be equitably adjusted, if
required, to account for such changes and shall be set forth in the Amendment.

4600002090 Page 2 of 13
3/28/2016



In compensation for the work represented by this Contract, Agency shall pay
Consultant a NOT-TO-EXCEED maximum total of $286,813.00, inclusive of the
optional tasks identified above, for all services provided in accordance with
Consultant’s Fee proposal, attached hereto, made a part hereof, and referenced
herein as Attachment C. Payment shall be made according to milestones achieved
by Consultant and accepted by the Agency's Project Manager.

7. CONTROL OF THE WORK: Consultant shall perform the Work in compliance with
the work schedule. If performance of the Work falls behind schedule, the Consultant
shall accelerate the performance of the Work to comply with the work schedule as
directed by the Project Manager. If the nature of the Work is such that Consultant is
unable to accelerate the Work, Consultant shall promptly notify the Project Manager
of the delay, the causes of the delay, and submit a proposed revised work schedule.

8. FITNESS FOR DUTY:

A Fitness: Consultant and its SubConsultant personnel on the Jobsite:
1. Shall report for work in a manner fit to do their job;
2. Shall not be under the infiluence of or in possession of any alcoholic

beverages or of any controlled substance (except a controlled
substance as prescribed by a physician so long as the performance or
safety of the Work is not affected thereby); and

3. Shall not have been convicted of any serious criminal offense which, by
its nature, may have a discernible adverse impact on the business or
reputation of Agency.

B. Compliance: Consultant shall advise all personnel and associated third parties
of the requirements of this Contract ("Fitness for Duty Requirements") before
they enter on the Jobsite and shall immediately remove from the Jobsite any
employee determined to be in violation of these requirements. Consultant shall
impose these requirements on its sub-consultants. Agency may cancel the
Contract if Consultant violates these Fitness for Duty Requirements.

9. INSURANCE: During the term of this Contract, the Consultant shall maintain at
Consultant's sole expense, the following insurance.

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance:
1. General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. Coverage shall be
at least as broad as Insurance Services Office form number CG 00 01
10 01 covering Comprehensive General Liabilty. [ Commercial
General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit
is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this

4600002090 Page 3 of 13
3/28/2016



Project/location, or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the
required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for
bedily injury and property damage. Coverage shall be at least as broad
as Insurance Services Office form number CA 00 01 10 01, covering
Automobile Liability, including "any auto."

3. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability: Workers'
compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California and employers Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident.

4, Professional Liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per claim.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention: Any deductibles or self-insured
retention must be declared to and approved by the Agency. At the option of
the Agency, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or
self-insured retention as respects the Agency, its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers; or the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment

of losses and related investigations, claims administration and defense
expenses.

Other Insurance Provisions: The policies are o contain, or be endorsed to
contain, the following provisions:

1. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverage

a. The Agency, its officers, officials, employees, volunteers,
property owners and any engineers under contract to the Agency
are to be covered as additional insureds, endorsements CG 20
10 11 85, as respects: liability arising out of negligent activities
performed by or on behalf of the Consultant, products and
completed operations of the Consultant, premises owned,
occupied or used by the Consultant, or automobiles owned,
leased, hired or borrowed by the Consuitant. The coverage shalll
contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded
to the Agency, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers. If
Form CG 20 10 10 93 or CG 20 10 03 97 are issued in place of
the CG 20 10 11 85, then it is also necessary to issue a Form CG
20 31 10 01 in addition to Form CG 20 10 10 93 or CG 20 10 03
97.

b. The Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance
as respects the Agency, its officer, officials, employees and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the
Agency, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be
excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with
it.

4600002020
3/28/2016

Page 4 of 13



c. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall
not affect coverage provided to the Agency, its officers, officials,
employees or volunteers.

d. The Consultant's insurance shall apply separately to each
insured against whom claim is made or sult is brought, except
with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

e. The Consultant may satisfy the limit requirements in a single
policy or multiple policies. Any Such additional policies written as
excess insurance shall not provide any less coverage than that
provided by the first or primary policy.

2. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage

The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the
Agency, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses
arising from work performed by the Consultant for the Agency.

3. All Coverages

Prior to cancellation of any policy required herein, the policies shall be
endorsed to state, 30 days advanced cancellation notice will be mailed
to the Agency, except if policies cancelied for non-payment of premium,
then 10 days advance notice will be mailed.

Acceptability of Insurers: With the exception of Professional Liability Insurance,
all insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than
A:VIl, and who are admitted insurers in the State of Califomia.

Verffication of Coverage: Consultant shall fumish the Agency with certificates
of insurance and with original endorsements effecting coverage required by the
Agency for themselves and all sub-consultants prior to commencing work or
allowing any sub-consultant to commence work under any subcontract. The
certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates
and endorsements are to be approved by the Agency before work commences.
The Agency reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all
required insurance policies, at any time.

Submittal of Certificates: Consultant shall submit all required certificates and
endorsements to the following:

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Atin: Angela Witte

P.O. Box 9020

Chino Hills, Califomia 91709-0902

4600002090
3/28/2016

Page 50of 13



10. LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A.

Professional Responsibility: The Consultant shall be responsible, to the level
of competency presently maintained by other practicing professionals
performing the same or similar type of work.

Status of Consultant: The Consultant is retained as an independent Consultant
only, for the sole purpose of rendering the services described herein, and is not
an employee of the Agency.

Observing Laws and Ordinances: Consistent with the standard of skill and care
set forth in 10.A, Professional Responsibility, the Consultant shall keep itself
fully informed of all relevant existing state and federal laws and all relevant
county and city ordinances and regulations which pertain to structural
engineering services or tasks performed under this Contract, and of all such
orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority
over the same. The Consultant shall at all times observe and comply with all
such existing laws, ordinances, regulations, orders and decrees, and shall to
the extent of Consultant's negligence, protect and indemnify, as required
herein, the Agency, its officers, employees and agents against any claim or
lizability arising from or based on the violation of any such law, ordinance,
regulation, order or decree, whether by the Consultant or its employees.

Grant Funded Project: This is a grant funded project. Consultant shall comply
with all requirements related to the grant. Requirements are attached hereto
and made a part hereof as Attachment D.

Subcontract Services: Any subcontracts for the performance of any services
under this Contract shall be subject to the written approval of the Project
Manager.

Travel and Subsigtence Pay: The Consultant shall make payment to each
worker for travel and subsistence payments which are needed to execute the
work and/or service, as such travel and subsistence payments are defined in
the applicable collective bargaining agreements with the worker.

Conflict of Interest: No official of the Agency who is authorized in such capacity
and on behalf of the Agency to negotiate, make, accept or approve, or to take
part in negotiating, making, accepting or approving this Contract, or any
subcontract relating to services or tasks to be performed pursuant to this

Contract, shall become directly or indirectly personally interested in this
Contract.

Equal Opportunity and Unlawful Discrimination: During the performance of this
Contract, the Consultant shall not unlawfully discriminate against any employee

or employment applicant because of race, color, religion, sex, age, marital

4600002090
3/28/2016

Page 6 of 13



status, ancestry, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, veteran status
or national origin. The Agency is committed to creating and maintaining an
environment free from harassment and discrimination.

Non-Conforming Work and Warranty: Consistent with the standard of skill and
care set forth in Section 10.A, Professional Responsibility, Consultant
represents and warrants that the Work and Documentation shall be adequate
to serve the purposes described in the Contract. If the Project Manager rejects
ail or any part of the Work or Documentation as unacceptable, and agreement
to correct such Work or Documentation cannot be reached without modification
to the Contract, Consultant shall notify the Project Manager, in writing, detailing
the dispute and reason for Consultant’s position. Any dispute that cannot be
resolved between the Project Manager and the Consultant, shall be resolved in
accordance with the Dispute Section of this Contract.

Disputes:

1. All disputes arising out of or in relation to this Contract shall be
determined in accordance with this section. The Consultant shall pursue
the work to completion in accordance with the instruction of the Agency's
Project Manager notwithstanding the existence of dispute. By entering
into this Contract, both parties are obligated, and hereby agree, to
submit all disputes arising under -or relating to the Contract, which
remain unresolved after the exhaustion of the procedures provided
herein, to independent arbitration. Except as otherwise provided herein,
arbitration shall be conducted under Califomia Code of Civil Procedure
Sections 1280, et. seq, or their successor.

2. Any and all disputes during the pendency of the work shall be subject to
resolution by the Agency Project Manager and the Consultant shall
comply, pursuant to the Agency Project Manager instructions. If the
Consultant is not satisfied with any such resolution by the Agency
Project Manager, they may file a written protest with the Agency Project
Manager within seven (7) calendar days after receiving written notice of
the Agency's decision. Failure by Consultant to file a written protest
within seven (7) calendar days shall constitute waiver of protest, and
acceptance of the Agency Project Manager's resolution. The Agency's
Project Manager shall submit the Consultant's written protests to the
General Manager, together with a copy of the Agency Project Manager's
written decision, for his or her consideration within seven (7) calendar
days after receipt of said protest(s). The General Manager shall make
his or her determination with respect to each protest filed with the
Agency Project Manager within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of
said protest(s). If Consultantis not satisfied with any such resolution by
the General Manager, they may file a written request for arbitration with

4600002090
3/28/2016

Page 7 of 13



the Project Manager within seven (7) calendar days after receiving
written notice of the General Manager’s decision.

3. In the event of arbitration, the parties hereto agree that there shall be a
single neutral Arbitrator who shall be selected in the following manner:

a. The Demand for Arbitration shall include a list of five names of
persons acceptable to the Consultant to be appointed as
Arbitrator. The Agency shall determine if any of the names
submitted by Consultant are acceptable and, if so, such person
will be designated as Arbitrator.

b. In the event that none of the names submitted by Consultant are
acceptable to Agency, or if for any reason the Arbitrator selected
in Step (a) is unable to serve, the Agency shall submit to
Consultant a list of five names of persons acceptable to Agency
for appointment as Arbitrator. The Consultant shall, in tumn, have
seven (7) calendar days in which to determine if one such person
is acceptable.

C. If afier Steps (a) and (b), the parties are unable to mutually agree
upon a neutral Arbitrator, the matter of selection of an Arbitrator
shall be submitted to the San Bernardino County Superior Court
pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281.6, or its
successor. The costs of arbitration, including but not limited to
reasonable atiorneys' fees, shall be recoverable by the party
prevailing in the arbitration. If this arbitration is appealed to a
court pursuant to the procedure under Califomia Code of Civil
Procedure Section 1294, et. seq., or their successor, the costs of
arbitration shall also include court costs associated with such
appeals, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees
which shall be recoverable by the prevailing party.

4. Joinder in Mediation/Arbitration: The Agency may join the Consultant in
mediation or arbitration commenced by a Consultant on the Project
pursuant to Public Contracts Code Sections 20104 et seq. Such joinder
shall be initiated by written notice from the Agency's representative to
the Consultant.

11.  INDEMNIFICATION: Consultant shall indemnify the Agency, its directors, employees
and assigns, and shall defend and hold them harmless from all liabilities, demands,
actions, claims, losses and expenses, including reasonable attomeys’ fees, which
arise out of or are related to the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the
Consultant, its directors, employees, agents and assigns, in the performance of work
under this contract.

4600002090 Page 8 of 13
3/28/2016



12.

13.

14.

OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS AND DOCUMENTS/CONFIDENTIALITY: The
Agency retains ownership of any and all partial or complete reports, drawings, plans,
notes, computations, lists, and/or other materials, documents, information, or data
prepared by the Consultant and/or the Consultant's SubConsultant(s) pertaining to this
Contract. Said materials and documents are confidential and shall be available to the
Agency from the moment of their preparation, and the Consultant shail deliver same
to the Agency whenever requested to do so by the Project Manager and/or Agency.
The Consultant agrees that same shall not be made available to any individual or
organization, private or public, without the prior written consent of the Agency.

TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS:

A Documentation: Title to the Documentation shall pass, subject to payment
therefore, to Agency when prepared; however, a copy may be retained by
Consultant for its records and intemal use. Consultant shall retain such
Documentation in a controlled access file, and shall not reveal, display or
disclose the contents of the Documentation to others without the prior written
authorization of Agency or for the performance of Work related to the project.

B. Material: Title to all Material, field or research equipment, subject to payment
therefore, and laboratory models, procured or fabricated under the Contract
shall pass to Agency when procured or fabricated, and such title shall be free
and clear of any and all encumbrances. Consultant shall have risk of loss of
any Material or Agency-owned equipment of which it has custody.

C. Disposition: Consultant shall dispose of items to which Agency has titie as
directed in writing by the Agreement Administrator and/or Agency.

PROPRIETARY RIGHTS:

A Rights and Ownership: Agency's rights to inventions, discoveries, trade
secrets, patents, copyrights, and other intellectual property, including the
Information and Documentation, and revisions thereto {hereinafter collectively
referred to as "Proprietary Rights"), used or developed by Consultant in the
performance of the Work, shall be govemed by the following provisions:

1. Proprietary Rights conceived, developed, or reduced to practice by
Consultant in the performance of the Work shall be the property of
Agency, and Consultant shall cooperate with all appropriate requests to
assign and transfer same to Agency.

2. If Proprietary Rights conceived, developed, or reduced to practice by
Consultant prior to the performance of the Work are used in and become
integral with the Work or Documentation, or are necessary for Agency
fo have complete enjoyment of the Work or Documentation, Consultant
shall grant to Agency a non-exclusive, irrevocable, royalty-free license,
as may be required by Agency for the complete enjoyment of the Work

4600002080 Page 9 of 13
3/28/2016



15.

16.

and Documentation, including the right to reproduce, correct, repair,
replace, maintain, translate, publish, use, modify, copy or dispose of any
or all of the Work and Documentation and grant sublicenses to others
with respect to the Work and Documentation.

3. If the Work or Documentation includes the Proprietary Rights of others,
Consultant shail procure, at no additional cost to Agency, all necessary
licenses regarding such Proprietary Rights so as to allow Agency the
complete enjoyment of the Work and Documentation, including the right
to reproduce, correct, repair, replace, maintain, translate, publish, use,
modify, copy or dispose of any or all of the Work and Documentation
and grant sublicenses fo others with respect to the Work and
Documentation. All such licenses shall be in writing and shall be
irevocable and royalty-free to Agency.

B. No Additional Compengation: Nothing Set forth in this Contract shall be
deemed to require payment by Agency to Consultant of any compensation
specifically for the assignments and assurances required hereby, other than
the payment of expenses as may be actually incurred by Consultant in
complying with this Contract. '

INFRINGEMENT: Consultant represents and warrants that the Work and
Documentation shall be free of any claim of trade secret, trade mark, trade name,

copyright, or patent infringement or other violations of any Proprietary Rights of any
person.

Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless, Agency, its officers, directors,
agents, employees, successors, assigns, servants, and volunteers free and hamless
from any and all liability, damages, losses, claims, demands, actions, causes of action,
and costs including reasonable attomey's fees and expenses fo the extent of
Consultant’s negligence for any claim that use of the Work or Documentation infringes

upon any trade secret, trade mark, trade name, copyright, patent, or other Proprietary
Rights.

Consultant shall, at its expense and at Agency's option, refund any amount paid by
Agency under the Contract, or exert its best efforts to procure for Agency the right to
use the Work and Documentation, to replace or modify the Work and Documentation
as approved by Agency so as to obviate any such claim of infringement, or to put up
a satisfactory bond to permit Agency's continued use of the Work and Documentation.

LIENS: Consultant represents that the Work and Documentation shall be free of any
claim of trade secret, trade mark, trade name, copyright, or patent infringement or other
violations of any Proprietary Rights of any person.

Consuitant shall pay all sums of money that become due for any labor, services,
materials, or equipment furished to Consultant on account of said services to be

4600002090 Page 10 of 13
3/28/2016



rendered or said matetials to be furnished under this contract and that may be secured
by any lien against the Agency. Consultant shall fully discharge each such lien at the
time performance of the obligation secured matures and becomes due.

17. NOTICES: Any notice may be served upon either party by delivering it in person, or
by depositing it in a United States Mail deposit box with the postage thereon fully
prepaid, and addressed to the party at the address set forth below:

Agency: Warren T. Green
Manager of Contracts and Facilities Services
Inland Empire Utilities Agency
6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A
Chino, California 91708

Consultant:  Scott Goldman, P.E., BCEE
Principal, Senior Environmental Engineer
RMC Water and Environment, Inc.
15510-C Rockfield Bivd., Suite 200.
Irvine, CA 92618

Any notice given hereunder shall be deemed effective in the case of personal delivery,
upon receipt thereof, or, in the case of mailing, at the moment of deposit in the course
of transmission with the United States Postal Service.

18. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: All of the terms, conditions and provisions of this
Contract shalt inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Agency, the Consultant,
and their respective successors and assigns. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no
assignment of the duties or benefits of the Consultant under this Contract may be
assigned, transferred or otherwise disposed of without the prior written consent of the
Agency; and any such purported or attempted assignment, transfer or disposal

without the prior written consent of the Agency shall be null, void and of no legal effect
whatsoever.

19.  PUBLIC RECORDS POLICY: Information made available to the Agency may be
subject to the Califomia Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250 et seq.)
The Agency’s use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act. The Agency

shall use its best efforts to notify Consultant of any requests for disclosure of any
documents pertaining to Consultant.

In the event of litigation concemning disclosure of information Consultant considers
exempt from disclosure; (e.g., Trade Secret, Confidential, or Proprietary) Agency shall
act as a stakeholder only, holding the information until otherwise ordered by a court or
other legal process. If Agency is required to defend an action arising out of a Public
Records Act request for any of the information Consultant has marked “Confidential ”
“Proprietary,” or “Trade Secret, * Consultant shall defend and indemnify Agency from

4600002090 Page 11 of 13
3/28/2016



20.

21,

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

all-liability, damages, costs, and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, in any action or
proceeding arising under the Public Records Act.

RIGHT TO AUDIT: The Agency reserves the right to review and/or audit all
Consultants’ records related to the Work. The option to review and/or audit may be
exercised during the term of the Contract, upon termination, upon completion of the
Contract, or at any time thereafter up to twelve (12) months after final payment has
been made to Consuitant. The Consuitant shall make all records and related

documentation available within three (3) working days after said records are requested
by the Agency.

INTEGRATION: The Contract Documents represent the entire Contract of the
Agency and the Consultant as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral or
written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters
covered by the Contract Documents. This Contract may not be modified, altered or
amended except by written mutual agreement by the Agency and the Consultant.

GOVERNING LAW: This Contract is to be govemed by and constructed in
accordance with the laws of the State of California.

TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: The Agency reserves and has the right to
immediately suspend, cancel or terminate this Contract at any time upon written notice
to the Consultant. In the event of such termination, the Agency shall pay Consultant
for all authorized and Consultant-invoiced services up to the date of such termination.

CHANGES: The Agency may, at any time, make changes to this Contract's Scope of
Work; including additions, reductions and other alterations to any or all of the work.
However, such changes shall only be made via written amendment to this Contract.
The Contract Price and Work Schedule shall be equitably adjusted, if required, fo
account for such changes and shall be set forth within the Contract Amendment.

FORCE MAJEURE: Neither party shall hold the other responsible for the effects of
acts occurring beyond their control; e.g., war, riots, strikes, natural disasters, etcetera.

NOTICE TO PROCEED: No services shall be performed or fumished under this
Contract unless and until this document has been properly signed by all responsible
parties and a Notice to Proceed order has been issued to the Consultant.

4600002090 Page 12 of 13
3/28/2018



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused the Contract to be entered as of
the day and year written above.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: RIMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT, INC:
*A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

P. Joseph Grindstaff (Dete)
General Manager

4600002080 Page 13 of 13
32812016



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

ACTION
ITEM

2G




-

k ‘& Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: April 20, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Engineering, Operations, and Biosolids Management Committee (04/13/16)

Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee (04/13/16)

From: . Joseph Grindstaff
eneral Manager
Submitted by: Chris Berch Qb
Executive Mahager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
Shaun J. Stone
Manager of Engineering
Subject: Headquarters’ Permit Office Construction Contract Award
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve the construction contract for the Headquarters’ Permit Office, Project No.
EN16068, to Mike Bubalo Construction Corporation, for $150,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.
BACKGROUND

On January 4, 2016, the Agency began reviewing plans and collecting fees for all new water meters
installed. It is also expected, with the renegotiation of the Regional Sewerage Service Contract,
the Agency will begin performing plan checks to collect Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) fees in
the near future.

To perform plan checks and collect fees, Agency staff requires a plan-check/permit office to meet
with the public to discuss changes to plans and define fees which need to be paid. In order to
facilitate this work, the existing Reproduction Center, located in Building B, will be relocated and
then retrofitted into a Permit Office. The work will be performed by a Design-Build contractor.
The work will maintain consistency with the current building requirements meeting the standards
for Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED).



Headquarters’ Permit Office Construction Contract Award
April 20, 2016
Page 2 of 3

On February 11, 2016, a request for bids was advertised on Planet Bids for the construction of the

Permit Office. Two (2) contractors participated in the job walk. On March 3, 2016, the following
bids were received:

Bidder’s Name Price
Mike Bubalo Construction Co. $150,000
WA Rasic $162,000
Engineer’s Estimate $77,000

Both confractors are pre-qualified contractors for projects under $2-million. Mike Bubalo
Construction Company has performed work successfully for the Agency many times in the past,
and is the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, with a bid of $150,000.

The difference in the bid price vs. the engineer’s estimate is due to project size, the current bidding
environment, and regulations related to working for public agencies in general. The type of
contractor to perform this small project work is a tenant improvement contractor who is generally
structured to meet the Prevailing Wage and Department of Industrial Relations requirements
required to work for a public agency; as such only two general contractors from the Agency’s
under $2 million pre-qualification list bid the work. The project requires complex coordination
and limited working hours in a small area. There is a need for multiple move ins and outs. All of
these factors contribute to the costs exceeding the engineer’s estimate and were not accounted for
when the original estimate was prepared.

The following is the projected project cost:

Description Estimated Cost
Design (In-House and Labor Augmentation) $8,000
Construction $150,000
Construction Management (IEUA and Labor Augmentation) $34,000
In-house Procurement $7,000
Construction Contingency (~15%) $28,000
Total Project Cost $227,000

The following is the project schedule:

: Project Milestone Date
| Construction Contract Award April 2016
| Construction Completion September 2016 |

The Headquarters’ Permit Office project is consistent with IEUA business goal of Business
Practices by applying ethical, fiscally responsible and environmentally sustainable principles to
all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

G:\Board-Rec \ 2016\ 16083 Headquarters’ Permit Office Construction Contract Award 4-20-16



Headquarters’ Permit Office Construction Contract Award
April 20, 2016

Page 3 of 3

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

The approved FY 2015/16 budget for Project No. EN16068 is $84,000. The total project budget
will be augmented by $143,000, to $227,000 for FY 2016/17, during the TYCIP process in order
to complete the project. Current fiscal year expenditures are not anticipated to exceed the current
fiscal year budget.

PJG:CB:SS:mp

G\Board-Rec \ 2016\ 16083 Headquarters’ Permit Office Construction Contract Award 4-20-16



Jabeueyy 109foid IDIN1SIA HILVM TVEIDINNW V

‘3d ‘yse0d AR . fousby saRn Adur3 pubiu] ’ru

910z |udy
89091 N3 ‘ON 108loid

pJemy Joelsjuo ) uoloniisuon
9010 NWliad .si8lenbpeaH




18JUN0Y 98Y) Ueld oulyd Jo AND

LOIRASMT ¥LvMm .-.R&.U—ZD-& (

¢ ousByy ST AfduE PUBia] fnu

9010 NuLed
B 0} JOAUOD pue Jslual) uoljonpolday g Bulpjing 8jeocojel 0) Sem aAneuld)je 1sog =

paledaid ai1am sajew)sa 1800 spnjiubew pue saAljeus)e Jo Apnis pajieleq =
ssauisng jonpuod pue 2jjgnd jesw 0] 8210 HWisd e alinbai yeis =
alnjnj ‘suonosuuc) NQ3 =

910¢ Adenuer ‘suoiosuuol) JOJepN =

@8jic2 bue suejd Buimainal yN:

punoubxoeg 108loid



INASIO YLV TVARDINAW ¥

€ fousby SN [T ’U

g Buipjing sisjuenbpeaH

uoneso 108loud




J3IUN0Y %09y ueld AMAD DS HLIVAL TVADINDW ¥

¥ £ouiabiy 3T a3 pusia] fy

subis uonosalq =
sdoig eleq =
SSa208 100p 404 =

Bunui mopuipy =

:9pn|oul [|IM pue S J0JoBJJuUOD
b_m_omam pue Jels yN3| Aq pepiroid aq |im sepiuswe Alepuodos =

ssa00e deoipuey pue ‘loop ‘spyby ‘Jejunod yooayo ueld [|ejsuj =
Jajuan uoyonpoiday mau pue pjo |9poway =
. S J2juan) uononpo.iday JO uoneoo|dy =

@doos 80O Hwied siepenbpesy =

adoog 109loid




LDRILSIO YAAVM TVAODINAW ¥V

= Louaby sapjiir SU3 P[] ’..v

000°2.$ ojewsy s Joauibug
000'291$ ‘ou| ‘Auedwon) uononJsuo) JIsey 'y ‘M
0000519 0D uondnsuUoy ojeqng SXiN

:910Z ‘S YoJe|\ Uo paAIoodal spiq om]

Alewwng pig




1DIR1510 H3IVAM TVIDINAW ¥

k4 Aousby SN 4T3 PuDH] ,d

910¢ Jequaldes uonajdwon) uonoNAsuo)
9102 [udy pJEMY JOBIUOD UOIONIISU0D)
auoj}sai 309loid

000°222$ }96png josloid jejol

000°£22$ 3509 j09foid B30

000°'8Z$ (%S1~) Aousbunuon
000°.$ JUBWSIN20J4 9SNOY-U|
000'#ES (uonejuswibny Joge] pue yN3|) Juswabeugy uoloNISU0D)
000061 $ uoljoNIISU0))

™

e _Ahcm_uﬂm__cmEm:,aConm._ pue asnoH-u|) ubise(

1S09) pajeLw}sy uonduasaq

a|npayos pue 1so0’) jo08loid



IDIRISIO SAAVM TYDIDINAW ¥

¢ Aously SoRTa S paDi ‘I..U

‘]1oNpuUod |euolieziuelilo pue ssauisng jo sjoadse |e 0} sajdiouud
a|geuleISnsS AjjeluauuoiiAue pue ajgisuodsal Ajjeasy ‘jeoiuie Bulk|dde Aq saoljoeid

ssauisng Jo |eob ssauisng YN 3| UM jualsisuod si aloid aaiyo Huad siapenbpeaH ay|

"JORJUOD B} 8)ndaxa 0} Jabeuey |eJauag) ay) 8zLoyjne pue 000‘0SL$
JO Junowe a8y} ul ‘991N 'ON 108loid ‘@o1j0 JNwisd siepuenbpesy
ey} Jo} uonesodion uonponssuon)  ojegng  OYIN 01  1OBJUOD
uoloNJSuUoo ay) anoidde si0)oali] JO pJeog 8y} Jeyl Spuswiwogal Jels

uolepuswwooay/|eos) Aouaby




CONTRACT NUMBER: 4600002089
FOR
PERMIT OFFICE
EN16068

THIS CONTRACT (the "Contract"), is made and entered into this 20th day of April, 2016, by and
between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, organized and existing
in the County of San Bemardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California
(hereinafter referred to as "Agency"), and Mike Bubalo Construction Company, of Baldwin Park,
California (hereinafter referred fo as "Contractor”), for design and construction of a permit office
within the Agency’s Headquarters Building B.

NOW, THEREFORE, in congideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth herein,
the parties agree as follows:

1. PROJECT MANAGER ASSIGNMENT: All technical direction related to this Contract

shall come from the designated Project Manager. Details of the Agency's assignment
are listed below.

Project Manager: Matthew A. Poeske
Construction Project Manager, PE
inland Empire Utilities Agency
Address: 6075 Kimball Avenue, Bidg. B
Chino, California 91708

Telephone:  (909) 993-1723
Facsimile: (909) 993-1982
Email:

2. CONTRACTOR ASSIGNMENT: Special inquiries related to this Contract and the effects
of this Contract shall be referred to the following:

Contractor: Dave D. Sorem, P.E.
General Manager/Secretary
Mike Bubalo Construction Company
Address: 5102 Gayhurst Avenue
Baldwin Park, Califomia 91706

Telephone: (626) 960-7787
Email:

4600002089 Page 1 of 11
322116



3. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE: The documents referenced below represent the Contract
Documents. Where any conflicts exist between the General Terms and Conditions, or
addenda attached, then the govemning order of precedence shall be as follows:

1. Amendments to Contract Number 4600002089

2. Contract Number 4600002089 General Terms and Conditions.
3. Agency Request for Proposal Number RFP-RW-15-081.

4, Contractor's Proposal dated March 3, 2016

4, SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES: Contractor services and responsibilities shall
include and be in accordance with the plans and specifications identified in the Agency's
Request for Proposal RFP-RW-15-081.

5. TERM: The term of this Contract shall extend from the date of the Notice to Proceed,
and terminate one year after acceptance of construction(warranty period) or September
30, 2017, whichever occurs first, unless agreed to by both parties, reduced to writing, and
amended to this Contract.

6. PAYMENT, INVOICING AND COMPENSATION: The Contractor may submit an invoice
not more than once per month during the term of this Contract. Agency shall pay
Contracior's property executed invoice, approved by the Project Manager, within thirty
(30) days following receipt of the invoice. Payment will be withheld for any service which
does not meet the requirements of this Contract, until such service is revised, the invoice
resubmitted and accepted by the Project Manager.

Contractor shall provide with their invoice certified payroll verifying that Contractor has
paid prevailing requirements as stipulated in SB-854 (see link below for requirements}
(

All invoices shall be formulated consistent with the RFP requirements and Contractor's
proposed pricing within the Contractor's accepted Proposal, dated March 3, 2016.

As compensation for the work performed under this Contract, Agency shaill pay
Contractor's monthly invoice, for a total not-fo-exceed contract price of $150,000 for all
services satisfactorily provided hereunder during the term of this Contract.

To expedite payment of invoices email to with a copy to the Agency's
Project Manager.

7. INSURANCE and BONDING: During the term of this Contract, the Contractor shall
maintain at Contractor's sole expense, the following insurance.

A Minimum Scope of Insurance:

1. General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for
bodily injury. personal injury and property damage. Coverage shall be at

4600002089 Page 2 of 11
32216



least as broad as Insurance Services Office form number GL 0001-87
covering Comprehensive General Liability. If Commercial General Liability
Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location, or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for
bodily injury and property damage. Coverage shall be at least as broad as
Insurance Services Office form number CA 00 01 87, covering Automobile
Liability, including “any auto."

3. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability: Workers' compensation
limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and
employers Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention: Any deductibles or self-insured retention
must be declared to and approved by the Agency. At the option of the Agency,
either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retention as respects the Agency, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers;
or the Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related
investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

Other_Insurance Provisions: The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to
contain, the following provisions:

1. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverage

a. The Agency, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to
be covered as insureds, endorsements GL 20 11 07 66, CG2010
1185 and/or CA 20 01 (Ed. 0178), as respects: liahility arising out
of activities performed by or on behalf of the Contractor, products
and completed operations of the Contractor, premises owned,
occupied or used by the Contractor, or automobiles owned, leased,
hired or borrowed by the Contractor. The coverage shall contain no
special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Agency,
its officers, officials, employees or volunteers.

b. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as
respects the Agency, its officer, officials, employees and volunteers.
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Agency, its
officers, officials, employees, volunteers, property owners or
engineers under contract with the Agency shall be excess of the
Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

4600002089
3122116

Page 3 of 11



c. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall
not affect coverage provided to the Agency, its officers, officials,
employees or volunteers.

d. The Contractor's insurance shali apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect
to the limits of the insurer's liability.

e. The Contractor may satisfy the limit requirements in a single polioy
or multipie policies. Any Such additional policies written as excess
insurance shall not provide any less coverage than that provided by
the first or primary policy.

2. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage

The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the
Agency, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising
from work performed by the Contractor for the Agency.

3. All Coverages

Each insurance policy required by this contract shall be endorsed to state
that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party,
reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days' prior written
notice by certified mail, retum receipt requested, has been given to the
Agency.

Acceptability of Insurers: insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's
rating of no less than A minus: VIl, and who are admitted insurers in the State of
California.

Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish the Agency with certificates of
insurance and with original endorsements effecting coverage required by the
Agency for themselves and ail subcontractors prior to commencing work, or
allowing any subcontractor to commence work under any subcontract. The
certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by &
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates
and endorsements are to be approved by the Agency before work commences.
The Agency reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required
insurance policies, at any time.

Submittal of Certificates: Contractor shall submit all required certificates and
endorsements to the following:

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Attn: Angela Witte

4600002089
3/22116

Page 4 of 11



P.O. Box 9020
Chino Hills, CA 91709

Payment and Performance Bond: Before execution of the contract by the Agency,
the Consultant shall file with the Agency, on the forms fumished herewith, a
payment and performance bond in an amount equal to one hundred (100) percent
of the contract price to guarantee faithful performance of all the work, within the
time prescribed, in a manner satisfactory to the Agency and that all materials and
workmanship will be free from original or developed defects.

Unsatisfactory Surety: Should any Surety, at any time, be deemed unsatisfactory
by the Agency, notice will be given the Consultant to that effect. No further
payments shall be deemed due, or will be made under the contract until a new
Surety is accepted by the Agency.

Effects of Changes or Extension of Time on the Surety. Changes to the work or
schedule shall in no way release the Consultant or the Surety from their obligation
under the bond.

Insufficiency of the Bonds: Should any bonds require under this section become
insufficient, the Consultant shall renew the bonds within ten (10) calendar days
after receiving notice from the Agency of the bonds insufficiency.

Procurement of Bonds: Ali bonds required under this section, shall be procured
from a California licensed and admitted surety company, listed by the Fiscal
Service of the United States Department of the Treasury under the Notice for
“Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on federal
Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies,” current on the date of the
Notice of Award. The Consuitant shall be responsible for the cost of all bond
premiums, costs, and incidentals necessary to secure the required bonds.

How Bonds Are To Be Payable: All bonds shall be payable to the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency and shall remain in effect for sixty (60) days after acceptance of
all the deliverables and the works completion.

8. FITNESS FOR DUTY:
A. Fiiness: Contractor and its Sub-Contractor personnel on the Jobsite:

1
2)

3)

shall report to work in 2 manner fit to do their job.

shall not be under the influence of or in possession of any alcoholic beverages or of
any controlled substance (except a controlled substance as prescribed by a physician
so long as the performance or safety of the Work is not affected thereby); and

shall not have been convicted of any serious criminal offense which, by its nature, may
have a discernible adverse impact on the business or reputation of the Agency.

4600002089
3/22116

Page 5 of 11



LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A

D.

Professional Responsibility: The Contractor shall be responsible, to the level of
competency presently maintained by other practicing professionals performing the
same or similar type of work.

Status of Contractor: The Contractor is retained as an independent Contractor
only, for the sole purpose of rendering the services described herein, and is not
an employee of the Agency.

Qbserving Laws and Ordinances: The Contractor shall keep itseif fully informed
of all existing and future state and federal laws and all county and city ordinances
and regulations which in any manner affect the conduct of any services or tasks
performed under this Contract, and of all such orders and decrees of bodies or
tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority over the same. The Contractor shall
at all times observe and comply with all such existing and future laws, ordinances,
regulations, orders and decrees, and shall protect and indemnify, as required
herein, the Agency, its officers, employees and agents against any claim or liability
arising from or based on the violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order
or decree, whether by the Contractor or its employees.

Work Safety: Contract work requiring confine space entry must follow Cal-OSHA
Regulation 8 CCR, Sections 5157 — 5158. This regulation requires the following
to be submitted to IEUA for approval prior ntractor's mobilization to the
work site:

1. Proof of training on confined space procedures, as defined in Cal-OSHA
Regulation 8 CCR, Section 5157; and,

2. A written plan that includes; identification of confined spaces within the work
site, alternate procedures where appropriate, contractor provisions and
specific procedures for permit-required and non-permit required spaces and a
rescue plan.

Subcontract Services: Any subcontracts for the perfformance of any services
under this Contract shall be subject to the written approval of the Project Manager
and shall comply with State of California, Department of Industrial Relations, SB
854 requirements.

Hours of Labor: The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of
California Labor Code Sections 1810 to 1817 relating to working hours. The
Contractor shall, as a penalty to the Agency, forfeit $25.00 for each worker
employed in the execution of the Contract by the Contractor or by any
subcontractor for each calendar day during which such worker is required or

4600002089
3/22/116

Page 6 of 11



pemmitted to work more than eight hours in any one calendar day and forty (40)
hours in any one calendar week in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code.

Travel and Subsistence Pay: The Contractor shall make payment to each worker
for travel and subsistence payments which are needed to execute the work and/or
service, as such travel and subsistence payments are defined in the applicable
collective bargaining agreements with the worker.

Liens: Contractor shall pay all sums of money that become due from any labor,
services, materials or equipment furnished to Contractor on account of said
services to be rendered or said materials to be furnished under this Contract and
that may be secured by any lien against the Agency. Contractor shall fully
discharge each such lien at the time performance of the obligation secured
matures and becomes due.

Indemnification: Contractor shall indemnify the Agency, its directors, employees
and assigns, and shall defend and hold them harmiess from all liabilities,
demands, actions, claims, losses and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’
fees, which arise out of or are related to the negligence, recklessness or willful
misconduct of the Contractor, its directors, employees, agents and assigns, in the
performance of work under this contract.

Conflict of Interest: No official of the Agency who is authorized in such capacity
and on behalf of the Agency to negotiate, make, accept or approve, or to take part
in negotiating, making, accepting or approving this Contract, or any subcontract
relating to services or tasks to be performed pursuant to this Contract, shall
become directly or indirectly personally interested in this Contract.

Equal Opportunity: During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor shall
not unlawfully discriminate against any employee or employment applicant
because of race, color, religion, sex, age, marital status, ancestry, physical or
mental disability, sexual orientation, veteran status or national origin.

Disputes:

1. All disputes arising out of or in relation to this Contract shall be determined
in accordance with this section. The Contractor shall pursue the work to
completion in accordance with the instruction of the Agency's Project
Manager notwithstanding the existence of dispute. By entering into this
Contract, both parties are obligated, and hereby agree, to submit all
disputes arising under or relating to the Contract which remain unresolved
after the exhaustion of the procedures provided herein, to independent
arbitration. Except as otherwise provided herein, arbitration shall be
conducted under California Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1280, et. seq,
or their successor.

4600002089
3/22116

Page 7 of 11



2. Any and all disputes during the pendency of the work shall be subject to
resolution by the Agency Project Manager and the Contractor shall comply,
pursuant to the Agency Project Manager instructions. If the Contractor is
not satisfied with any such resolution by the Agency Project Manager, they
may file a written protest with the Agency Project Manager within seven (7)
calendar days after receiving written notice of the Agency's decision.
Failure by Contractor to file a written protest within seven (7) calendar days
shall constitute waiver of protest, and acceptance of the Agency Project
Manager's resolution. The Agency's Project Manager shall submit the
Contractor's written protests to the General Manager, together with a copy
of the Agency Project Manager's written decision, for his or her
consideration within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of said protest(s).
The General Manager shall make his or her determination with respect to
each protest filed with the Agency Project Manager within ten (10) calendar
days after receipt of said protest(s). If Contractor is not satisfied with any
such resolution by the General Manager, they may file a written request for
arbitration with the Project Manager within seven (7) calendar days after
receiving written notice of the General Manager's decision.

3. In the event of arbitration, the parties hereto agree that there shali be a
single neutral Arbitrator who shall be selected in the following manner:

a. The Demand for Arbitration shall include a list of five names of
persons acceptable to the Contractor to be appointed as Arbitrator.
The Agency shall determine if any of the names submitted by
Contractor are acceptable and, if 80, such person will be designated
as Arbitrator.

b. In the event that none of the names submitted by Contractor are
acceptable to Agency, or if for any reason the Arbitrator selected in
Step (a) is unable to serve, the Agency shall submit to Contractor a
list of five names of persons acceptable to Agency for appointment
as Arbitrator. The Contractor shall, in turn, have seven (7) calendar
days in which to detemmine if one such person is acceptable.

c. If after Steps (a) and (b), the parties are unable to mutually agree
upon a neutral Arbitrator, the matter of selection of an Arbitrator shall
be submitted to the San Bernardino County Superior Court pursuant
to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281.6, or its successor. The
costs of arbitration, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys'
fees, shall be recoverable by the party prevailing in the arbitration.
If this arbitration is appealed to a court pursuant to the procedure
under California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1294, et. seq., or
their successor, the costs of arbitration shall aiso include court costs

4600002089 Page 8 of 11
3122118



associated with such appeals, including but not limited to reason-
able attorneys' fees which shall be recoverable by the prevailing
party.

4, Joinder in Mediation/Arbitration: The Agency may join the Contractor in
mediation or arbitration commenced by a contractor on the Project
pursuant to Public Contracts Code Sections 20104 et seq. Such joinder
shall be initiated by written notice from the Agency's representative to the
Contractor.

Workers' Legal Status: For performance against this Contract, Contractor shall
only utilize employees and/or subcontractors that are authorized to work in the
United States pursuant to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.

Prevailing Wage Requirements: Pursuant to Section 1770 and following, of the
California Labor Code, the Contractor shall not pay less that the general
prevailing wage rates, as determined by the Director of the State of California
Department of Industrial Relations for the locality in which the work is to be
performed and for each craft or type of worker needed to execute the work
contemplated under the Contract. The Contractor or any subcontractor
performing part of said work shall stricly adhere to all provisions of the Labor
Code, including, but not limited to, minimum wages, work days,
nondiscrimination, apprentices, maintenance and availability of accurate payroll
records and any other matters required under all Federal, State and local laws
related to labor.

10. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS AND DOCUMENTS/CONFIDENTIALITY: The Agency
retains ownership of any and all partial or complete reports, drawings, plans, notes,
computations, lists, and/or other materials, documents, information, or data prepared by
the Contractor and/or the Contractor's subcontractor(s) pertaining to this Contract. Said
materials and documents are confidential and shall be available to the Agency from the
moment of their preparation, and the Contractor shall deliver same to the Agency
whenever requested to do so by the Project Manager and/or Agency. The Contractor
agrees that same shall not be made available to any individual or organization, private or
public, without the prior written consent of the Agency.

11. NOTICES: Any notice may be served upon either party by delivering it in person, or by
depositing it in a United States Mail deposit box with the postage thereon fully prepaid,
and addressed to the party at the address set forth below:

Agency: WarrenT. Green
Manager of Contracts & Facilities Services
inland Empire Utilities Agency
P.O. Box 9020
Chino Hills, CA 81709

4500002089
3/22/16

Page 8 of 11



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Contractor: Mike Bubalo
President
Mike Bubalo Construction Company
5102 Gayhurst Avenue
Baldwin Park, Califomia 91706

Any notice given hereunder shall be deemed effective in the case of personal delivery,
upon receipt thereof, or, in the case of mailing, at the moment of deposit in the course of
transmission with the United States Postal Service.

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: All of the terms, conditions and provisions of this
Contract shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Agency, the Contractor, and
their respective successors and assigns. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no assignment
of the duties or benefits of the Contractor under this Contract may be assigned,
transferred or otherwise disposed of without the prior written consent of the Agency; and
any such purported or attempted assignment, transfer or disposal without the prior
written consent of the Agency shall be null, void and of no legal effect whatsoever.

RIGHT TO AUDIT: The Agency reserves the right to review and/or audit all Contractor's
records related to the Work. The option to review and/or audit may be exercised during
the term of the Contract, upon termination, upon completion of the Contract, or at any
time thereafter up to twelve (12) months after final payment has been made to the
Contractor. The Contractor shall make all records and related documentation available
within three (3) working days after said records are requested by the Agency.

INTEGRATION: The Contract Documents represent the entire Contract of the Agency
and the Contractor as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral or written under-
standing shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered by the
Contract Documents. This Contract may not be modified, altered or amended except by
written mutual agreement by the Agency and the Contractor.

GOVERNING LAW: This Contract is to be governed by and constructed in accordance
with the laws of the State of California.

TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: The Agency reserves and has the right to
immediately suspend, cancel or terminate this Contract at any time upon written notice
to the Contractor. In the event of such termination, the Agency shall pay Contractor for
all authorized and Contractor-invoiced services up to the date of such termination.

FORCE MAJEURE: Neither party shall hold the other responsible for the effects of acts
occurring beyond their control; e.g., war, riots, strikes, natural disasters, etcetera.

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: Liquidated Damages, in the amount of $500.00 per day, may
be assessed by the Agency for each calendar day that the Contractor fails to complete
the services in accordance with the contractually-committed delivery schedule. Any and

4600002089 Page 10 of 11
3/22116



19.

20.

all Liquidated Damages assessed by the Agency will be taken as a direct credit against
the Contractor’s invoice for the missed services. The Contractor's acceptance of a
contract subsequently issued in conjunction with this solicitation, shall serve to indicate
acceptance of this Liquidated Damages clause, and the daily assessment of damages
expressed herein.

CHANGES: The Agency may, at any time, make changes to this Contract's Scope of
Work; including additions, reductions and other alterations to any or all of the work.
However, such changes shall only be made via written amendment to this Contract. The
Contract Price and Work Schedule shall be equitably adjusted, if required, to account for
such changes and shall be set forth within the Contract Amendment.

NOTICE TO PROCEED: No services shall be performed or furnished under this Contract

unless and until this document has been properly signed by all responsible parties and a
Notice to Proceed order has been issued to the Contractor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused the Contract to be entered as of the

day and year written above.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY, MIKE BUBALO CONSTRUCTION COMPANY:
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT:

P. Joseph Grindstaff (Date)  David D. Sorem (Date)
General Manger General Manager/Secretary

4600002089 Page 11 of 11

3/22/16



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

ACTION
ITEM

2H




Infand Empire Utilities Agency

1.%" A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: April 20, 2016

To: The Honorable Board of Directors

Through: Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee (04/13/16)
Engineering, Operations, and Biosolids Mgmt. Committee (04/13/16)

1nance, Legal, and Administration Committee (04/13/16)

From: . Joseph Grindstaff
General Manager

Submitted by: Chris Berch W
Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
Shaun J. Stone
Manager of Engineering

Subject: East Declez Property Acquisition

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Authorize the General Manager to purchase the East Declez property for the sum of $3.0
million on behalf of Chino Basin Watermaster (Watermaster); contingent upon the
approval by the Watermaster Board of Directors;

2. Authorize the General Manager to spend up to $100,000 on behalf of Watermaster for
necessary fees related to the purchase of the property; and

3. Approve a $3.1 million budget amendment for Project No. EN18007 in FY 2015/16

through an inter-fund loan from the Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement (RC)
fund to the Recharge Water (RW) fund.

BACKGROUND

In early 2015, the undeveloped 85-acre property, adjacent to the existing Declez Basin in Riverside
County, was identified as a potential site for a new recharge basin for Watermaster. Following an
initial field investigation from the Jurupa Community Services District and a preliminary level
design evaluation from Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. (WEI), Inland Empire Utilities Agency
(IEUA) and Watermaster made a determination that although the site appeared promising for
recharge purposes, additional due diligence was required prior to site acquisition.



East Declez Property Acquisition
April 20, 2016
Page 2 of 4

In November 2015, the [EUA Board authorized execution of the Purchase and Sale Agreement
with the property owner, SLPR, LLC. The key terms within the agreement provided the following:

¢ Allow time to complete a 180 day feasibility study to validate the site’s potential recharge
benefit; ending on May 17, 2016.

¢ Open escrow with a $50,000 deposit which is fully refundable before the end the feasibility
period.
Establish an agreed property purchase price of $3.0 million.
IEUA can terminate the agreement any time before May 17, 2016.

In January 2016, Thomas Harder and Co. (THC) completed a feasibility report which evaluated
the site groundwater recharge viability consistent with the direction provided by Watermaster
parties. THC’s efforts included examining subsurface geology, describing the results of field
investigation, and characterizing and analyzing the area’s infiltration and mounding potential for
groundwater recharge. THC’s final “Subsurface Investigation-East Declez Basin Site” report was
made available for review and presented to Watermaster’s Appropriative Pool Meeting on March
10, 2016. THC, with support from WEI, conducted an analysis for recharge potential on two
conceptual recharge basin configurations: 1) a shallow basin and 2) an expanded Declez Basin,
Both concepts were developed based on the subsurface findings where the site revealed a shallow
impermeable layer which prevented a deeper or wider new basin.

Unfortunately, the shallow basin concept was deemed unfeasible because it required an extensive
pumping and conveyance system to receive stormwater. Therefore, only the expanded basin option
was considered and evaluated. The evaluation looked into two potential construction alternatives.

Projected Benefits Estimated Cost
Additional | Additional | Estimated Total
Construction Alternatives Storage Recharge . Annual
Capital .
acre-feet | acre-feet per Cost* Unit Cost

(AF) year (AFY) (per AF)
Expand Declez castward ' 130 144 $11,210,000 $5,099
IEpEICIBECics Stiin Wil 130 414 | $15000,000 | $2,420
upstream stormwater improvements

*The capital cost shown agsumes a 90% reduction on excavation and hauling cost

In parallel with the feasibility report, staff began initial inquiries into the necessary CEQA
requirements for the purchase of the property. IEUA’s environmental consultant, Tom Dodson &
Associates opined that the acquisition of this property falls under the following exemption:

the “General Rule” Statutory Exemption (State CEQA Guidelines Section
15061(b)(3) which states that “where it can be seen with certainty that there is no
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the
environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.”

G:\Board-Rec \ 2016\ 16094 East Declez Property Acquisition 4-20-16



East Declez Property Acquisition
April 20, 2016
Page 3 of 4

As such, IEUA will compile a more detailed environmental determination to comply with CEQA
when a specific project is defined in the future. Thus, the property purchase will not incur any

adverse environmental effects until a subsequent environmental finding is made by the IEUA
Board for a site specific project.

Following the review and presentation of the report to the Appropriative Pool, the Committee
Members requested having until April 2016 to recommend one of the following actions:

1. Proceed with the purchase of the property through IBUA; or
2. Cancel the property purchase.

The Watermaster Board will take action on the purchase of the East Declez property at the April
28, 2016, meeting. However, in order to meet the execution date of May 17, 2016, one day before
IEUA’s May Board of Directors meeting, staff is requesting contingent approval of the property
purchase. In the event that the Watermaster Board elects not to purchase the property, IEUA will
exercise the option to cancel the Purchase and Sale Agreement prior to the May 17, 2016,

cancellation date. ~Staff will inform the IEUA Board of Watermaster’s decision immediately
following their action.

The East Declez property site is not currently planned to receive recycled water, or any other
supplemental waters; therefore all cost associated with the property purchase, design and
construction will be fully funded by Watermaster. Project EN18007 originally budgeted the
property purchase in FY 2017/18; however, the decision to accelerate the acquisition to this fiscal
year is to take advantage of the availability of the property and avoid losing it to potential
developers as was the case with the lower San Sevaine property. IEUA will carry the property
purchase until the Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU) financing plan is implemented which is
anticipated to be summer of 2017,

Staff has discussed the property purchase and project with several of the Watermaster Parties and
has participated in discussions at the Appropriative Pool meetings. Based on these discussions,
there is concern among the group about the value of the project itself due to the yield and associated
unit costs. However, there.seems to be some level of agreement that purchasing the property may
be the right course of action based on its location next to an existing recharge basin. The concern,
as noted above, is a repeat of losing a potential site to developers.

The efforts towards the potential purchase of the East Declez property for groundwater recharge
are consistent with the IEUA business goal of Water Reliability, namely development and
investigation of groundwater recharge.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On April 15, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the first Amendment to the Recharge Master
Plan Task Order No. 1 with Watermaster. This authorized IEUA to conduct preliminary
investigations on the East Declez Basin Project.

G:\Board-Rec \ 2016\ 16094 East Declez Property Acquisition 4-20-16



East Declez Property Acquisition
April 20, 2016
Page 4 of 4

On June 17, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Letter of Intent to Purchase the East Declez
property.

On November 18, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Purchase and Sale Agreement with
SLPR, LLC for the East Declez property.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

If approved, IEUA will fund the purchase of the East Declez property with an inter-fund loan from
the Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement (RC) fund to the Recharge Water (RW) fund to be
repaid by Watermaster at the completion of the RMPU financing plan in the summer of 2017.

The RMPU Construction (hard cost), Project No. EN18007 under the RW fund budgeted for the
land purchase in FY 2017/18 through the TYCIP. This will be reduced if the purchase is approved
for this fiscal year.

Attachments:
Attachment 1: Feasibility Study

PJG:CB:SS8:ji

G:\Board-Rec \ 2016\ 16094 East Declez Property Acquisition 4-20-16



JDRLSIC ¥ILVM TVAIDINNW ¥V

Auaby saginn andw3z puoju; ﬁu

910g |udy
/008LN3 ON 108loid

alepdn aseyaind Auadold - zejpa 1seg




LDALSIO YLV TVAIDINAW ¥

z LDuaby sl puvyu 1&
uiseg zapeq Jo 1see Ayedoid meu Jo seioe og

‘Pung AAY 8yj 01 pung YN 8y} wodj ueo| puny
-19jul ue ybnouyy /0081 N3 J0) Juswpuswe }obpnq uoljjiw |L'g$ e aroiddy .
‘@seyoJnd ay) 0} paje|al soa)
Aiessadsu o} 000'001$ 0} dn puads 0} Jobeuely |elouss) sy} SzUOYINY
.$10]0841(J JO pJeogq Ja)seuwalep) ay) Jo |eaoidde
. -Tm:. oc_co h_o jleyeq uo uojjiw 0'e$
0] Jebeuigjal [ejsuan) ay} azuoyiny

1sanbay 1098loid



uoday
pue Apms
Alligiseed
Za|oa( jse3 ayj
03} yelp |eyiul
ey} pajsjdwon

vn3l
9102 'q°4

LDIR1S10 HIEVM TVAIDINNW ¥

Kouaby Saggn eajdis puojul fAU

910z ‘2L Aew uo spus Apnys Aljiqisesy Aep 08l -
910¢ Yole\ ul dv S, 12)SelWlis]eAA O] toamw_ >~___n_wm®n_ pajuasald -
910z Aeniga4 ul woddly 0} Woday Ajjigises pajuesaid Ajleniu| .

ysodap
a|qepunjal
M0S$

Auadoud sy
Buiseyoind
SLUIB)
oL} ysiigeysa
0} jusuiaalbe
Ojul palajuy

vn3l
S1L0Z 'AON

!
o

Hodal
pue Apnis
Ayjiqisesy ay)
aiedeaud 0)
"0 B JopieH
Sewoy |
Ylim saolalas
Bupnsuos
pajoelsjuon

vn3i

GLoz I |

|jis sy}

Buiseyosind
uo
SUOISSNISIp
utbaqg

0} J3UMo

Ayuadoud ay)
Hiim Juajuy

JO J219|

B Ysi|qejs3

vn3l

sioz ‘unr

zajoa(Q
}seg uo
UONEN|EAS
1ayung mojje
0] | 42pI0
jsel 0}
juswpusaie
pajnoaaxsg

vn3l
2 WM82D

| 5102 “av

punolibyoeg jo8loid

uiseq
abieyoau
mau
jenjuajod
e se uiseg
za|2a(]
jO jsea
S8l0B-Gg
payijuapi

vn3l
3 NMEBD

GLoc ‘uer




1DI1SID HAIVM TVAIDINAW ¥
¥

Aunog episieAry ey} Ul BUBIUO JO LINOS
- Lo =S T k«..mul?._%

dew b_c_u_>

T T TR i Pa—— rp——

1.-_. » ‘|J._..-. .-.Jil\_-ﬂu..-uu. .-.I_-.-.n

co;moo._ >tmao(_n_

..... _t___ .3..;5;1.-!%1: ..4.q.l_..




ADRELSKD BAIVM TVAIDINOW V

fouia by ST i3 Py ‘I,U

1502 Bujiney pue UoHIEARIX2 LD USHIINPSY %06 B SPWNSSE UMDUS 1509 [eydes oy L,

" sjuawaacsdul) J8}EMULIO}S
000°060°S1$ weansdn yim piemises zajosg puedxy

660'G$ 000°0LE°LLS 144 o€l piemjses zajoaQg puedx3

(AdV) Jeak

w By oomiy iy (Y eoreos
[enuuy [e101 pejellns3 sbueyoey - SeAlEWIa)Y UOHONASUO)
[eUOIPPY [euonippy

1503 pajellysy S)auagpajoalold

:yoeoidde uononiisuod uiseq jenusiod Buimoyjo) ay) parenjeAa]
sadid/buidwnd pAS BAISUB)X® 8 anp 9jqiseajun pawsap uiseq mojjeys

=
7
@
'Q
|2
y O
' ®
c
7]
7
b
Q
D
O
c
o)
O .
c
oy
7
o
©
@
o
©
<
O
0
o .
2
ge;
N
=
©
C
<
®

i et
.........

e
|
'O
=
©
C
©
i o
i
o
()
©
O
i -
]
©
=
£
.
o
>
LY
[e]
)
L J

3@u2dw Mojjeys e pajesna) NS

sbuipul4 - Apnig Ajljiqises



1RSI HAEVM TVIEXINNW ¥

9 ousBy SRIIn SHGS Pusiv] ‘I‘U

‘abieyoal sojempunolb jo uonebiysaAul pue juswidojaaap Ajpweu ‘Ajjqelay
181/ 10 |BOB ssauisng YN 3| 8yl Yim Juaisisuod ale abieydal sajempunold
Jo} Auadold zajaa( 1se3 ay) jo aseyaind [enuajod ayl Spiemo) SUoye ay |

‘Pung AMAY 841 0} pund YN 8y} wol) ueoj punj

-18jul ue ybnouy} 20081 N3 40} Juswpuawe }26pnq uoyjiw |L'g$ & arouddy .
‘aseyand ayy 0} poje|ol S99}

Alessaoau Joj 0000014 0} dn puads 0} Jebeuely |eJouds) Byl SZUOYINY
'S10)99J1 JO pieog Js)seula)ep 8y} Jo _m>o._n_am

UOIEpUSLLIWIOOSY




Inland Empire Utilities Agency February 5, 2016
Subsurface Investigation - East Declez Basin Site

Thomas Harder & Co. {) Intand Empive Unlites Agency

Groundwater Consulting A MUNCITAL WATER DISTRICE




Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

N

\ Intand Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Subsurface Investigation -
East Declez Basin Site

2/5/2016

Prepared for
Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Prepared by

/A Yot L

Thomas Harder Ben Letvis

Principal Hydrogeologist P|17 Geologist

Thomas Harder & Co, S

roundwater Consulling i



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16
Table of Contents
1 Introduction ..........eeenenn. w1
2 Site Background and Setting ......ccccesssacsisnssssrssnassessssssssssssssssssesssssssarsassssassssssassassasssssassasse 2
2.1 Sie DeSCIIPtION couerciii e cre et cesacsesseacsscsseesessseetenesssesas st sssraateshsseassasesesRebs bt ansaeRe e e sReanene 2
2.2 Previous INVESHIZALIONS ......cvcieeersrenrevnisminiinneriiesseresssssssssssesssrsssesssenmsssassssssersssssesssssses 2
23  Hydrogeologic CONGIIONS .......ccceveerererecennarsienmsmmeressssmssssesasasssscrmsmsassirsnsssssssrsssassssassesas 2
24  Data Gaps before this INVEStIZAION vvvivvvirinvreciennnsnsnssesesesmmecserisresssssrsnsnmsrsessssssssnsesns 3
3 Site Investigation.......cccecussseseerancas 4
3.1  CPT Investigation........ccoccrinicnecmneenisccnnnnicnenmnssssssssasssessssenes U I R . 4
3.1.1  CPT Methodology........ccovnceeracenienssiisensonionnisnsssnnesessessarcassnssessrssassessssrsnssssanarnssasess 4
3.1.2  CPT RESUIS ot csmssssscsineinasssssinsnssesssmsnssnsssssssnsssasssnssssassssesssssssasns 4
3.2  Borehole Drilling and Soil Sample Collection.......cccrericrccacrnnnnecnsnnmacsmsnnmirscesessernenssens 5
3.2.1  Borehole Drilling and Soil Sample Collection Methodology .......vccecenrcrcnienviicarcres 3
3.2.2  Laboratory Analysis of Soil SampIes .....c..cvveeccirinieie i 6
4 Investigation Results 7
4.1  Subsurface Sediment/Lithologic Characteristics ........ccevrserernivsininisissnissnncrnsesmseresssense 7
4.2  Thickness of Younger Alluvium Available for Groundwater Storage ..........covvvevesuireas 7
4.3 GIOUNAWALET...covsueiiirrecteeaenrrensessnmsniietesessesersessssesasesseesssasseess ntttntneensaensatssensssseanssass 8
44  Analysis of Liquefaction Potential...........coocoieoieeeceeneen et scscesnrese s e sseenene 8
4.5 Estimated Recharge Capacity......cooimuimiiimiiiinimnneinminio i niisisnsisiessstonsesssnssssssssneniias 9
4.5.1  Shallow Recharge Basin Option........coccceeriiriirnneniniis e 10
452  Expanded Declez Basin Option ........ccooiemirncniinneneeniineiisinssesimeessenicssssessssssens 11
Findings and ConcRISIONS ......ccocuisissssassnsnenneeerassessosassssssrassussssassansasssssassasassasssssssressonssssassane 12
6 References........... veoennss 1.3
Table
1 Soil Physical Properties Testing Summary
Thomas Harder & Co. i -
Groundwater Consulting /



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16
Figures
Study Area
2 East Declez Basin Site
Cross Section Locations
4a  Cross Section A— A’
4b  Cross Section B —B'
4c  Cross SectionC—-C’
4d  Cross SectionD —D’
d4e  Cross Section E—E’
5 Contours of Equal Elevation — Bottom of Younger Alluvium
6 Sediment Liquefaction Potential
7 Conceptual Basin Layout — Shallow Recharge Basin Option
8 Conceptual Basin Layout — Cross Section
9 Model-Generated Recharge Scenario Hydrograph — Hydraulic Conductivity 50 ft/day
10 Model-Generated Recharge Scenario Hydrograph — Hydraulic Conductivity 12 ft/day
11 Cross Section Location F-F’
12 Cross Section F-F’
13 Conceptual Basin Layout — Expanded Declez Cell 1 Option
Appendices
A.  Previous Investigation Borehole Lithologic Logs
B.  Cone Penetrometer Testing Logs
C.  Soil Physical Properties Testing Laboratory Reports
D.  Borehole Lithologic Logs
E.  Wildermuth Environmental — Assessment of Additional Alternatives for Potential
Storm Water Recharge Project East of Declez Basin
Thomas Harder & Co.

Groundwater Consulting iii U )



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

1 Introduction

This report describes the results of subsurface field investigations to determine the feasibility of
artificial recharge at a parcel of private property referred to herein as the East Declez Site (the
Site). The Site covers approximately 22 acres and is located immediately east of Inland Empire
Utilities Agency’s (IEUA’s) existing Declez Basin recharge site on the north slope of the Jurupa
Mountains in Riverside County, California (see Figure 1).

The purpose of the field investigations was to characterize the infiltration and mounding
potential of subsurface sediments beneath the Site, identify laterally extensive fine-grained layers
that could prevent recharge of the regional aquifer system, assess the liquefaction potential of the
currently unsaturated sediments in the upper 50 ft beneath the Site, and determine the depth to
bedrock. The data collected during the investigation was used to develop estimates of the Site’s
recharge capacity, subsurface storage potential, and useable area for recharge basins,

Characterization of subsurface sediments was accomplished through the collection and analysis
of soil samples. Soil samples were collected from exploratory boreholes. Additional subsurface
characterization was conducted using Cone Penetrometer Tests (CPTs).

Thaomas Harder & Co. —

Groundwater Consulting 1 =



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

2 Site Background and Setting
2.1 Site Description

The Site consists of approximately 22 acres of private property located immediately east of the
existing Declez Basin recharge site on the north slope of the Jurupa Mountains in Riverside
County, California (see Figures 1 and 2). The land surface is relatively flat in the northern two-
thirds of the Site. The southern third of the Site slopes up to the south towards the Jurupa
Mountains.

2.2 Previous Investigations

The East Declez Site was originally identified for consideration as a recharge basin site by the
Jurupa Community Services District (JCSD). As part of an initial due diligence program in
consideration of purchasing the property, a borehole drilling and infiltration testing program was
conducted in September 2014, The drilling and testing program included two boreholes (BH-1
and BH-2) that were drilled to bedrock and infiltration testing in three test pits (TP-1 through
TP-3; see Figure 2).

Based on results from the initial September 2014 investigations, the Chino Basin Watermaster
(the Watermaster) and IEUA agreed to consider the East Declez property for purchase and
eventual improvements for use as an artificial recharge site. While the September 2014 initial
investigation results appeared favorable, there was a desire by stakeholders within the
Watermaster to obtain additional subsurface hydrogeological data and refine the cost of recharge
basin construction prior to committing to purchase the property.

2.3 Hydrogeologic Conditions

The Site is located along the northern slope of the Jurupa Mountains within the Chino
Groundwater Basin. The surface geology of the Site is characterized by young alluvial deposits
in the northern and western portions of the Site adjacent to old alluvial fan deposits and
crystalline bedrock in the eastern and southern portions of the Site (see Figure 2). Young
alluvial valley deposits were reported by Geoscience (2014) to extend between approximately
36 ft and 52 ft below ground surface (bgs) beneath the Site based on boreholes drilled along the
northern boundary of the Site (BH-1 and BH-2; see Figure 2 and Appendix A). " The young
alluvial valley deposits were reported to consist predominantly of sand with minor gravel, silt
and clay layers. Older alluvium, which consists of a higher percentage of silt and clay, was
reported by Geoscience (2014) between the younger alluvium and bedrock surface. Bedrock,
consisting of weathered granite, was observed in previous boreholes along the northern Site
boundary at depths from 125 ft bgs (BH-1) to 182 ft bgs (BH-2).

Thomas Harder & Co.
Groundwater Consulting 2 *



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

The bedrock that forms the Jurupa Mountains along the southemn boundary of the Site consists of
granitic and metamorphic (i.e. crystalline) rock that is relatively impermeable. This bedrock
extends beneath the Site, as observed in Boreholes BH-1 and BH-2.

During borehole drilling in 2014, groundwater was initially observed in the northwest borehole
(BH-2) at & depth of 175 ft bgs but later rose to approximately 153 ft bgs within the borehole,
indicating that the aquifer at depth in this area is under pressure. Groundwater was not observed
in BH-1 in the northeast portion of the Site. Groundwater has been measured at a depth of
approximately 130 ft bgs in the monitoring well adjacent to the existing Declez Basin, located
approximately 900 ft west of the Site (DCZ-1; see Figure 3 for location).

2.4 Data Gaps before this Investigation

Although the initial 2014 investigation provided valuable information regarding the
characteristics of subsurface conditions along the northern boundary of the Site, the subsurface
conditions beneath most of the rest of the Site remained unknown. Specific data gaps included:

1. The thickness of alluvial sediments available for groundwater storage.

2. The lithologic characteristics of sediments beneath the majority of the Site and the
lateral extent of fine-grained sediments observed in existing boreholes along the
northern boundary of the Site.

3. The lithologic characteristics of the oider alluvium mapped at the surface in the
southeastern portion of the Site (see Figure 2).

4. The permeability of alluvial sediments, knowledge of which will allow for an
estimate of potential groundwater mounding and subsurface flow during artificial
recharge conditions.

5. The liquefaction potential of the upper 50 ft of subsurface sediments.

Thomas Harder & Co. *
Groundwater Consulting 3



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

3 Site Investigation

The site investigation to address the data gaps identified in Section 2.4 included data collection
from six CPTs and seven boreholes (see Figure 2). The number and location of CPT and
exploratory borehole locations were identified to:

1. Provide adequate subsurface data in areas of the Site not explored by previous
investigations.

2. Provide a sufficient number of samples for characterization of subsurface sediments.

3. Enable the identification and correlation of fine-grained sediment layers across the
Site. 7

4. Enable estimates of the thickness of alluvial sediments conducive to recharge and
subsurface storage of water,

5. Assess the liquefaction potential of the upper 50 ft of sediments.

In general, CPTs and boreholes were located on the portions of the Site where surface sediments
consist of younger alluvium, to coincide with the most likely area of future basin bottom. One
borehole (BH-6) was drilled directly on the older alluvium in order to assess the potential for this
formation to recharge and store water.

3.1 CPT Investigation

3.1.1 CPT Methodology

Cone Penetrometer Testing (CPT) was conducted by Kehoe Testing and Engineering of
Huntington Beach, California. Each CPT provided a continuous subsurface soil profile based on
the pressure and resistance observed from pushing an instrumented steel rod into the ground. Six
CPTs were conducted, as shown on Figure 2.

Shear wave testing was conducted at 10-ft intervals at each CPT location. Shear wave testing.
involves sending shock waves through the subsurface using a strike plate and measuring the
shear wave velocities. This data was used to assess the liquefaction potential of shallow
sediments.

3.1.2 CPT Results

The six CPTs were completed to the maximum depth possible with the equipment. The total
depths attained ranged from 17 to 39 ft bgs and were limited by the density and characteristics of
the soil.

Thomas Harder & Co.
Groundwater Consulting 4 *



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

CPT-1 37
CPT-2 23
CPT-3 39
CPT-5 23
CPT-7 23
CPT-8 17

Results from the CPTs indicate soils in the upper approximately 20 to 40 ft bgs consist primarily
of sand and silty sand (Appendix B). These sediments are likely very permeable and conducive
to the percolation of surface water. The inability to extend the CPT probes deeper was likely due
to the presence of gravel in the formation and/or the density of the formation.

3.2 Borehole Drilling and Soil Sample Collection

3.2.1 Borehole Drilling and Soil Sample Collection Methodology

A total of seven boreholes (BH-3 through BH-7; BH-4B and BH-5B) were drilled by J&H
Drilling of Fullerton, California using a CME 85 truck-mounted hollow-stem auger drilling rig.
During drilling, soil samples of the alluvium were collected on a continuous basis in 5-ft long,
2-inch diameter barrel samplers. In addition, the driller conducted Standard Penetration Tests
(SPTs) at 10-ft intervals within the upper 50 fit of each borehole. The SPT consists of driving a
split barrel sampler 18 inches into undisturbed formation using a 140-pound hammer falling
30-inches for each blow. Blow counts for every 6 inches driven were recorded in the field.

A split spoon sampler with stainless steel tubes collected a total of six 6-inch long, 2-inch
diameter samples from six different boreholes. Two of these samples were obtained from the
upper 50 ft and four samples were obtained from below 50 ft. Samples collected in the tubes
were capped, properly labeled, and submitted to a geotechnical laboratory for analysis of vertical
and horizontal permeability, grain size distribution, bulk density, and porosity.

All cuttings generated during drilling were spread evenly onsite. Upon completion of drilling,
boreholes were backfilled from the total depth to the land surface using drill cuttings placed
through the augers.

A TH&Co geoscientist provided full-time onsite inspection during all aspects of borehole
drilling, testing and sample collection. Soil samples were logged in the field according to ASTM
D 2488 (2000), Standard Practice for Description and Identification of Soils. Soil cores were

Thomas Harder & Co.
Groundwaler Consulting 5 ‘-égé‘\



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

photo-logged and representative samples were stored and retained in sealable plastic bags for
future inspection and analysis, as necessary.

3.2.2 Laboratory Analysis of Soil Samples

Six soil samples collected during drilling were submitted to PTS Laboratories in Santa Fe
Springs, California for physical properties testing. Two samples were from the younger
alluvium and four samples were from the older alluvium. All samples were analyzed for the
following:

¢ Vertical hydraulic conductivity (API RP40/EPA 9100)

¢ Horizontal hydraulic conductivity (API RP40/EPA 9100)
¢ Grain size distribution (ASTM D4464 and ASTM D422)
¢ Bulk density (API RP40/ASTM D2937)

» Effective Porosity (Modified ASTM D425}

All samples were submitted to PTS Laboratories by 2 TH&Co geoscientist under chain-of-
custody protocol. Results of the soil physical properties testing are summarized in Table 1. Soil
laboratory reports are provided in Appendix C.

Thomas Harder & Co. . *
Groundwater Consulting 6



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

4 Investigation Results

4.1 Subsurface Sediment/Lithologic Characteristics

Subsurface geology at the Site is characterized by young alluvial deposits, older alluvial
deposits, and crystalline bedrock (in order from shallowest to deepest; see Figures 4a
through 4e). The lithologic logs of boreholes BH-3, BH-4, BH-5, and BH-7 show that sediments
in the upper 30 to 50 feet generally consist of brown to gray sand with lesser amounts of gravel
and silt (see Appendix D). These sediments are unconsolidated and correlate with the young
alluvium observed at the land surface. Based on the sediment characteristics, the young alluvium
is expected to be relatively permeable and conducive to the recharge and storage of water. These
findings are consistent with the infiltration test results obtained by Geoscience (2014).

The young alluvial deposits are differentiated from the underlying older alluvium primarily by
consistency, color, and grain size. The older alluvial deposits are characterized by dense, reddish
brown silt and clay with lesser amounts of sand. Due to the dense, fine-grained nature of the
older alluvium, it is assumed that this formation would not facilitate the storage and transmission
of significant amounts of groundwater.

Crystalline bedrock was encountered beneath the older alluvium in BH-3, BH-4, and BH-5. In
BH-3 (west side of the Site), the bedrock consisted of weathered granitic bedrock at
approximately 75 ft bgs and hard consolidated granitic bedrock at 105 ft bgs. At BH-4 and
BH-5, hard crystalline bedrock consisting of quartzite was encountered at depths of 146 ft bgs
and 126 ft bgs, respectively.

4.2 Thickness of Younger Alluvium Available for Groundwater Storage

The thickness of the younger alluvium at the Site ranges from 0 ft at the surface contact with the
older alluvium along the south side of the Site to over 50 fi thick in the northwestem portion of
the Site (see Figure 5). Depths to the tops of the older alluvium and crystalline bedrock at each
borehole are summarized as follows:

Thomas Harder & Co. *
Groundwater Consulting 7



Iniand Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

Borchole Ti}:;’:;? i nriti?u:'::m“': If: l:;:fﬂr ﬂtpthl;zd(i:;i;tallim
_ : ' (ft hgs)

BH-1 126.5 36 125

BH-2 183 52 181.5
Weathered at 75

BH-3 108 54 Unweathered at 105

BH-4 146.5 40 146

BH-5 130 30 126

BH-6 45 0 Not encountered

BH-7 87 38 Not encountered

The thickness of younger alluvium available for groundwater recharge generally increases to the
north and northwest beneath the Site.

4.3 Groundwater

Groundwater was not encountered during drilling to the extent that it collected in the open
boreholes. Wet soil conditions were observed during the drilling of BH-3 at a depth of
approximately 50 ft bgs, which corresponds approximately with the top of the older alluvium.
As the older alluvium is less permeable than the upper alluvium, this water is likely localized
perched groundwater that has collected from the infiltration of precipitation through the younger
alluvium.

4.4 Analysis of Liquefaction Potential

Liquefaction is defined as the transformation of a granular material from a solid fo a liquefied
state as a consequence of increased pore-water pressure and reduced effective stress (Yould and
Idriss, 2001). Potential for liquefaction in any area is based on the following criteria:

1. Sediment type
2. Potential for strong earthquakes, and
3. A groundwater table within 50 ft of the land surface

Sediment properties from the CPTs and boreholes were used to assess the first criterion. The
second criterion is consistent with the Southern California region. The third criterion would be

Thomas Harder & Co. *
Groundwater Consuiting 8 '




Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site E-Feb-16

possible at the Site during artificial recharge operations as a result of the groundwater mound
that would develop in the younger alluvium.

Sediment properties from the CPTs were used to estimate liquefaction potential using the method
by Juang et al,, 2003. Liquefaction potential, using this method, is a function of depth-specific
vertical effective stress, total overburden stress, measured cone tip resistance, and sleeve friction,
all estimated based on data from the CPT. These variables are used to determine the “loading™ to
a soil induced by an earthquake which is defined as the cyclic stress ratio (CSR). The method
also estimates the “resistance” of the soil to triggering of liquefaction, which is defined as the
cyclic resistance ratio (CRR). The CRR is estimated using depth-specific vertical effective stress
and total overburden stress from the CPT as well as an assumed peak ground acceleration and
earthquake magnitude. The assumed peak ground acceleration for this analysis was 0.6 g
(USGS, 2014) and the assumed earthquake magnitude was 7.5 (Juang et al,, 2003). The ratio of
CRR to CSR is defined as the factor of safety where liquefaction is “predicted” when the ratio is
less than one. Applying this method and assumptions to the CPT results specific to the Site, the
factor of safety for all sediments encountered was above one (see Figure 6). Accordingly, based
on the results of this analysis, it does not appear that the younger alluvial soils beneath the Site
are at risk for liquefaction during saturated conditions.

A second method was used to estimate liquefaction potential by using the shear wave velocities
and the CSR as described by Kayabali, 1996. Shear wave velocities less than 200 meters per
second (m/s) are typically more susceptible to liquefaction during an earthquake, particularly at a
CSR above 0.1. The shear wave velocities measured from the CPT data at the Site ranged from
222 to 266 m/s and averaged 246 m/s with a CSR of 0.04. Results of this analysis also suggest
that the younger alluvial soils beneath the Site are not at risk for liquefaction.

4.5 Estimated Recharge Capacity

The potential recharge capacity of the Site was evaluated using two different Site configuration
options:

1. The first option assumed construction of a shallow recharge basin {or multiple basins)
with a bottom elevation of approximately 852 ft above mean sea level (amsl;
approximately 10 ft below existing grade). This option would allow for high
infiltration rates but limited subsurface storage capacity due to the relatively thin
younger alluvium beneath the basin.

2. The second option assumed deep excavation of the East Declez site to form an eastern
extension of the existing Declez Basin. This option would create additional surface
storage for the combined Declez Basin but recharge beneath the East Declez site

Thomas Harder & Co. eI

Groundwater Consulting 9 . 4



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

would be minimal as the bottom of the basin would be in the low permeability older
alluvium.

4.5.1 Shallow Recharge Basin Option

TH&Co developed a conceptual shallow recharge basin layout in consideration of the findings of
the drilling and sampling investigation. The conceptual basin area, as shown on Figure 7, is
located over the area of permeable younger alluvium and incorporates a 10-ft wide perimeter
road and 3:1 side slopes. The resulting active recharge area is approximately 11 acres. In
consideration of the available thickness of younger alluvium, the conceptual basin invert
elevation was as shallow as 10 fi below the existing land surface (see Figure 8).

Potential groundwater mounding associated with recharge of water in the conceptual Site basin
was evaluated using a two-dimensional analytical groundwater flow model. The analysis
incorporated the following assumptions:

e Water was applied to the basin at a rate of 1 ft/day.
e The hydraulic conductivity of the younger alluvium is 12 to 50 ft/day.
¢ The sediments in the subsurface are homogeneous.

The recharge rate of 1 ft/day is lower than obtained during testing by Geoscience (2014) but
consistent with recharge rates for the existing Declez Basin adjacent to the Site. A range of
hydraulic conductivity values was used for the analysis. The low end of the range was based on
soil physical properties results of samples from the borehole drilling and testing program (see
Table 1). The high end was based on hydraulic conductivity estimates for area aquifers as
published in Wildermuth (2014).

Given these assumptions, the analysis shows that recharge within the conceptual Site basin at a
surface infiltration rate of 1 ft/day will result in a groundwater mound that will rise to the bottom
of the basin within 10 days (see Figures 9 and 10). Further recharge, at that point, would have to
stop until the mound relaxed in accordance with the rate of subsurface outflow, which is dictated
by the hydraulic conductivity (i.e. permeability) of the younger alluvium. Model analyses
suggest that the time necessary to allow the mound to decline to near static conditions after the
recharge event is approximately 30 to 8¢ days.

Based on this analysis, the conceptual shallow recharge basin could theoretically recharge
between 260 and 1,100 ac-ft/yr if water was available on demand. As storm water is not
available on demand, the actual average annual recharge would likely be closer to the lower end
of this range.

It is noted that a review of the shallow recharge basin concept by Wildermuth Environmental
(Wildermuth, 2016; Appendix E), indicated that it was not feasible to deliver water to the

Thomas Harder & Co. — S

Groundwater Consulting 10



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

shallow recharge basins from the Declez Channel due to the shallow elevation of the basin
bottom. As such, this option is not considered viable. However, the analysis was conducted
prior to the Wildermuth Environmental review and is presented herein for reference.

4.5.2 Expanded Declez Basin Option

A second analysis of recharge potential was based on expanding the existing Declez Basin Cell 1
to the east through a deep excavation of the East Declez site (see Figures 11 and 12). The
conceptual basin area, as shown on Figure 13, is located over the area of permeable younger
alluvium and incorporates a 10-ft wide perimeter road and 2:1 side slopes. The conceptual basin
invert elevation (825 ft amsl) was assumed to be the same as the existing Declez Basin Cell 1
(see Figure 12). Maximum surface storage capacity of the East Declez portion of the expanded
Declez Basin area would be limited by the elevation of the spillway at the southwest end of the
Declez Basin, which is approximately 841 ft amsl. In consideration of this, the maximum
surface storage capacity of the expanded East Declez area is approximately 130 acre-ft.

The recharge potential of the expanded Declez Basin option was estimated by Wildermuth
Environmental using their surface water simulation model (see Appendix E}. The net increase in
average annual recharge was a function of the amount of storm water that can be delivered to the
site, the increased surface storage potential of the expanded Declez Basin area, and the
infiltration rate of the existing Declez Basin. The amount of storm water available for delivery
to the expanded Declez Basin area was evaluated using two alternatives:

la.  Delivery of storm water using existing diversion structures (no new
diversion improvements).

1b.  Improvements for the increased diversion of water from San Sevaine
Channel to the Jurupa Basin and then conveyance of this water to the
expanded Declez Basin.

Based on the analysis presented in Wildermuth (2016), the range of potential net increase in
recharge at the expanded Declez Basin is 144 acre-fi/yr to 414 acre-ft/yr for alternatives la and
1b, respectively.

Thomas Harder & Co. . *
Groundwater Consulting 11



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

5

Findings and Conclusions

The following summarizes the findings of the investigation of the East Declez Site:

Subsurface sediments beneath the East Declez Site consist of upper younger alluvium
that overlies older alluvial deposits that overlie metamorphic and granitic bedrock.

The younger alluvium is 30 to 40 ft thick and consists predominantly of sand and gravel
that is loose, permeable and conducive to the infiltration of surface water. The younger
alluvium is not expected to be a liquefaction risk.

The underlying older alluvium consists predominantly of dense clay with some sand and
gravel. This formation has low permeability and would not facilitate significant
infiltration of water.

Infiltration of surface water at the Site will perch on the older alluvial deposits and
mound within the younger alluvium.

Given the limited thickness of permeable younger alluvium for subsurface storage of
water, a recharge basin at the Site would have to be designed with a shallow bottom.
Hydraulic analysis of potential storm water conveyance to the East Declez Site presented
in Wildermuth (2016) showed that it is not feasible to deliver storm water from the East
Declez Channel to a shallow recharge basin due to the high elevation of the basin bottom
relative to the Declez Channel diversion point.

An alternative use for the Site is to expand the existing Declez Basin to the east, which
would create additional surface storage capacity. Preliminary estimates indicate a
potential increase in surface storage capacity of approximately 130 acre-ft.

Hydraulic analysis presented in Wildermuth (2016) estimates that the net increase in
recharge to the groundwater basin from an expanded Declez Basin option could range
from approximately 144 to 414 acre-ft/yr. The lower end of the range assumes no
additional diversion or storm water supply improvements. The high end of the range
assumes upstream storm water diversion improvements that increase the amount of water
available for delivery to the expanded Declez Basin.

Thomas Harder & Co.

Groundwaler Consulting 12 s g '



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Decler Basin Site 5-Feb-16

6 References
ASTM (2000). Standard Practice for Description and Identification of Soils. D 2488-00.

Geoscience, 2014. Technical Memorandum — Hydrogeological Evaluation of Riverside County,
California Parcel Nos. 173-020-020 and 173-020-021 as Potential Ground Water
Recharge Site.

Juang, C., Yuan, H, Lee, D., and Lin, P., 2003. Simplified CPT-Based Method for Evaluating
Liquefaction Resistance of Soils. J. of Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Engineering:
V. 129, Issue 1.

Kayabali, K. 1996. Soil liquefaction evaluation using shear wave velocity. J. of Engineering
Geology, V. 44, Issue 1-4.

USGS, 2014, Peak Horizontal Acceleration with 2 Percent Probability of Exceedance in 50
Years (Sheet 2 of 6), shapefile containing polygons. Published with Open-File Report
2014-1091, Documentation for the 2014 Update of the United States National Seismic
Hazard Maps.

Wildermuth Environmental, 2014. 2013 Chino Basin Groundwater Model Update and
Recalculation of Safe Yield Pursuant to the Peach Agreement.

Wildermuth Environmental, 2016. Assessment of Additional Alternatives for Potential Storm
Water Recharge Project East of Declez Basin. Letter Report Dated January 28, 2016.

Yould, T.L. and Idriss, .M., 2001. Liquefaction Resistance of Soils: Summary Report from the
1996 NCEER and 1998 NCEER/NSF Workshops on Evaluation of Liquefaction
Resistance of Soils. J. of Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Engineering: V. 127,
Issue 4.

Thomas Harder & Co. S
Groundwater Consulting 13 ‘



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site

5-Feb-16

Thomas Harder & Co.

Groundwater Consulting

Table

'Jfl



91-god-§ 14071 Bunnsuoc) Jelempuncig
# ‘0] R J9pliel sewoy i

‘pazAfeue Jou = /N ,

“19lewiuad 21gno Jad sweb = 29/6
‘Aep Jed Je8y = Aeppy ,

"a0eyIns punoif mojeq Jes) = sbq/y |

!SSJON
£8'l VN | %ezzs LLLL VIN [euozuoH | wmianjy sebunop | g'1Z-0'LZ| 85HE
66°) VIN_| %g9z 510 VIN [EJUGZUOH | wniAnjly JeBUNOA_ | §'12-0'1Z | arHe
g8l VIN_| %07z VN ¥¥0 [ESOA | wniAnjly 1SBunoA_ | Glz -0tz | asHe
7 VIN_| %L¥E VIN 050 [EOSA_ | WAy 1eBUnGA_ | Gtz- 0'kz | avHg
/N VN VN 200 VN TEUOZUOH | WnANfY IS0 |0Sy-Gvr| OHE
VN /N VN 10°0 VN [EUCZIOH | WnANIVIepI0 |G 9Z-09Z| SHE
VIN VN V/N 100 VN [EJUCZUOH | winiAnliy 8pI0 | 0€5-5¢5| v He
VIN VN VN 100 VN [EJUCZUGH | wniAly JoPI0__ | 696-0'95] €EHE
VIN VN VN VN 100 [EstieA WRANIY J8PI0__ |06k -Sb¥ | oHE
VIN ViN VN VN 100 [EOoA WNIANIY JSPIO__ | 592~ 09Z]  SHE
VN VIN VN V/N 10°0 [eSRA WNANIY 9pI0__[065-S25 | v HY
VN VN VN WVIN 100 =TT WNANIY 8PI0 | 695-095 | &HA

(Kepm) Aepai)
Aysolog Ausociod Auapanpuon &?:u:u:uu uofiejualg
ETEETTE S T-ITEY ) snesphAy ainespAn a|dwes

A29/6)

Ausuag sBaq y)

ajoyalo
T joyaiog

Hun oiBojoag

Hing A1a [BJUOZLION [EDlIEN

Aewwng Bupse) sajuadoud [eoisAyd jlos
uonebisaAur sdepnsqng
siuaweAosduy ujseg zopad skl
T 319Vl Kousby sann sudw3 puejur



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

Figures

Thomas Harder & Co.
Groundwater Consulting "*



} 8unbig BURINSUL? JA1RMPUNDIE

"07 § 25pIEH Seuiol]
eoldy \nh_-:wm 9 9UGZ AUBYd IEIS €9 VN
EooEEHPEcmnwEnanm ]_:N - ._.. _ r.d. . ¢

ABNOAL] v

—

uxm.s:nu_sn.am_ _ \ Fe o & ]

sammea depy \

m:oawmaa@_souwtaﬂam i_..i.... . ..,,_. _. mﬁazi:s_,si
syuswanolduy ujseg zoraeq Jsed Koty ﬂaigﬁw



BUINSI0N JaEMpUnUL
z ombla e 07 B JSpIRY SEWOL]

2})IS uisegy 2ajoo( jsey 9 9UOZ GUEld 981G £8 (VN
[

9007 $oday ap1y wd0 §OSN
‘saiFuespenb 00 X 0f BUY HURE PUR COPROLG UG
3 30 dejy A180[0aD) 2| PIR UOLOTN WoL] PAIPOIT
pue £ 07 2quadag Surddens prayy woij ASopag

xdserae(ISTO /810 N00A1r 018/ gy
eseqere(] [358d ERIAIE voHeuLIop] dnjdaiBoary
Autioy)y IPISIBARY WIOY ASBPUNOq 3B UIsEH FO[A(T 18EH

Joospag S anyd
swodaq] ATy SPI0 o
sarods ANy funox s

(ppwrcorddy assqm porea)
tomue) ojoap

IS UUE Z{oeC] 1985 D

{P107 “2909mE0a5)) 3 121, HOTR LTI
(¢107 eommgoan) SpipIOg SROIAAL] @

UONROT LD )
Eauﬁo_z_aomaa_ﬁme
@

uoneso] AjeyMog L L
| .| r - r . ~ .. 2

i 2.4, ] - 5 LA i R E
\ - kN B T G e L e e

uopebpseau) esgLnsqns S . . S —— G

sjuetaAoldul) ujseg zejoe(g yseg A30s2% SHTHR SAAENF PUBILY



¢ anfiy BURINSUGT JIBMBNDIG
~fe— 09 5 JOpIRH SEWOY]

SUONEIOT UOIBS SSOID § sucZ s v €0 OV

900z woday sprg wedQ SDSN
uu_m.__ﬂwn:_. 00 X O Wy H\Ue§ puR OUPIUIOg 1HE
s1p 3o depy o1Bojosny I[N puw g p
PUE G167 .naul.nvm ‘Suiddvw ppy EE.« dsm _Bu_ano

xdee BBIGTG/ A0 0oats 187 du
2aBGEIE(] [SOIBF SIVALRS UOTRULIOU] HijdeIToar)
ATUmoy) SPISIAARY WX ATBpuncg a3 Wised un_npn W=y

. I.I..Lw S e T

yoospag auypRaAr) Ry
mwodect [EANTY WRIO O
amwoda prajfy Sunag, O

Grewncosddy ssonp, pogsea)
1meue)) aifojan

M Fmonaop] Bmppeg
{rioz moﬁ_usoovu_m saj vomeni]
(p10z ‘osmmeccn) soyaog snodly @
umpoTIId O
Eoe.._o“n:!oﬂ%“i_ﬁ@
@

UonEa0 o[oyaIog

saunead deyy \

uopebnseAl; sovLINSQNS SiB33 - . . o oans s s ﬂw

spuswanoduly uiseg zope(q Jse3 ?&«



ep ainB)4 ___ Bupnsuogmempuna:g
4’ "84 W Japiey sewoy]

814836
OF9 ... ore
oge o08g
ozL ; oTL
o _A.emunmv.,...,n.p Ll
09L 08
08 Aprins prer WD APWET Wy 03 IR
{pody) sy SHEQ
g m
E 008 008 g
[ j<]
= g
[ b=
= 5
[+*]
£ o ove 3
088 ose
uze 0Z6
098 alIg uiseq zo[2oQ 006
1563 pasodory
000°} 000'}
seg ¥ Visom

=, et

uoneBnsaAul sseunsqnsg a“%%: ; d
sjuataAoduly uiseg zapaa(g 1sesq ﬁ &



Gt eanByy

Bumnsuo] JejempLno.g
~ffe— 3 R JApIEH Seusol]

ST L wsm=aL ¥ %
AL i
> Bl
T gl -6t
Ll e R I 088
torors) 1
Py PRpar) 4O
{srveD ~— 022
prarTResERn TN A
T i e Sap> gt g o) g0g T
D} WRRARGY 25D S 2l
——= - 092
\ﬂﬁ RS 35007 T E
:mu :(5)) mmangy Riumoy = T 008 m
= 17T &
5 L m
m L1180 ~ 4] 171 g
i uueg l-roe &
__oza.._.:s_:ﬂ.uz T
200 _|_ (oo
T 1 4-d 4, 1
L (4 82 papeloid) 1
oHE
0261 {026
th Pe T
I 3 I
owmllm - ajlg urseq Wm N uiseq . 4 008
+ 2o e pasodord =4 7a[0eq Sunsixe > 1
000° - —- 000°L
yseg 48 Q jom
uogpebnseau| soeunsqn P —Toyl
}eni /] epnsqng K3l sanynn) andw pusuy &,

spuawRAosdwy uiseq zaa( jses



9 f Infand Empire Utilities Agency East Declez Basin Improvements
A RLINICIEAL WATER DISTRICT Subsurface Investigation

North c C' South
1,000 1,000

960 960

920 g .,f ¢ 5 it 920
g ,
2
[¥5]

Site Boundary

880 L ke 880

SN e s
S A e
. “‘\ ‘\'\
-.' V -‘a‘ -
P B -
= PN m
S o S wllea O
E R =D <
g R, o
L -" [w]
[ . R R =]
(=] Ny . —
S i, Younger Alluviem (Qf): =
g <7+ '« Loose sand i o
2 800 TN T T s et BOO g
L ’ : . z
1T} R \/_" BT —
,\".'\’\ o~ < '\’\
e AP, 3
\ . . 1)
- ! 5 ' B I LT LT 3
R LY \ \‘ MRS Y N . -~ ~
- 'y Older Alluvium (Qof): i
760 sandy clay and sandy silt 760
.'\ _'.f‘.a _', ".'-: e N ’o.
. i U -
- oW \ -~ LA -~ - \
Ya, T, s
Voo T o T N N v
I R R
- ,_': R P .
~ L i R ¥ A 7 &
720 LT LT T s T20
Vertical Scale 4
<
f .
\
Horizontal Scale A
Feot
0 KLY 200 "\4
680 b 680
Y
F o,
4anal "“-
ft ams| = feet above mean sea level. .
1t bgs = feet balow ground surface, LI
P O P .
_.'[l_"l_"'/_J!l_J'-'_’l

[

640 \ \ . } % 640

5-Feb-16

Thomas Harder & Co. %

Groundwater Consulting Figure 4c



() w}\ . Iniand Empire Utilities Agency East Declez Basin Improvements
" A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Subsurface Investigation

North D Dl South
1,000 = —1,000

- i
4
i/
- .
[ /.
=S IJ\

960 == 9 / ? =960
7 '
4 e fonF .-
ﬂg ,.»’/ _--JI\
s/ K
il v ,‘,"' ?‘,--; \ B
920 = g Y /7 ==020
! - !
L g N 7 —‘..'\ '::.
. ﬂgq’kﬂ- w mﬁ & /“_f\,—-f\
[P o ) L 7 o~ EE
2o ' I I [} : A .
E 9 VJO(m m H 7 VO ,\"' '
A i ; P
880 aadm | 1 ; : o T T e 880
[ N » oo L R
oo H e ' K L
il H n 1} - '\
walIT}
e . :’,.,{,.‘;'
= T = -
g 840 mfem 171t 840 o
© 8
€ — =
[ b =
2 1 , =
3 !rYonngerAlluvlum @ 5
D : iy ] :
O 800 neden f 7 -, * Loose sand o 800 2]
m .4_ E - - . r " . 4 \=
- \ LY ! VT T
- r .7“' -0 "" 7
u \ T v VT
[} el r . 1 "- i 1- I
e Ty T My T B
= ! ;\, o .-‘, N ‘“ _'a\,_':l
- B 760

760 amtema = o . Older Alluvium (Qof): ¥

L2 o '- Softtoﬂrmlandyclnyundlandysﬂt- "
Ee N ,’ . )
_\\-‘\\J\\4.\\/'\‘.-\‘.'-\‘_,‘._
L . l.‘ . '0', L l" -“ . 'I
TD.=130R - o e S e s
I - ~- - ~ - 1 -
L 4 S T T I AN
5 ', ] ] !, 1 I i 1
‘. fs L 4, L o, o, ‘o, ', '
720__ - LTy ! ",\ I R e N A 720
S ,
ey 7 TD.=14651f . ~ e~ Vertical Scele T
--."l_"f‘ff_lll_"l‘_l N .
M & " v LS .
- 1 - - ! - - - '
. - - -
R A R .
P o Horizontal $cale ;
Al \ A \
T Bedrock - 20 | ==m [
U g - ] 100 z00
Al ) Y \
! ; 0 ' 1
s fl

680 =g - wdt= 680
=
:

T R RN S-S 40 ~
- Ve, s, [ A R Fent ’
T T T o W T - Notes: \
L L ft amst = fest above mean sea level. .

. P ” g - . w
Pt T T T T e # bgs = fest below ground surface. N
- "I - "l -t s W L "\

1y 1Y 1 R} 1 Al Al
L R "-.|_‘-.,’..“.,‘-,‘—l‘-.;’-l’—|’
P [ I A T PR Y
A kY LY
ff\l‘,\l,\ll\if\lf‘l \'r ', [ J.,\ B
640 mbam 1 - PR . -, p . . B . . 640

5-Feb-16

Thomas Harder & Co. \Jﬁ\

Groundwater Consulting

Figure 4d



East Declez Basin Improvements

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Subsurface Investigation

Elevation (ft amsl)

South
1,000

E'

VIR

nger Allw
Loose sand

7 You

1,000 ==

North E

(iswe y) uoneas|3

\

-
Y
:
r

I
3

LS
-
i

5

~ .
{/
)

4

-
!

\
!

oy
L

-
]

A
\

-
-
\
by
-
L

-

-

A
%

'

-
R
7 v

i

ft amsl = feat above mean sea level,
ft bgs = feet below ground surface.

-
Al

A

Nofss.

760

Thomas Harder & Co.

Groundwater Consulting

Figure 4e



g eunbiy BumNsULY IBEMPUNUD
wnianyjy sebunoj jo wopog
uoneas)g jenbs jo sinojuo) § a0 susld oIS £8 OVN

:samog dewaseg b oz oL -.

‘03 J.JoRIEH SEWGL)

snegme pumos3 mojaq 199 = 58 ¥
JSAS] B9E UBSLN 2AQE 139) = [SWIB ]

900z Hoday 2|5 9adg §OSN
‘safurspenb ,09 X ,0f PUY EUBE PUB OUIPITLIDE DB
a1 30 depy aofoen I PUE UOHOR W PAFIPOID
pue 510z requedes ‘Fuddew play woy Aojen

xdeewmERqgID,/Aio coars si8)y duy
euqmB( Jsant] SeoiAS UoIRUNO iqdmioan
AJUnoy) PISISATY WO ATBPIMION 8318 WIFRE Zajday] 19eg

I wigeg 2aj0a(] J5g D
AooIpag AUHEEAL) iyl
apodaq BRIV RPI0 oD
meodeq ANy Sumoy g

4 -~ e Py i
(rewrcorddy sym pogsea) . ] - ! Lii.
weUe] NdopeD : " = J :

odeq ADTy WBuncx jowonog |

Eiﬁm?wm%.s&_ao
wnianypy wfuncx o i [ .‘ - }L.n " g 4
E&eﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁuﬁ_—o_ﬁsﬁ_&“ﬂ.i _ﬂ-..“ _..|.. m| |L_.W HJ H._I._...l .1 = ,II_.‘.
ssue 35 028 e e e T e e w

sumped deyy v &) .__, ; g .r. : 5 v,

.ml.. i SRR . TN R CAe R 1" AF ok T E 1

ey g TG T TS e oo™ A3

uopeBseAu] aagLNSqgNS . LILELE MIEUA THAIENOW V ﬁw

sjustusacsdiu] ujseg zejaaq jseg Douabiy sHiN 2403 PUBHA



97-q94-5

9 aunbiy

BupnsuoY JBIEMPUNCIE)
gl "0 % JopJeH sewoy]

‘001 St umoys (0| uey) Jejeald Ajajes Jo J0joe) B Lllm sanjep

:9)ON
(1) ydag wawipag
0s 17 13 0g T4 om m.n 0
[ i L i L o
T = A19yes Jo 101084 e Co *e%3%4_ o Q 0
® b4 §°¢o o w *® $s
. J ¢ ‘0 bl.l..l.l.il’libl.ll.!l!l‘ll!il@l - 0T
$
=3 — ———" . 2 — - 0z
¢ : Mg
L
- Y e 0€
&
¢ 8
)
P —
° 5 0s W
P~ —— 09 2
L 4
0L
T uey] ssa7
———— 51 A19Jeg Jo J0)ok4 Sy udym 08
peiedipald st uoijoejenbiy P
06
L 4
60— G009 000G 9963009 — 99— 001
£002 "le 3o Buenr woiy poyjaly ay) Buisn
[efjusjod uopoeyenby juswipag
uonebsSaAUT SoeLNsSgNS

spuswanosdwy uiseg zapag 1sey
Aousby sannn o41dwg puejug



1 eanBig BUnSUDY JBMPURDIG

uondo uiseg abieysey mojeys

“07) % AB[UIEH BRUICKL,

- jnofe7 uiseg jenydasuo) 8 suoZ umd eres £9 OV
{ e ]

WO LIRS MMM BaInog dewaseg ]n_'. [ 00k ]

aogyms punmS mopq 10 =98q g i - e =

[GAS] S8 UDSTU JAGAY 90F = [FUNE

9002 podny 2 usdy SO
‘saffumipenb 09 X 0¢ wUY MUBE PUY OUIPRLIE USE
ay3 3o depy 01803030 “J[1 pue UOPOR WO} PALIPOI
pue 19z Rquedag ‘Suiddew pieyy wog Hojoasy

xlse eRagID/Bi0 ool S8y dpy
asEqEE(] [pamg SSARS usHeunom JydarBoas)
func) spiseATy WAL AIBpUNaq a)E UISBE 2o 18H

Yooupag SEIEAL) g
meoda(] [Ty 1epj)  Job
asodag Eunyy Smmoy 4B

(eonupowddy” s1egm peysEcr)
nguor otfo[oagy

N WS ZHI( 6 D

(sadojs HE AT) »ois uneg emdsoucy l

(opim 17 0Z) pety 11atupay pergdaouod

wopog uireg Regdaouay

wmanfy pEuncgje o
mepog Jo o pUE UOTRASEL 1ogq y gy)
[suse } ot

saunjeoy deyy Q

uopebpseAu] e28LnsgNS Sie1e — | | s —— e
syuowonosduwy uiseg zopreq Jse3 by éﬂgﬁw



B) Bumnsucs ssieampunaug
g ol 575 JopiEH SEWOYL

B o - - 079
10707 I
09— - 089
0zL—] - 0ZL
+: Y S P YR PP Tuxy 40 UNE B
+- (o) wmmaagyy OO ot - u B
092" — 08z
B I T m
2 o0e— -0 o
] -]
€ | T %
5 T T =
P 3
& ot o8 g
B 1o Bupoyuon.
ose-1- i i 1290 _1- ope
] ia-a ; 4
i (u 82 paoelosd) “va AL
SHE
026 —1- 028
e i
17 m.m 1
8m1.m < Mg wseq > mm « g > | 0%
1 Za103(] I5eq posodoig 2 Zo[03(] Sunsmyg Tl
So._lm.. Lm - 000')
g ! 1seM
uopelingseAuy aseunsgns | S i S _.w
Beb] S durg P |, .W
sjustueAosduij uiseg zejad yseg /f ;



91-9od4-§ , BuRNsuo:) JANEMPUNOIS
~afie— "0 § 19pJEH SEWIOY L
UONEAD(F JOIEMPUNOID) mipm
afieyray jo HEIS Bowig SAEQ
08 0L 09 0s or 0E 074 ot 0
_ . " _ _ e e . L sz8

[~

N 0€8

JedAf1-a10e 080 T Ajo1ewixoidde

SE8

{1swe 13) vopeaa;a Suipunoln 28aeylay

6 2anbid4

T Jo adieyoal |B10) e 10§ SBPAD -
a8Jeyoal QT alepowlodde Ajjedaloay}
PINoD ays ay} ‘suonduwinsse asaui Yum

— ‘shep 01510} Aep/it-asde 8T Jo aBieydan Sve

a|gqeua |Im Aep/fYy 05 30 Auaonpuos

Jl|nelpAy B yUM SIUBLLIPAS 3IePNSANS

> 058

[SWe 3 058 = HisAu| ujseg asieyday
558
Aeppj 0 = AIAdNpuo) Y nelpAy
ydeiBoipAH olreusog abieyday pajelsusn-jepop
uoieBNSaAUT SdeUnsgnS

sjuswaaosdiur uiseq zapaq isel
fousby saninn aaidwg puejur



Buginsuo] Jatempunc.s

9T7-q34-5 -
%ﬂr "0 R JapJeH sewuoy |
uoneAs|3 J21EMpPUNOIL) el
afieyday jo Mels auls sheg
O6T 08T 0Lt 09T O0ST OFT OET 0ZT OIT OOT OB 08 474 09 0s or 0E 0z o1
L L 1 J. L L 1 L 1 L i 1 L | I— J l yal o (] erihareem ch
— 58

"1eaAf)y-aide 97 Ajorewnxoadde
- Jo aiteyoai |e10) e 10} SA[IAD
3gieydal ¢ a1epOLLOIIE Aj|Ed]3RI03Y)
PIno2 aus ay) ‘suondwnsse asay} YU
"sAep £ 0] G 10} Aep/y-aide [T Jo s5ieydal
3|qeus |im Aep/y ZT JO ANAIIDNPUOD
3l|nepAy e yum sjuswWIpss aoepnsqng

0g8

SE8

o8

744

(1swe 3] uoneast3 Bujpunopy adieyday

0T aunb14

[SWE 3} 0S8 = WaAU| uiseg 281eyoay =
568
o Keppy z1. = AjlAponpuog oynespAy -
-_n_w._mo.:uh_._ oleUSOS om._u—__uom_ pojelauany~|apoN
uonebsoAu] adepnsqns

sjuawaAcsdw] uisey Zapa( 15e3
fusby sappn asdw3 puejur



Bumnsuoy JREmpUnng
_.n“ausnw ] ol 7551 IPpieH SEUONL
uonRed07] UOIVG SSOI)  9U0Z BURId B)EIE CB OWN

900Z Hoday s|L] oed() SDSN
‘ssBusspenb g0 X Of BUY GUES puB oURRILLT RS
a1y J0 day] o1So[oag) I9)[L PuR UCHOR U PATApow
pue ¢[07 equeydeg ‘Fuiddew py woy dew Hojoar

sdgw sRAgIO /o peoar ad)y duy
asRqEIR( [@2IRg S30LAISE noreunoyu] JudeiSoan
£un07) apisseAny Wwoy AlEpUROq 9}F UIFEE ZIaa(] 1EH
i i i M~ -

Foospag oty Eind-
swoda(] ANy P10 SO0
awodaq prany Sumey O

(opnupcorddy anum paysecy
) o) nHojoen

P Bouoyuop Bunengy
(107 ‘soumszean) j1g (2] ToENEY [
(#107 “2ousmacen) sjoyalog enolassg
wonBa0 14D

e
(s}
boneao] ajojaog MojEys @)
o

m uoyeooT ajodatog
b sanes. —%E i '3 e - ¥ A ...-_H... sl A BA SM . .L".-. M. ¥
: N RS O N TR T TRY ey
3.5 Ty B
(Yol & & e r . £ A e B .
:0_‘“&035 adeLnsqgng ke IOMMLEC BV TWAIDINOW Y

spuswoaosduwy uiseg zojaaQq Jse3 Aauinby suSiT A3 o



Z1 eanBidy

B}-994-C

[ S

T LT ey b Amsuio wusa € g, T

Bupinsuoy JlEmpUnRIg
~lbe— "07) %} JOpJEH SeWwoy L

T ]
089

Sl o

wrf N i -
m OQQI.. () umEAD[Ty SSowax .... T [ 0o W
£ ISue Y 5'5g8 |SWE Y $'E28 |Sie | 0'Z28 Iswie y m oz8™ g
S b ¥80 Wejees RN WaAU| NG B 1BRNQ Haauj 3
B N — = 3
m [ [ Zueo " gD ..m ) 3
& ore Swe Y o'zen Isie § 0088 {ypeuueid sy 2dove 3
w weg - uusg BB Y 0'ZE8  swey o')yg - e
] e uueg femgids
n.rnmcumrmn.‘
0gg-1- S -1-088
L ik-a I
{4 82 papsiolg) 4+
SH
0zZ6- T 026
15 fe
4 3 |
096 e i > mm -« b > -+ 096
zajaa(q sy pesodoig -] Zapa( Sunsixyg - L
000"k~ L ooos
- 1 som
:o--hﬁmnﬁmubzh aJepnsgng Enggﬁ-z_.—i.-

spusenosdull uiseg zopaag 3segq

A3uaby saaynn a3 puopl fﬁlwv



€1 anby
uondo } 1199 zejaeq papuedxy
-« Jnofe] uiseg jemdoadouod)

aogyms punoif mojeq oy =s3q g
JAAD] GOE UBIW DAOGE 139] = [SUE iF

9007 uedsy o[ wedQ SDSN
‘sefurapenb 09 X 0 WY BURE PUR oIpANLSE WES
31 Jo dejy orfo[oag) I PUE UCHOW WO PSTIPOm
pu £107 Bquegdeg ‘Fuiddew play wox ABojcan

xdsm BImSED/Bi0 nodaL 818141y
SsEqRIR(] [3R] Sasiatag uopEuuagy) omdeiBoan
AJuno?y FPIEIATY WoI) AIBPUNOq #1158 Wised Ze[oed 1WeH

AOOTPaE ANEBIALY gy

syodae] [FATYY 21O Job
spvoday mianfly Sunex, s

(epnapoiddy sy peyrsa)
ymuog Mdotosg

ayg wneng zapaq Jeog D

(sadojg HZ A1) 2dojg urseq eapdssua) l

{3p1a 3 oz) proy e Edavor)

woRog Wkeg Erydantoy

umsny)y sedumoy o ®
wonog Jo yidag pus UONBAIH (a85q 1 oF)
sum i gse

sanpesd dew ..Q

vopebipsoAu] eseunsqns
sjuslonosdul) uiseg zopooq Jsey

§ BUOZ sUbld #AS L0 (VN

Bumnsua) Ja)BMpunng

03 3 J3pIey

ADIRESIG MLV TWILINDIN ¥

Aoty SR 24003 PLBTH

SBUIOL]

Q



Iniand Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site B-Feb-16

Appendix A

Previous Investigation Borehole Lithologic Logs

Thomas Harder & Co.
Groundwater Consulting ‘—*



GEOSCIENCE Ogk Tree Group LOG OF BORING BH-1
Recharge Feasibility
GEQSCIENCE Project No. 13055-14 SHEET 1 OF 5
Location 43790000 | Petel®) &/06/14 - 8/27/14 Rilng o ABC Liovin Driing| o8 NA
Ground Surfar Lo ill Ri 5 )
vation (> 882 boed . Sobolew e CME - 85 orge o 90
Horizortal/Verical \ ADg3/NAVDSS Reviewed ; Kingsbury Dt () 6 Do 1265
Sample information
e —
. |5 € | E| = |a
. & S|z |
. % z o S|z =} MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
= 3 |5 g 2 =l |e
= € |2 [
£ |8 £ g FHERE
5 ElelBel ElE|5 8
a {2 8|8 & d (& |6
© No Sample
9 [o2v] SAND (SW): brown (7.DYH &/4); 95% line to medium grained
| k.o sand, subangular to subrounded; 5% silt; dry sample; very
s+ loose.
i Ri 80 .
R M ST TMLY: Brown {7.5YH 574); 05% ol frace Tne to coarse
L gravel up to 11mm, subangular; trace fine to medium grained
sand, subangular; dry sample, very loose.
R2 60 | 12
15 .- SAND : graylsh brown ine
L - to coarse graihed sand, angular to subangular; 35% fme to
1 coarse gravel up to 26rr|m angular to subangular; trace siit;
L __‘: ( poorly sorted; dry sample, loose.
3 &0 | 15 [
5 4
- 20 2 4
I by
B 1O
i R4 60 | 15 C
. <
L = =
- 25 ' OC @25 ft bgs increase in fine to coarse gravel.
B ='Q
, A5 60 | 24 [
- | ©
i f v 4
i 01
L 30 4 o




GEOSCIENCE SekiirseGrotp LOG OF BORING BH-1
Recharge Feasibility
GEQSCIENCE Project No. 13055-14 SHEET 2 OF 5
Location 432033369 | Datele) 5106114 - 8/27/14 Drling wor ABG Liovin Drilling | 549 NA
oot gap 990 . Sobolew e ?  CME -85 Doyecs) 90
HorontallVertical \ AD83/NAVDS8 Reviewed ) Kingsbury B:;";g'ﬁ iy 6 Tod @ 1265
Sample Information
4 l
. < . 5 | &% 3 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
=1 .
= o E 8 2 S|e 2
£ 2l o |8 o g |8 (L
Bzl ZE&| 2 5818
o |Z2] 0O | [ o o |
- 30 : C
- 0
i RS g0 | 24 r SILTY SAND . grayish brown % Tine to
}4:] coarse grained sand, angular to subangular; 15% silt; trace fine
3 C1-k] gravel up to 5mm, angular to subangular, fine to coarse gravel at
| 1L base; poorly sorted; dry sample.
- 35
i : fine to coarse gralned
| 8 ‘41 sand, angular to subangular 20% slll trace fine gravel up to
- 60 | 24 [ 5mm;, angular to subangular; dense, dry sample.
L L‘_:
- 40 ]
[
- Fols
r._ .
R8 80 26.04::.:::'
i SEg
- 45 :E :;".
i | @456 ft bgs color changes to dark red {2.5YR 3/6).
Fo 80 45951
- 50 4 @50 ft bgs color changes to re (2.5YR 5/8); inceass in fine to
i coarse sand.
Rio 50 46.95
-8 d T @55 ft bgs color changes to dark red (2.5YR 3/6).
i § B
R11 &0 bsod :: :-: @57 ft bgs color changes to red (2.5YR 5/8).
- &0




GEOSCIENCE Oak Tree Group LOG OF BORING BH-1
Recharge Feasibility
GEOSCIENCE Project No. 13055-14 SHEET 3 OF 5
Losaton (34.003309 | Detele) 5106114 - 8/27/14 DXling o ABC Liovin Drilling | 589 NA
rt i B Pl
%?ﬂ%r? l{lﬂ)acs 882 It.,;;gged J. Sobolew %ﬂgalg CME - 85 (Dlgg,-ges) -90
Datom . NADB3/NAVDES by ""* J. Kingsbury Damerer (r) 6 Domthty 1265
Sampile Information
] . —
sEs| S !€e|x
- Zl @zl €152 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
= Slg8| B 8{F|e
= o o b g g s 8’
BEls|S(HE| & 15|88
a 'Z ofFf|l m [l b
|" 60 N C SAND WITH GRAVEL (SP): red (2.5YR 5/8); 85% fine o coarse
.4 gralned sand, subangular to subrounded; 15% fine to coarse
B O gravel up to 45mm, subanguiar to subrounded,; trace silt; poorly
B ( sorted; containes weathered clasts
Ri2 60 (564 (D]
2
L O
L s 2
O
| G
L O
R13 60 [4B.48".. ]
i -
70 E;D' T i : ne o coarse
s ‘E grainad sand, subangular to subrounded; 10% fine to coarse
r 331 gravel, subangular to subrounded; 5% slit; poorly sorted; dense,
L g dry
Ri4 60 | 24 [
_ S
- 75 é&
e
RIS 60| 8 [
I 4
i R
O
I R16 €0 l:z'fsiﬂ.'."".'c
- O
- R
-8 B
i O
- g
R17 60 |315 O
B =S
: =
i AR
80 T=N




GEOSCIENCE Oak Tree Grtfu_p_ LOG OF BORING BH-1
Recharge Feasibility
GEOSCIENCE Project No. 13055-14 SHEET 4 OF 5
Losatien 434033360 | Datele) groa/14 - @/27/14 Dy ABC Liovin Drilling | S22 NA -
ot 882 k030t . Sobolew Pilfe CME-85 agees) 90
Horizontal/Vertcal \ s g/ AVDBE Reviewed ) Kingsbury Borehole ) 6 a 1265
Sample Information
o 3 -E. E = =
_ < 2l e g NE MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
Slel2@s 5 5|E|E
§l8lsel 51303
BIZI 8| a &b
[ " SAND WITHGRAVEL (SPY: red (25YR 5/8); B5% fire 10 coarss
. grained sand, subangular to subrounded; 10% fine to coarse
m :O,‘ gravsl. subangular to subrounded; 5% silt; poorly sorted; dense,
neg dry
- G
Rig 60 45.96!':0‘-
I 4
- ':o‘.
- 95 2 4
':Q.
I G
- "o'
A9 60 | 18 [ @97 ft bys large cobble, rig chatter.
O
L X
L 100 0
i g
‘:o..
i - G
I R20 60 [55.920
_ %
O
r 105 (
] -
R21 60 | 39 [O
- I::_.O.cl
' ¢
-0 X1 @110 1t bgs driller added water.
- g
O
R22 50 |51.6[ G
i O @113 ft bgs fine to coarse grained sand stringer.
L 51’
— 115 :.:.-c
L ‘O'.
3 . -"-'..,c
R23 60 fpa.od Q)
5 -
o OJ
|

- 120



GEOSCIENCE s C LOG OF BORING BH-1
Recharge Feasibility
GEOSCIENCE Project No. 13055-14 SHEET 5 OF 5
: 34.033369 | Date(s) Driling . Bearing
Locet'on -117.493857 | Driled 8/26/14 - 8/27M14 Contractor ABC Liovin Drilling | (azimupsy  NA
i 882 by ). Sabolew Tpe® CME-85 Daoes)  -90
Horimemial/Vertical N ADB3/NAVDSS Povieed . Kingsbury P ) 6 Toal ) 1265
Sample Information
E AR 4k MATERIAL DESCRIPTION
= = o -
s |g| SR S| e |§|2|2
E‘ o g § 2 5|18 |28
& |1Z2|8Ele| & |&]|2 |5
[ 120 -~ SAND WITHGRAVEL (SFY: fed (25VR 5/8]; 85% fine (0 coarse
~.-{ gralned sand, subangular to subrounded; 10% fine to coarse
i -O gravel, subangular to subrounded; 5% slit; poorly sorted: dense,
i g Y
R24 60 po5zi()]
€
- :Q
o
128 "] Decomposing Granite
L R25 18 ’/:/
NG

Total Depth 126.5 FT.




GEOSCIENCE Oak Tree Grou.p_ LOG OF BORING BH-2
Recharge Feaslbility
GEOSCIENCE Project No. 13055-14 SHEET 1 OF 7
Location (34030973 | Datel®) 8125114 - 8r26/14 2D or ABC Liovin Drilling | Berng NA
oS 866 soased ). Sobolew Te CME-85 Dooes) 90
HorzontaliVertial NADB3/NAVDSS beviened ) Kingsbury Borenle ) B e @ 183
Sample Information
. .| 2 |E|~
Slgs| s [SIEE WELL
el =
g = 5 T g % E s MATERIAL DESCRIPTION CONSTRUCTION
£ |g/5[E | 2 | & 5 |2
v |e| & 5 21 B 5 g
0o 2|0 ~ [+ a | |6
o NO SAMPLE
5 .7 SAND (SW]: light brownish gray (10VR 6/2); 95% fine graned
L p.e4  sand, subangular to subrounded; trace fine gravel up to 6mm,
::::: subangular to subrounded; trace silt; dry sample, very loose.
R 60 | 12 feos
i r SAND WITH GRAVEL (SP): Tight brownish gray (10YR 6/2);
N 75% fine to coarse grained sand, subangular to subrounded;
- 25% fine 1o coarse gravel up to 27mm, subangular to
| subrounded; trace sit; dry sample; poorly sorted.
R2 60
-
15 SAND Tpale brown
5 coarse grained sand, subangular to subrounded; 35% fine to
coarse gravel up to 41mm, subangular to subrounded; 5% siit;
| dry sample; poorly sorted.
R3 60
B L :light gray i
i fine to coarse grained sand, subangular to subrounded; 25% sit;
| 20% fine to coarse gravel up to 20mm, subangular to
oo kD1 subrounded; dry sample; poorly sorted,
: grayish brown . slit; trace ting
L grained sand, subrounded; dry sample.
R4 8 | 22
i b~ GRAV : light yellowish brown (2.5
25 O.-Q 55% flne to coarse gravel up to 47mm, subangular to
" Eo-. subrounded; 40% fine to coarse grained sand, subanguiar to
3 Te! subrounded; 5% silt; dry sample; poorly sorted.
2
- f=30
RS 60 | 10 p9
L .Q
=
L :Q
0|
L 30 it




Oak Ti rou -
Recharge Feasibility
GEOSCIENCE Project No. 13055-14 SHEET 2 OF 7
Location (34083873 | Datels) ayos/14 - 8/26/14 Quling r ABC Liovin Drilling| Geafng, A
S{;’;’;{ﬂ,,? %H)aoe 866 b“ggged J. Sobolew -Erjfgeﬁg CME - 85 }}',“egges) -90
Horzomal/Vertical \ ADB3/NAVDSS 6o J, Kingsbury Bt ) 6 e 183
Sample information i
s (8 g £ Slgls WELL
= = ‘; b §. ‘ _% > 3 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION CONSTRUCTION
e |al T |5 ® w 5 g g
2 (EleBsl £ ig|E|E
a 2|0l F| @ |&|e|o
e W GRAVECWITH SICT AND SAND (GP-GM): Tight olive brown
afl (2.5Y 5/4); 55% fine to coarse gravel up to 25mm, angular to
i d[)| subangular; 35% fine to coarse grained sand, angular to
401| subangular; 10% slif; dry sample; poorly sorted.
i RE A SILT (ML): olive brown [2.5Y 4/4); 100% sii; trace fine grained
L 60 j32. sand, subangular to subrounded; dry sample.
- 35
R7 60 [13.2
i S SAND WITH GRAVEL (SP): olive s 70% fine to coarse
. grained sand, subangular to subrounded; 30% fine to coarse
- 40 O gravel up to 52mm, subangular to subrounded; trace slit; poorly
L 5 ( sorted, dry sample.
A8 60 |38}
- :Q.
- -
O
- 45 =
L .O
_ g
R9 60 | 30 [O]
L =
: O
g
- 50 PR
I -t g
E e A1 SICTY SAND WITH GRAVEL (SW): dark yellowish brown (10YR
10 60 [ 40 v 1 4/6), 55% fine to coarse grained sand, subangular, 25% fine
i 131 gravel up to 8Bmm, subangular; 20% silt; wet sample; poorly
. sorted; ground water encountered at 52 ft bgs.
- 55 ;
Ri1 60 |ar2[ ¥

- 60




GEOSCIENCE S lresiGroup! LOG OF BORING BH-2
Recharge Feasibility
GEOSCIENCE Project No. 13055-14 SHEET 3 OF 7
Locatn 033373 | Batels) g25/14 - 8126/14 Drilg or ABC Liovin Dritiing | Be2m8 Na
o 866 652 J. Sobolew fgle  CME -85 e ey -80
=y .
Horizontal/Vertcal \ ADE3/NAVDSS Peviewed | Kingsbury B‘!..’,?,..'?L", ) © e 188
Sample Information
. . £ |E
[+] o — L= ‘E .‘E
- Z w El= WELL
= = E E af.’_ __g %,. 3 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION CONSTRUCTION
= g | g =
A BRI
8 2|8 5 |&|a (§
6o = d SAND WITH GRAVEL (SF): dark yellowish brown (T0YR 3/4};
L . 75% fine to coarse grained sand, subangular to subrounded;
O1 20% fine gravel up to 7mm, subangular to subrounded; 5% slit;
| " 'C' wet sample; poorly sorted.
Riz 60 [39.6[(]
2 6
- O
_ g5 c
i : yellowlgh brown o 8lit;
| 15% fine to coarse gralned sand, subangular to subrounded
trace fine gravel up to 5mm, subangular to subrounded; wet
R13 60 1336 sample; contains quartz, mica, and amphibole; Top 1 ft layer
i similar to 60-65
- 70 SAND WITH SILT AND GRAVEL (SP-SMJ: yellowish brown
L {10YR 5/4); 70% fine fo coarse gralned sand, subangular o
subrounded; 20% fine gravel up to 5Smm, subangular to
| subrounded; 10% silt; wet sample; poorly sorted.
R14 80 |51.6}:
-7 SILTWITH Tyellowis sit;
i fine to medium grained sand, subangular; trace graval
subangular; moist sample
Ri5 60 |39.6
i @78 it bgs increase in fine grained sand
- 80
i Ri6 60 404 [}]T SICTY SAND rown ine
4341 to coarse grained sand, subangular to subrounded 30% fine to
B k] coarse gravel up to 31mm, subangular to subrounded 20% silt;
B 1y wel sample; poorly sorted.
- 85 C yelicwish brown
| - 65% fine 1o coarse gralned sand subangular to subrounded
.O,W 30% fine to coarse gravel up to 19mm, subanguiar to
B M C subrounded; 5% silt; moist sample; poorly sorted.
R17 60 49210’
B - o @88 ft bgs sample becomes dry.

- 80




GEOSCIENCE Qak Tree Group LOG OF BORING BH-2
Recharge Feaslbility
GEOSCIENCE Project No. 13055-14 SHEET 4 OF 7
Location 5033573 | Baee) eyosit4 - pi26i14 2180 or ABG Liovin Drilling | aonng,  NA
ooty 866 b2esd ). Sobolew a9 CME -85 Do) -90
Hotontal/Vertical NADB3/NAVDSS Brvio%ed ). Kingsbury B ) 6 Donh ¢y 183
Sample Information
sls| 2 |€lzlz
=] [
_ < |8 % AL MATERIAL DESCRIPTION e
: [giS@ S| 2 |2|2|B
EBleligl 2iE(5s
o (Z2] O & ~ o |4 | |6
90 =g @90 1 bgs sample becomes moist.
i R
R18 60 (40.8 (-
I - 4
- :O..
- 95 n
:Q.
- T yellowis ] sl
10% fine to coarse grained sand, subangular; 5% fine gravel up
i e Eoillea to 5mm, subangular; moist sample.
- 100
I R20 60 |46.8
- 105
I R21 60 | 60
" Gl @110 1t bgs Increase in silt to 114 ft bgs.
L
i Ro2 60 | 60
- 115
i @116 it bgs rig chatter
I H23 60 | 60
L 120




QOak Tree Grou -
GEOSCIENCE up LOG OF BORING BH-2
Recharge Feasibility
GEQSCIENCE Project No. 13055-14 SHEET 5 OF 7
Location A U33373 Do) /05/14 - 6126114 g ior ABC Liovin Drilling | Gearrg,  NA
> 866 6% J. Sobolew Tne CME-85 e s 90
Horizonal/Vertioal \ ADB3/NAVDBE Peviewed ) ingsbury D.B“m”""‘:(m, 6 Toal o 183
Sample Information
§ | 2 | Elale
o by bl B = =
- -4 w E|= WELL
e = ; = 5 % z '—3 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION CONSTRUCTION
= n| T 1w 8 g3 3
AEHE FIRERHEE
S |28 eS| 5 ld|&|o
- 120
i @121 i bgs rig chatter.
A24 60
- 125
R25 60 | 7.2
i @128 ft bgs increase in fine gravel.
Al bR SICTY GRAVEL WITH SAND (GM): yellowish red (5YR 478);
1y 40% fine gravel up to 16mm, subangular to subrounded; 35%
B P silt; 25% fine to coarse grained sand, subangular to subrounded;
| b[D| wet sample; poorly sorted.
R26 60 40.5)(}
L k ()\
L a0
135
il
3 SANDY SICT (ML) yellowish re % fine
| to coarse grained sand, subangular to subrounded 10% fine
Ra7 60 1B4.44 gravet up to 5mm, subangular to subrounded; wet sample
- 140
A28 60 [44.04
= T SICTY SAND (BMY): Brown ] fine 1o coarse grained
111 sand, subangular to subrounded; 30% fine to coarse gravel up
i 4 to 31mm, subangular to subrounded; 25% silt; wet sample.
= o '.'l
29 60 l4o.s2L{
|

- 150




Oak Tree Group
GEQSCIENCE Recharge Feasibility

GEOSCIENCE Project No. 13055-14

LOG OF BORING BH-2

SHEET 6 OF 7

Location 4058873 | Detel®) @io5/14 - /26/14 DXy o ABC Liovin Drilling | Serd,  NA
e 866 bogeed 5 Sobolew DifFa  CME -85 D) 90
Horlzontei/Vertal |y ADB3/NAVDBS Reviewsd ) (ingsbury Borehole ) 6 o w 183
Sample Information :
I
i —
A o2 |Ell e
SIS o |c{ES WELL
= c[3 = 5 % =~ ?_, MATER!AL DESCRIPTION CONSTRUCTION
£ gl IE 3 21218
ElElelmgl 2 3|83
e |Z] O &8 F o |aje |0
s SANDY SICT (ML) yellowtsh i ; 55% silt, 35% fine
1o coarse grained sand, subangular to subrounded; 10% fine
i gravel up to 5mm, subangular to subrounded; wet sample.
A30 50 52.08]
=2 @155 ft bgs increase in fine to coarse grained sand.
R31 §0 [54.96
i @158 ft bgs increase in fine to coarse grained sand.
- 160
-
R32 60 [47.88)
- 165
R33 60 [57.96
- 170
R34 60 47.52
- 175
Ras 60 | 51
180




GEOSCIENCE ot LOG OF BORING BH-2
Recharge Feasibility
GEQSCIENCE Project No, 13055-14 SHEET 7 OF 7
Locai 34.033373 | Date(s) Drilling . . Bearing
ation -117.497266 | Drited 8/25/14 - 8/26/114 Gontractor ABC Liovin Drilling {Azirvaith) NA
Bivaton (7~ 866 b2 J. Sobolew T CME -85 s, 90
Horizontal/Vertoal \ AD83/NAVDSES Reviewed ). Kingsbury Bocehole &) B e« 188
Sample Information
\ ; g | E
SES| s |TIEI|E WELL
= c E_ T E % %, 3 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION CONSTRUCTION
= o © =]
AR HE
1281|838 |&|f18
- 180
L b = 43"“,,:, Decomposed Granite
’/\/
L ’/\/

Total Depth 183.0 FT.




Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site

5-Feb-16

Appendix B

Cone Penetrometer Testing Logs

Thomas Harder & Co.

Groundwater Consulting



110\ E1eq I0KNEIRQ 1AdINGT-EEWOTRIWBRIBHSELLIOL1\:D 3]y 1afoud
WV SE1£5:0T “ST0Z/¥2/6 U0 pagean Hodoy - Jemyos uopealdisqu) 1§ uojjejussaid @ep (L) - 2F9°LT°A 11-18dD)

{0T0Z ‘uosuaqoy) i8S (%) (1sd) aunssaud (353) uoi3dud (Js53) @ouejsisal dif
8T 91 #T- 2T OT & & % T & 9 14 4 [’} 5 1} 5= 0T~ 8 9 14 [4 a0 008 00k 00T 0
B a0 4 % L.ox F 2 1 s 4 31 r 0103 " 1 [] 2 1 1 L L o M L i 1 o Ot L [ ] L 1 A 1 i o 1 1 " . N | . v

e = Il

UES cw% :Jw E

iqs iaebEusp iR sk o g
ues/Ayjis g pueg e e
ues P pues Hig

Ues Afe S pULR

ues s 2 pues f
Pues 0e

ues s g pues ;

ues g pues &ig

uesAps § pues |
UES 2 pUES ~5¢
:wmu__w 2 _ue.mm S

ues g pues s

uesAps g B
cawﬁ_wcm%% St
ues A)jIs ¢ puesg

uesAis g pueg
pueg

ues s ¥ pueg
pueg
uesAys g pueg
pues 0t
pueg
ues s g pues

uesApe ¥ puesg — S
T
ues g pues g
ujeiB suy sagisusg —it .
adA) inojAeyag j10s i okl uoldug n aunssaad aiod WoIIOLY IADIS 3b ssuegsisar suo)

“[oE

[~ST

(1) mdaq
() yydaq
() Iidaa
(1) wdeg
(1) wadeqg

st wl

ot

o

JeHaA tadAl BuD ¥D ‘ewo] wiW 9Ay Ryydiepeiiyd 8666 :MORWOOT
S10zZ/ze/6 208q Y T8'9€ pdap [BoL DU ‘Auediie) g JOpIRH sewoyl  1afaid

T-1d) *1d) Wo'BUNSTROLEY" MMM
wooSugsoy@yau m
0LZL-T06-FTL
Bupeaujbug pue funsa) aoyay

L
A



whrsioi\ERa IA\EE] 13d\ST-5RWOTRIWIBpIRHSELIOL |\ By Paftug
WY T0:£S:0T ‘§T02/ve/6 iuo pejea.n Joday - aiemyos uopelaldisqu) g Uopejuesaud eep Nid) - 79'9'L'T°A 11-19dD

0
(oT0Z ‘uosuagow) 189S (%) M (I1sd) sunssaud {4s3) uojzoud (453) eaueISIS™ diL
ST 9T T ZI OT 8 9 # T O 8 9 ¥ z 0 0 5- o1- 9 ¥ z 0 Qe 009 G0 002 0
.....‘._._._...-.:1 F IS WS T I T S o A 1 A L1 o ...pb.#ﬂ# rf._._. o
-ce -5¢ ! - g i g : -5¢
=08 [0 ‘FoE [~0E 08
5T sz 57 ST 57
& B & m B
=] -1 - o o
pueg -0r o 0z 5 ot S oz T -z S
- ~ ~ L) -
2 =2 =z Z2 =2
U
Dues f1s g w:nm :
>u:nm g pues ..ﬂ__w - ] El ) ST . ST i El
Apuss g pues Ay _
pues Ajjis g pueg ]
. ~aT 0T ] L -0T ot
ue: Ues 3
:mw vwd vﬁ _m
ues g pues g |
ues Qjis 3 pueg " g -5 -5 il
uesAs g pueg
Ues TREEAE :
uleib sug aapisuag ol X
U u 0 0
ad4A] snowaeyag pos onel uoioLld n sanssaid atod UOIOLY DADS 3b aoue3sisal suo)
¥oLeA adAL suoy V) ‘ewo BAlW 9AY BIYdIPPULYd 8666 IUOpEOO]
ST0Z/2z/6 -=Rq 'Y 06°7T dap |20 L =ur ‘Auedigos w JopiEl SRlUOY )  H3afold
Z-1d) F1d4) WO GUNSSISoURY MMM
wod BunsBaLY BUYdU m
0/2£-106-bTL P
Buuyasujfiug pue Gugsa) aoyey g



10>°530ld\E1Rd 0K\EIBG 1BdD\GT-GRILD BN WRpIeHSeWOYL\:D By 1afinig
¥ WY $2:95:0T ‘STOT/YZ/6 :uo peaD Hodoy - slemyos uopesaldequ) g UoReIUasaId e1ep NUdD - 24'9°LT'A L1-19dD

(o10Z ‘vosyaqoy) 185 (%) M (1sd) aunssaid (451) voljou4 (Js3) @2ueisisad dii

') 8 3 + 2 ] S 0 5= 01- 9 ¥ Z 1] Q08 009 oo 114 o
W omor ey y g0 e B a B all o5 e i puin, uin, N ey sl o

ues s g pueg
ues g pues NS

ues Qs g pueg S—
:@%% _wu_u_a_._.ﬂm S S8 . Fs€
ues @ﬁm%m_ﬂm

ues § pues S

pueg
pues s g puss = - T o Foe
pues Aiis ¢ pueg ‘

pueg
Apues g pues g
AejoAaps 3 Awg _.ﬂ sz 52
Aap A 2 B0 .

Apues g pues fyis

Tse [~SE

FoE [-oe

~SC ST

oz 0T 0T

pues Ajis g pueg -0z

{14) mdag
(4) ypdag
) lidaa
(1) wdag
(1) wadag

pueg
ST Kl ST ST
bues Ajjs 7 puesg :

pues Qs 9 pues
puesfjis g pueg
pues s ¢ w% .

Ll -0t Ls 0T

puss Ajis § pueg

pues Ajjjs 3 pueg A ”
Pues fjs g pusg s -5 ” E

il

Abues g pues QS

uelb gy aagjsuag |.14L.=
adiy noiaeyeg plos oed uoioud h h amnssaid asod UOIIOLY DADDYS ) ib sduesisad alo) )

TP TR, V) ‘eLio] BIW AV RIYAPPeIIYd 8666 SUOREC]
S102/22/6 *3RQ ‘Y 95°6€ “dap [RI0L U1 ‘Auedwo) ¥ JOpieH sewoy]  defoid

€-1dD AdD LoD  BURSAQ0L2Y MMM
WO BURSIA0YSBLRU C|
0£2L-TO6FTL ..—.
Bupesubug pue Bupse] soyel v—




1" SIok\Eea KNG LBAONS T-ERWOTRIpHEpIRHSEWOL ;D) (3 Al
WY 95:S5:0T “STOZ/F2/6 SU0 PRiean Hodsy - 34eMy0s uopeadiaiy) ' uopeuesaud €3ep NUdd - 2¢'9°L 1A 11-13dD

0
{oTozZ ‘vosuaqoy) 1as (%) 2 (1sd) sunssaud (451) uoiiop4 {453) eouelsisau d L
8T 9T #T TI OT 8 9 ® T O ] w w w [1} S H._ mr. o1- 8 m ...ﬁ m | 008 omﬁ e..# cm_ﬂ 0
-n-n-.-._.-_..g 1 i L L L A L it . i 1 ' o L -._ 1 o
-5 -G£ ~5¢ S ~5E
-0¢ ~o¢ -oc -oE -o¢
52 -5z -5z -5z -5t
g g g g g
Aues oz S e 5 roz 5 oz 5 -0z S
L L) L) ~ ~
pues A)jis ¢ pueg p= ) ,.H\ .2 .m 2
pueg
puesQjs 3 pueg st st st 51 gt
pueg "
pueg
.'m.n ~OT 0T ot (=0T
pues Qus 'y puesg
Apues g pues g e *[s =5 S
puesAis g pueg _
Ju.._wwﬁucmmb:m =T
= 0 0 0 )
add] inotacijeg oS opel UoIOMA n aunssaid alogd uoIOLY BASD|S 0 ab eouejsisal auo) 0
HAMRA FadAL 2U0D ¥ ‘00T RIHA PAY RYdRPRIIUd 8666 FUOHROT
ST0Z/2z/6 e 'Y €722 \pdep =o)L =u7 ‘Auediuo) g Jepsel seluoyl  2pofold
S-1d) *14D LWOS"BURSIROU" MMM
wodBugsareoyNBYIY m
0LZL-T06-HTL .—.

BupseeujBug pue Supss] soyay

A



110\ BRA 0K\EIEQ 15d\ST-6RWO TR WSAIRHSEWOL YD) 2]y 1Pafold
WY 92:55:07 ‘STOTAT/6 :uo pagesss JHodoy - SJemyos uoperRidiqu) '3 uop@ussasd e3P NUD - Z¢'9°2L'T°A 111340

0
(oTOZ ‘vosuaqoy) 195 (%) N (1sd) aunssaud (4s3) uoiou4 (Js31) asueisisad dii
8T 9T #T ZT OT 98 % ¢ ¥ O 9 4 [4 [ 5- 01 8 9 ¥ [4 0 nog 009 ooy 002 )
.-—.-.-.-.-.-.-.U@ [ N S IS o L L i 1 i o [N T TR TR S N 1 o a1« 0 ¢ 1 3 ot
e TS rse -S€ B3
~0g B -os U —og
52 ~5Z 3 5T sz
‘pUEs A5 2 g g g 8
pueg oz S T o 0T S oz & -0z 5
N e 2 E 2 £ 2
pues s 9 Wﬁm
Fst : st . ot 51 . 51
pues Aljis § pueg
>v_._mm 9 pies a.—_m ~0T 0T 0T FOT [~0T
pues AYis 3 pues
Apuss g pues s - - - - s
pues Ajjs g pues ,
Apues 3 pues g
adii anolaeyag |1os onel uonNlig n aunssald ai0d . UOIIOLL) DADIS ) 1b souegsisad auo)
AeURA 1RdAL aua) VD ‘ewo] willd @AY BHIIRPRIIYd B666 UORR]
5§102/zzf6 :30ed *Y 08°22 :\idap [[ol 2uT ‘Auedine) § JepmH sewoyl  oofold
£=1dD 1dD WICO"BLISIo0A3" MMM
worBunsIBoySY By m
OLZL-T06-HTL i |
Gupseujbug pue Bunsol aoyay v~



WSI0KNER] I0K\EIRG LB NGY-6RWD TR N SARHSELoY LY. Bl Frafg
WV 2 5:0T “ST0Z/+2/6 U0 PaIea.D Moday - uemyos uopeaudiag) g uopRuaseld ©ep LD - 74'9°LTA A-13dD

0
(0T0Z ‘uosuaqoy) 18S (%) M (1sd) aunssaid (453) woj3oud (4s3) 2auersisad diL
8t 9T #1 ZI Of 8 9 ¥ T 9 t [4 0 §- o1- 8 9 1 4 Z 0 Qo (0% Q0 00F 0
PR MR OO MR ST SOV S B T M I S S S oF TR L [ ot PERNES T SR B S S ot PR R JU S o
e D ag , -sg -5¢
-oe ~0E ‘froe -os Tos
=T ST =5z 4 52
& ® & & 5
- - b~ ° o
-z 5 -0z o -0z S -0z S -0z 5
2 2 £ 2 £l
pueg
bues Aj|s g pusg - - e  J -
puesAlis ¢ pues .
ucwww__m ue
bues Allls $ pue
bues .meuwm .
ot ot ) Fot -0t -oT
pues Q)is  pueg
uesfius p pue _
ues wm ue | "
ues @ pues AjiS g -5 5 -5 -5 g
ues s g pueg .
ues g puesAug
ues 3 pues 4jIg
Az Afjs 3 Aef0 = - . i .
adi) snoiaeyag oS onel uoljoug n aunssaid alod UOIIDLY SADIS 1b asuesisal suo)
¥HRIA tedAL ouo) V0 ‘swo enw eay RIUdiepE]|yd B666 SUOREI0T)
ST0Z/Zz/6 =:eq ‘Y /£°L1 dep 2oL wour ‘Auediucy § JOpIBH SBWOWL  30afold
8-1dD :LdD WY BUNSIIB0U|" MMM

m,_.
A

woo fugsagpoy®yYIH
0L2L-TO6PTL
Bupasujbug pue Supsa) aoysy



1,000

Cone resistance, qo/pa

Kehor Testing and Engineering
14-%1-7270

wvw Jehoetesting com

0.1 1 10
Friction Ratio, Rf (%)

SBY legend
. 1. Sershive fine grained [ 4. Clayey sitto sty ciy ] 7. Gravely xand to sand

2. Organk material 5, Siky sared to sandy sit 8. Very oiff sand v clayey sand
[ 3.Cley 10 sy day . Clesn sand to siky ssnd ] 9, Veery stff fine gratned



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

Appendix C

Soil Physical Properties Testing Laboratory Reports

Thomas Harder & Co. .
Groundwater Consulting *




APTS

Ituv:lolitt. Ine.

8100 Secura Way = Santa Fe Springs, CA 80670
Telephone (562) 347-2500 « Fax (562} 807-3610

November 2, 2015

Benjamin Lewis

Thomas Harder & Co.

1260 N. Hancock St., Suite 109
Anaheim, CA 92807

Re: PTS File No: 45627
Physical Properties Data
East Declez

Dear Mr. Lewis:

Please find enclosed report for Physical Properties analyses conducted upon samples received
from your East Declez project. All analyses were performed by applicable ASTM, EPA, or API
methodologtes. The samples are currently in storage and will be retained for thirty days past
completion of testing at no charge. Please note that the samples will be disposed of at that time.
You may contact me regarding storage, disposal, or return of the samples.

PTS Laboratories Inc. appreciates the opportunity to be of service. If you have any questions or
require additional information, please contact Morgan Richards at (562) 347-2509.

Sincerely,
PTS Laboratories, inc.

Michael Mark Brady, P.G.
Laboratory Director

Encl.

Page 1of @



6Jo Z ebed

TYLLNIAIINOD LNAITD

9ZZ0rL0Z 07 Aoy

*Adde pinom 3800 [eUCHPPY "%18s} Buysn o} Joyd pejsenbes eq sl SlAEUE JolaWolpAH Aue eaels Aid (ZZra MASY
‘fsolog 10, sepnjpu; Asolod eapoels
"gApp ssauisng O} I Sisk[eue Diseq Jo) 1V RIepUE)S

IUOQEDYPUBP] JURUWEILOD

SuoN umibo.d ys8) Liojeioqe]
[4 4 z 9 9 007% 83100 9 SIVIOL

X X 050 S-Sy g-He

X X 0§°0 §'9.9.1 S-Ha

X X X X X 050 A YA YA 85-He

X X X X X (1] [k alk av-Hd

X X 050 £6-62S -Hd

X X 05’0 §'95-95 £€-Hd
§10LSLOZ :peAladey aed|

(TS 5L HeA AT o5 | ZHoH .5 L MOA “sBhid
I | ZTPa NLSY OFddl idV SZPa W1SY ‘POl GOLE Vd3/0Fdl |dY 0016 VdA/0FdH IdY ¥ ]
sjsXjeuy Aysueq Aysosod Ayaponpuo) Aagonpuod Kanodey ipdeg al 34oed
ezjs ups yjng Xig SARSOLT SNEIpAH Juiphy oy
CLOLSLOZ - WYNDO0Ud 1S3L

‘0D g JopJieH sewoy| Jusl) YiN :aquinp joofold
LZ9S¥ ‘ON 9ld Sl1d zajoa( }seg Bwien joeifoid

seloeloqe] § I.d



PTS File No: 45627
Client: Thomas Harder & Co.
Report Date: 11/02/15

PTS Laboratories

PHYSICAL PROPERTIES DATA - DRAINAGE (EFFECTIVE) POROSITY

Project Name: East Declez
Project No: N/A
APIRP 40/
METHODS: ASTM D2216 _ APIRPA0 _ Mod. ASTM D425  Mod. ASTM D425
SAMPLE MOISTURE | DENSITY TOTAL EFFECTIVE
SAMPLE DEPTH, | ORIENTATION | ANALYSIS | CONTENT, BULK, POROSITY (2), FOROSITY,
ID. ft. {1 DATE % weight glee %Vb A
BH-4B 213 v 20151026 -- 1.77 20.9 18,7
BH-5B 213 A 20151026 =t 1.83 20.0 166

{1} Sample Orientation: H = hetizental; V = vertical; R = remold
{2) Tota! Porosity = all interconnected pore channels,
Vb = Bulk Volume, e¢c; ND = Not Detected

Page 3cof @



PTS File No:
Client:
Report Date:

45627
Thomas Harder & Co,
11/02/15

PTS Laboratories

PHYSICAL PROPERTIES DATA - HYDRAULIC CONDUCTIVITY
{Msthadology: API RP 40; EPA 8100)

Project Name: East Declez
Project No: N/A
75 POl CONFINING STRESS
EFFECTIVE INTRINSIC
SAMPLE PERMEABILITY HYDRAULIC PERMEABILITY
SAMPLE DEPTH, | ORIENTATION | ANALYSIS TO WATER (2,3), CONDUCTIVITY (3), TO WATER (3),
ID. ft. {1) DATE millidarcy cm/s cm*
BH-3 56.3 Y 20151027 2.63 2.66E-06 2.59E-11
BH-4 52.8 v 20151027 207 2.10E-06 2,06E-11
BH-4B 21.3 A" 20151027 78.7 7.75E-05 7.67E-10
BH-5B 21.3 Vv 20151027 78.6 7.98E-05 7.75E-10
BH-5 76.3 Y 20151027 3.91 4.02E-06 3.86E-11
BH-6 448 Y 20151028 2.99 3.01E-08 2.95E-11

{1) Sample Orientation: H = horizontal; V = vertical, R = remold
(2) Effective (Native) = With as-received pore fluids in place.

(3} Permeability to water and hydraulic conductivity measured at saturated conditions.

Water = filtered Laboratory Fresh {tap) or Site water.

Page 4 of 9




PTS File No:
Client:
Report Date:

45627
Thomas Harder & Co.
11/02/15

(Methodology. APl RP 40; EPA 9100)

PTS Laboratories

PHYSICAL PROPERTIES DATA - HYDRAULIC CONDUCTIVITY

Project Name: East Declez
Project No: N/A
Z8 PSI CONFINING STRESS
EFFECTIVE i INTRINSIC
SAMPLE PERMEABILITY HYDRAULIC PERMEABILITY
SAMPLE DEPTH, | ORIENTATION | ANALYSIS TO WATER (2,3), CONDUCTIVITY (3), TO WATER (3),
ID. ft. (1} DATE millidarcy crm/s cm’
BH-3 56.45 H 20151028 3.01 3.07E-06 2.98E-11
BH-4 52.85 H 20151028 240 2.43E-06 2.37E-11
BH-4B 2145 H 20151028 81.8 8.35E-05 8.07E-10
BH-5B 21.45 H 20151028 464 4,70E-04 4,58E-08
BH-5 76.45 H 20151028 427 4.29E-06 4.21E-11
BH-6 4495 H 20151028 571 5.78E-06 5.64E-11

(1) Sample Qrientation; H = horizonial; V = vertical; R = remold
(2} Effactive {Native) = With as-received pore fluids in place.

(3) Permeability to water and hydraulic conductivity measured at saturated conditions.

Water = filtered Laboratary Fresh (lap) or Site water.

Page 5 0of 9




ysel | woi) uesiy uo psseg (1)

6 jo g ebed
L2 G671 9162 1522 1292 106°L pues esieo) 1'1e as-Hg
vL'g S8l £L1E ree 1602 9zs'L pues 8sJeo) (¥4 gav-Hd
aul{ | wnipsiy | esiec) wiw (1) "M ‘yidaq al sidweg
Aepoplis az1g pueg jorelny | ‘azig ulels) | INLSV/SISN
uaatad M ‘uonnguIsIq 9Z1S SPIHEd uelpajy| uonduasag
8Z|5 ulelo) ueap

VIN ‘ON 10droud
Zajoe(] ised JWVN L03rodd

{WZzZPQ WLISY ADOTOAOHLIW)
AYGYIIAINS 3ZIS 312114vd

1295t ‘ON9lid S1d
‘00 % IopJeH Sewoy] *oU| ‘sauojeioqe mr.—.._m



PTS Laboratories, Inc.

Particle Size Analysis - ASTM DA22M

Client: Thomas Harder & Co. PTS Fille No: 45627
Project: East Declez Sample ID: BH-4B
Project No: N/A Depth, ft: 211
. Sand .
Gravel woarse ] medmm ] Tne Silt/Clay
14 100
+ 90
12 4
1 80
;E. 10 + 1 70 BE
g {80 E
g °] : 2
e 1 50
g o | s {40 é
41 + 30 §
" - 20
2 - -
=i “I [ 18
0 +— , 0
o SO A =
g 5 3 R 8 ¢ ¢ 8 8 8 8 R 8§ %
U.S. Sample Eumulative'v'veight Percent groatar than
Opening Phi of Sleve Weight Weight, Weight, Weight Phi Particle Size
Inches | Millimeters| Screen No. grams percent percent percent Value Inches [Millimeters
0.9844 25.002 -4.64 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 5 -4.01 0.6332 16.082
04922 12.501 -3.64 12 15,54 7.85 7.85 10 -3.24 0.3727 9.466
0.3740 9.500 -3.25 8 4.15 2.10 9.895 16 -2.62 0.2412 6.127
0.2500 6.351 -2.67 1/4 10.57 5.34 15.29 25 -2.05 0.1633 4.147
0.1873 4.757 -2.25 4 11.22 5.687 2087 40 1.21 0.08090 2,300
0.1324 3.364 -1.75 6 20.15 10.18 a5 50 -0.81 0.0601 1.526
0.0787 2.000 -1.00 10 24.21 12.24 43.39 €0 0.11 0.0364 0.925
0.0557 1.414 -0.50 14 16.76 B8.47 51.86 75 1.24 0.0167 0.423
0.0384 1.000 0.00 18 13.15 6.65 58.50 84 1.99 0.0089 0.251
0.0278 0.707 0.50 25 13.16 6.65 65,18 a0 2.83 0.0055 0.140
0.0197 0.500 1.00 35 13.74 5.84 72.10 85 411 0.0023 0.058
0.0166 0.420 1.25 40 5.97 3.0z 75.12
U.0T3Y U354 T50 a5 6.63 3.35 7847 |
0.0098 0.250 2,00 60 11.12 5.62 84.09
0.0070 0.177 2.50 80 7.53 3.81 87.89
0.0049 0.125 3.00 120 6.24 3.15 91.05
0.0029 0.074 3.75 200 5.57 282 93.86
0.0021 0.053 425 270 3.10 157 95.43
0.0016 0.037 4.75 400 2.69 1.36 96.7
FAN 8.35 321 700,00
Sorting 3.130 2.304 2.382
Skewness 0.868 0.12¢ 0.146
iKurtosis 0.200 0.762 1.011
Grain Size Description Coarse sand
I:-)escrlptlon etaine Welght
on SIFy_g # Eﬁﬁ?‘
] Gravel .
Coarse Sand 10 2242
Medium Sand 40 31.73
Fine Sand 200 1 _8.75
p— ‘ SiltiClay <20u 6.14
TOTALS 197.85 100.00 100.00 Total 100

© PTS Laboratories, Inc.

Phone: (562) 807-3607

Fax: {562) 807-3610

Page 7 of @



PTS Laboratories, Inc. Particle Size Analysis - ASTM D422M
Client: Thomas Harder & Co. PTS Flle No: 45627
Project: East Declez Sample ID: BH-5B
Project No: N/A Depth, fi: 211
Sand :
Grawel coarse | medium i fine SiSlay
14 : 100
" {90
12 +
' i + 80
e 107 ; 170 &
g — ¥+ 60 g
= g+ £
g =il 1 50
6+ ’ :
% J | 40 é
o 41l | 1 ap g
= L 20
21
| L 10
Lo
0 0
- 8§ g g v e o ¥ e g 8B Q ¥ 8B 8 R B R 8 Z
Sieve Size -
U.s. Sample [Incrementalf Cumulative] "Cumulative Weight I-’ercent greater than
Opening Phi of Sieve Weight Weight, Weight, Weight Phi Particle Slze
Inches | Millimeters| Screen No. grams percent percent percent Value Inches |Illlllmehors
0.9844 25.002 -4.64 1 000 0.0 0.00 5 -3.60 0.4789 12.164
0.4922 12.501 -3.64 12 9,12 4.45 445 10 -3.24 0.3731 9478
0.3740 9.500 -3.25 3/8 11.24 5.49 9.94 16 -2.89 0.2025 7.430
0.2500 6.351 -2.67 1/4 20.33 9,093 19.87 25 -2.33 0.1983 5.037
0.1873 4.757 -2.25 4 13.11 6.40 26.27 40 -1.53 0.1137 2.887
L1324 3.364 1.7 20.64 10.08 36.35 50 0.93 0.0748 1.901
00787 . 2000 -1.00 10 2546 12.43 48.78 60 -0.28 0.0479 1.216
0.0557 1414 -0.50 14 17.11 835 5713 75 0.94 0.0206 0.522
0.0354 1.000 0.00 18 13.47 8.58 63.71 84 187 0.0101 0.256
0.0278 0.707 0.50 25 12.86 8.28 60.99 a0 298 0.0050 0.127
0.0197 0.500 1.00 35 11.73 5.73 78.71 85 4.40 0.001 0.047
0.0166 0.420 1.25 40 4.56 2.23 77.94
0.0T39 0354 1.50 D 484 2.36 8030 Trask ] Inman ] Folk-Ward |
0.0008 0.250 2.00 60 8.10 3.95 84.26 .83 "0.53 083 |
0.0070 0177 2.50 80 6.19 3.02 §7.28 0.0748 0.0748 0.0748
0.0048 0.125 3.00 120 5.78 2.82 90.10 1.901 1.901 1.901
0.0029 0.074 3.75 200 5.71 2.79 92.89
0.0021 0.053 425 270 3.38 1,85 94.54 -1.47 -0.46 -0.62
0.0015 0.037 4.75 400 3.07 1.50 96.04 | 0.1084 0.0543 0.0604
PAN 811 3.56 T00.00 2.780 1.378 1.534
Sorting 3.106 2.430 2.428
Skewness 0.853 0.191 0.261
Kurtosis 0.247 0.647 1.004
Grain Size Eescription Coarse sand
. (ASTM-USCS Scals) {based on Mean from Trask)
. Descrlption Retalned Welght
on §IFve # Pﬁﬁ?‘
jGrawel -
Coarse Sand 10 22.51
Medium Sand 40 29.16
Fine Sand 200 14.95
Sit/Clay a2ty LR
TOTALS 204.81 100.00 100.00 Total 100
C PTS Laboratories, Inc. Phone: (562) 807-3607 Fax: (562) 807-3610

Page 8 of 9



0S11-822 (295) xed - 0052-L¥E (295} auoyd - 02906 VO 'SDULIOS 84 BJUBG - ABM BINISS 0018 - U] SSLURIOYE | K1d

anil

4lvd

L

3lvg

oo i
JNIL

Wi Q0L
INLL

..V__.\l.m_\ﬂg

alva

Sifsi &
el

ANVANOD

ANYENOO

Caw7 54
ANVANOD

QD 3 ey spward

ANVINDD

A8 G3NI30TH ¥

A gIHSINONNIH B

— P

-

rd

e

9-hg 4

S-Kd

§.5 - hg

[k -wg

~

h-t3

g-ha

-

SINIWINCD

AT

A S.id

‘ON 310ND s1d
MWEEEE. . LoviNI
:BI03HDY ALIHDFIN! INdNYS

‘HIHIO

_f TYWHON [ SHNOH 2L
(1 SAvAS [] SHNOH¥E

NIL ONNOHVNENL

TOWHOYL ALTIEON LOMOE S0

ABYHOV] NOISNH LN HOJYA
8IEPQ WLSY 'SLINF BYIEYI1LIY

HOVIE-ATT VM 1001

WEBYF J2 82p0 W1SY ‘NOLLNAIKLSIA T218 NIVHED
¥R05( 10 OV IdW/0018YdT ‘ALIALLINONGD ONNYHAAH

OrdY IdY ALTIEVIWETD WiV

2B620 LSV J0 OvdH [dY (AHO) ALSNSO M INg
OV LHOJSNYHL HOdYA

AHAYHBO10Hd JHOO "D0NCL0Hd

¥580 WISY 'ALAVHD JI410348
WSEFa IWLSY ‘SAILDS--E ALIBOKOd
O3k B 1YM 03T HiY IVLOL ALISOHOd

TOVHOVA S31LHIJdOH] diNd

FOWIOVE ALIHY TGO
FOVHOV BIiLHId0OHd QOUNLDIOL

FOWHOVd SNOLIVENIVE GINH 50|

FOVHIYA ALIALLONANDD ONMNYHOAH

FOVHOVd SALHIL0Hd TOS

14 ‘H1d3d aniL | 31va

al IdWYS

SHNLYNDIS HITdNYS

STTdNYS JO HIEWMN | s | e | ] ] ~—

NOILVOO1 3US

HIGWNN Xy

HIENNN LOAMCHd

Dy

a

stERe-bitit-hlk
NN 3NOHd

&2 7790 1803
YN LOIrOHd

W azsprovreieit e 01?1

[Ewe

a2y {(V2g
HIOYNYIN LOSrOHd

8Tk

aqoodz 2§ ~ ALD

L p7  WHyV | I A00dcowH (Y 0T

S534aav

#0d )

1S3aN0D3H SISKTVYNY

3&&2@ a~f UAGuwY CYIWOHL

ANVANOD

40 3Ovd

ayo93H AAOLSND 40 NIVHO

‘ou] ‘seuojeloqe’ SLd



EPTS

Labbratories, Ine.

8100 Secura Way + Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670
Telephone {562) 347-2500 « Fax (562) 807-3610

November 23, 2015

Benjamin Lewis

Thomas Harder & Co.

1260 N. Hancock St., Suite 109
Anaheim, CA 82807

Re: PTS File No: 45627
Physical Properties Data — selected test reruns
East Declez

Dear Mr. Lewis:

Please find enclosed report for Physical Properties analyses conducted upon samples received
from your East Declez project. This report covers the retesting made at your request on samples
BH-4B and BH-5B; hydraulic conductivity was remeasured on the two samples and total porosity
was measured using Helium porosimetry via Boyle's Law principle of gas expansion.

PTS Laboratories Inc. appreciates the opportunity to be of service. If you have any questions or
require additional information, please contact Morgan Richards at (562) 347-2509.

Sincerely,
PTS Laboratories, Inc.

\
Michael Mark Brady, P.G.
Laboratory Director

Encl.

Page 1 of 4



PTS Laboratories

PTS File No: 45627
Client: Thomas Harder & Co.
Report Date: 11/23M15
PHYSICAL PROPERTIES DATA
Project Name: East Declez
Project No: N/A
APIRF 40 !
METHODS: _ASTM D2216 APIRP 40 APIRP4D
SAMPLE MOISTURE DENSITY POROSITY, %Vb (2
SAMPLE DEPTH, | ORIENTATION | CONTENT, [DRYBULK,(] GRAIN, TOTAL | AIRFILLED | WATER-FILLED
ID. it (1) % weight glee glec
BH-4B 21.30 v 28 1.77 268 34.1 254 4.7
BH-5B 21.30 v 29 1.83 269 32,0 26.8 5.2
BH-4B 2145 H 21 1.88 2.60 26.3 221 4.1
BH-5B 2145 H 18 1.83 270 322 289 33

Total Porosity by Helium Porosimetry (Boyle's Law).

(1) Sample Orientation: H = harizental; V = vertical; R = remold
(2) Total Porosity = all interconnected pore channels; Air Filled = pore channels not occupied by pore fluids.
Vb = Bulk Volume, cc; - - = Analysis not requested.

Page 2 of 4



PTS File No;
Client;
Report Date:

45627

Thomas Harder & Co.

11/23/115

PT'S Laboratories

PHYSICAL PROPERTIES DATA - HYDRAULIC CONDUCTIVITY
(Msthodolagy: AP RP 40; EPA $100)

Project Name: East Declez
Project No: N/A
75 FSl CONFINING STRESS
EFFECTIVE INTRINSIC
SAMPLE PERMEABILITY HYDRAULIC PERMEABILITY
SAMPLE DEPTH, | ORIENTATION | ANALYSIS TO WATER (2,3}, CONDUCTIVITY (3), TO WATER (3),
ID. t, ) DATE millidarcy em/s em*
Remeasure Hydraulic Conductivity using same sample.
BH-4B8 213 A 20151118 177 1.76E-04 1.74E-09
Remeasure Hydraulle Conductivity using same sample.
BH-5B 21.3 v 20151118 153 1.54E-04 1.51E-D9

Note: vertical samples were dried during-initial testing phase. Samples were resaturated with water and hydraulic conductivity measured.

(1} Sample Orientation: K = horizontal; V = vertical; R = remold
(2} Effective (Native} = With as-received pore fluids in place.

(3} Permeability to water and hydraulic conductivity measured at saturated conditions,

Water = filtered Laboratory Fresh (tap) or Site water.

Page 3 of4



PTS File No: 45627
Client: Thomas Harder & Co.
Report Date: 11/23M15

PT'S Laboratories

PHYSICAL PROPERTIES DATA - HYDRAULIC CONDUCTIVITY
{Methadofagy: AP RP 40; EPA 8100)

Project Name: East Declez
Project No: N/A
25 P ol CONFINING STRESS
. EFFECTIVE INTRINSIC
SAMPLE PERMEABILITY HYDRAULIC PERMEABILITY
SAMPLE DEPTH, | ORIENTATION | ANALYSIS TO WATER (2,3), CONDUCTMITY (3}, TO WATER (3),
iD. ft. {1} DATE _Mmillidarcy cmis om*
Remeasure Hydraulic Conduetivity using same sample.
BH-4B 21.45 H 20151118 §5.0 5.43E-05 5.42E-10
Remeasure Hydraulic Conductivity using same sample.
BH-5B 21.45 H 20151118 4200 4.13E-03 4.15E-08

(1) Sample Orentation: H = horizontal; V = vertical; R = remold
(2) Effective (Native} = With as-received pore fluids in place.

(3) Permeability to water and hydraulic conductivity measured at saturated conditions.

Water = filtered Laboratory Fresh (lap) or Site water,

Page 4 of 4



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site

5-Feb-16

Appendix D

Borehole Lithologic Logs

Thomas Harder & Co.

Groundwater Consulling




Lithologic Log

Client: IEUA Drilling Contractor: J & H Drilling Co., Inc.
Borehole/ Well No: BH-3 Drilling Method:  Holiow Stem Auger
Project Number: 15-010-102 Borehole Diameter: 8 inches
Project: East Declez Location of boring/ Well (State Plane, NAD 83):
Start Date: 1-Oct-15 X: 6183762 (approximate)
Finish Date: 2-Oct-15 Y: 2321637 (approximate)
' ic| Sample | g)
Depth |Graphic oW | Color ipti
P Log |Recovery| counts Sample Description
Percent)
100 75YRE/M4 | SILTY SAND: Dry. Fine-grained sand, trace medium-grained sand and
B'-'Qm coarse-grained sand, less than 5 parcent gravel up to 20 mm; subrounded; 20-30
TOWTY percent silt.
20 75YRB/M4 | Trace gravel up to 55 mm.
Light
Brown
40 25,50 | 7.6 YRE/2 | WELL-GRADED SAND WITH SILT AND GRAVEL: Dry. Fine-grained sand, 20-30
{6-Inch) Pg'f':;h percent gravel up to 20 mm; rounded; 10-15 percent silt.
20 75 YRG5/ | SILTY SAND WITH GRAVEL: Dry. Fine-grained sand, with medium-graired sand,
Brown trace-coarse gralned sand, 10-15 percent gravel up to 25 mm; subrounded to
rounded; 15-20 percant siit.
17,23,
37
40 75 YRER | POORLY GRADED SAND: Moist. Medium-grained sand, with fine-grained sand,
B'-fght some coarse-grained sand, less than 5 percent gravel up to
Town 10 mm, 5-10 percent slit; subrounded to rounded; 5-10 parcent sllt.
Thomas Harder & Co. *
Groundwater Consulting

Page 1of 4




[Borenole/ Well No.: BH-3

Borehole Lithologic Log |[cien: IEUA

Project No.: 156-010-102
Depth | Graphid Sample | Blow | ¢q0r Sample Description
P Log | Recovery ) Counts P P
{Percent)
10 TEYRS5B | WELL-GRADED SAND WITH SILT: Moist. Medium-grained sand, with fine-grained
Brown sand, some coarse-grained sand, less than 5 percent gravel up o 50 mm; rounded;
10-15 percent silt.
22,27,
35
a0 10 YR 51 | SILT: Molst, very soft consistency. Less than 5 percent fine-gralned sand. Siit: low
50 10vrere [\ dry strength, rapid ditatency, medium toughness, medium plasticity.
Graylsh
Bm{m SILTY SAND WITH GRAVEL: Moist. Fine-grained sand, with medium-grained sand,
trace-coarse grained sand, 15-20 percent gravel up to 56 mm; subrounded to
50 10 YR 5/4 [\ rounded; 20-30 percent silt.
Yollowish
Brawn SILT: Molst, firm consistency. Trace fine-grained sand. Silt: no dry strength, rapid
dllatency, madium toughness, medium plasticity.
60 42,54 | 75YRS8/3 | SILTY SAND WITH GRAVEL: Moist, weakly cemented. Medium-grained sand, with
{6-inch) |  Light finegrained sand, some coarse-grained sand, 10-15 percent gravel up to 20 mm;
Brown subrounded to rounded; 15-20 percent silt.
30 1 YR6E/M4 { POORLY-GRADED SAND: Moist,. Medium-grained sand, with coarse-grained saﬁd.
Ye!ﬁ'él";}sh trace fine-grained sand, 5-10 percent gravel up to 10 mm; subrounded to rounded;
Er 5-10 percent silt.
100 10YR56 | CLAYEY SAND/SANDY CLAY: Wet, hard consistency. 50 percant very fine-grained
18,23, | Yellowish | gand, 50 parcent clay. Clay: high dry strength, slow dilatency, low toughness, high
35 | Brown lasticity
35 p .
40 75YR4/M4 | LEAN CLAY: Wet, hard consistency. 80-90 percent clay, 10-20 percent
100 Brown medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, some fine-grained sand. Clay: high
—_— dry strength, slow dilatency, medium toughness, medium plasticlty.
20 FOR | 75YR4/4 § | EAN CLAY WITH SAND: Wet, hard conslstency. 75-85 percent clay, 15-25 percent
LAB Brown medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained-sand, some fine-grained sand, iess than
(56-56.5) § percent gravel up to 30 mm, subangular to anguiar. Clay: high dry strength, slow

Thomas Harder & Co.

Groundwater Consulting

i

Page 2 of 4




Borehole/ Well No.: BH-3

Borehole Lithologic Log |[cien: EUA

Project No.: 15-010-102

Depth Graphiqd Sample | Blow Color

Llog | Recovery | Coun
(Percent)

Sample Description

\dilatency, medium toughness, medium plasticity.
80 7.5YR4/4 } | EAN CLAY WITH SAND: Wet, hard consistency. 75-85 percent clay, 15-25 percent
Brown medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, some fine-grained sand, less than
5 percent gravel up to 48 mm; subangular to anguiar. Clay: high dry strength, slow
dilatency, medium toughness, medium plasticity.
Trace gravel up to 30 mm.
ey
10
20 75 YR 44 | POORLY GRADED SAND WITH CLAY AND GRAVEL (Weathered Bedrock?): Wet,
Brown weakly cemented, granitic. Medium-grained sand, with coarse-grained sand, some
fine-grained sand, 20 percent gravel up to 25 mm; subangular to angular; 10-15
percent clay.
10 75 YR58 | WELL-GRADED GRAVEL WITH SAND {Weathered Bedrock?): Wet, strongly
Strong cemented, granitic. 55-60 percent gravel up to 50 mm; subrounded to angular; 5-10
Brown percent silt.
20 75YR4/4 | POORLY GRADED SAND (Weathered Bedrock?): Moist, moderately cemented,
Brown granitic. Fine-grained sand, with medium-grained sand, coarse-grained sand, 10-15
percent grave! up to 15 mm; rounded to subrounded; less than 5 percent silt.
10 75YR4/4 | POORLY-GRADED SAND (Weathered Bedrock?): Molst, moderately cemented,
Brown granitic. Fine-grained sand, with medium-grained and coarse-grained sand, 10-15
percent gravel up to 35 mm; rounded to subanguiar; less than 5 percent silt.
Thomas Harder & Co. \
Groundwater Cansuiting N

Page 3 of 4




Borehole/ Well No.: BH-3

Borehole l.itholagic Log |[ciien: EUA

Project No.: 15-010-102
Depth | Graphiq Sample ! Blow | co10r Sample Description
Log | Recovery | Counts
(Percent)
100 75YR6/2 | POORLY-GRADED GRAVEL WITH SAND (Weathered Bedrock?): Moist, weakly
5 75 YR 4/4 |, cemented, granitic. 680-70 percent gravel up to 46 mm; subrounded to subangular;
Brown Mess than 5 percent silt.
POORLY-GRADED SAND WITH GRAVEL (Weathered Bedrock?): Moist, weakly
cemented, granitic. Fine-grained sand, with medium-grained sand, trace coarse
grained sand, 20-25 percent gravel up to 35 mm; rounded to subangular; less than
5 percent silt,
1C 7.5YR4/4 | 10-15 percent gravel up tc 10 mm.
Brown
20 10YR&/2 | POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (Bedrock?): Moist, strongly cemented, granitic. Gravel
Vg?ﬁ:ﬁ‘e up to 70 mm, some medium-grained sand; angular; less than 5 percent silt.
Notes:

Grain size distribution and percentages are approximate based on visual inspection of samples.
Soil types classified based on Unified Soil Classification System.

Soil color based on Munsell Soil Color Charts.

"Trace” equals to (-5 percent, "some" equals to 5-10 percent, and "with" equals to 10-15 percent.

Page 4 of 4




Lithologic Log

Client:

[EUA

Drilling Contractor: J & H Drilling Co., Inc.

Borehcle/ Well No: BH-4

Drilling Method:  Hollow Stem Auger

Project Number:  15-010-102 Borehole Diameter: 8 inches

Preject: East Declez Location of boring/ Well {State Plane, NAD 83):
Start Date: 29-Sep-15 X: 6184347 (approximate)
Finish Date: 30-Sep-15 Y: 2321842 (approximate)
|Logged By: JV and BL

Depth

Graphlc| Sample

Log [Recovery| Counts

(Percent)

Color Sample Description :

10YR4/4 | POORLY GRADED SAND WITH SILT: Dry. Fine-grained sand, some

v 'I:’a"" medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, less than 5 percent gravel up fo
gmi:h 10 mm; subangular to subrounded; 5-10 percent silt.

a5, 50
{6-inch)

41,50
{6-inch)

10 YR 4/4 | WELL-GRADED SAND: Dry. Medlum-grained sand, with coarse-grained sand, some
Dark fine-grained sand, 5 percent gravel up to 20 mm; subrounded to subangutar; less

Yellowish y
Brown than 5 percent silt.

Thomas Harder & Co. _*

Groundwater Consulting

Page 1 of 5




Borehole/ Weli No.: BH-4

Borehole Lithologic Log |[cien: EUA

Project No.: 15-010-102
Depth | Gr2phlg Sample | Blow | . 1or Sample Description
2 Log { Recovery | Counts| » P
(Percent)
95 e
60 B Y 4/2 POORLY GRADED SAND: Moist,. Fine-grained sand, trace medium-grained sand,
RE;:;:;n less than 5 percant gravel up to 10 mm; subrounded to rounded: less than 5 percent
Gray silt.
30 — :
25 50 (6- 5Y4n POORLY GRADED SAND WITH GRAVEL: Moist. Fine-gralned sand, some
inch) | Derk Gray | madium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, 20 percent gravel up to 35 mm;
25 subangular to subrounded; less than 5 percent siif.
=35
50 5Y4/4 POORLY GRADED SAND: Dry, weakly cemented. Fine-grained sand, with
Reddish | medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, 10 percent gravel up to 15 mm;
Brown subanguiar to subrounded; less than § percent siit. Lean clay from 35.0-35.5 feet.
-40
40 41,50 | 75YR4/6 | CLAYEY SILT WiTH SAND: Moist, hard consistency. 70-80 percent fines, 20-30
(S-inch) |  Strong percent fine-grained sand, less than 5 percent gravel up to 15 mm. Silt medium dry
80 Brown strength, stow dilatancy, high toughness, medium plasticity.
-45
=50 — *
100 19,21, | T5YR 48 | Increase in fines from 50 io 52 feet.
44 + Strong
80 13,18 S
21
80 S‘}%';LE 75YR46 | Increase in sand from 53 to 54 feet, trace gravel.
LAB Strong
-55 (s2.553)] Brown
10YR 4/8 | SILTY SAND: Moist, weak cementation. Medium-grained sand, with fine-grained
Thomas Harder & Co. \
Groundwater Consulling N

Page 2 of 5




- - Borehole/ Well No.: BH-4
Borehole Lithologic Log |[cien: IEUA
- Project No.: 15-010-102
Depth | Graphid Sample | Blow [ <\ /0. Sample Description
Log | Recovery | Counts|
(Percent)
100 sand, some coarse-grained sand, less than 5 percent gravel up to 8 mm; subangular;
20-30 percent silt. Drilling rate slows at 59 feet.
80 10 YR 416
80 10YR 4/4 [, POORLY GRADED SAND WITH SILT: Moist, moderate cementation. Fine-grained
sand, trace medium-grained sand; sub-rounded; less than 10 percent silt.
80 75 YR 4/6 [\ LEAN CLAY: Moist, firm consistency. 85 percent clay, 5 percent fine-grained sand.
Strong Clay: high dry strength, slow dilatancy, medium toughness, medium plasticity.
Brown
POORLY GRADED SAND WITH SILT: Moist, moderate cementation. Fine-grained
sand, some medlum-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand; subangular to angular;
100 10YR5/8 |\ |ess than 10 percent silt.
Yellowish
e SILT: Moist, hard consistency. 95 percent silt, 5 percent fine-grained sand. Silt: low
dry strength, rapid dilatancy, medium toughness, high plasticity. y
90 5YR 46
Yollowish | LEAN CLAY: Moist, hard consistency. Greater than 95 percent clay, less than
100 Red 5 percent fine-gralned sand, irace medium-grained sand. Clay: high dry strength,
slow dilatancy, medlum toughness, high plasticity.
100
100
100 5YR4/B | Increase in gravel from 85 to 89 feet.
Yeliowlsh
Red
100
Thomas Harder & Co. *
Groundwater Caonsulting

Page 3 of 5




Borehole/ Well No.: BH-4

Borehole Lithologic Log |[cien: IEUA

Project No.: 15-010-102
0 ) T
Depth | Sraphiq Sample | Blow | 410, Sample Description
Log | Recovery ! Coun
(Percent)
-95
100 7T5YR46 | SILT WITH SAND: Moist, soft consistency. 90 percent silt, 10 percent fine-grained
g""“ﬂ sand, trace medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, trace gravel to 20 mm.
—— Silt: low dry strength, rapid dilatancy, low toughness, low plasticity.
-100
30 TS5YR5/6 | LEAN CLAY: Moist, soft to firm consistency. 90-95 parcent clay, 5-10 percent
gtrong medium-grained sand, coarse-grained sand, fine-grained sand, less than 5 percent
L gravel up to 10 mm. Clay: high dry strength, slow to none dilatancy, medium
toughness, medium plasticity.
-108
30
100 7.5YRA/6 | SANDY SILT: Moist, very soft consistency. 50-60 percent silt, 40-50 percent
gtrong fine-grained sand, with medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, less than
el 5 percent gravel up to 30 mm. Silt low dry strength, slow dilatancy, low toughness,
410 — low plasticity.
40 7.5 YR 6/8
Reddlsh SILTY SAND: Moist, moderate cementation. Fine-grained sand,
Yellow some madium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, less than 5 percent gravel to
35 mm; subrounded to subangular; 20-30 percent silt.
-115 —
30 T5YR5/6 | SANDY SILT: Moist, firm consistency. 60-70 percent siit, 30-40 percent fine-grained
gn'ong sand, some medium-grained sand, frace coarse-grained sand, less than 5 percent
Lz gravel up to 25 mm. Silt: low dry strength, slow to no dilatancy, medium toughness,
medlum plasticity.
120 100 75YRS5/6 | SANDY SILT/SILTY SAND: Moist, firm consistency. 40 percent fine-grained sand,
0 40 percent silt, 20 percent gravel up to 40 mm. Silt: low dry strength, slow dilatancy,
low toughness, low to medium plasticity.
100 7.5 YR 5/ |\ No recovery
Strong
Brown SILT: Molst, soft consistency. 60-70 percent slit, 30-40 percent fine~-grained sand,
trace medlum-grained sand, less than & percent gravel up to 25 mm. Silt: low dry
-125 strength, siow dilatancy, low toughness, low plasticity. Lean clay from
122.0 to 122.5 feet, high toughness, high plasticity.
40 75 YR 46 [~
Thomas Harder & Co. __ Q%\
Groundwater Consulting

Page 4 of 5



Borehole/ Well No,; BH-4

Borehole Lithologic Log |[cien: IEUA

Project No.: 15-010-102
' 8 |
Depth | Graphiq Sample | Blow | 1., Sample Description
log ] Recovery : Coun . :
{Percent)
Strong SILTY SAND: Moist, soft consistency. Fine-grained sand, some medium-grained
Brown sand, trace coarse-grained sand, less than & percent gravel up to 12 mm:;
subrounded to angular; 10-15 percent silt.
=130
75YRS5/6 | POORLY GRADED SAND WITH SILT: Moist, strongly cemented. Fine-grained
Strong | sand, with medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, less than 5 percent
Brown | gravel up to 50 mm; subrounded to anguiar; 10-15 percent sit.
-135
75YR4/6 | POORLY GRADED SAND WITH SILT: Moist, soft and weakly cemented.
gtmng Fine-grained sand, with medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, 5-10
i percant gravel up to 40 mm; subrounded to angular; 5-10 percent silt.
-140
T5YRSM | SANDY SILT WITH GRAVEL: Moist, soft conslstency. 50-80 percent silt,
Strong 25-30 percent fine-grained sand, with medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained
Brown sand, 15-20 percent gravel up to 55 mm. Silt: Low dry strength, rapid dilatancy,
medium toughness, low plasticity.
-145 —
75YR4/ | LEAN CLAY WITH SAND: Molst, soft constistency. 50-60 percent clay, 25-30 percent
ra-yvr-ara—, Sand, 5-10 percent gravel up to 12 mm; subrounded to angular. Clay: high dry
Brawn \strength, slow dilatancy, medium toughness, high plasticity.
SILTY SAND WITH GRAVEL {Bedrock?): Moist, weakly cemented. Coarse-grained
sand, with medium-grained sand, trace-fine grained sand, 30-40 percent gravel up to
50 mm; angular to subrounded; 40-50 percent silt. Very slow drilling.
Notes:

Grain size distribution and percentages are approximate based on visual inspection of samples.
Soil types classified based on Unified Soil Classification System,

Soil color based on Munsell Soll Color Charts.

"Trace" equals to 0-5 percent, “some” equals to 5-10 percent, and "with” equals to 10-15 percent.

Page 5 of 5




Lithologic Log

Client: IEUA Drilling Contractor: J & H Drilling Co., Inc.
Borehole/ Well No: BH-5 Drilling Method: __ Hollow Stem Auger
Project Number: 15-010-102 Borehole Diameter: 8 inches
Project: East Declez Locatlon of boring/ Well (State Plane, NAD 83):
Start Date: 2-Oct-15 X: 6184380 (approximate)
Flnish Date: 5-Oct-15 ¥: 2321712 (approximate)
Logged By: JB
Depth |Graphic Sample | Blow | color Sample Description
Log |Recovery| counts
(Percent)
75YR6/4 | POORLY GRADED SAND: Dry. Fine-grained sand, with medium-grained sand, trace
Light coarse-grained sand, less than 5 percent gravel up 1o
Brown 10 mm; subrounded to subangular; 5-10 percent silt.
7.5 YRE/4 | POORLY GRADED SAND WITH SILT: Dry. Fine-grained sand, with medlum-grained
Light sand, 5-10 percent gravel up to 30 mm; subrounded to rounded:;
Brown | 10-15 percent sitt.
26,50 | 7.5 YR6S | WELL-GRADED SAND WITH SILT: Dry. Medium-grained sand, with fine-grained
(6-Inch) E!—'Q"t sand, some coarse-grained sand, 5-10 percent gravel up to 50 mm; subrounded to
jown rounded; 10-15 percent silt.
40,50 | 75YR7M1 | WELL-GRADED SAND WITH SILT: Dry. Medium-grained sand, with fine and
§-inch) (L;ght coarse~grained sand, 15-20 percent gravel up to 40 mm; subrounded to rounded;
ray 10-15 percent silt.
Thomas Harder & Co. ‘*
Groundwater Consulting )

Page 10f5




Borehole/ Well No.: BH-5

Borehole Lithologic Log |ciex: IEUA

Pralect No.: 15-010-102
Depth | Graphid Sample ; Blow | ¢4, Sample Description
: Llog | Recovery | Counts; P v
(Percent})
30 75 YR&M1 | POORLY GRADED SAND WITH SILT: Dry. Fine-grained sand; subrounded to
Gray rounded; 10-15 percent silt.
a0 20,22, | 75 YR4/6 | | EAN CLAY WITH SAND: Dry, hard consistency. 80 parcent clay, 15-20 percent
48 Strong fine-grained sand, with medium-gralned sand, trace coarse-grained sand, less than
80 Brown ' 5 nercent gravel up to 20 mm; subrounded to rounded. Clay: high dry strength, slow
dilatancy, medium toughness, low plasticity.
80
90 29,50 | 7.6 YR4/4 | | EAN CLAY: Dry, hard consistency. 90-95 percent clay, 510 percent )
(Beinch) |  Brown | medium-grained sand, with fine-grained sand. Clay: high dry strength, slow dilatancy,
medium toughness, low plasticity.
20
a0 20,29 | 75YRE/6 | LEAN CLAY: Dry, firm consistency. 90-95 percent clay, 5-10 percent medium-gralned
{B-Inch) Strong sand, with fine-grained sand. Clay: high dry sirength, slow dilatancy, medium
Brown | toughness, low plasticity.
100 7.5YRS56 | LEAN CLAY: Moist, hard consistency. 90-95 percent clay, 5-10 percent
40 7.6 YR 4/ [\ Medium-grained sand, with fine-grained sand. Clay: high dry strangth, slow dilatancy,
Strong medlum toughness, low plasticity.
B
" | LEAN CLAY: Moist, hard consistency. 90-85 percent dy, 5-10 percent
medium-grained sand, with fine-grained sand. Clay: high dry strength, slow dilatancy,
medium toughness, low plasticity.
Thomas Harder & Co. %
Groundwater Consulting

Page 2 of 5




Borehole/ Well No.: BH-5

Borehole Lithologic Log |[cien: IEUA

Project No.: 15-010-102
Depth | Graphid Sample | Blow | ;). Sample Description
P iLog Recovery | Counts| : P
{Percent)
60 6 YR 4/6
Yellowish | Trace gravel up to 10 mm.
Brown
TSYREE | SANDY LEAN CLAY: Moist, very soft consistency. 70-80 percent clay, 10-15 percent
10 3"0"9 medium-grained sand, with coarse-grained sand, some fine-grained sand,
rO%N I 10-15 percent gravel up to 50 mm; subrounded to rounded. Clay: medium dry
strength, slow dilatancy, medium toughness, medium plasticity.
100 25, 50 Lined sample collected.
(4-Inch)
40 TS5YR4/6 { LEAN CLAY: Molet, hard consistency. 90-85 percent clay, 5-10 percent
Strong medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand. Clay: high dry strength, slow
Brown dilatancy, medium toughness, medium plasticity.
i 73R 5/ | SANDY LEAN CLAY WITH GRAVEL: Moist, very soft consistency, 50-60 percent
100 < clay, 30-35 percent medium-grained sand, with coarse-grained sand, with
Brown H '
50 fine-grained sand, 20-25 percent gravel up to 40 mm; subangular to angular. Clay:
10 (g?li,m) 7.5 YR 4/6 [\ Medium dry strength, slow dilatancy, medium toughnass, low plasticity.
SAMPLE Stro
FOR Browng LEAN CLAY: Molst, very soft consistency. 80 percent clay, 5-10 percent fine-grained
LAR sand, less than § percent gravel up to 5 mm; subangular to angular. Clay: high dry
(76-76.5) strength, slow dilatancy, medium toughness, medium plasticity.
10
10
100 5YR4/% | SANDY LEAN CLAY WITH GRAVEL: Wet, hard consistency. 50-80 percent clay,
50 5YR24 | 30-35 percent medium-gralned sand, with coarse-grained sand, with fine-grained
Dark sand, 20-25 percent gravel up te 70 mm, subangular to angular. Clay: High dry
Reddish || strength, slow dilatancy, mediurn toughness, medium plasticity.
Brown
Thomas Harder & Co. __ .
. i Wy,
Groundwater Cansulting

Page3of 5




Borehole/ Well No.: BH-5

Borehole Lithologic Log |[cien: IEUA

Project No.: 15-010-102
Depth | Graphiq Sample | Blow [ ¢, Sample Description
Log | Recovery ; Counts]
{Percent)
SANDY LEAN CLAY: Wet, very soft consistency. 50-80 percent clay, 30-45 percent
medium-grained sand, with fine-grained sand, with coarse-grained sand, 5-10
05 percent gravel up to 80 mm; subangular to angular. Clay: high dry strength, siow
50 sYr 4 [\dilatancy, medium toughness, medium plasticity.
Yg"ﬂwish SILT WITH SAND: Moist, very soft consistency. 80 percent silt, 15-20 percent
rown - { medium-grained sand, with fine-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, less than
5 percent gravel up to 50 mm; subangular to angular. Silt; medium dry strength, rapid
dilatancy, low toughness, low plasticity.
-100
10 TSYRSE | LEAN CLAY WITH SAND: Moist, very soft consistency. 75-80 percent clay,
gtmng 20-25 percent fine-to medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, less than
fowh 5 percent gravel up to 30 mm; subangular to angular. Clay: high dry strength, slow
dilatancy, medium toughness, high plasticity.
105 —E=SHt 100 7.5YR 8/ | SILTY SAND WITH GRAVEL: Molst, weakly cemented. Fine-grained sand, with
10 §YRas [\ medium-grained sand, with coarse gralned sand, 15-20 percent gravel up to 40 mm;
Dark subangular to angular; 35-50 percent silf.
Reddish
Brown SILTY SAND: Moist, moderately cemented. Medium-grained sand, with fine-grained
sand, some coarse-grained sand, less than 5 percent gravel up to 60 mm;
subangular to angular; 20-30 percent silt.
100 5YR 3/4 .
-110 — SANDY SILT: Moist, very soft. 60-70 percent slit, 30-40 percent fine-grained sand,
10 5YR4/4 R |ess than 5 percent gravel up to 20 mm; subangular to angular, Silt: low dry strength,
Ré’gﬂf‘“ rapid dilatancy, low toughness, low plasticity.
SILTY SAND WITH GRAVEL: Moist, no cementation. Fine-grained sand, some
coarse-grained sand, 10-20 percent gravel up to 70 mm, 30-40 percent silt;
subangular to angular; 30-40 percent silt.
=115 —
60 5YR4/6 | SANDY SILT: Moist, very soft. 70-80 percent silt, 20-30 percent fine-grained sand,
Yellowish | with medium-grained sand, trace-coarse grained sand, less than 5 percent gravel up
Brown | to 45 mm; angular. Silt: low dry strength, rapid dilatancy, low toughness, low
plasticity.
-120 —
_ 0 No Recovery
-125 —
Thomas Harder & Co. ..*
Groundwater Consulting

Page 4 of 5




Borehole Lithologic Log

Borehole/ Well No.: BH-5

Client: IEUA
Praject No.: 15-010-102

| Depth Graphiq Sample ! Blow Color Sample Description
| Log | Recovery | Counts|
] (Percent)

= 10YR6/4 | CLAYEY SAND: Moist, moderately cemented, granitic. Fine-grained sand, with

il " 'H'Q"‘? medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained sand, less than & percent gravel up to

Erga'r?h 50 mm; angular; 30-40 percent sitt. Mica plates up to 3 mm.

-130 -

Notes:

Grain size distribution and percentages are approximate based on visual inspection of samples,
Sofl types classified based on Unified Soil Classification System.

Soil color based on Munsell Soil Color Charts.
"Trace” equals to 0-5 percent, "some” equals to 5-10 percent, and "with™ equals to 10-15 percent.

Page 5 of 5




Lithologic Log

Client: IEUA Drilling Contractor: J & H Drilling Co., Inc.
Borehole/ Well No: BH-6 Drilling Method: _Hollow Stem Auger
Project Number: _ 15-010-102 Borehole Diameter: 8 inches
Project: East Declez Location of boring/ Well (State Plane, NAD 83}):
Start Date: 28-Sep-15 X: 6184834 (approximate)
Finish Date: 28-Sep-15 Y: 2321636 (approximate)
Logged By: JV & BL
' 7 Sample | pj
Depth |Graphic OW | Color Sample Description
P I.og Recoverv Counts P P
(Percent)
100 26Y4/4 | SAND: Dry. Fine-grained sand, trace medium-grained sand, trace coarse-grained
Olive sand; subrounded to rounded; less than 10 percant silt.
Brown
10
70 48,50 | 10YR33 . - .
(6-neh) e SILT: Dry to moist, hard consistency. Less than 10 percent fine-grained sand.
30 Brown
80
10 YRS/ | SILTY SAND: Dry, moderate to strongly cemented. Fine-grained sand, trace
Yg"c'“"-‘*h medium-grained sand, trace gravel up to 25 mm; subrounded to rounded;
rom 10-20 percent silt.
10 50
(3-inch)
30
Thomas Harder & Co. _*
Groundwater Cansulting )

Page 10f 2




Borehole/ Well No.: BH-6

Borehole Lithologic Log ||Gien: IEUA

Project No.: 15-010-102
Depth | Graphiq Sample | Blow | ¢, Sample Description
Log | Recovery | Counts|
{Percent)
100 10 YRE/4 | LEAN CLAY WITH SAND: Moist, very hard consistency. Less than 20 percent
50 e Temtee fine-graineq sand, trace medium-greined sand.
'Strong SILTY SAND: Dry, weakly cemented. Fine-grained sand, some medium-grained
Brown sand, trace gravel to 50 mm; sub-rounded io rounded; 10-20 percent silt. Increase
gravel at 28 feet and from 30 to 31 feet.
a7, 50
{4-Inch)
0 No recovery
100 T5YR4/6 | SILTY GRAVEL WITH SAND: Dry, weakly cementad. 60 percent gravel up to
00 7.5 YR 4/4 [\ 50 mm, 20-30 percent fine-grained sand; subangular to angular; 10-20 percent silt,
Brown
SILTY SAND: Dry, moderately coamented. Fine-grained sand, some medium-grained
sand; subangular to subrounded; 10-20 percent silt.
Notes:

Grain size distribution and percentages are approximate based on visual inspection of sampies.
Soil types classified based on Unified Soll Classification System.

Soil color based on Munsell Soil Color Charts,

"Trace” equals to 0-5 percent, "some” equals to 5-10 percent, and "with" equals to 10-15 percent.

Page 2 of 2




Lithologic Log

Client: IEUA Drilling Contractor: J & H Dirilling Co., Inc.
Borehole/ Well No: BH-7 Drilling Method: __ Hollow Stem Auger
Project Number: _ 15-010-102 Borehole Diameter: 8 inches
Project: East Declez Location of boring/ Well (State Plane, NAD 83):
Start Date: 9-Oct-15 X: 6184044 (approximate)
Finish Date: 9-Oct-15 Y: 2321631 (approximate)
Logged By: BL
Depth [Graphic Sample | Biow Color Sample Description
Log |Recovery| counts
{Percent)
100 10 YR 212 | POORLY-GRADED SAND: Dry. Fine-grained sand, some medium-grained sand,
V‘E?De;"k less than § percent gravel up to 20 mm; subangular to subrounded; 5-1C percent silt.
0
70 12,18, | 76YR 41 | POORLY-GRADED SAND WITH GRAVEL: Dry. Medium-gralned sand, with
27 Dark coarse-grained sand, some fine-grained sand, 40-50 percent gravel up to 20 mm;
0 Gray angular o subangular; less than 5 percent silt.
20 7-53’131‘4!1 Fine sand at 16 feet and 19 feet.
a
Gray
30 75YR4A | Gravel to 50 mm at 24 feet.
Dark
5 Gray
Thomas Harder & Co. _*
Groundwater Consulting

Page1of 3




Borehole/ Well No.; BH-7

Borehole Lithologic Log |[ciet: IEUA

Project No.: 15-010-102

Depthl Graphig Sample
Log | Recovery

{Percent)

B'“‘"B’ Color
Coun

Sample Description

10 5Y 41 POORLY-GRADED SAND: Moist. Fine-grained sand, frace medium-grained sand,
Dark Gray [ trace gravel to 35 mm; subrounded to subangular; less than 5 percent silt.
80 12,13, 5Y 41 Gravel to 45 mm at 34 fest. Rig chatter at 38 feet.
14 Dark Gray
a0
40
75YR4/4 | LEAN GLAY: Dry to moist, firm consistency. 90 percentclay, 10 percent fine-grained
Brown sand, trace medium-grained sand, less than 5 percent gravel up to 25 mm:;
subrounded to rounded. Clay: very high dry strength, slow dilatancy, medium
20 155025' toughness, medium plasticity. Gravel up to 50 mm at 42 feet.
100
75YREA | SILT: Dry to moist, hard consistency. 90 percent siit, 10 percent fine-grained sand,
50 Strong trace medium-grained sand, less than 5 percent gravel up to 30 mm. Silt: High dry
Brown | strength, slow dilatancy, low toughness, low plasticity. Increase in gravel 49-50 feet.
5 22:.5429. T'g:YR 5/ | Drlller reports "tight" drilling at 53 feet. Gravel up to 40 mm at 54 fest.
rong
70 Brown
70
Thomas Harder & Co. ,_‘_;ﬁ\
Groundwater Cansulting

Page 2 of 3




|Borehole/ Well No.: BH-7

Borehole Lithologic Log |cten: IEUA

Project No.: 15-010-102
Depth | Sraphiq Sample | Blow | .. Sample Description
Log | Recovery | Coun
{Percent) I
30 T5YR 4B | GRAVELY SILT: 70-80 percent sitt, 10 percent fine-grained sand, 20-30 percent
Strong gravel up to 50 mm; subangular to subrounded. Silt: low dry strength, rapid dilatancy,
Brown | low toughness, low plasticity.
Slow drilling 60 to 64 feet. Very slow drilling at 64 feet.
30 7.5 YR 4/6
Strong
Browrn
30 T-gtYR 4% | Gravel at 74 feet. Very slow drilling from 70 to 87 feet.
rong
Brown
30 75YR56 | WELL GRADED SAND WiTH GRAVEL: Moist, weakly cemented. Fine-grained and
Strong medium-grained sand, with coarse-grained sand, 20-30 percent gravel up to 35 mm;
Brown angular to subangular; 10 percent silt. Increase of gravel at 79 feet.
30 7.5YR 4/4 | SILT WITH SAND: Moist, soft consistency. 80-80 percent sik, 10-20 percent
Brown fine-grained sand with medium-grained sand, trace gravel up to 25 mm; angular to
subangular. Silt: low dry strength, slow dilatancy, low toughness, low plasticity.
100 T.5YR4/6 | SANDY LEAN CLAY: Moist, soft consistency. 60-70 percent clay, 30-40 percent
Strong fine-grained sand, medium-grained sand, coarse-grained sand, trace gravel up to 40
Erown mm; subangular to angular. Clay: Very high dry strength, no dilatancy, medium
toughness, medium plasticity,
Notes:

Grain size distribution and percentages are approximate based on visual inspection of samples.
Soll types classified based on Unified Soil Classification System.

Soil color based on Munselt Soil Color Charts.

"Trace" equals to 0-5 percent, "some" equals to 5-10 percent, and "with" equals to 10-15 percent.

Page3of 3




inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subsurface Investigations — East Declez Basin Site 5-Feb-16

Appendix E

Wildermuth Environmental - Assessment of Additional
Alternatives for Potential Storm Water Recharge

Project East of Declez Basin

Thomas Harder & Co. ]
Groundwater Consulting ‘%



&~ WEI

WILDERMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL,INC,

January 28, 2016

Chino Basin Watermaster

Attn: Peter Kavounas, General Manager
9641 San Bernardino Road

Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730

Subject: Assessment of Additional Alternatives for Potential Storm Water Recharge Froject East of
Declez Basin

Dear Mr. Kavounas:

On December 16, 2015, Watermaster met with staff from WE|, IEUA, and Thomas Harder & Company
(THC) to discuss additional alternative project designs for the potential East Declez Basin (EDB) recharge
project. As a resuit of this meeting, Watermaster directed WEI to quantify storm water yields and cost
opinions for four new project alternatives consistent with the methods used in the 2013 Amendment to
the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update (2013 RMPU). Descriptions of the alternatives, potential new
recharge, and reconnaissance-level cost opinions are provided below.

Description of Alternatives

Two new basin design concepts were developed: 1) a basin with a roughly 11-acre footprint that is
graded as an expansion of cell 1 of the existing Declez Basin at the same bottom elevation as the existing
ceil 1, and 2) a basin with roughly the same footprint as basin 1, but only eight feet deep as a separate
basin adjacent to Declez. The infiltration rate for the new portion of the expanded Declez Basin cell 1
was assumed to be zero.

Two stormwater management concepts were developed for each new basin concept, yielding four
alternatives for evaluation. They are referred to herein as Alternatives 1a, 1b, 2a, and 2b and are
described below. Figure 1 depicts the layouts of alternatives 1a and 1b, and Figure 2 depicts the layouts
of alternatives 2a and 2b.

* Alternative 1a - This alternative includes the expanded Declez Basin cell 1 without any new
diversion works.

e Alternative 1b —This alternative is identical to alternative 1a, except that a rubber dam would
be constructed in San Sevaine Channel to increase the amount of stormwater that can be
diverted into Jurupa Basin. The pump station in Jurupa Basin would be expanded from 40 to 70
cfs to convey up to 30 cfs to the Declez Channel via a connection to an existing 72-inch storm
drain that discharges to the Declez Channel near the southerly crossing with Cherry Avenue.

* Alternative 2a — This alternative uses the shallow and separate basin design. It involves the
construction of a rubber dam diversion in the Declez Channel about 400’ upstream of the

23682 Birtcher Drive, Lake Forest, CA 92630 Tel 840.420.3030 Fax: 948.420.4040 www.wildermuthenvironmental.com



Chino Basin Watermaster November 18, 2014
Assessment of Potential Storm Water Recharge Project East of Declez Basin Page 2 of 2

southerly crossing with Cherry Avenue to divert up to 30 cfs of storm water to the EDB. Storm
water will be conveyed in a 42-inch pipe constructed in the channel access road parallel to the
existing channel alignment and then due east along the north side of Declez Basin and then
discharge to the EDB. This project would reduce the inflow and recharge into the Declez Basin.

s Alternative 2b — This alternative is identical to alternative 2a, except it includes the rubber dam
tn San Sevaine Channel and increased pump size in Jurupa describes in alternative 1b.

WEI performed a hydrologic analysis to estimate the net new stormwater yield of the four project
alternatives with the same methodology used in the 2013 RMPU. Then, a hydraulic analysis was
performed to design the necessary diversion and water conveyance structures for each alternative, and
it was determined that there was no feasible hydraulic design to divert water from Declez Channe! into
the shallow EDB design. Therefore, alternatives 2a and 2b were determined infeasible.

New Recharge and Cost Opinion

The following table shows the results of our modeling and cost opinions.

Annual Unit Costwith 90%

Net New Recharge Annual Unit Cost
{acre-ft/yr) (S/acre-ft) (8/acre-t)

144 $11,152 $5,099
414 54,527 $2,420

Alternative Excavation Cost Reduction

_a

Reconnaissance-level (Level-Five} cost opinions were developed for alternatives 1a and 1b and are
Included in Tables 1 and 2, respectively. In these cost opinions it was assumed that the land acquisition
cost would cover the entire 85 acres considered for purchase by JCSD. These cost opinions assume that
the cost to improve the Jurupa Basin inlet (other than the rubber dam in alternative 1b) is included as
part of the 2013 RMPU 23a project. The net new recharge is calculated based on the recharge additional
to what is already realized in the 2013 RMPU projects at RP3 and Declez Basins.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve the Chino Basin Watermaster on this important and timely

mmLﬁstzL

Garrett Rapp, EIT Mark J. Wildermuth, PE
Staff Engineer President and Principal Engineer

Wildermuth Environmental, Inc.

Encl.: Tables 1 and 2, and Figures 1 and 2.



Table 1
Cost Oplnlon for the East Decloz Basin - Alternative 1a

Description

Diract Construction Costs
1 Mobilization @ 5% Other Direct Gonstruction Cost 1 Job Lump Sum $745,000 $745,000
2 i Ex jon
Excavate & Hau! Offsite 820,000 Cu.Yds. $18.17 $14,899,400 $1,489,840
3 Land Acquigition Cost
Land Costs 85 $/acre $35,300 $3,000,500 $3,000,500
Subtotal Direct Construction $18,640,000 $5,240,000
Contingency > $2 million@ 10% $1.864.000 $1,864,000
Construction Management > $2 milllon@) 10% §1,864,000 $1.864 000
Total Construction $22,368,000 $8,068,000
Englineering and Administration Costs
Engineering and Admin > $2 million@ 10% 237 $2.237.000
Total Engineering and Administration $2,237,000 $2,237,000
Total Estimated Cost $24,605,000 $11,205,000
Total Estimated Cost - Rounded $24,610,000 $11,210,000
Annual Cost - 30 Years @ 5% Interast $1,600,600 $728,900
CBWMs Share of Annual Project Cost $1,600,600 $728,800
Annual Ogerations and Maintenance 144 AF $37 $5,328 $5,328
Total Operational Costs $5,328 $5,328
Total Annual Cost $1,605,928 §$734,228
Total Annual Unit Cost $11,152 $65,099

Dty

| "ot ] UnitCost | TotnlCest | Total Gost'

1The capltal cost shown assumes that the project's excavation costs would be reduced by 90%.
operator,

2016_EDB,_cost_v2.xiex = EDB Altla
Created 07/30/2013
Printed 1/25/2016

. The material excavated could be used for another construction site or leased to a mining

L IR TRt ey



Table 2
Cost Opinion for the East Declez Basin - Alternative 1b

Qiuanfity

Description | | iy

UnhCost | TotalGost | TotatCost!

Direct Construction Costs
bllization

2 Spreading Bacin Excavation
Excavate & Haul Cffsite
3 Land Acguigltion Cost
Land Costs
4 Rubber Dam for San Sevaine Channel Biversion o Jurupa
Rubber Dam Capturing up to 100 cfs
5 Pump expansion o 70 cfs
30 cfs pump capacity increase
6 Convevance to Declez Channel
36" Diamater CMLC to exieting storm drain

Subtotal Direct Construction

Contingency > $2 million@ 10%

Construction Management > $2 million@ 10%
Total Construction

Engineering and Administration Cosis
Engineering and Admin > $2 million@ 10%
Total Engineering and Administration

Total Estimated Cost

Total Estimated Gost - Rounded

Annual Cost - 30 Years @ 5% Interest
CBWMs Share of Annual Project Cost

Annual Operations and Maintenance

Ann nergy G
Total Operational Costs

Total Annual Cost
Total Annual Unit Cost

1 Jab Lump Sum
820,000 Cu.Yds. $1817
85 $ecre $35,300
1 Job $100,000
300 $HP $5,000
2,800 Lin. Ft $429
414 AF $37
32,000 KW-hr $0.15

$885,000
$14,899,400
$3,000,500

$100,000
$1,500,000

$1,201,200

$21,590,000
$2,159.000

159,000
$25,808,000

$2.591.000
$2,591,000

$28,499,000
$28,500,000
$1,853,000
$1,853,800

$15,318
$4,800
$20,118

$1,874,018
$4,527

$885,000
$1,489,840
$3,000,500

$100,000
$1,600,000

$1,201,200

$8,180,000
$2.159,000
§$2.159.000
$12,498,000

591,000
$2,591,000

$15,089,000
$15,080,000
$081,800
$981,600
$15,318
$4,800
$20,118
$1,001,718
§2,420

1The capltal cost shown assumes that the project’s excavation costs would be reduced by 80%. The matarial excavated could be used for another construction site or leased to a mining

operator.

2016_EDB_cost_v2xisx— EDB Ait1b
Created 07/30/2043
Printed 1/25/2016

WEL

1 WA I



L 84nbj4
NI 040Z oYy 03 . _— .
JWIpUSY £10Z Jo uonejusLua)diul Eﬂ.—wﬁcﬂ‘uo I 005 0sZ 0 % } W@ 80T ZejsaQ3 elueN
==t 0 s -] 9102/92/L 618
ql/el seApeuIa)|y Joaloid moN r— oy Ao ouny
uiseg zejaa( ysex 000'¥ 000'Z 0 ﬂ
A.””.\ ’,..
— u g l._
r 7 . ¥, A.
» ] ]
ot S - 3 Spr dtrp
. . P ]
(o]
7 .3
\..\x 5 : Mu
- .....\ 3 4 a.
Pl [E3/
g : as you-z2 Bugsixzg B
- | '3
RSN p ,‘_%uoo . 18
(T TR it - >
), e ) \.r/O hr‘!rr.l-l.\]. .
ERrIT N v O& | i
o
R ] S
s A . ;
¥ {q1 "ye) uresp uuols your-z/
- _ Bunsixa o} uogosuuon
uoisusX3 | oD - aH : _
uiseg zejoe(] pasodold i - _
e o T
Supspea () , e
sujseg I i
8

(9} je) weiq wuoig Bugsix3 o}
uiseg edninp wod augadid 0¢

(ee2 Qld) wiseg ajrsum
woy sujjadid pesodoid

aulledid ey
pajohoay aflineuna

ulepy 83lo4 edninp

aimonaiseyu) buidyyg

LA

@i ye) 1eio spo 02

o} uogejs dwnd uj Ayoedes pasealau]

i
i
3

e

(41 "ye) spo 00y 03 dn
SMO}} j|e HOAIP 0} Wep Jeqany [




Z 2inbi4

NdiNY 01L0Z @43 0)

TN VTR SAINOHAN S Be BN EE A

Juswpuewy £1.0Z 40 UoHEIIGWeldw] Esoﬁs._ 005 _0ST __ G Nuﬁ.ea.w_ﬂmu_“ﬁ”u “
qz/ez soApela)|y 399foid maN N e e WD Soigny —“3 .
uiseg zeojoaq jsey 000'v 000 0 :

- +Aq peonpald
4 a\.. 1
¥ v H.w V4l © y
= g _
B - SRS
a4 . EAN
£ s & ,\.. /,.
_g@iiteg ,,,_
— s a4 LZ9)09(] JSeT \\_ : -
/ I
(qz/ez “sie) uiseg zepa( ise3 o} Jojem . =
{suuByD zepag Gumaaip wep Jsqgny 8 "m.
— —_— = m a‘-
e
‘B
13
- 2
T RS ..r..]|1

uiseg zepe( Jse3 pasodo.d [

Sursp [15]

(az ye) weiq uuoyg Bugsxg o)
uiseq edrunr woy suljedid ¢ ~
uiseg ze|oa(] jseq
8y} 0} auladid uoisieNq 2y T
(ecZ aud) uiseg ajrsunp
woJj euladi4 pasodoid

auljadld Jajem
pePAoay a|IAsung

ulep 8404 edninp —
aimonssedyu) uidig

1osloid uiseq zepaq jsey

ay) Jo} swieq Joqgny pauuey

[T

BNt T Ty

iy -

(9z “ye) ure.p wioys 72
Bunsixs o} uopsauucH

{9z ue) 1230y sp 02
0} ucijejs dwind uj Ayoeden pasessou)

it
13
;

i
i}
i
i

(qz ‘ye) sp oot op dn _
SMOY [|2 LaAIp 0} Wwep Jeqany |

B TR e
o e wh

v,




- Thomas Harder & Co. __.)
.. Groundwater Consulting ...~

A 260 N T Hancoal St SUitestng Lt
TAT Ahatieim; CA92607 bl
S il e S AWk s
iRt hapdep@thomashardercompanyld r-afl:il___.'__ i

Y AT




Finance, Legal, and Administration Commuittee

ACTION
ITEM

21



AN

. Inland Empire Utilities Agency
- A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

&

Date: April 20, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Engineering, Operations, and Biosolids Management Committee (04/13/16)

qunce, Legal, and Administration Committee (04/13/16)

From: P. Joseph Grindstaff
General Manager

Submitted by: Chris Berch w
Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager

Shaun J. Stone m
Manager of Engineering

Subject: Groundwater Recharge/Recycled Water SCADA System Upgrades
Construction Contract Award
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve the construction contract for the Groundwater Recharge and Recycled Water
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) System Upgrades, Project No.
EN14047, to Trimax Systems, Inc. for $250,989; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.
BACKGROUND

On May 2010, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) completed the Recycled Water SCADA
Master Plan which developed a capital plan to sustain a modern recycled water and groundwater
recharge SCADA system by aligning recommended improvements and expansions with planned
growth. The Agency’s existing SCADA system consists of hardware and software components
which control and gather real-time data from twenty four (24) remote recycled water and
groundwater recharge facilities. Following the 2010 Recycled Water SCADA Master Plan, this
project was created to implement the following system upgrades and improvements:

+ Standardize the graphic screen navigation throughout the recycled water and groundwater
recharge facilities



GWR/RW SCADA System Upgrades Construction Contract Award
April 20, 2016
Page 2 of 3

e Replace aging programmable logic controllers with new standardized programs at five
rubber dams located at groundwater recharge basins

» Replace the outdated operator interface screens at the rubber dams with new Panelview
screens

Standardizing the control interface appearance and programming structure will allow a more
efficient and effective system for future upgrades of other recycled water and groundwater
recharge sites.

On January 14, 2016, a request for bids was advertised to IEUA’s list of pre-qualified contractors.
On March 17, 2016, following bids were received:

Bidder’s Name Price
Trimax Systems, Inc. $250,989
Tesco Controls, Inc. $285,000
Southern Contracting Company Inc. $389,900
Engineer’s Estimate $399,000

Trimax Systems, Inc. is the lowest responsive and responsible bidder with a bid of $250,989.
TEUA staff and its engineering consultant evaluated Trimax’s bid for completeness and contacted
Trimax; who confirmed that their final bid price met all contract requirements and specifications.
Trimax’s past construction experience with the Agency include the development of IEUA’s GWR
SCADA system during the Chino Basin Facilities Improvement Project in 2005. They have also
provided similar work at IERCF and RP-4.

The following is the project cost:

Description Estimated Cost
Design $196,812
Construction $250,989
Construction Management $108,688
Construction Contingency (~15%) $54,000
Total Projected Cost $610,490
IEUA Approved Budget $932,000

The following is the project schedule:

Project Milestone Date
Construction Contract Award April 2016
Construction Completion January 2017

G-\Board-Rec '\ 2016\ 16082 GWR RW SCADA Upgrades Construction Contract Award 4-20-16



GWR/RW SCADA System Upgrades Construction Contract Award
April 20, 2016
Page 3 of 3

The efforts in upgrading the GWR/RW SCADA system are consistent with the IEUA business
goal of Water Reliability by promoting a reliable and efficient groundwater recharge system.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On February 19, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the design services contract with MSO
Technologies, Inc., for the Recycled Water and Groundwater Recharge SCADA System Upgrades,
Project No. EN14047, for the not-to-exceed amount of $129,620.

On August 28, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the IEUA/Watermaster Cost Sharing
Agreement (Task Order No. 4) for the GWR SCADA Upgrades Project.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

The contract award for the Groundwater Recharge and Recycled Water SCADA System Upgrades,
Project No. EN14047, in the amount of $250,989 is within the total project budget of $932,000 in
the Recycled Water Capital (WC) Fund. Watermaster is fiscally responsible to reimburse IEUA
for 50-percent of total project cost less any grants. The project received a $150,000 state grant
from the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority/Department of Water Resources and a low
interest 30-year loan from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund through the State Water
Resources Control Board.

PJG:CB:SS;ji

G:\Board-Rec } 2016\ 16082 GWR RW SCADA Upgrades Construction Contract Award 4-20-16



g

Joaulbu3 Jojueg 1131510 YIUVM TVIIDINNW VY AU

fouaby sagiliif aldws puojuy ’

910Z |udy
/0¥ LN3 ‘ON 108loid
plemy 10eJjuoy) uoloniIsuo)d

sapelbdn YavIS Je1ep Pajokoay B abieyoay Jajempunolo




1DIYLSIO VA TVAIDINAW v

¢ A>uaby ST M3 puoiYl ’d

diysisuped Joisewlsiep) pue yn3| -

ueo| 44S %L Jedh Qg -

HMA/VdMVS wol uelb 059°6€L$ B poAleosy -

Jo)SeUISIBAA
uiseg oulyd sy} Ylm paseys Jsoo %05

so)is abJeyoal
Jajempunolb pue Jajem pojoLoal ajowal g -

cm_n_ hmumms_ (VYavoSs) uonisinboy ejeq pue



1DTLSIC WLV TVEDINOW ¥

fouably SAN a3 pudjul

Em_mhm Yavyos lsjem nm_umuE pue mmkm;om._ Jalempuncdb au) uiyjim mt_EEm._mEn_ pUE S2BHSIU| |OLUDD BZIpUBPURIS

L ._.._...| i
b= g —1 L

-u .___ . _l&l ._-u..m-_

Buiwweliboid 974 943 @aosduy)
wJoped uonebiaeu usslos oiydelB epesbdn g Ujseq Aeg JamoT
uBaI0s 9oBUSUI UsaIos Jojelado speibdn | g
suiseq Wep Jaqqni Je Dd pebe sogidey  « B .
SUOM Jo 8doog J98(oid

2d0og 108loid

sljauag jaaloid

)




LORILSIO VIV TVEIDINAW ¥

v Aouabiy SN HdWZ PUDiY] ’:U
K

000'66€$ 9Jewnsy s Jo9uibug

006'68€$ ‘ou| ‘Auedwion Buioenuon uisyinog
000'682% "OU| ‘S[OJJUOD) 00S9|
686'092$ 'OU| ‘SWajsAg xewl|

ou suEN 120P1

910Z ‘L1 YoJe\ Uo paAiedal spiq (€) sauyL -«

Alewwng pig




/102 Aenuep
910¢ judy

LOMISIC YAV TVIDINAW ¥

s Aouaby ST Sifd3 puojuj ’.U

auoj}sa|ip 102loud

uonadwos) uoloNJIIsuo)
pJemy JoBJjuo ) Uoljonjsuo)

aleys 1s09 0S/0G se WD panoidde osfe 18bpng ,

000°2£6$ Jobpng paroiddy vn3|

06%°'0L9% }s09 Jo8foad |ejoL

000'S$ (%G L~) Aouebunuon uonoNISU0)
889'801% JuswisBeue)y uononysuoD
686 0629 UOI2NJIISUOD
218'961% ubiseq

1SS0 pajewi}s3y uondiiosaqg

a|npayos pue 1so) 1oaloid




1A LS10 FALVM IVIDINNW ¥

9 Aouabiy sapfii sdurz puojul ,v

WR3sAs a8.eL . Ja3empuno.d Juaidiya pue 3jqelad e Suizowoud Aq Afiqpijay 4230 40 _mn_w.
sSaUISNG YN31 243 43IM 1U3SISU0D 3. WAISAS wayIS MH/HEMD 243 Suipeiddn uj soH? 3yl

"]0BJJU0D 8Y} 91N0axXa 0) Jabeue) |BJBuds) dy) szuoyine
pue 686'0G2$ JO PId MO| JIay} 1o} "ou| ‘swelsAg xewu| 0} ‘/yOFIN3
108[01d sepelbdn welsAS vAVOS J91ep pajohosy/ielep) obleyosy
JSJEMPUNOIS) 8U} JO UOHONJSUOD 8y} 1O} PJEME JOBJUCD 8y} 8Aoiddy

UOI1EPUBWILIOIDY



CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this ____day of April, 2016, by and
between Trimax Systems, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "Contractor," and The
inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, located in San
Bemardino County, California, hereinafter referred to as "Agency".

WITNESSETH:

That for and in consideration of the promises and agreements hereinafter made
and exchanged, the Agency and the Contractor agree as follows:

1. Contractor agrees to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner, all work
required under the bidding schedule of said Agency's specifications entitled
SPECIFICATIONS FOR GWR and RW SCADA Control Upgrades Project No.
EN14047, in accordance with the specifications and drawings, and to furnish at
their own expense, all labor, materials, equipment, tools, and services necessary,
except such materials, equipment, and services as may be stipulated in said
specifications to be furnished by said Agency, and to do everything required by
this Contract and the said specifications and drawings.

2. For furnishing all said labor, materials, equipment, tools, and services, furnishing
and removing all plant, temporary structures, tools and equipment, and doing
everything required by this Contract and said specifications and drawings,; also
for all loss and damage arising out of the nature of the work aforesaid, or from
the action of the elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties which may arise
during the prosecution of the work until its acceptance by said Agency, and for all
risks of every description connected with the work; also for all expenses resulting
from the suspension or discontinuance of work, except as in the said
specifications are expressly stipulated to be borne by said Agency; and for
completing the work in accordance with the requirements of said specifications
and drawings, said Agency will pay and said Contractor shall receive, in full
compensation therefore, the price(s) set forth in this Contract.

3. That the Agency will pay the Contractor progress payments and the final
payment, in accordance with the provisions of the contract documents, with
warrants drawn on the appropriate fund or funds as required, at the prices bid in
the Bidding and Contract Requirements, Section C - Bid Forms and accepted by
the Agency, and set forth in this below.

Total Bid Price $250,988.30
Two hundred fifty thousand, nine hundred eighty-eight Dollars and thirty Cents.

If this is not a lump sum bid and the contract price is dependent upon the
quantities constructed, the Agency will pay and said Contractor shall receive, in

GWR and RW SCADA Control Upgrades Project No. EN14047



full compensation for the work the prices named in the Bidding and Contract
Requirements, Section C - Bid Forms.

4. The Agency hereby employs the Contractor to perform the work according to the
terms of this Contract for the above-mentioned price(s), and agrees to pay the
same at the time, in the manner, and upon the conditions stipulated in the said
specifications; and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, and assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance
of the covenants herein contained.

5. The Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Forms, Information Required
of Bidder, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Contractors License Declaration,
Specifications, Drawings, all General Conditions and all Special Conditions, and
all addenda issued by the Agency with respect to the foregoing prior fo the
opening of bids, are hereby incorporated in and made part of this Contract, as if
fully set forth.

6. The Contractor agrees to commence work under this Contract on or before the
date to be specified in a written "Notice To Proceed" and to complete said work
to the satisfaction of the Agency two hundred and seventy-nine (279) calendar
days after award of the Contract. All work shall be completed before final
payment is made.

7. Time is of the essence on this Contract.

8. Contractor agrees that in case the work is not completed before or upon the
expiration of the contract time, damage will be sustained by the Agency, and that
it is and will be impracticable to determine the actual damage which the Agency
will sustain in the event and by reason of such delay, and it is therefore agreed
that the Contractor shall pay to the Agency the amount of four thousand ($4.000)
dollars for each day of delay, which shall be the period between the expiration of
the contract time and the date of final acceptance by the Agency, as liquidated
damages and not as a penalty. It is further agreed that the amount stipulated for
liquidated damages per day of delay is a reasonable estimate of the damages
that would be sustained by the Agency, and the Contractor agrees to pay such
liquidated damages as herein provided. In case the liquidated damages are not
paid, the Contractor agrees that the Agency may deduct the amount thereof from
any money due or that may become due to the Contractor by progress payments
or otherwise under the Contract, or if said amount is not sufficient, recover the
total amount.

In addition to the liquidated damages, which may be imposed if the Contractor
fails to complete the work within the time agreed upon, the Agency may also
deduct from any sums due or to become due the Contractor, liquidated damages
in accordance with the Bidding and Contract Requirements, Section B -
Instruction to Bidders, Part 5.0 “Liquidated Damages", for any violation of the

GWR and RW SCADA Control Upgrades Project No. EN14047



10.

11

12.

13.

14.

General Conditions, Section D - Contractor's Responsibilities, Part 8, "Law and
Regulations"; Bidding and Contract Requirements Contract Section D — Contract
and Relevant Documents, Part 1.0, Paragraphs 9 through 11; General
Conditions, Section D — Contractor's Responsibilities, Part 4.0, "Labor, Materials
and Equipment"; General Conditions Section D — Contractor’'s Responsibilities,
Part 12.0, "Safety and Protection" or General Conditions Section H — Legal
Responsibilities, Part 8.0, "Disturbance of the Peace".

That the Contractor will pay, and will require subcontractors to pay, employees
on the work a salary or wage at least equal to the prevailing salary or wage
established for such work as set forth in the wage determinations and wage
standards applicable to this work, contained in or referenced in the contract
documents.

That, in accordance with Section 1775 of the California Labor Code, Contractor
shall forfeit to the Agency, as a penalty, not more than Fifty ($50.00) Dollars for
each day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid, either by the Contractor or any
subcontractor, less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of the
California Department of industrial Relations for the work.

That, except as provided in Section 1815 of the California Labor Code, in the
performance of the work not more than eight (8) hours shail constitute a day's
work, and not more than forty (40) hours shall constitute a week's work; that the
Contractor shall not require more than eight (8) hours of labor in a day nor more
than forty hours of tabor in a week from any person employed by the Contractor
or any subcontractor; that the Contractor shall conform to Division 2, Part 7,
Chapter 1, Article 3 (Section 1810, et seq.) of the California Labor Code; and that
the Contractor shall forfeit to the Agency, as a penalty, the sum of Twenty-Five
($25.00) Dollars for each worker employed in the execution of the work by
Contractor or any subcontractor for each day during which any worker is required
or permitted to labor more than eight (8) hours in violation of said Article 3.

That the Contractor shall carry Workers' Compensation Insurance and require all
subcontractors to carry Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the
California Labor Code.

That the Contractor shall have furnished, prior to execution of the Contract, two
bonds approved by the Agency, one in the amount of one hundred (100) percent
of the contract price, to guarantee the faithful performance of the work, and one
in the amount of one hundred (100) percent of the contract price to guarantee
payment of all claims for l[aber and materials furnished.

The Contractor hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold the Agency
and its employees, agents, officers, directors, servants and volunteers free and
harmless from any and all liability, claims, judgments, costs and demands,

GWR and RW SCADA Control Upgrades Project No. EN14047



including demands arising from injuries or death of persons (including employees
of the Agency and the Contractor) and damage to property, arising directly or
indirectly out of the obligation herein undertaken or out of the operations
conducted by the Contractor, its employees agents, representatives or
subcontractors under or in connection with this Contract.

The Contractor further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, provide defense
for and defend any such claims, demands or suit at the sole expense of the
Contractor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Contractor and the General Manager of Inland
Empire Utilities Agency*, thereunto duly authorized, have caused the names of

said parties to be affixed hereto, each in duplicate, the day and year first above
written.

Inland Empire Utilities Agency,* Contractor
San Bernardino County, California.

By B)( i !cﬁg_’c‘i_
General Manager e

MANAGOL OF
*Municipal Water District Bisiness DQICLGFM\-‘Y\J

GWR and RW SCADA Control Upgrades Project No. EN14047



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

ACTION
ITEM

2J



k \ " Infand Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: April 20, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee (4/13/16)

inance, Legal, and Administration Committee (4/13/16)

From: P. Joseph Grindstaff
General Manager
Submitted by: Chris Berch
Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
Jason Gu J—\
Grants Officer,
Subject: Adoption of Resolutions for the USBR WaterSMART
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Adopt Resolution Nos. 2016-4-1, 2016-4-2, and 2016-4-3, authorizing the Agency to
enter into financial assistance agreements with the U.S. Department of Interior — Bureau
of Reclamation (USBR) for three grant applications submitted in April 2016: 1) Drought
Contingency Planning Grant; 2) Drought Resiliency Implementation Grant, and 3)
Agricultural Water Conservation Efficiency Grant; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the financial assistance agreement, any
amendments, and any grant related documents thereto.

BACKGROUND
USBR Drought Contingency Planning Grant:

In February 2016, the USBR announced the Drought Contingency Planning Grant under the
USBR’s WaterSMART Drought Response Program to provide assistance to local governments to
prepare for and address a drought in advance of a crisis.

In April 2016, IEUA proposed the Integrated Resources Plan (IRP) Phase II Project for the Drought
Contingency Planning Grant. The IRP Phase II Project will take a coilaborative approach with



Adoption of Resolutions for the USBR WaterSMART
April 20, 2016
Page 2

local stakeholders to address a drought in advance of a crisis. Funding through this grant would be
used to cover approximately 50% of the expected plan development costs of $400,000.

USBR Drought Resiliency Implementation Grant:

In April 2016, IEUA proposed the Project 23a Wineville, Jurupa and RP3 Basin Improvements

Project for the Drought Resiliency Implementation Grant under the USBR’s WaterSMART
Drought Response Program.

This project is one of the priority projects identified in the 2013 Recharge Master Pian Update
(RMPU) and provides benefits to both IEUA and Chino Basin Watermaster, This grant program
offers $300,000 maximum per project and will be available for projects over a two-year period.

USBR Agricultural Water Conservation and Efficiency Grant:

In February 2016, the USBR announced a third grant opportunity — the Agricultural Water
Conservation and Efficiency Grant. This grant program offers $1,000,000 maximum per project
with a 50% match funding requirement, and it seeks to foster water district and farmer partnerships
to make federal funding available in California to improve the efficiency of agricultural water use
throughout the state.

In late April 2016, IEUA will submit a grant application for the Chino Basin Agricultural Water
Conservation and Water Use Efficiency Project, which would provide water supply and
conservation benefits to the region by increasing recycled water supply for agricultural irrigation,
and improve energy efficiency. Summary of the three grant applications submitted:

Grant Total Project .
USBR Grant Amount Cost IEUA Project
" Drought Contingency i $300,000 400000~  Tategrated Resources Plan Phase 1T "
Drought Resiliency i $300 000 $21 ,310,000 Wmevﬂle Jurupa and RP-3 Basm Improvement
Agricultural Water Chino Basin Agricultural Water Conservation and
Conservation & Efficiency $1 000,000 52,000,000 ~ Water Use Efficiency Project

This action supports the Agency’s mission to increase sustainability through the development of
reliable local water supplies and is consistent with the Agency’s mission of pursuing state and
federal grants and low-interest financing.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On September 16, 2015, [IEUA’s Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2015-9-2, approving
the 2015 Drought Relief Recycled Water Supply Optimization Program, Phase I grant/SRF loan
application, which included eight project components, to be submitied to the State Water Board.

G:\Board-Rec'2016\16099 USBR Grant Applications (3) 4-20-16.docx



Adoption of Resolutions for the USBR WaterSMART
April 20, 2016

Page 3

The Recycled Water Pressure Sustaining Valve Project, for which approval is being recommended
through Resolution No. 2016-4-3, was included as one of the eight 2015 Drought Relief Recycled
Water Supply Optimization Program, Phase I grant/SRF loan application project components.

IMPACT ON BUDGET
USBR Drought Contingency Planning Grant:

The IRP Phase II Project has an estimated cost of $400,000, and is within the WR16025 WW
Plarning Document Project budget of $1,000,000 in the approved FY 2015/16 Ten-Year Capital
Improvement Plan (TYCIP). There will be no impact te the Agency’s current fiscal year budget,

however, upon award of funding, the annual project appropriations will be revised to reflect the
grant funding.

USBR Drought Resiliency Implementation Grant:

Project No. EN18007, RMPU Construction, has a total project budget of $44,000,000, which
includes $21,310,000 for Project 23a Wineville, Jurupa and RP-3 Basin Improvements Project.
There will be no impact to the Agency’s current fiscal year budget, however, upon award of
funding, the annual project appropriations will be revised to reflect the grant funding.

USBR Agricultural Water Conservation and Efficiency Grant:

Project No. EN12016, North CIM Lateral, has a total project budget of $210,000 and Project No.
EN16034, Recycled Water Pressure Sustaining Valve, has a total project budget of $850,000 in
the approved TYCIP. There will be no impact to the Agency’s current fiscal year budget, however,

upon award of funding, the annual project appropriations will be revised to reflect the grant
funding.

Attachment:

Resolution No. 2016-4-1
Resolution No. 2016-4-2
Resolution No. 2016-4-3

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16099 USBR Grant Applications (3) 4-20-16.docx



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-4-1

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN
BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING
THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY TO ENTER
INTO A FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT UNDER
THE WATERSMART: DROUGHT CONTINGENCY
PLANNING GRANTS FOR FY 2016 WITH THE U.S.
DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR - BUREAU OF
RECLAMATION AND DESIGNATING A
REPRESENTATIVE TO EXECUTE THE FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT, AND ANY AMENDMENTS
THERETO FOR INTEGRATED RESOURCES PLAN PHASE
II PLANNING PROJECT

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* (IEUA) is authorized to
enter into a financial assistance agreement under the WaterSMART: Drought Contingency
Planning Grants for FY 2016 with the U.S. Department of Interior - Bureau of Reclamation
(USBR) for the IRP Phase II Planning Project;

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA’s Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager, or
in his absence, his designees to cxecute the financial assistance agreement, any amendments, and
any grant related documents thereto;

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA has the capacity to provide the amount of funding and/or
in-kind contributions specified in the funding plan;

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA will work with the USBR to meet established deadlines
for entering into a cooperative agreement, and;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the IEUA Board of Directors hereby adopts
Resolution No. 2016-4-1 on this 20% day of April, 2016.

Terry Catlin, President of the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of
Directors thereof

ATTEST:

Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the
Inland Empire Utilities Agency* and of the
Board of Directors thereof

* A Municipal Water District



Resolution No. 2016-4-1

Page2 of 2
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

) SS
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )

I, Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-4-1 was adopted at a regular meeting

on April 20, 2016 of said Agency* by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
Steven J. Elie
Secretary/Treasurer
(SEAL)

* A Municipal Water District



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-4-2

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN
BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING
THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY TO ENTER
INTO A FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT UNDER
THE WATERSMART: DROUGHT RESILIENCY PROJECT
GRANTS FOR FY 2016 WITH THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
INTERIOR - BUREAU OF RECLAMATION AND
DESIGNATING A REPRESENTATIVE TO EXECUTE THE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT, AND ANY
AMENDMENTS THERETO FOR THE RECHARGE
MASTER PLAN UPDATE (RMPU) PROJECT NO. 23A
WINEVILLE, JURUPA AND RP-3 BASIN IMPROVEMENT
PROJECT

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* (IEUA) is authorized to
enter into a financial assistance agreement under the WaterSMART: Drought Resiliency Project
Grants with the U.S. Department of Interior - Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) for the Recharge
Master Plan Update (RMPU) Project No. 23a Wineville, Jurupa and RP-3 Basin Improvements
Project;

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA’s Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager, or
in his absence, his designees, to execute the financial assistance agreement, any amendments, and
any grant related documents thereto;

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA has the capacity to provide the amount of funding and/or
in-kind contributions specified in the funding plan;

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA will work with the USBR to meet established deadlines
for entering into a cooperative agreement, and;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that [EUA’s Board of Directors hereby adopts
Resolution No. 2016-4-2 on this 20™ day of April, 2016.

Terry Catlin, President of the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of

Directors thercof
ATTEST:

Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the
Inland Empire Utilities Agency* and of the
Board of Directors thereof

* A Municipal Water District



Resolution No. 2016-4-2

Page 2 of 2
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

) SS
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )

I, Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-4-2 was adopted at a regular meeting

on April 20, 2016 of said Agency* by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
Steven J. Elie
Secretary/Treasurer
(SEAL)

* A Municipal Water District



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-4-3

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY?*  SAN
BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING
THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY TO ENTER
INTO A FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT UNDER
THE AGRICULTURAL WATER CONSERVATION AND
EFFICIENCY GRANTS WITH THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
INTERIOR - BUREAU OF RECLAMATION AND
DESIGNATING A REPRESENTATIVE TO EXECUTE THE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT, AND ANY
AMENDMENTS THERETO FOR CHINO BASIN
AGRICULTURAL WATER CONSERVATION AND WATER
USE EFFICIENCY PROJECT

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* (IEUA) is authorized to
enter into a financial assistance agreement under the Agricultural Water Conservation and
Efficiency Grants with the U.S. Department of Interior - Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) for the
Chino Basin Agricultural Water Conservation and Water Use Efficiency Project;

BE IT RESOLVED, that IJEUA’s Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager, or
in his absence, his designees, to execute the financial assistance agreement, any amendments, and
any grant related documents thereto;

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA has the capacity to provide the amount of funding and/or
in-kind contributions specified in the funding plan;

BE IT RESOLVED, that IEUA will work with the USBR to meet established deadlines
for entering into a cooperative agreement, and;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that IEUA’s Board of Directors hereby adopts
Resolution No. 2016-4-3 on this 20 day of April, 2016.

Terry Catlin, President of the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency* and of the Board of
Directors thereof

ATTEST:

Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the
Inland Empire Utilities Agency* and of the
Board of Directors thercof

* A Municipal Water District



Resolution No. 2016-4-3

Page 2 of 2
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

) S8
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )

I, Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-4-3 was adopted at a regular mecting

on April 20, 2016 of said Agency* by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
Steven J. Elie
Secretary/Treasurer
(SEAL)

* A Municipal Water District



12210 SjUElD 1D141S1A ¥TIVM TVIDINNW ¥

nn “H uoser Suaby sapinn asidws3 pubjuy ’U

(4gSn) uoneWEPAY JO NEang 4io1193u| o Juswiiedaq *sn

-

wea30.44 asuodsay ysnoag
10} suonedijddy jueun




aLot __(_n_< INWASHO WAV TVADINAW ¥
Bunssw pleog vnal 9402 — afw

(000°0001$) ueun Aousdid
DUE UOI}BAIDSUOY) JDIBAA [BINYNOLBY

(000°00£$) 2uetD A>udl|IsaY IY3nouq

(000‘002$) 3uean A>uadunuod Y3no.q *

sanjunyioddo juean

wesBold asuodsay 3ySnoiq ydsn




910t _CQ< IRELSH LA THAIANIIN ¥
3unaaw pJeod vN3| 940¢ = f.w

(11 aseyd ddl)

109l0.d |] @seud ueld
S921N0SaY palel3alu]
:pasodo.ud 309loid

uejd Sunsixa ue a3epdn 03 4o ue|d
£>uaB8unuod ySnolp mau e dojpAa( «

:Jueldn guluueld

juesn Louaguiuod ysnoiq



rd Eﬁ_ LRALSID BIUYM THIDINOW ¥
9L0z judy unty R E...fw

3unssw pteod vyl 940¥
— - D o . u.umw_O.‘_n_
- 1 y 1=

Hﬂiﬁl@l ] L”._,.H.\\m syuswaAosduw] uiseg €-d4
e - B SF . wednung D[IASUIM NdINY

S :pasodo.d 13lo1d
... o= | Ky \.\
o | et ue|d ysnouq

e 01 spuodsal uoide uonesINW VY
W Snoap yum adod 03 asualjisal poddns «

E—— :JUBJN UOIIDNJIISUOD)

yuean Loualjisay ysnou(



910t _m.—Q/.\ b“xhﬂﬂ-«!g_u,:::«
Supnssw pteog v Il 9405 A ﬁw

sjosuas pue ‘uonegiu| duqg jeanyndudy -
SiaW.e JOJ |B193B] A\Y UOSLId ouly) -
; SEN
,M (4N} NDLISY 10} SAJRA SUIUIRISNS DUNSSDUd MY -
_ :109[04d AduaIdIHg 9SN 491BAA B
UOIIBAIDSUOY) J2IBAA [BIN3NDIBY uiseg ouly) =
:pasodoud 309loid
L 1ySnoup 03 A>udjisad pjing saIUNWWOd djpy
03 AouaIYd asn Ja3em [ednyndide sAotdw| x
sdiysiauyied Joulie) pue PLISIp Jo3em uoddng
g — :JUBJD UOIIdNIISUO)

Juesn £2uaiy3

32 UOIJRAIDSUOY) J)BAA [ednyndLIy



LTHNLSHD WLIVAA TWILANTIY ¥

eoﬁt%
Sunas pJseog vN3l 9409 e mzifj.w

Polold
Aouapiy3 asn Jo1ep
pUE UOI}BAIDSUOD) J21BAA
Jesmjnou8y uiseg ouiyd

Louspiyd
000‘000‘C$ 000‘000°L$ 9 UOIIBAIDSUOD)
J21BAA |EINYNDLSY

sjuswaAoldw] uiseg
€-dY pue ‘edninr ‘S|jIASUIAA
ase Aouagunuo
I Ud 000‘o0¥s 000‘00T$ ELs09
Uejd S921n0say pajedsalu] ysnouq

p3loid vn3li 350D 329l04d | Xe juesn

000‘0LE‘1TS$ 00000€$  Adualpisay I3noia

weigoud

weigouad asuodsay .Em:o._n_

ygsn 104 suonedijddy juean yn3|




9L0¢ __..__ﬁ_d\ b“-m“ﬁggzaig. ,
Sunasw pteod VN3l LyoL s%laﬁmlsasﬂd

‘Bupupulf 153131Ul-moe) pup s3up.g Buinsind fo uoissiw s, A2uasy ay3 YIIm JUaISISUOI'S| pup sajjddns 1230M
|p20) ajqp!f2d fo Juswido]aaap ay3 Ysnolyl Ayjiqgpulpisns aspaJdul 03 UoIssitu s, Aoua8y ay) s3oddns UonIL SIY |

*012J3Y3 SIUWINJ0p
pojead juell Aue pue ‘sjudwaaise adue)sisse [epduUeUY 3y}
91NJ9Xd 03 ‘s9auBISap siy Jo ‘Jageueiy |etauan 3y} SZUOYINY

pue {910 [ludy ul
payuwigns suoijedidde juesd 1oj YESN Y3 UM sluswaa.ge
3JUR)SISSE [EIDUBUY 03Ul JJud 03 Adusdy ayy Suizlioyine
€-b-9107_pue ‘z-b-910t ‘I--910T "SON uolnjosay 1dopy x

I B :
;

uoljepuUaW WOy



Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

INFORMATION
ITEM

3A



Q10T IHdv
Bulsayy siopauliq Jo pirog vN3|

21epdn ue|d jusawaAoidw|
|eyide) JeaA U Z1/9LAA




9 10T pidy 1107
Buyeawy sioal1q Jo pinog y3l

A LSIT HIIVM TVAEIDINNW ¥V

SUaDy SSTI SAdUS pupjul ’;U

uejd ssauisng Aouami3 SN JoIBM 9107 =
ueld $22Jn0say paiei3aiu| 910T =

ue|d Juswa8euey A349u3 SLOT =
a1epdn A8a1e43S WelS0.d Jo3ep) paAday SLOT «
ue|d Juswadeuey 19SSy =

SUOI}EJIUDIUOD
puB S10128}) MO|} pailepdn ue|d JOISBI SIIU[IDRH 191BMDISBAA SLOT =
suolydafoidd yimous Louady JoqUIDIN =

dIDAL ZL/9LA4 DY) JO Su12ALIQ A




@LOC I n_< Ljof LOIMLSIC BILVAL WAIDINOW V

Builsaw slopaliq o pirog vNal Aousby sapin aHduig puoyul f.u

9¢-S¢  S¢-ve ve-Ee Eg¢¢c -1 1¢0¢ 0¢-6T 6181 8BI-LT LI-9T 9151

Sort
—
PEE T
6802 60¢
TSz
VE9Z ,
TI6z
0908 T50E
S0EE sz
96ag

0001

0002

000t

uondalold NG3

000t

000s
uonoalold 9T/STAL m
uonafold ST/PTAI = o
uoiafold FI/ETAL

000L

1SED2104 UIMOJID NQ3J JeaA-0l




Q10T Iudy Lot VTR TGRSR

Buiyeeyy siopauiq jo _n.._UOm <Dm_ Na4/Ggs JOC 8 pdajelli]se smojy Au:mmc.nwt.:g E..&Emt:&:_. IU
(OTST vE'YT i £9WT OVT ETPT WRET SSET ETET SN, 8ETT. LOTT, 586 mmm_am.ﬁ Or6 | 09 .OvTEIOSTE!T8ZT| 978 | 716 | (&S | 0L | 61V, GdM
Vet err wr ot 99t WU sSu ovi  VEL STLlSTL UL oOWL ,oﬂ_.n. o8 * 066 ; #.oa_mm.m :ois..m ‘9801 | 83 wws &..suu i

,,..._nm.nu PE'TE . vmﬁﬂ E“.n._.. mo.,n.n E6OT T80T mmoﬂ .v.m.ca -8E0T mw.cﬂ moo.n vonﬁ 0L% o._”o« 00T Q._mh‘_ G.m LASR A i 105 WY mm.& vwm v.my_i_

e P, ek ;{4,

SE6Z I YTEE TT6L ﬁmmm mwmw _nw.uN 68T omwm (LO'BT OR'LE: mmnN_nmnN omhﬂ Qm.hN oo.mm O¢mm_ov.nm*um.hm BTEE ooum PLLE I TOOE | owmm oN.mm T-gys:

,,mN\w.N VEIEL MQNN NN\HN ﬁN\oN cmsm.n m._..\ma mﬁ\hﬂ, itfat. w.n\mn ST/¥L; vﬁ\ma mﬁ\ﬁ N.na.ﬂ.n\ﬂa o.n\mo—mo\' 180//0; B\ao“mc\mo m§ Emo_mo\uo No\_ﬁo

MALOT LT o L R o e ;0
= {073 BT 13753 > SHOTTE B me
!
- 0T
i . J | | . P . =\ ] | ot
“ | - n | 03
o g
>
b4
-]
0s &
3
..
09 m
799 oL ...M..
i L=
veiL caL 08
oy LS8 |
(1]
00T
£101
Apede) wiaysAs jeuoilay
e . et & e i s it SRR § Q.H.H

SUOID3[01d MO[H J2IBMIISBAA

Aoua3y J9qUIDIN 92/STAH-LL/9LAA




Q10T |Hdy faos
Buyesy sioRalig Jo plirog ynal

LONNISIO HEAVAA IVAIDINNW ¥

Aouaby SO adiug puoiu) fd

IBJ01 dIDAL

puny Aq @3ew3s3 398png dIDAL

9Z-61LAd

6L/8LAH

LLI9L A

OAjelsiUiipy
uondiiasaqg

leo‘Les‘zel 00L°608°82S ShL'ZET'C0L Z8L'6PE06  TVLOL
00529161 000'¥0L'9E 0S2'6.1'9 052°'6.8'9 pung seainossy Jejepi  AAM
6660628 000'S9€'62 G6L'EVL Ve 008'28.L'VT pund Jojeps papphosy  OAA
008'6SY'€S 00S°‘6¥.'GE 00S°'0€.°C1 00866V pund so1epy obieyosy MY
o I S ) aoueusjule|y pue
025°128°2S1L 00022126 000'SPS‘€E 02S'vS8‘'9Z T e e 9)<|
oy B . . pund juaswaAoidw|
00¥'820'G9¢ 000°058'61E 000‘¥710've oov'veELLE A 9} |
. s . e pund lejemalsepn
000°'016°0L 000°'080°6 000°019 000°0SZ°L S ON
‘100" - St e — pun4 SoJIAI9S
Z18'189°21 009'8€S'0 002°089°1 ZL0'69V'Y 919}




9107 |Hdy £4o9
Buysaw siopallq o pavog vNdl

JORLSICE ¥AIVM TVEIDINNW ¥

A>uaby sepjan audusz puopy /.d

£eTeL INO0'Z69 $ IVLOL
pun{ $a0JN0sSaY JOJEAA MM
nWver$ W6'09 8
WNZgl$ WZSLS pun4 iejep) pajoAoay ;M
NPES S WEBYS pung Ja1epp 9bieyosy MH
R B aoueULUIB
WG'2SL $ WOo'LEL $ pue suoneJadQ [euolboy Od
pund
N 0°G9€E $§ W 6'8vE $ Juswianoadw| [eyide) [euoibay Jd
N pund
W60l $ WZLLS 18]1EMBISEAA B|qElUIE[08Y-UON ON
WOzl $ NS6 S pun4 S92IAI8S SAlesSIUIWPY o)

sl

uondiiosag

diDALuaung 18b6png 91/GLAL

B = ———————————————

pun4 £q198png
91/SL A4 0} uosuedwo) dIDAL




910¢ ldy Lol LOTALSIC HZEVA TVIIINAW ¥

Builesw siopallq Jo pirog VN3l Dueby sauyan asiduiz puojuy ,AU

|[eAoiddy 4o} uoiepuswWoddy dIDAL ZL/OL A =
pieogvnal  :gLAeny =

|eaoaddy 104 uonzepusaIIOdDY dIDAL ZH9L A =
993HWwo) Ad1jod G ey =
NJWWO) [ediuydd] g7 udy «
SJUDLILIOY) 10} dIDAL DN 1€ YdJB =

sda31S I1xaN




Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee

INFORMATION
ITEM

3B



-

T
k Infand Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: April 20, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Fjnance, Legal, and Administration Committee (04/13/16)

From: P. Joseph Grindstaff
General Manager
Submitted by: hristina Valencia
Chief Financial Officer/ Assistant General Manager
30/- Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro
Y4 2% Manager of Finance and Accounting
Subject: Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs
RECOMMENDATION

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended February 29, 2016, is an
informational item for the Board of Director’s review.

BACKGROUND

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended February 29, 2016, is submitted
in a format consistent with State requirements. The monthly report denotes investment

transactions that have been executed in accordance with the criteria stated in the Agency's
Investment Policy (Resolution No. 2015-6-3).

Total cash, investments, and restricted deposits of $165,613,510 reflect an increase of $1,662,997
compared to the total reported for January 7016. The increase was primarily due to property tax
receipts.

The average days of cash on hand for the month ended February 29, 2016, increased from 227
days to 234 days. Average days of cash on hand is calculated using the monthly ending balance of
unrestricted cash and cash equivalents divided by disbursements associated with operating
expenses, debt service, and capital expenditures as recorded in the Agency’s cash flow. New
connection fees collected and held by member agencies is excluded from the days of cash on hand
calculation.



Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs
March 16, 2016
Page 2 of 2

The Agency’s investment portfolio average rate of return in February 2016 was 0.775%, an
increase of 0.027% compared to the average yield of 0.748% reported in January 2016. The
increase can be attributed to an increase in the yields of the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
and CalTrust Short-Term Portfolio of 0.021% and 0.050%, respectively.

In March the 2008B bond weekly variable interest rate began increasing from the 0.01% February
average to the current 0.07% average. According to Public Financial Management, the rise in
short term borrowing rates can be attributed to tax season. As money market funds start to lose
investment money, short term barrowing rates increase. Rates should start to normalize again by
June. The current fiscal year average interest is 0.013% which is well within the FY 2015/16
budgeted rate of 1.00%.

The Financial Affairs report is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goal of Fiscal Responsibility
in providing financial reporting that accounts for cash and investment activities to fund operating
requirements and to optimize investment earnings.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.
IMPACT ON BUDGET
The interest earned on the Agency’s investment portfolio increases the Agency’s reserves.

Attachment: February 2016 Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16097 February 16 Board Letter Financial Affairs Report



P1asi 193em TedpPIuny v .

*poriad ayy SurLinp saumyypuadxa UaasaJo] [[B 199w 0} JUIdYINS
aq 0] paadxa are porrad yuow-xIs 1Xau oY) SULIN a|qejieAe aq 0] pajeddrue Spuny ay L,

'§T0Z ‘£ T 2un{ uo pjoy Supsaw Iem3ai syt SuLinp 1012211 Jo pleog s,Aouady SsfiiN

axidurg puequf a3 £q pardope (£-9-G10Z ‘ON Uonnjosay) Ad1jod Jusunsaau] s Aouady sy
Ul PEIS BLISILID A1} YHIM 3IUBPI0IDE Ul PAINIIXS U JARY SUONOBSURI] JUSULSAAUL [[Y

1D181S1G 331V TVADINNW YV
Aouaby sanifin asidw3 pupjuj

9107 ‘67 ATeniqsg papud YIUOW ay3 104
SUIVAAV TVIONVNIL 40 LH40dHd S,HTANSVALL




£15S'056'€91% 01S'ET19'S9T$
L¥1798'719% LZBTFE'T9%
1,61 o182¢Z
7Z¥'85L'9 826'%089
092'906'TS ¥5£'698'2S
PeTF'BLT'ES 6ZLF¥STH
99£'880'Z0T% £89'TLE'EDTS
66Z'T80'TOTS ¥E808L'TOTS
DEG'TLO'YZ 08%'€L6'LT
£¥8'666 £58°666
FEIVOT'L ¥L620T9
000'%L8'E 000'FLB'E
0 080°000°T
LLO'TSS'L S¥R'ESS'L
BLO'L68FE BL0'£68%E
LEL'TRI'TZS 025'6LE'6T$
£L90'L00'TS . 6¥8'065T$
Arenuef Arenuqayg

spsodaq pajILRSaYy PUn ‘SUIUNSIAUT ‘YSD]) (D10

susodad payLIsay [EI0L
sysodag] moaosy
nmosy (LaYHAD) 940
sapuady quop £q pleH susodsg v
SJUNOIIY AJIALSS 1G9

SIB0Uaq PaPISYY

£5usfy a1 03 S[qe[IRAY SIUIULSIAU] PUE YSED [EI0L

sjuamsaAu] [E10],
sonnuy palosuods JUSUHLISAOY 'S
sajoN LInseal], 'S
SJON ULI3 ], Wnipajy
nsodx(] Jo sayeoynIR)
{(dnv)) uresSoad yuswadeur 19S5y BILIC)I[ED
ISNE[e)
(A1v1) pun yusunsaau] Louady [e207]
(daomg) aseyoanday (g47)) Juey SSauISNY SUIZIN)

SUSunSIAU]

STUNO Y TUSWISIANY YUed PUE SHE0ds( Ued YSE)

9102 '62 Aenigad

papu3 yjuoly

BUWIWING JUDW)SOAU] pue Yse)

AONIOV STLLITILLN FHIdNT AONV'INI



080°000°T$

080°000°T$

S¥8°€SS'L$

S¥8'ESSLE

BLO'L6BVES

STBTZ6'S
£9Z%L6'82$

07S6LE°61$

0ZS'6LE'6TS

6¥8'065'T$
£TE'9ES

808TS$

0SZT$

052§

8L¥005°T$

¥85'st
6LZ' LY
9T10'85
66S6VETS

dIWV] [E103NS
[ood
(dIWv)) weidoig Juamafeuey 19SSy BNLIOJED

1SN TE) [BI03QNS
ULI3 [, 110YS
ISNILED

pun, yuaunsasu] £Hualy e rejoygqng
punyg m.:ﬂ—.ﬁ_”m JURINSU] V']
pung pajoLusay-ucN 41y
(11v1) pung Jusunsaan] A>uady [e20]

(daamg) aseyounday gy 1£I01NS
UBOT WOH [e1apad
syuaummsaan] (daamg) asegaranday ga

LSLETLERA T

SUN0IIY JUDY PUp Ysu) IMeL

JUNOIIY JONIeI £9TO JUITUNSIAU[-3IJ Hued S
1UN0DY 193 IRy A2UO ISoM 31 Jo Hueq

yse) JOUQ [€303gng
yse) Anad
SIUN03IY Jued pue [sed 90

sysodaq puetua( [2103gns
IUNODDY Saxe] [[014ed Viog

Junoe0y [[olied (yjog) esuaury Jo yueg
Junosoy uenesusduio) sIaxiom 440

(eaueeg doams ggo £q 18s30) JUNCIDY puewaq g4
STMO Y TUSUISIAN] ey pue Sjsodsq Yueq ysey

910z ‘6¢ Aenige-
papuz Yluop
Kleullung Juawi)saAu] pue yse)

AONIOV SIILIILN FHIdWT GNVINI




67LF¥STS

01
6TLFPS'TS

¥E8'08LTOTS

08¥'EL6'LTS

£862L6'0T
0000009
£86'000'€
¥15'666'L$

L58'666%

£S8'666%

FL6°20T9$

£28'GL0C
$85920C
£22'666
E¥ETO0TS

000%L8°€$

000%LB'ES

$2AI1aS9Y 901AIAS 3G9 [EI0IANS

SJUNOIDY 2I1IATIS 109 VOE
SIUNO022Y JIIAIIS 1920 930
SAAIDSIY 01AIIS 1990

SIS PRIISSH

SJUIUISIAL] IO

sanpuy paiosuods JUSWIUISAOY “§'() [RI0INS
jueq ueo JWOH [B1aped
yueq paID uLle] [e1spag
Hueg Jep Appald
yueg sey stuue
sonnuyg pa10suods JUITILIAACY) “§ ()

saop Aseald], ‘S [e10ns
ajoN Amseaaf,

§8j0N AInseadt ‘SN

STION ULIa |, Winipajpy [e101gns
PYOSOINW
uosuyo] % uosuto(
‘07) 73 asey) ues.Iop Jf
dicy rende) sxeaq uyo|
SO10N UL L, WnIpaw

nsoda( Jo sajesynia) [e30igqng

seda(] Jo sejeaynaa)) patayolg
nsodag jo sajesgpIad

PANIINO] STUSTTISSATIT

910z ‘62 Aenigad
papu3 Yyuoy
BUIWNG JUaUW)SdAU| pue ysed

AINIOV SILLITILLN FHIdNT ONVINI




L66'799'T$

€15056'€91
0TS'ET9G9T$

0TS'ET9'S9TS

LTBT¥T IS

876%089%

8Z6%089%

SE'69825$

66.'GES'E
916%88°C
686222
8£6°20S°C
£65'525'8
88121521
1£6'Y89°ZT$

{aspa.naq) aspa.ouf Apyuoly Mo

91/1¢/1 Jo se syisoda(] pajdlIIsay pUe ‘SIUSUNSIAU] YSEY) [EI0L ;5597
91/62/Z Jo se sysoda( paIdLnsay pue ‘SIUaUISIAU] ‘YSE)) [0,

91027 ‘62 Lipniqa Jo sp sysodaq pajLnsay pup ‘SJUSULISIAU] ‘YSD) [DI0OL

susodaq papaLOsay |30}

$1UN030Y SYHA[ED [EI01GNS

unoxy (Layas) 4440
suAdied

sajouady IaquIs Aq P[aH sHsodad Y2 [e103qns
puerdp jo An)
SI[TH ouly) jo A1)
oLrejuQ Jo A1)
are[ruoy jo £11)
BUBIUO JO £1D
1oL0S1(] 19y £3][BA BdUOWEIN)
oury) jo A1)
sapualy Jaqualy 4q peH susodad Vi)

910z ‘62 Aeniqe
papu3 yjuop
KIBuwilung JusuUijSaAU| pue |sen

AONIOV SIILIILN F¥IdNT ANV'INI




080'000°T$ %S0 080'000'T$ 080°000'T$ 080'000T$ SYUNEIIY JUYD (A0S
———— T T - T T T T
080°000°T$ V/iN 9%65F 0 080000T$ v/N v/N 080000 080°000T$ U L-MeYS
SANOIY JNVI
SEB'ESS' LS %590 SHB'ESS'LS SPRESS'LS SPH'ESS LY SJUNOIY ISNILIED [HOHNS
SYBESS LS v/N %S00 SPB'EGS LE v/N v/N T SPBESSLE SYB'ESS LS LB L-104S
Sy 1SNYLTVY
8L0'L6BYES %L9¥ 0 AL0°L6B'FES 9L0'L68'PES BLOL68FES SN0V A]¥] [DINS
i o U T
SZB'ZI6'S ¥IN LIV 0 SZRZI6 S v/N v/N TSZ8TI6S G826 S pung Sup{uis A1V
ESTFLE'RTS Y/N %L9F0 £STFLE'BTS vIN v/N  ESTFLE'BES ESZ'RLE'RTS spuny paLIsay-UeN
SIUNO0Y IV
0Z5'6LE6TS 9H0E0 DZ5'6LEGLE 0Z5'6LE'618 025'6LE613 sunoday aseqamday 940 [EI03NS
0ZS6LEBTS v/N %0ED 025°6LE6TS v/N ¥/N T 0ZSGLEGLS 0Z5'6LE61S ueoT] SWOH |219pad
sjunodoy (deams) esegoandoy ANEd 6D
FIUSTEIATY
aounjpq Juneay (desmg) asoydnday Apng a1y Aq 1esifo st ouvipg BupiIeyd pubuiap aAlDHaN,
6VE 065 TS V806513 68065 L 6¥8'065 1% SHINOIIY JUSUNSIAU] HUBH
065" pue sjpsadagq qued ‘gse) eIl
(A% Y/N V/N 0522% v/N v/N 0528 05Sz'e$ gseD inad
ELE'9ES %00 ETE'9ES ETE9ES ETE'9ES Moy G511 [EI0ddng
L S T T T
E1E 9ES /N %100 TLEGES v/N v/N TELEOES ELEDES YN PagemoIny pajelapag
(asn) ywed sn
808153 %8BT’ 808'IS$ 8081S$ 808°15$ JUNOJIY IS BT JO HURY [E301G0S
808TS$ VN B0 80B'15$ v/N ¥/N  80875% 0815 Junoay ssawsng - Snid 1E Auoy
159\ oY1 J0 Yueg
£98'Z6! V/N £99'768 £98'26% £98'26% SJUN00Y ¥ Jo g [=oqng
¥BS oY v/N Y¥/N ¥BESY ¥/N ¥/N ~#BSGY ¥BSS¥ Buppay) xe], l[e14eg
6LT'LYS v/N v/N BLELYS v/N ¥/IN  BLZLFS 6LT LS Buppayy fjoaked
{wyog) wopuIy Jo ued
STYLOFTE ST9'LOVTS SIYLOV'TS STOLOFTE sJuNadY A0 [E03qnG
L.
910'8s% V/N V/N 9L085$ vIN v¥/N T 910'85% 9T0'8S Juno2oy uopesuadwo) SII0M
665 6VE T v/N v/N 665'6VETS v/n ¥/N  6696YETS 665'6FETH SIUnoIsY puewa(
(gD e ssou|sN{ STIZOD
anfep afe(] LIt E uadno] ELTETN wonezpdowy | [sAe(q) Junowy Tunowy 5ApOOA | WS |S.APOOW | d%S L
ToRIEN orEp | G PPIA % Rienias, Zieniged | WieL SI58g 3500 T84 HHEd Wpal) | esEipag
% NISTONVHD | Sumeyupsid
910z ‘62 Areniga
papu3 yjucin

PUIlINg Juow)soaAU| pUe YsSe)
AINTOV SIILITILN FHIdNT ONVINI



{a%s £q Suney +vy 01 pspriBumop uaaq aary 5,459 SN TE “TT0Z 803Ny jo sv)

059'690'8Z$ WEVET OBYELE'LZS 6¥5$ 8Z8'2L6'L2$ 000°000'82% senpuy pajosuods 1,400 5 [E10MGNS
0Z8'000'T 61/12/0T %BZFT %Z¥FT 0000001 I9¥T  000'000'T 000'000'T VYV +VY Yeg WpaIr) uLey [el12pa
DTO'000'T 61/80/0T BEFT %OYT 660666 07 19T 000'666 000'000'T VVY VY UEY Weor] Ao [elopag
DBY'900E 6T/20/0T 9%05°T WSTT  ¥H9ELET 8:5 6SE'T  BZE'TLE'Z 000'000'E VYV VY puog Jep SIppalg
DTE'TO0'T 6L/62/L0 %00 %00T  000°000°T T9¥'T  000'000'C 000'000'T VYV VY puog Jejy Slppald
D8D'6Z0'E 61/¥2/90 %257 %ZST 00000072 09%'T 0000002 000'000'2 VYV 4V yueg Jpar) Wi, [e1apa
09E"200'% 61/¥2/S0 %05'T %0ST  $ISE66E A ! 95T 00V'666'E 000'000'% VVY YV PUGH 3B 2jUUE
0FZ'600'E 61/92/%0 %051 %0ST 000000 981'T  000'000'€ 000'000'€ ¥YY VY Hueg uer] AWOH elapay
050'866'C eL/zz/z0 %STT %ST'T  000°000°€ 6.0'T  000'000°E 000'000°E VYV VY Huegq Wpal) uLiey [eiapay
0Z8'ETHT 81/8Z/71 %ES'T %I9T 0000002 65%'T  000'000°Z 000'000'Z ¥VY VY puog el sluuey
09V°E00°C 81/82/11 %0Z°L %0ZT 0000002 £60'T  000'000'C 000'000'Z VWY VYV puog ey Auuey
00T'000°Z 81/62/50 %OZ1T %0Z'T  000'000'Z 00T'T  NOD'000'Z 000'000'2 VWY VY Hueg UBK] IWOH [Bpa4
097'000°C £1/91/%0 %180 %580  £86'000'Z (09) 2ZL 00ST00'Z 000'000'Z YVY VY puog Jel sippalg
099'666'T$ 91/02/90  %8EY %B8E'0  000'000'ZH SSE  000°000°Z§ D00'000°Z$ v¥¥  ¥/N yUeH UBC] AWOH [B13p3]
sapnud pelosuodg JUSIWIBAGY) 'S'[)
0T9'666$ %90 258’6665 T £5¥'6665 000'000"TS SALINSEAL], S [Aoqhg
0T9'666% 91/81/21 %F90 %EF0  15B'6668 T 60T £9¥6665 D0O'000'E$ Y¥W  V/N ajoN Amseall, S
a0\ Amseal] sn
S60FBE'ES %HOZFT 000'PLB'ES 05 DOD'FLB'ES DD0%LB'ES S0 pasayold [I0iqng
DLE'EWZ 0z/20/0T  %SZ'T  %SZT 000°0¥2 £Z8T 000042 000°0¥2 v/N Hueg Auoayafg
L2 0Z/TE/L0  %HIET  WSIT 000'%FZ LEBT 000%E D00%¥2 Y/N dag N asel) Wdl
6SSFFE 0Z/6Z/L0  WIST  %SZ1 000'%¥Z £LZBT 000%¥Z 00042 V/N d;g YN V50 JuBd DHSH
¥86'0%7 ST/9T/L0 %OLT %604 0p0'obz £60T ooo'obz Doo‘DYZ ¥/N uolmua) sseldxy UBIIawWY
¥86'0¥E 8T/9T/L0 %OLT  %OLT 000'0#2 L60T 000°0FE DO0'DFE V/N yueg ssaxdxq uesLlawy
faiat 54 ar/it/1e %OFL  %O0PT 000'0¥2 STe 000°0¥2 000°0¥Z ¥/N EJLIWY TRAON JO HUEEH MW
HOTHE gr/9t/10  %O¥FT  %O¥'T 000'0F2 916 000°0FE 000°0F2 v/N V51 ueg sydes uewplon
1Z8'0¥2 8T/9T/10  %SET  %SET 000'0¥Z 916 0000¥2 000'0¥2 v/N yueq aup fenden
L9E'BVE LI/ %OT'L  %OT'T 000'8¥Z ZEL 000°8%¥Z 000°8¥Z v/N UONRII0SSY [euolieN yueg Aa3
SPERFT £L1/90/11 %WSTT  %STT 000'8¥2 £¥L 000'8%Z 0008k V/N ueg aep e
000°C¥E LU/LT/t0 %0ZT  %0Z'T 000'0¥2 €€L 000'0FE 000'0%E ¥/N jueg uaHEpa
0000¥2 LULT/L0 %STT  %STT 0000¥Z 285 000'0FE 000°0v2 v/N Juey JoA0ISIA
oso'ore LT/ET/L0 HSTT  %HETT 000'0¥2 1EL 000°0¥2 000'0§2 ¥/N yueq rayde) Auswo)
£56'F¥E JATFARAL] %980 %580 000'StZ 266 000°5¥2 000°SHT v/N yuzg ssedwo)
¥56'652 LT/LT/10 %080 %080 000'0%2 zss 000°0¥2 000'0v2 V/N UOOEII0SSY [RUOREN 2UQ [E1dED
£S6'FH2S LT/LT/10 %080 %080 000°SE2% 1ss 000°SHES 000°SH2$ v/N surg Afjy

() 1sadag Jo smeagnus) pasoyolg

{PaTIwes] SISUTSIAN]
BNIBA aeq Ajumep Todno) ELTCTY tuenezpJlomy | (SAB) unoury Junouy s ApoO [ d%S w.hnoo_a_ d%S
PRIEN Aumepy 23 PIREA % Aleniga] Alenigayq mia], S{SE{ 1500 fed Hunyey Jipaay aSBYdINg @
% NISADNVHD | Supeyypar
I
9102 ‘62 Mernuga4

papuT YIUOW
Kiewiuing jusuijSeAuU| pue ysen

AONIOV SILLITLLN FHIdNT ONVINI




VIGGIL EOES OTS'EF9S9LS CELTIGSOTS TLZZBL'SOTS 9T0Z ‘62 Aivnigad fo so spsodaq paiolLsay Pup SFUSURSIAU] Y5P] 10101,
—molTLrToe T T T,

LZOTVZ 295 LZ8T¥T 9% 668 9EF 295 G6ROLY 9% sysodaq papnsed [RI0L

9TR'ZES 918'ZZ$ 918ZZ$ 9TB'ZZ§ syisada(] moIasT [E10AqNS

918728 v/N v/iN o18'7Z$ v/N v/N  91B'ZZ 9TBZLS MOIISH UOMIILISUO] 5[saUaD
sysodag moosyg

976'¥08'9% 376'¥08'9% 000'000'L$ 000°000'L$ sysoda(] SYAdED 12103qns

BZ6¥0B 9% v/N VN 8Z6 V0B 9% ¥/N v/N T 000000'L$ 000°000'L$ Junoxy (LEUAD) 4340
sysodaQ SHALIED

(9102 ‘T€ Arenuz( jo se [0} pajtoday)

EE'698TSS YSE'6R'ESS SE'698TSS SE'698'TSS soppuaby Joquiai A9 pie} sisodad VY2 1PI03qhS
G6LSES E v/N v/N 66LGESE vIN ¥/N TEBLCESE B6LSES E puerdn o 40
9T6PBRE /N ¥/N 9T6%88'E v/N v/N  916'¥BBE 916988 STH oy Jo 4310
686'ZZZ'%6 V/N v/N 686226 V/N VIN  686'ZZZ'6 686'2276 OLIEUQ JO AUD
9£6'Z205'2 ¥/N v/N 8E6'T05°Z v/N viN  BEE'ZOSZ BER'Z0ST arepjuop jo 10
£65'525'8 v/N vIN £65'525'8 v/N v/N  £65'S258 £65'5758 eugUoy Jo A1)
881'ZIS'ZT ¥/N V/N BOTZISZL v/N ¥/N  88TZISZI 8817182t o181 Jare LafpeA eSucurean)
TE6'FB9TTH vIN V/N 1£6%89'21% v/N V/N  1E6'%8971$ TECPBYZTS oy jo A1

sapualy tequisly Aq preH susedad VDD

o e T a—— T T T, T
GTLIYSZE 6ZLFYS LS B6ZLFFSZS 6ZLYFSES SN0 B0jAISS 1924 [EI0L
[1] 8 %0070 0T V/N v/N ot ot SIUNO20Y 3NATaS 1qaJ YOT
6LL VPSS %000 6TL¥PVS'ZS v/N vIN 6TL¥FS'ZE 6TLFVS'ZS S1UNOIIY IALBS 3GH{] H80
SUNe2oY SFelIGIY PUE 201AI9S 1930
RIS PAEETH

(ytpg Sf1 AnIpA JPyInp IUBULSIAL] o a3nog)

SYLLBB LOTS VEG0BLLOLS CBGEBLTOTS €IS FaL 1013 FUIUSIAU] [E10L,
TLZ'EOT'D$ YV YL6T0T'9S (zvs'T$) TLT'LOT'9$ 000°050'9% S3Q0N WAL WPl 1B303qnS
T00Z80°Z 81/90/21 %ITT 9%EFT  EZH'SLOT (1%2) SHO'T  TE9'9L0'Z 000'050'2 VVY  YVWY YosouoI
0b9'8Z0°7 81/50/Z1 %OT'T %S9T  SBS'9ZOT (g92) FHOT  0BY'LZ0E 000°000°2 ¥YY  YVY woswyo| % uosuyo|
065'¥66 8L/ST1/S0 %99'T %EYT  E£ZT'666 8Z LEOT 000666 000°000°T £y v 07 % asey) mesioy 4l
0b6'L66% LI/OT/0T %ITTE %0ZT  EPETO0TS (59) ¥SLT  000F00TS 000000 TS v v daap egyde) aaaaq wyo|
. SHON WIS L WTTESH
SAEA EQ XAmep | uodnoy STEA TOREZIHOUry ®d) Unowy JINOWY S.ADOOW | d¥S |SADOOK | d¥S — _
FHIEN Timen | @ PPR % Tienaqag XEniqas | BIoL 560 1509 Ted A Npely | eeind ©
% NISaONVHD | Bunex upai
9102 '6Z Aenigad
papu3g YIUOW

BUILUNG JUGWIISOAU] PUE [se)
ADNIOV SILLITLLN FHIdWNT ANYINI



000°000°T § S3IDg ¥ S|ID) ‘SAULIMDY [DIO]
%FLOT 000°000'T  § 9}oN WA, WnIpap ¢ asey) uediop 4[ pamep 9102/9z2/Z 1
Aumen 01 pERIA  plos/paimen ALINDAS JUAUNSIAU] uonoesuel], 3e(q ‘ON
uﬂwﬁmmbﬂm junowy Jed

saJes 3 ST[E) 'SeNLINIeW MISUSIAU] ATeniqay

000000 § Sasoyaund jo10 ]
%STT 000000t § HUBH MP3I) ULIE] [BI3PS] peseypang  910Z/2Z/7 1
PIPIA peseypIng £undsg Juaunsaauf U07IBSURL], are( 'ON
JUBUNSIAUL unowy B

SISERINJ AIBnIqaf

9102 ‘62 Aenugo4
papu3 yjuow
Alewwing juswisaAu| pue yse)

AONFOV SILLITILN FHIdWT ONVINI




$69'065'S9TS
%0000
ZSO'BSLESS
V/N . £11'96
v/N . 91085
%0100 £T€9¢E
%0000 o1
v/N 6656¥E'T
%0000 6TL ST
v/N 8767089
v/N #5E'698TS$
PIRIA POISIAU] JUNOTNY
%ELL'O
ZF9'ZERTOLS
%0TF T B08'SZ6ES
%0810 8081S
%IZH'T 000'7L8'ES
%0SL°0 ¥£8'906'L6%
%6¥ET 08V'EL6'LE
%0¥9°0 LSB'666
%SET'T ¥L6°20T9
%0S$'0 080°000°T
%0590 .- S¥8'ESS'L
%.9%'0 ' BLOL6BYE
%00£'0 . DZS'6LE'GTS
PIPTA PaiSaAU] JUROWY

BUWWING JUSW}SOAU| PUE USED

9914435 Jupq 1of seounjnq Buppsuaduios sp pasn spsodaq] jjo4dpd DLWy fo YUDg 210N «

sysoda( paraliq Aouasy [e10L

sjunoy 1110 Jo piaiL abiniaay

SJUNOVY JaQ [P0
LSIWNO20Y I3
UN030Y UONESuUdoT) SIONIOM - YURYH SSIUISNY SUIZAL)
JUNO2Y IS ASUO WSUNS3AU]-21d - UeH S}
SIUNEIDY I0IAI3S 1920 VOTOZ - Jued SN
JUNCODY PUBIUS(] - UBY SSIUISTLY SUSZNI)
SJUNO2OY 991A135 199 4800Z - ued Sf
o0y (LgHdD) 9940 SYadIed
sapualy Jaquialy Aq preH sysodaq yHID

MB35 PUBHS 1910/ ATOSTEl [ /FSPInssy

wingay jo vy oljofii0d JUIULISIAU]
OlJofLI0d JUIULSIAY] [DIOL

JUN000Y 13T A3U0 W 1S3 2 JO Hueyq
nsoda( Jo SIIEIYLLID]) PaIaNoly - SHUB] SNOLEA

sjunoxy Juauysaauj pue jjsodag yueq

sannuy paJosucds JUAUIEIBACY §'[)
saoN AInseal], sn

$3]0N ULID ], WnIpap

dINVD

1STLLLTED

IV

(doamg) aseyoandsy g90
ATOSSTE) TS SAU] poTaaid

910¢ ‘62 Aenige
papu3 Yjuow

AONIOV SIILITILN FHIdNT ANVINI



%Z1
(doams)

aseydinday 94D

ol

%8¢€
SIUNOIIY PIIILIISIY %12
dIv1

4 %t
,| i . xy $310N WLIL, WInIpaj
.rl. _._,.“ o = AT
%Y VA usoda( Jo Sa¥edYIID)
ISnIfe) \.xa.\ /.
dINVYD %L
sannuyg palosuods

04T JUOUILIIAOY "SN

s9)0N AInseal], SN

¥69'065'S9T$
(susodap Mm01Is9 Jo 19U} o1[of3I0d jgaunsaAuf £oudsy
9107 ‘67 Areniqaj papud YIUO 313 104
sIfejjy [epueurq jo 110d9Y S,J9INSEJL],

fHuaby saninn a.ndwg pubjuf



L

%6¢
spuog yjueg
U0 SWOH [e1apay]

%TT
spuog Jep JIppald

%67
Spuog Je S1uuey]

%712
yueq uLIe] [e19pa]

08V'EL6 LTS
O1[0J1I04 Sannug palosuods JUIWUIIA0Y) "S'[)

9102 '6Z Areniqaj papuq PUOK Y1 104
sIrejJy reroueuly jo J1oday s, JaInseal],

Auaby samnn a.ndwyg puojuy




Zl

%71 %71
%82 SOLINSEBAIL SN ANV %L
sanpuy paJosuods /)
JUIUILIDAOT) "S"()

%61
(doamg)
aseyanday g4d)
%¥
Nsoda( Jo SsaLIJNII)
%9

SJ)ON UWLIJL, WNIPIW

%¥E

puny Judwisasu]
A>udly edo]

Z¥9'Z7E€8'T0T$
OI[0J1104 JUSHI}ISIAU] AUdBY pajdLIISaIuf
9102 ‘6Z Areniqaj papug qiuop 3y} 104
sITeJy [eroueury Jo J1oday s J3.Insealy,

Aduaby sanin aJiduig pubjuf




el

Z¥9'Z£8°'I0IS
uoynqLISIq LMD o1jofiiod uausaauj Huaby
9102 ‘6Z Areniqaj papud YIUoW 97} J04
sIejjy [eroueul jo 110day s, J9.anseau],

AHHruaby saninn a4iduig puojuy

A
| %erSh %eE ¥l %58 %0L'1 %96" 1 %SL'19 | woednO
16¥'00L'GL$ 1€9°185'VI$ 9zZe'8E6'V$ is8'62L'1$ 000°000'2$ 0% INNW+NLW+30+36008
025'6.£'61$ _ deomg+bupjoaygm
i 118'20G'EV$ Jsnule + 4ivio
SIA €18AQ SIBBAE 01 T sAeQ 0£L-99€ shed 5o¢c-181 sAeq 08t-1€ sABQ 0€-0 0

000°000°0L$

000'000°02$

000'000°0E$

000°000°0$

000°000°05%

000°000°09%

000'000°04%




145

(1g-L SYWON 9=>¢  PIBIA 4V ajey puog 98007-#~ PISIA AuaBy—e—

SED'0 . =
%590 AR 8

|

|

ﬂ,

|

4 %05L'0
N

|

|

%8YLQ _
%SLL'0

BO00T

uosLipduio) pIaIA o1jofiiod J2urSaAu] Auaby
sIIelJy [epueuiq Jo 110doy S 10.INnsedl ],

AHuaby sainn a.1dutq puopuf




Bunoa pieog
9102 Iudy

9102 ‘6Z Ateniqgag 10}
siiejly jeoueuld

JO jioday s.Ja2inseaul]

LOIELSIA BIIVM TVAIDINNW Y

A3udby sanijg shdui] pupiu] / A‘




%ST %0LT 0'SIS e/u SIIINIBS JUSWILIBADD) S

%1 %9ET FA %0¢€ 53D paJiayoig :SIB3A € JOAD
%9 %ITT T9% %01 SOJON WJaL Wnipay
%IT %0T'T 0TIS efu $3I15AN29S JUBWIUIAAOD §N

%< %EE'T r'es %0E (1D paJyoig SIEBAE O T
% %RED oS e/u S211N23S JUSWUIDACD SN
%1 %90 01s efu 90N Ansealy sn
%I %280 705 %0E 5D palayoig
%I %St 0 01s 0zs dINVD
%61 %0E 0 rers %0% daams — ssaulisng suaziy)
%L %590 945 0zZs snajjey

%VE %Ly 0 6 ¥ES S9s dIV1  ieaj T J2pun ‘Wwia] Hoys

% olloj3lod PIA (uoniw §) (uoyjjw g} uopdipsag wag
Wwaun)y anjeA JaunsaAu] PIoysaiyL ajqemojy

L Lee TET {sAep) pueH uo yse) agesony

S00 660 v0T (s1eaA) uoneing aBesoay palyBiam

%L200 %8FL 0 %SLLO PI21A 011041104 JUBWISIAU|

L0S TTOTS 8 T0TS 01]0J110d JUSWISSAU| |10,

L1% 6 €9T% 9'991S susodag palol1say pue ‘SJUSWSaAU| ‘Yse) jelol

(uoypw §) (uojjiw §) (uopg §) uonduosag
{eseassaq) aseasdu) 910z Adenuer 910z Atenugag

SRS S~ L= Sl e B e m L S SRR 115, W= LSS 1o
siiejjy jeisueuiqd jo jioday



PoIILISEY «  SIUBWISIAUI N YSED

91-q94 o9rT-uer ST-33a GT-AON  ST-10 gi-des  §1-3ny

ST-Inf ST-unr  ST-AeW  ST-idy  ST-IBN

0%
- 05
- OvS
- 09$

Ry B B

sysodag pa1oLIIsay pue SjudISAAU| ‘Yse)

sjisodag
P3)OLI}SAY pue SIUBWISDIAU| ‘Ysed



pueH uo yse) sheg

dx3 o8esaAy SO 2T - pUBH uo yse) sheq

91-q34 gt-uef qT-32g ST-AON ST-10

0 = 1 L — "

0s
00T
04T
00¢Z £8T SLT

60Z
i Lze

0s5¢ vET

- 05$
0TS
- B . - 0STS$
el : vT T
€21 0LT 64T

SjuDWaSINGSIQ {210 M sjusjeainb3 ysed pue ysed palauisaiun

ST-des ST-8ny ST-INT ST-unf ST-AEN qT-idy ST-1BIN
W Om

- 00Z$

S\ T4

Suijjoy SOl ZT - pueH uo yse) sAeq

abeiaAy Buljjoy SYJUOWN Z1L
pueH ug ysegn Aeq

SUOIIILAI U]



[118-1 SYIUOIN 9=36=  PI3IA JIV]—"—  D}ey puog G8007~ill=  PIBIA ADUSBY ==
Y & o N 0 ) A S 3 A ) B
& S » x° £y ¥ & & K x Ry ~
av X A o o A (A A N o 5 o
' i I_. Il .lll.._ L- i L.' i . L .l’ B Alf..l *mwoo L — ..E.F“wmnomicl.m.vﬂlhlugk_ gooo.o
%0T00 %010 0 %0700 %0T0 0 %0100 %0700 %0700 T ~e %R0 %0200 “
%5800 _
. %00T 0 %S0T 0
%p0T 0 %eIT 0 M
%ELT O W
%807 0 " %0SC0
e e —— . . %062°0 %E]C'0 %8LCO
- %0ZE'D %0EE0 %020 PEESE0
%LSE0
—— . - %0050
1150 %EOSD %G80
o %EGS'0
%SE90 : ®0TY0  %EC90
%¥S9'0 %590 %8190
- %0840
%87L'0
%SLLO
~ %000°T

uosuedwo’n pISIA
01]0J310d pu3z Yjuo\



b:.ﬁ...m:omm& joosif
Jo [poB ssauisnq s,Aouaby ay3 Yum Juaisisuod si Siofly [pioupuid Jo 110day s,.42nsp3.4) Y]




	Agenda page 1
	Agenda page 2
	Agenda page 3
	Agenda page 4
	Agenda page 5
	Consent 1A
	Consent 1B
	Action 2A
	Action 2B
	Action 2C
	Action 2D
	Action 2E
	Action 2F
	Action 2G
	Action 2H
	Action 2I
	Action 2J
	Info 3A
	Info 3B

